
                    
 
 
                                                                                                                                               
 
 
 

 

 
                                            
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
BOARD MEETINGS 

 

January 30-31, 2014 

Austin, Texas 

 

1



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

2



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Trust Committee Meeting 

(Formerly the Parrie Haynes Committee) 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, January 30, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Jimmy Smith  

2. March 22, 2013 meeting minutes for the former Parrie Haynes Committee 
Jimmy Smith 345 

3. Discussion and possible authorization to execute a deed for Bell County to 

upgrade the entry road to the Parrie Haynes Ranch  

Brett Bray, 

Chelsea Buchholtz 

& Vanessa Burgess 

 

83 

4. Discussion and consideration of a mineral rights lease within the boundaries 

of the Parrie Haynes Ranch with Scully Exploration  

Brett Bray & 

Chelsea Buchholtz 

 

87 

5. Discussion and direction on the development of the Federal Habitat 

Conservation Plan for the Parrie Haynes Ranch 

Brett Bray, 

Chelsea Buchholtz 

& Vanessa Burgess 

 

91 

6. Report on a new grazing lease on the Milam County tract of the Parrie Haynes 

Ranch  

Brett Bray &  

Vanessa Burgess 

 

93 

7. Discussion of a hunting lease with the C-5 Corporation at the Parrie Haynes 

Ranch  

Brett Bray 

 

 

349 

8. Report on financial settlement from Oncor for damages at the Parrie Haynes 

Ranch  

Brett Bray 

 

 

95 

9. Discussion of the use of trust funds for administrative purposes  
Brett Bray N/A 

10. Closed Session – Executive Session 

a. §551.071 consultation with legal counsel (see footnote) 

b. §551.072 deliberation regarding real property 
Jimmy Smith N/A 

11. Adjourn 
Jimmy Smith  

  

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meeting may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 

 

3



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

4



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 
Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, January 30, 2014 – 11:00 a.m. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 
 

Presenter 
Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Calvin Stephens  

2. October 17, 2013 meeting minutes  
Calvin Stephens 351 

3. Updates from the Chief Information & Technology Officer  
Elaine Mays 359 

4. Updates from the Chief Financial Officer 
 

Mike Meyer 363 

5. Contract items requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, 

material changes, and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board 

review and action  

a. Ayres Halfway House 

b. University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB) 

Ken Ming 63 

6. Architectural & Engineering Needs for Corsicana Residential Treatment 
Center 

Ken Ming &  

Art Hinojosa 
N/A 

7. Endowment Trust Funds Audit 
Eleazar Garcia 67 

8. Follow-up on prior audit recommendations 
Eleazar Garcia 383 

9. Adjourn 
Calvin Stephens  

 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meeting may include a quorum of the Board in attendance 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 
 

5



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

6



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, January 30, 2014 – 2:00 p.m. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Joe Brown  

2. July 25, 2013 meeting minutes 
Joe Brown 399 

3. October 17, 2013 meeting minutes 
Joe Brown 405 

4. Office of the Inspector General update 
Roland Luna 29 

5. Administrative Investigations update 
Kevin DuBose 415 

6. State Programs and Facilities update 
Teresa Stroud 429 

7. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship and Religious Education and 37 

TAC §380.9317, relating to Access to Personal Minister, Pastor, or Religious 

Counselor, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period   

 

Teresa Stroud 

 

 

 

97 

8. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9312, relating to Visitation, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public 

comment period 

Karol Davidson 

 

 

 

103 

9. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9333, relating to Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation, in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Karol Davidson  

 

 

113 

10. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice 

Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers, in the Texas Register for a 30-

day public comment period  

Chelsea Buchholtz 

 

 

 

 

125 

11. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of 

Understanding, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Ken Ming 

 

 

 

133 

12. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to 

Contracts, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period   

Ken Ming 

 

 

 

141 

13. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.1 - §341.4, §341.9, 

§341.10, §341.16, §341.35 - §341.41, §341.65 - §341.71, and §341.80 - 

§341.91  

James Williams 

 

 

 

 

157 

7



14. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions for 37 TAC 

Chapter 341 and Chapter 344, and final adoption of the proposed rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.28, §341.29, and 

§344.800  

Lisa Capers 

 

 

 

 

181 

15. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.20, §341.47 - §341.56, 

and §341.60  

Mike Meyer 

 

 

 

187 

16. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8501, 

§§380.8503 – 380.8555, §§380.8559 - 380.8569, and §380.8575  

Teresa Stroud 

 

 

 

197 

17. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 342 and Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following 

rules: §§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8571, and §380.8595  

James Williams 

 

 

 

245 

18. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8502, 

§380.8557, and §380.8579  

Chelsea Buchholtz 

& Karol Davidson 

 

 

257 

19. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9198, relating to Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health 

Purposes  

Dr. Parikh 

 

 

 

267 

20. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9723, relating to Use of Force  

Teresa Stroud 

 

 

275 

21. Discipline of Certified Officers Default Judgment Order  

a. Tyrone McDonald, Docket #14-22560-130102 (Harris) 

b. Everett Green, Docket #14-25374-130125 (Dallas) 

c. Tiara Hodge:   Docket # 14-27220130254 (Milam) 

d. Jessica Maupin:  Docket # 13-25800 (Bexar) 

e. Emmanuel Munoz: Docket #13-25847 (Cameron) 

f. Russell Overly: Docket #13-28473-130079 (Lubbock) 

g. Juan Vera:  Docket # 14-258628-130098 (Brownsville) 

Brett Bray 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

285 

22. Adjourn 
Joe Brown  

 
- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meeting may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 

 

8



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Programs Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, January 30, 2014 – 3:30 p.m. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Dr. Olvera  

2. October 17, 2013 meeting minutes 
Dr. Olvera 447 

3. State facilities performance tracking  
Teresa Stroud Handout 

4. Gang Intervention Program  
Teresa Stroud 451 

5. Adjourn 
Dr. Olvera  

 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meetings may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov  

9



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

10



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 
Austin, TX 78758 

Friday, January 31, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 
 

Presenter 
Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Chairman Fisher N/A 

2. Prayer 
Abraham Lopez N/A 

3. Pledge 
Chairman Fisher N/A 

4. Excuse absences 
Chairman Fisher N/A 

5. Public comments 
Chairman Fisher N/A 

6. October 18, 2013 board meeting minutes (Action) 
Chairman Fisher 15 

7. Report from the Chairman 
Chairman Fisher N/A 

8. Report from the Executive Director 
Mike Griffiths Handout 

9. Report from the Inspector General 
Roland Luna 29 

10. Report from the Advisory Council & recognition of the Standards Committee 
Members 

Mike Griffiths 

Estela Medina 
31 

11. New appointments to the TJJD Advisory Council (Action) 
Mike Griffiths 37 

12. Overview of the strategic planning process 
Lisa Capers 49 

13. Report from the Programs Committee 
Dr. Olvera N/A 

14. TJJD Ethics Policy (Action) 
a. Discussion of new policy 
b. Discussion and possible approval of amendment to Board 

Governance Manual 

Brett Bray 59 

15. Naming of the Brownwood Halfway House (Action)  Teresa Stroud 

 

N/A 

16.  Report from the Finance and Audit Committee  Calvin Stephens 

 
N/A 

17. Contract items requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, 
material changes, and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board 
review and action  (Action)  

a. Ayres Halfway House 
b. University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB) 

Ken Ming 

 

 

 

 

63 

18. Endowment Trust Funds Audit (Action) 
Eleazar Garcia 67 

19. Report from the Trust Committee 
Jimmy Smith N/A 

20. Discussion and possible authorization to execute a deed for Bell County to 
upgrade the entry road to the Parrie Haynes Ranch (Action)  

Brett Bray, Chelsea 

Buchholtz & 

Vanessa Burgess 

83 

11



21. Discussion and consideration of a mineral rights lease within the boundaries 
of the Parrie Haynes Ranch with Scully Exploration (Action)  

Brett Bray & 

Chelsea Buchholtz 
87 

22. Discussion and direction on the development of the Federal Habitat 
Conservation Plan for the Parrie Haynes Ranch (Action)  

Brett Bray & 

Vanessa Burgess 
91 

23. Report on a new grazing lease on the Milam County tract of the Parrie Haynes 
Ranch  

Brett Bray & 

Chelsea Buchholtz 
93 

24. Report on financial settlement received from Oncor for damages at the Parrie 
Haynes Ranch  Brett Bray 95 

25. Report from the Safety & Security Committee Joe Brown N/A 

26. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 
§380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship and Religious Education and 37 
TAC §380.9317, relating to Access to Personal Minister, Pastor, or Religious 
Counselor, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period (Action)  

Teresa Stroud 

 

 

 

97 

27. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 
§380.9312, relating to Visitation, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public 
comment period (Action)  

Karol Davidson 

 

 

103 

28. Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 
§380.9333, relating to Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation, in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period. (Action)  

Karol Davidson 

 

 

113 

29. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 
proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice 
Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers, in the Texas Register for a 
30-day public comment period (Action) 

Chelsea Buchholtz 

 

 

 

125 

30. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 
proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of 
Understanding, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 
(Action)  

Ken Ming 

 

 

 

133 

31. Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 
proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to 
Contracts, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period  (Action)  

Ken Ming 

 

 

141 

32. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.1 - §341.4, §341.9, 
§341.10, §341.16, §341.35 - §341.41, §341.65 - §341.71, and §341.80 - 
§341.91 (Action)  

James Williams 

 

 

 

157 

33. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions for 37 TAC 
Chapter 341 and Chapter 344, and final adoption of the proposed rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.28, §341.29, and 
§344.800 (Action)  

Lisa Capers 

 

 

 

181 

34. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.20, §341.47 - §341.56, 
and §341.60 (Action)  

Mike Meyer 

 

 

187 

35. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8501, 
§§380.8503 – 380.8555, §§380.8559 - 380.8569, and §380.8575 (Action)  

Teresa Stroud 

 

 

197 

12



36. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 342 and Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following 
rules: §§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8571, and §380.8595 (Action) 

James Williams 

 

 

245 

37. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review 
for 37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8502, 
§380.8557, and §380.8579 (Action)  

Chelsea Buchholtz 

& Karol Davidson 

 

257 

38. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC 
§380.9198, relating to Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health 
Purposes (Action)  

Dr. Parikh 

 

 

267 

39. Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC 
§380.9723, relating to Use of Force (Action)  

Teresa Stroud 

 
275 

40. Discipline of Certified Officers Default Judgment Order (Action)  
a. Tyrone McDonald, Docket #14-22560-130102 (Harris) 
b. Everett Green, Docket #14-25374-130125 (Dallas) 
c. Tiara Hodge:   Docket # 14-27220130254 (Milam) 
d. Jessica Maupin:  Docket # 13-25800 (Bexar) 
e. Emmanuel Munoz: Docket #13-25847 (Cameron) 
f. Russell Overly: Docket #13-28473-130079 (Lubbock) 
g. Juan Vera:  Docket # 14-258628-130098 (Brownsville) 

Brett Bray 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

285 

41. Closed Session – Executive Session 
a. §551.071 consultation with legal counsel (see footnote) 
b. §551.072 deliberation regarding real property 
c. §551.074 discussion of personnel matter 

Chairman Fisher 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

42. Reconvene in open session, discussion and possible action regarding matters 
deliberated in closed Executive Session (Action) 

Chairman Fisher 

 
N/A 

43. Discussion and approval of the Delegation of Authority to the Executive 
Director to complete transfer of certain property not utilized at time of 
transfer (Action)  

Brett Bray 

 

 

343 

44. Adjourn Chairman Fisher 

 
 

 
- The Texas Juvenile Justice Department Board reserves the right to limit the time and scope of public comments as deemed appropriate by the Board. 

- The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department reserves the right to take formal board action on any posted agenda item if necessary. 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department may go into closed session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act as codified in Texas 
Government Code Section 551.071 with respect to any item. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov  

13



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

14



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H, Austin, Texas 78757 

Friday, October 18, 2013 – 9:00 a.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:        
Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman    Scott Matthew 
The Honorable John Brieden III    Dr. Rene Olvera 
The Honorable Laura Parker    Melissa Weiss 
The Honorable Jimmy Smith     MaryLou Mendoza (arrived 9:14 a.m.)    
Becky Gregory       
Jane Anderson King        
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Joseph Brown 
 
EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 
Mike Griffiths, Executive Director    Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 

Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor   Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director 

Brett Bray, General Counsel    Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 

Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer Jim Hurley, Communications Manager 

Amy Lopez, Sr. Director, Education Services  Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

Lisa Capers, Sr. Director, Administration & Training Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Teresa Stroud, Sr. Director, State Programs & Facilities  

James Williams, Sr. Director, Probation & Community Services 

 

15



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 
 
Brandy Baptiste, Travis Co. Estela Medina, Travis Co. Darryl Beatty, Travis Co. 

Steve Roman, TJJD Karol Davidson, TJJD Ashley Kintzer, TJJD 

David Tumlinson, Cameron Co. Kimberly Schmid, Lt. Gov. Office Kenneth Ming, TJJD 

Phil Hayes, Cass Co. Glen McKenzie Doug Vance, Brazos Co. 

Keith Yawn, House Approp. Pete Heller, TJJD Xavier Casares, TJJD 

Jose D. Castillo, Cameron Co. Connie Simon, TJJD Sheri Short, Navarro College 

Lesly Jacobs, TJJD Debbie Unruh, Ombudsman Chelsea Buchholtz, TJJD 

Christina Ybarra, TJJD Tammy Holland, TJJD Kevin DuBose, TJJD 

John Isle, TJJD Vanessa Burgess, TJJD Kevin Niemeyer, LBB 

Kavita Gupta, TJJD Rebecca Thomas, TJJD Katrena Plummer, TJJD 

Jeannette Lepe, TJJD Lucy Rodriguez, TJJD Terri Dollar, TJJD 

Dorothy Roberts, TJJD Shakira Pumphrey, Speaker’s ofc Scott Friedman, TJJD 

M.A. MacLeod, TJJD Lesley French, TJJD Fred Meinke, TJJD 

Efrain Resendez, TJJD   

 

 

 

16



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Call to Order 

Chairman Fisher called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m.  A quorum was present.   

Prayer 

Mr. Abraham Lopez, TJJD employee, opened the meeting with a prayer.   

Pledge 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Excuse Absences 

Ms. Jane King moved to excuse the absence of Mr. Joseph Brown and Ms. MaryLou Mendoza.  Mr. Calvin 

Stephens seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  (Ms. Mendoza arrived at 9:14 a.m.) 

Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

 

Report from the Chairman 

Chairman Scott W. Fisher provided the members an informational packet for BoardEffect software.  The 

on-line tool will assist with managing board business including communication and materials.  If we 

choose to utilize this software, we hope to begin using it before the January Board meeting. 

 

August 30, 2013 Board Meeting Minutes 

Mr. Scott Matthew moved to approve the August 30, 2013 meeting minutes.  Ms. King seconded.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

Report from the Executive Director 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director, provided a written report to the board.  The Corsicana Residential 

Treatment Center (CRTC) closure plan was submitted to the Legislative Budget Board (LBB) and Senior 

Leadership as directed by the rider.  Internal and external case reviews at CRTC were completed for the 

72 youth currently at the facility.  He and Chairman Fisher met with Speaker Straus’s office and at the 

request the Legislative Budget Board (LBB) Senate members.  Meetings were held with their staff 

regarding the closure plan submitted to the LBB.  TJJD leadership, the Office of the Independent 

Ombudsman, the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) and UTMB Medical Services are meeting weekly 

to gauge the safety and treatment needs of youth at CRTC.  Mr. Griffiths advised the board that he and 

Senior Directors Teresa Stroud met with Corsicana staff earlier this week, they expressed the concern 

from staff that the delay of the decision by the LBB is having a huge impact on youth and their families 

and our staff and their families causing stress and anxiety.  It is also affecting us, agency wide, in regard 

to our deliberate attempt to keep staff positions available in the event that the closure plan is accepted. 

17



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Mr. Griffith’s highlighted statistics for probation commitments to TJJD, new referrals to probation 

departments, state average daily population and in the community, showing a decline in most categories. 

The average daily population in state facilities has declined by almost 200 youth.   

 

Mr. Griffiths reported that most recently, he visited the Gainesville facility, attending their football game 

and their volunteer appreciation event.  He also visited Mart and Giddings and attended the Chief’s 

conference.  He stated the remainder of his written report shows the many good things going on in our 

facilities. 

 

Report from the Inspector General 

Chief Inspector General Roland Luna provided an OIG investigative analysis for FY 2013.  A total of 

11,854 incidents were reported to the Incident Reporting Center (IRC) with the following referrals being 

made; 622 to Administrative Investigations–State; 1,198 Probation–County; 1,716 were re by OIG for 

criminal investigations; 5,763 to Youth Rights;1,570 to State Programs and 985 were closed which 

includes directives called into the IRC and duplicate cases.  OIG submitted 411 criminal investigations 

cases for prosecution; 492 active directives to apprehend were issued, 81 were conducted by OIG and 

290 were conducted by other agencies in which OIG provided intelligence.  The FY 2013 investigative 

life cycle was 430 days; a decrease of 172 days.  An improvement of 258 days was attributed to 

partnering with State Programs, General Counsel and other divisions in the agency.  The Board 

acknowledged and commended Chief Luna on the significant improvement. 

 

Report from the Advisory Council 

Ms. Estela Medina, Advisory Council Chair, provided updates on the priority areas the council has been 

working on; funding and appropriations, Standards Sub-Committee, Sub-Committee on Parole Services, 

performance measures and program evaluations and costs of probation study.  Per the requirement in 

HB 2733, Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities is the newest member to the 

Advisory Council.  The next council meeting is scheduled for November 22, 2013.  In response to a 

question by Ms. MaryLou Mendoza, Ms. Medina explained the Standards Sub-Committee will work 

closely with TJJD staff to review current standards and modify them where necessary.  However, no 

changes to standards will be made final until approved by the Board. 

 

 

 

 

18



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Report from the Finance & Audit Committee 

Mr. Calvin Stephens reported that the committee met yesterday and discussed with staff many of the 

items on today’s agenda and requested to go straight to those items. 

 

Board authorization to designate a housing allowance for Chaplains 

Chairman Fisher explained the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) provision permitting ministers who meet 

the IRS definition to exclude a designated amount of their salary from federal income tax as a housing 

allowance.  The agency is requesting Board approval to designate up to the percentage requested by 

each Chaplain as a housing allowance for November 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 and for those 

who’ve requested, January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.  Chairman Fisher confirmed the agency 

only authorizes the percentage requested.  It is the Chaplains responsibility for reporting to the IRS.  Mr. 

Stephens moved to approve the resolution as submitted for authorization to designate a housing 

allowance for TJJD Chaplains for November 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013.  Ms. King seconded.  

The motion passed unanimously.  Mr. Stephens moved to approve the resolution as submitted for 

authorization to designate a housing allowance for TJJD Chaplains for calendar year 2014.  Ms. Mendoza 

seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Contract items requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, 
and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board review and action 

a. Cornell Corrections of Texas, dba Abraxas 
b. Associated Marine Institute Kids (AMIkids) 
c. Byrd’s Foster Group Home 
d. Gulf Coast Trades Center 
e. Unity Children’s Home 
f. University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB) 

Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts, presented adjustments to contract not-to-

exceed amounts for residential service contracts.  The Board previously approved the agency to renew 

these contracts.  At that time, the agency budget had not been finalized.  The contract amounts are being 

adjusted to match the projections for the contract bed facilities.  In response to a question by Chairman 

Fisher, Mr. Ming stated these amounts fall within the current budget guidelines.  Regarding the UTMB 

contract, because the Board will not meet again before the end of the year, the agency requests Board 

approval of a 60-day contract extension to allow staff time to finalize negotiations of the contract 

renewal.  Mr. Stephens moved to approve the resolution as presented.  Mr. Jimmy Smith seconded.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

19



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Non-secure residential program services 

Mr. Ming reported the agency recently conducted a Request for Proposal (RFP) process for non-secure 

residential services.  The agency received 4 proposals and is in the final stages of the evaluation process. 

 The agency is requesting the Board authorize the Executive Director to enter into negotiations and 

execute contracts for non-secure residential program services.  Ms. King moved to approve the 

resolution as presented.  Judge Laura Parker seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Audit of Giddings State School 

Mr. Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor, reported the Giddings State School audit was conducted as 

part of the facility audits required by Senate Bill 653.  The objective was to determine compliance with 

required operations and protection of youth rights.  Recommendations to strengthen controls and 

improve accountability were provided to management.  Management concurs with the results and has 

provided responses, included with the recommendations at the end of the report.  In response to a 

comment made by Judge Brieden, Mr. Garcia confirmed the seven radios reported missing during the 

audit were not in fact missing but had been sent for maintenance and not appropriately accounted for.  

He further clarified the concern is with the process taken to identify their existence.  Ms. Mendoza 

moved to approve the audit.  Judge Carol Bush seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Audit of Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 202 

Mr. Garcia reported the objective of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 202 was to determine if the 

agency complies with the requirements.  TAC 202 Information Security Standards are set by the 

Department of Information Resources (DIR) and apply to state agencies.  In conducting the audit, it was 

found the agency does not fully comply.  While threats to the agency’s information resources are being 

monitored, management over information security controls need strengthening to ensure protection of 

the agency’s information resources.  Revisions and enhances are being made to the business continuity 

plan to minimize the effects of a disaster.  Management concurs with the results of the audit and has 

provided responses, included with the recommendations at the end of the report. 

 

In regards to the Business Continuity Plan, Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer, stated 

that while the agency was located at the Brown Heatly Building, it was included, operated and supported 

in the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan.  

Due to the change in office locations, the agency now has to develop its own plan.  This will be a 

challenge because we don’t have all the available resources we had while under the HHSC plan.  Further 

discussion ensued regarding the process involved and resource needs in establishing an alternative 

20



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

operational site and duplicative technology hardware equipment, should there be a disaster.  A final plan 

is expected to be completed by May 2014.  Chairman Fisher requested the agency provide a status report 

on this process at the March Board meeting.  Ms. Melissa Weiss moved to approve the audit.  Mr. Scott 

Matthew seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Audit of Agency Monitoring and Reporting 

Mr. Garcia reported the objective of this audit was to assess agency monitoring activities.  The agency 

can build on current practices to strengthen monitoring of its processes to enhance its abilities to 

achieve stated goals and expectations.  There are three lines of oversight for the agency:  management, 

compliance and legal assurance and independent assurance (external reviews).  Agency monitoring 

practices vary by division.  Staff noted challenges to monitoring their respective areas.  While agency 

monitoring could be strengthened, there are identified best practices within divisions that are being 

shared to provide guidance to the agency including Medical Services, Monitoring and Inspections 

Division, Information Resources and Construction and the Engineering Division.  There were no 

recommendations issued as a result of this audit.  Chairman Fisher asked Mr. Griffiths to address the 

challenge of not having budgeted data readily available in order to track costs.  Mr. Griffiths reported the 

implementation of the legislatively mandated CAPPS automated system will ensure that accurate data is 

provided sooner.  Mr. Griffiths offered to provide a status report at the March Board meeting.  Ms. King 

moved to approve the audit.  Dr. Rene Olvera seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

Mr. Garcia reported the most current Internal Audit Charter was completed and approved by the Board 

in September 2012.  He identified proposed changes to the charter as administrative in nature.  Mr. 

Smith moved to approve the revised charter.  Ms. Mendoza seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

FY 2013 Internal Audit Annual Report 

Mr. Garcia stated the report is required to be submitted to the Governor’s office, LBB, the State Auditor’s 

office (SAO) and the Sunset Advisory Commission by November 1, 2013.  The SAO provides guidelines in 

the seven areas to be reported:  compliance with House Bill 16, Internal Audit Plan for FY 2013, 

consulting engagements and non-audit services completed, external quality assurance review (peer 

review), Proposed Internal Audit Plan for FY 2014, external audit services and the process for reporting 

suspected fraud and abuse.  Chairman Fisher stated the audit plan is a valuable resource for the Board 

and welcomed members to let him know if they would like to have something included in the proposed 

21



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

plan.  Ms. King moved to approve the Internal Audit Annual Report.  Ms. Weiss seconded.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

FY 2014 Annual Audit Plan 

Mr. Garcia presented the proposed FY 2014 Annual Audit Plan outlining the priority areas for audit 

projects and other administrative projects to be conducted in FY 2014:  Endowment Funds; Facilities, 

Medical Services to youth, staff development and training, human resources, risk management, Gang 

Intervention Program, fixed assets, student transportation and community relations.  In response to a 

question by Ms. Mendoza, Mr. Garcia stated there is currently a Gang Intervention Program in place and 

the objective of that audit will be to assess the controls of the program and to ensure compliance with 

the legislative mandate.  Mr. Griffiths further elaborated on the current program and the agency’s plan to 

enhance the program through a collaborative effort of many divisions.  Judge Brieden moved to approve 

the FY 2014 Annual Audit Plan.  Mr. Matthew seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Chairman Fisher called for a 15 minute break. 

 

Report from the Programs Committee 

Dr. Olvera provided an overview of the items heard by the Programs Committee at yesterday’s meeting.  

Ms. Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities presented her plan for program 

performance tracking at each state facility.  Ms. Stroud and Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director, also 

discussed their closure plan for the transition of staff and youth at the CRTC.  Dr. Olvera commended 

them for their preparedness and thorough plan.  Amy Lopez, Senior Director of Education Services, 

provided an update on the Career Academy.  Regarding the Career Academy, Dr. Olvera stated that 

roughly one quarter of the youth in our facilities have already obtained their high school diploma or 

GED, therefore are in need of additional programming and continuing education provided through the 

career academy.  The program thus far has been successful and there is currently a waiting list to enter 

the program.   

 

Report from the Safety and Security Committee 

Chairman Fisher stated Mr. Joseph Brown chairs the committee but was not present at yesterday’s 

meeting, leaving Judge Parker to conduct the meeting in his absence.  There was not a quorum so no 

votes were taken on any of the items on the committee agenda.  Judge Parker reported they reviewed 

and considered variance requests, changes to standards (both ministerial and some of interest) and 

requests for default judgment orders. 

22



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Review, discussion, and possible action regarding the Travis County Juvenile Board Application 

for Permanent Variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 343.634 Related to 

Requirements for Levels of Resident Supervision in Multiple Occupancy Housing Units 

Scott Friedman, Monitoring and Inspections Division, presented the applicants variance request.  Based 

on a review of the application, staff believes the applicant has satisfactorily and affirmatively addressed 

the evaluation criteria for safety.  Therefore, the staff recommends the Board approve Travis County’s 

variance request.  Mr. Friedman addressed minor modifications to the resolution included in the board 

materials correcting the date on the resolution and the correction to the acronym for the Intermediate 

Sanction Center (ISC).    These changes have been made in the final resolution for Chairman Fisher’s 

signature.  Mr. Matthew moved to approve the resolution granting Travis County’s variance request.  

Judge Parker seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Review, discussion, and possible action regarding the Cameron County Juvenile Board 
Applications for Permanent Variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Sections: 

a. 343.352 Related to Requirements for Resident Visitation;  
b. 343.354 Related to Requirements on Limitations on Resident Visitation;  
c. 343.358 Related to Requirements for Resident Telephone Use; 
d. 343.360 Related to Requirements for Resident Mail; 
e. 343.600 Related to Requirements for Pre-Admission Records;  
f. 343.606 Related to Requirements for Resident Orientation 

Mr. Friedman presented Cameron County’s request for six individual variance applications involving 

visitation, telephone, mail, admission criteria and resident orientation criteria.  The variances are  

necessary due to the nature of the proposed program to establish a secure post adjudication weekend 

program and because the post adjudication standards were written with no anticipation for weekend 

programming so some of the traditional intake, admission and case planning strategies are not relevant 

to weekend programming.  TJJD Staff met with the Cameron County staff extensively and each 

application met the evaluation criteria.  The six applications were consolidated into one proposed 

resolution and staff recommends the variance requests be granted.  Ms. King moved to approve the 

resolution granting Cameron County’s variance requests.  Dr. Olvera seconded.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

23



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions and one new rule in 37 TAC 

Chapter 343 in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period for the following rules: 

§343.100, §343.322, §343.406, §343.407, §343.600, §343.800, §343.804, §343.816 

Mr. Griffiths requested the Board table this item to allow staff additional time to review comments 

received from stakeholders.  Ms. King moved to table this item.  Judge Brieden seconded.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9198, relating to 

Therapeutic Restraints, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Ms. Stroud and Dr. Parikh jointly presented a summary of the proposed revisions.  The rule will now 

refer to four-point restraints, rather than therapeutic restraints.  It has been narrowed to apply to only 

four-point restraints rather than all restraints and clarification has been added to reflect they are not 

authorized for any reason other than medical or mental health purposes.  Guidelines and thorough 

documentation of the continued assessment and monitoring of the youth are required.  The agency 

ensures guidelines are established and both clinical and non-clinical staff will be fully involved until the 

arrival of the psychologists.  Discussion ensued regarding the proposed revisions to the timelines 

established.  Ms. Weiss moved for approval to publish the proposed revisions.  Judge Smith seconded.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9723 relating to 

Use of Force, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Ms. Stroud reported staff has completed a review of the assigned rules and presented a summary of the 

proposed revisions.  The rule now requires staff that is authorized to administer OC spray, be exposed to 

the spray during their first OC spray training.  Exposure to the spray, understanding the effects and how 

it impacts you physically ensures how important the decontamination process is.  This rule does not 

apply to the use of four-point restraints.  Additional approval is required after the first 30 minutes the 

youth is in restraints and every two hours thereafter for approval to extend the restraint.  The 

timeframes do not apply if the restraint is for medical purposes.  The rule requires youth in restraints be 

offered opportunities for elimination of bodily waste at least once every two hours and to be provided 

regularly scheduled meals and drinks.  A medical provider’s order is required before staff will use force 

for the administration of medical treatment.  At medium restrictions facilities, staff must contact medical 

staff as soon as possible after a use of force.  Discussion ensued regarding the time limit(s) for a youth to 

be held in restraints. Ms. King moved for approval to publish the proposed revisions.  Judge Parker 

seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

24



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Discussion and possible adoption of the proposed repeal of 37 TAC §380.8761, relating to 

Substance Abuse Services 

Ms. Stroud requested approval to repeal this rule related to substance abuse services because it’s 

repetitive.  Most of the content of this rule currently exists in other rules.  Ms. Mendoza moved for 

approval to repeal the rule.  Judge Parker seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: §380.8501, §§380.8503 – 380.8555, §§380.8559 - 380.8569, and 

§380.8575 

Chairman Fisher stated the Board has had the opportunity to review the proposed revisions to the 14 

rules.  There were no questions regarding the proposed revisions.  Ms. Stroud stated the proposed 

revisions regarding the placement assignment and assessment for safe housing assignment will ensure 

the agencies compliance with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA).  Judge Bush moved for approval 

to publish the proposed revisions.  Judge Parker seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Discussion and possible adoption of proposed new 37 TAC Chapter 355, relating to Non-Secure 

Correctional Facilities 

Mr. Williams reported the proposed revisions to this rule were posted in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  There were no comments received.  Additional changes were made relating to 

the health screening and assessments of the youth that makes them consistent with the rules for post 

adjudication facilities.  Those revisions were also posted, with no public comments received.  Staff is 

proposing the Board adopt the final rules as amended and the current emergency rules will be 

withdrawn.  Mr. Matthew moved to adopt the proposed new rule.  Judge Smith seconded.  The motion 

passes unanimously. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapters 342 and 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

comment period, for the following rules: §§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8571, and §380.8595 

Mr. Williams reported staff has completed a review of the assigned rules a provided a summary of the 

proposed revisions.  Revisions to Chapter 342 include a requirement that the facility obtain a 

certification of suitability as required in the Family Code, sending states who place youth in Texas fully 

disclose a juvenile’s record of suicidal and self-harming behaviors and sexually aggressive behaviors and 

provide all appropriate and available mental health and education information for the juvenile.  

25



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Revisions to Chapter 380 include a requirement for background and criminal history checks for any 

individual over the age of 14 in the placement home and a requirement that any entity that has issued an 

active warrant for the youth will now be notified at least 10 days before a youth is discharged.  Ms. King 

moved for approval to publish the proposed revisions.  Judge Brieden seconded.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Discussion of new legislation affecting TJJD, including, HB 3648, SB 1861 and HB 1675 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, presented a summary of legislative bills affecting the 

agency.  No action is required; this is for informational purposes only.  HB 3648 requires the Board to 

consider any material changes to contracts, including a contract extension of six months or longer or 

increasing the total consideration by at least ten percent.  Board consideration of material changes to all 

TJJD contracts will appear as a standing agenda item requiring action by the Board.  Discussion ensued 

regarding examples of material changes, active existing and multi-year contacts that preceded this Board 

and were approved by previous Boards.  Chairman Fisher requested additional information on this 

subject be brought back to the Board at the January meeting.   

 

SB 1861 makes a number of changes to state contract laws, including a requirement that the Board 

receive contract management training.  The Comptroller is required to develop the training by May of 

2014, and all Board members are required to take the training by September of 2015. 

 

HB 1675 allows the Sunset Advisory Commission and its designated staff to attend any meetings and 

proceedings of any state agency under sunset review, including Board executive closed sessions.  This is 

likely only to happen while the agency is being reviewed by Sunset.  Chairman Fisher expressed his 

concern that this could be problematic and asked if there were limitations.  Mr. Bray confirmed there are 

no limitations and clarified the legislation was not directed at this Board only; it’s all Boards and all 

Commissions. 

 

Report on petition from Adrian Moore for rulemaking for prevention and early intervention 
services  

Ms. Buchholtz reported that Adrian Moore, the executive director for the Council at At-Risk Youth, 

presented a set of proposed rules to the Board in August, requesting the Board consider adopting the 

rules relating to prevention and early intervention services.  At that meeting, Mr. Moore confirmed that 

he is petitioning the agency to adopt the rules.  The agency has to respond in writing within 60 days.  

The staff intends to deny Mr. Moore’s petition for several reasons:  the agency is already doing 

26



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

substantial work in the area of the prevention and intervention, there is no additional funding to allocate 

for this service, a request for proposal is in progress to distribute approximately $650,000.00 to county 

juvenile probation departments for school attendance improvement projects and the agency is 

partnering with other state agencies to work towards coordinating a delivery of delinquency prevention 

and drop-out prevention and intervention services. The rules proposed requires agency staff resources 

that are not available.  Staff intends to respond to Mr. Moore, denying his petition and provide the 

following feedback: the agency will pass the proposed rules to the workgroup of the Rider 17.10, 

recommend he utilize concepts presented in the proposed rules by implementing them on a smaller 

scale and suggest possible coordination with the Department of Family Protective Services (DFPS), who 

has significant funding for this subject.   

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: §380.8502, §380.8557, and §380.8579 

Ms. Buchholtz presented a summary of the proposed revisions to 380.8557.  In order to be compliant 

with the law, revisions to this rule remove the executive director’s authority to approve the Release 

Review Panel’s (RRP) decision to release or discharge a youth with a violent or high severity committing 

offense.  Previous administration added the executive director’s decision authority.  To date, Mr. Griffiths 

has not exercised this authority. Further discussion ensued regarding the purpose of the RRP and the 

members on the panel.  Ms. Buchholtz stated she will continue to keep Mr. Griffiths informed of high 

profile cases before a decision to release a youth is granted. 

 

Karol Davidson, Staff Attorney, presented proposed revisions to 380.8502 and 380.8535.  380.8502 

involve the legal requirements for admission of youth to TJJD, establishing documentation required 

before a youth is admitted to TJJD; certified commitment order and vaccination records.  Revisions to 

380.8535 establish procedures to work with Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) to determine 

the residency status of youth who are undocumented foreign nationals.  It enables the agency to have 

appropriate placement and transition planning for youth when returning to their communities. Ms. 

Davidson provided follow-up information that was requested at the Safety and Security Committee 

meeting; the agency currently has 30 undocumented youth either in state facilities or on parole.  She 

further clarified the rule numbering and division changed from 380.8579 to 380.8535 to appropriately 

place the rule in Placement Planning instead of Parole Placement and Discharge. 

 

27



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

October 18, 2013                                                

Judge Parker moved for approval to publish the proposed revisions.  Judge Smith seconded.  The motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

Discipline of certified officers – default judgment orders  
 

a. Dameon Roberson DH 13-16842-130089 (Harris) 
b. Johnathan Perry DH 13-25604 (Harris) 
c. Julio Villalon  DH 13-10017 (Bexar) 
d. Emmanuel Munoz DH 13-25847 (Cameron) 

 
Mr. Bray reported additional information is needed for Mr. Emmanuel Munoz’s default judgment order 

and will be brought back for Board consideration at a later date.  He requested Board approval for the 

default judgment orders presented.  Judge Parker recused herself from the vote for the Bexar County 

order; Julio Villalon.  Judge Parker moved to approve the two default judgment orders for Harris County; 

Dameon Roberson and Johnathan Perry.  Ms. King seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Judge 

Brieden moved to approve the default judgment order for Julio Villalon, Mr. Matthew seconded.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

Chairman Fisher recessed open session at 11:42 a.m. to reconvene in closed session. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 11:48 a.m. 

Chairman Fisher adjourned closed session at 12:31 p.m. 

Chairman Fisher reconvened open session at 12:34 p.m. 

 

Adjourn 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Fisher adjourned the Board meeting at 

12:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Motion Made By:  ________________________ 
 
Motion Seconded By: ________________________ 
 
Date Approved:  ________________________ 
 

28



Office of Inspector General

Investigative Analysis

Summary Indicators 1st quarter FY 13 1st quarter FY 14

Incident Reporting Center (IRC) Reports 2,692 3,038

Referred to Administrative-AID State 185 163

Referred to Probation-AID County 310 372

Referred to OIG Criminal 234 346

Referred to Youth Rights 1,247 1,464

Referred to State Programs 509 397

Closed 207 296

OIG Criminal Investigations Submitted to Prosecution 107 84

Submitted to Prosecution Assaultive                                                                                                        

Assaultive Category includes:  Assault on Public Servant, Harassment by person in 

Correctional Facility, Retaliation, Assault, Official Oppression, Aggravated Assault, 

and Unlawful Restraint

Submitted to Prosecution Sexual Offense

Sexual Category includes:  Indecent Exposure and Indecency with a child

Submitted to Prosecution Property Damage

Property Category includes: Criminal Mischief and Arson

Submitted to Prosecution Contraband

Contraband Category includes:  Prohibited Substance in Correctional Facility (Marijuana 

and Cocaine), Contraband, in a Correctional Facility, Deadly Weapon in Penal Institution, 

Possession of Marijuana, Child Pornography

Submitted to Prosecution Other

Other Category includes:  Terroristic Threat, Escape Offenses, False Reports, Misuse of 

Official Information, Tamper with Government Record, Theft, and Violation Civil Rights of 

Person in Custody

TJJD Active Directives to Apprehend Issued 118 148

OIG Apprehensions 11 16

Apprehensions Other Agencies 72 78

8 2

88 75

6 2

5 5

0 0

29



Office of Inspector General

 Investigative Life Cycle

Date Range

REA

Receive, Evaluate, 

Assign

Average # of 

Investigative

Days

Average # of days 

for Intake 

Decision

Average # of Days 

for

Final Disposition

Total Days

FY 14

1st Quarter 1 74 14 75 164

FY 13

1st Quarter 1 80 27 62 170

30



 

 

 

 

 

 

Advisory Council on Juvenile Services 

 

 
TO:               Texas Juvenile Justice Department Board 

 

Mr. Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

               

  Board Members 

 

  Mr. Calvin Stephens        Mr. Joseph Brown                         Judge John Brieden, III                      

  Judge Laura Parker          Chief Jane Anderson King            Judge Carol Bush 

  Dr. Rene Olvera                Commissioner Jimmy Smith        Ms. Mary Lou Mendoza 

  Chief Melissa Weiss         Judge Becky Gregory                    Chief Scott Matthew 

 

               

                   

FROM:          Estela P. Medina 

                           Chair, Advisory Council on Juvenile Services 

                           Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, Travis County 

 

  Doug Vance 

  Vice-Chair, Advisory Council on Juvenile Services 

  Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, Brazos County 

                

 

DATE:                 January 31, 2014 

 

RE:                      Advisory Council Update 

      

   

On behalf of the Advisory Council on Juvenile Services, the following information is provided to 

Board Members of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department regarding the ongoing initiatives and 

priorities of the Advisory Council on Juvenile Services. 

 

The Advisory Council Members met on November 22, 2013 in Austin at the offices of the Texas 

Juvenile Justice Department, located at located at 11209 Metric Blvd.  (Agenda attached as part 

31



of this update).  The Advisory Council is also scheduled to meet on January 28, 2014 in San 

Marcos, Texas.  (Agenda attached as part of this update) 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department Updates (TJJD) 

 
Mike Griffiths informed the Advisory Council, that commitments to the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department in November, 2013; are higher than the number of commitments for the same 

period of time in November, 2012.  He has impressed upon Advisory Council members that TJJD 

will continue to monitor the numbers for any trends or activity that will require further review 

by TJJD and the Advisory Council.  Advisory Council members will continue these efforts as well 

to determine the impact to counties.   The new target for the 2014-15 biennium is 926. 

 

TJJD continues with its efforts for strategic planning.  TJJD leadership and staff will be 

scheduling meetings with Regional Associations in January and February 2014.  Another 

opportunity to work on strategic efforts will include the Advisory Council and the field of 

Juvenile Probation during the annual Chief’s Summit and meeting scheduled for January 26-

28
th

, 2014 in San Marcos, Texas.  The Advisory Council continues to support strategic planning 

efforts that include the participation of juvenile probation departments and regional 

representatives in these efforts.  Strategic and collaborative planning efforts with the Texas 

Juvenile Justice Department are a priority of the Advisory Council. 

 

Funding & Appropriations 
 

Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer informed that he received feedback with few objections 

regarding the proposed grants withholding process.  The implementation of the new process is 

scheduled for January 2014.    

 

Standards Sub-Committee  
 

The standards sub-committee met on January 16 and 17
th

, 2014 in Austin, Texas.  The sub-

committee will be focusing on the following areas as per request of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department leadership and the Advisory Council: 

 

Phase 1—Review of the Texas Administrative Code Chapter 343 Standards & 343 

Addendum.  Expected completion date is April 2014. 

 

 Phase 2--Review of the standards regarding disciplinary seclusion.  Expected 

completion date is May 2014. 

 

Phase 3—Review of the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA).  Expected 

completion date is July 2014. 

 

 

32



Phase 4—Review of Facility Auditing Processes.   

Expected completion date is August 2014. 

 

 

Doug Vance, Chair of the Sub Committee continues to guide these efforts.  He and a dedicated 

committee of representatives from the Texas Juvenile Justice Department,  Regional 

Associations, County Juvenile Probation Departments,  and statewide professional Associations 

will continue their work on this important priority. 

 

Additionally, meetings of the sub-committee on Parole, Finance, Performance Measures and 

the Cost of Probation Study will be scheduled. 

 

Committee on Chapter 343:  Chemical Restraints 
 

The Advisory Council and Mike Griffiths have agreed to the appointment of a Committee to 

work on proposed recommendations regarding Chapter 343:  Chemical Restraints.   Mr. 

Griffiths has appointed the committee and the members are Dr. Terri Smith, Dallas County; 

(Chair);  Doug Vance (Brazos County), Randy Turner (Tarrant County) Mike Martinez (Bexar 

County), Kris Johnson (Comal County), Estela P. Medina (Travis County), Teresa Stroud, TJJD; 

James Williams, TJJD; Brett Bray, TJJD; Terri Dollar, TJJD; Debbie Unruh, Ombudsman; and 

Debra Fowler, Texas Appleseed.   The committee is scheduled to meet on January 30 in Austin, 

Texas. 

  

TJJD Board Meeting January 31, 2014 

 
The Advisory Council respectfully requests that as part of the Council’s update to the TJJD 

Board, the opportunity to recognize and present certificates to the Members of the Standards 

Sub Committee representing their counties, Regional Associations and state wide professional 

Associations for their work on the Advisory Council Standards Sub Committee:  The colleagues 

to be recognized are: 

 

Beatty, Darryl – Deputy Chief – Travis County   

Brooke, Linda – Chief of Staff – TJJD   

Cockrell, Ed – Chief – Jefferson County  

Davidson, Karol – Staff Attorney - TJJD 

Dollar, Terri – Director of Monitoring & Inspections - TJJD 

Eddins, Neil – Assistant Chief – Randall County 

Friedman, Scott – Manager of Monitoring & Inspections - TJJD 

Garza, Richard – Facility Administrator – Hidalgo County 

Gonzales, Carlos – Compliance Officer – Webb County 

Gupta, Kavita – Staff Attorney - TJJD 

Hayes, Philip – Chief – Cass County 

Hough, Tom – Supervisor  Training and Quality Assurance – Harris County 

Humphrey, Susan K – Chief – Bell County 

33



Kelly, Monica – Chief – Hardin County 

Kintzer, Ashley – Policy Coordinator - TJJD 

Lewis, Ronald – Deputy Assistant Director – Tarrant County 

Line, Vicki – Director of Personnel & Training 

Lopez, Sal – Director of Detention – Williamson County 

Moore, Reba – Chief – Floyd County 

Murillo, Jesse – Division Manager – Travis County 

Probst, Leah – Quality Assurance Administrator – Dallas County 

Roman, Steve – Policy Coordinator - TJJD 

Serrano, Louis – Chief – Ector County 

Torres, Laura – Program Administrator – Cameron County 

Vines, Jim – Facility Administrator – McLennan County 

Williams, James – Senior Director of Probation & Parole - TJJD 

Worley, Ross – Chief – Smith County 

 

The Advisory Council members extend their appreciation to Chairman Fisher and Members of 

the Texas Juvenile Justice Department Board for the opportunity to recognize the exemplar 

work of the Standards Sub-Committee members and to Doug Vance, who serves as Chair of the 

Committee. 

 

Welcome and Introduction 
 

The Advisory Council would like to introduce and welcome Debra Emerson, representing the 

Department of Family and Protective Services as a new member to the Advisory Council on 

Juvenile Services.   

 

Other 

 
The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department will be considering appointments and re-

appointments to the Advisory Council on Juvenile Services at the January 31, 2014 meeting. 

 

 

 

CC:    Mike Griffiths 

          Executive Director 

 

          Advisory Council Members 

34



 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Advisory Council on Juvenile Services 

Tuesday, January 28
th

, 2014 @1:30p.m. 

Embassy Suites Hotel------Veramendi F Room 

1001 E. McCarty Lane:  San Marcos, Texas 

Agenda 

 

I. Call to order/Introductions  

 

II. Review of Minutes:   November 22, 2013 

 

III. Texas Juvenile Justice Department Updates 

� Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 

IV. TJJD Budget Updates & Discussion 

� Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

 

V. Appointment of Committee Regarding Chapter 343:  Chemical Restraints 

� Mike Griffiths 

 

VI. Discussion & Update regarding Prisons Rape Elimination Act (PREA)  

� Mike Griffiths 

� Lisa Capers,  Sr. Director of Administration & Training, Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 

VII. Sub-Committee Report(s) 

� Standards:   D. Vance 

Phase 1:  Review of Texas Administrative Code 343 & 343 Addendum 

Phase 2:  Review of Disciplinary Seclusion 

Phase 3:  Review PREA & Requirements 

Phase 4:  Review Facility Auditing Process 

� Parole:  J. Williams 

� Performance Measures and Program Effectiveness 

� Cost of Probation Study/Appropriations for 2015/16 Biennium 

 

VIII. Advisory Council Update Scheduled for January 31, 2014 (Austin, Texas) 

� Estela P. Medina/Doug Vance 

                       

IX. Old Business 

            

X. New Business 

 

XI. Public Comment   

 

XII. Advisory Council Member Updates & Announcements 

 

XIII. Adjourn                                   

                                                            

   Advisory Council Members may take agenda items and public comment out of order 

35



 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Advisory Council on Juvenile Services 

Agenda 

Friday, November 22, 2013 @10:00a.m. 

11209 Metric Boulevard (Bldg. H)---- Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas  78758 

 

I. Call to order/Introductions  

 

II. Review of Minutes:   September 19, 2013 

 

III. Texas Juvenile Justice Department Updates  

� Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

� Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 

 

IV. TJJD Budget Updates & Discussion 

� Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

 

V. Update from TJJD Board Meeting October 18
th

, 2013 

 

VI. Update & Discussion Re: Chapter 343:816 Chemical Restraints 

 

VII. Review and Discussion regarding Code of Ethics Requirements 

� Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, TJJD 

 

VIII. Sub-Committee Report(s) 

� Standards:   D. Vance 

� Parole:  J. Williams 

� Performance Measures and Program Effectiveness 

� Cost of Probation Study/Appropriations for 2015/16 Biennium 

                       

IX. Senate Bill 393:  Presentation/Discussion   

                      Deborah Fowler, Deputy Director, Texas Appleseed                    

                                                               

X. Old Business 

 

XI. New Business 

 

XII. Public Comment   

 

XIII. Advisory Council Member Updates & Announcements 

 

XIV. Adjourn                                   

                                                           Advisory Council Members may take agenda items and public comment out of order 

36



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

Subject: New Appointments to the TJJD Advisory Council 

Date: January 16, 2014  

 

The Juvenile Justice Advisory Council is established pursuant to Senate Bill 653, an Act of the 82nd 

Legislative Session with subsequent amendments during the 83rd Legislative Session in accordance 

with the provision codified in Human Resources Code 203.0081.  As set forth the provision 

stipulates: 

(a) The advisory council on juvenile services consist of: 

 

the executive director of the department or the executive director’s designee; 

the director of probation services of the department or the director’s designee; 

the director of state secure programs or the director’s designee; 

the executive commissioner of the Health and Human Services Commission or the 

commissioner’s designee; 

two juvenile court judges appointed by the board;  

one representative of county commissioners court appointed by the board; and 

seven chief juvenile probation officers appointed by the board as provided by Subsection (b) 

 

 

 

 

 

37



(b) The board shall appoint to the advisory council one chief juvenile probation officer from each 

regional chiefs association in the state from a list of names submitted to the board by each 

regional chiefs association. To the greatest extent practicable, a regional chiefs association 

shall include in its list of nominees: 

 

One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with 

a population that includes fewer than 7,500 persons younger than 18 years of age; 

One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with 

a population that includes at least 7,500 but fewer than 80,000 persons younger than 18 years 

of age; 

One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with 

a population that includes at least 80,000 persons younger than 18 years of age; 

 

(c) Advisory council members, other than ex officio members, serve staggered two-year terms, 

with the terms of one-half of the members, as nearly as practicable, expiring on February 1 of 

each year.  

 

The following Advisory Council members are scheduled to roll off the council on February 1, 2014 

The Honorable Mario Ramirez, 332nd District Court – Hildago County 

The Honorable Matt Shaheen, County Commissioner – Collin County 

Audrey Deckinga, Deputy Commissioner – Texas Department of Family & Protective Services 

Estela Medina, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer – Travis County-Central Texas Juvenile Chiefs 

Association-representing a juvenile jurisdiction in excess of 80,000 persons younger than 18 years 

of age. (Large) 

Doug Vance, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer –Brazos County – South East Texas Juvenile Chiefs 

Association- representing a juvenile jurisdiction in excess of 7,500 persons younger than 18 years 

of age but less than 80,000 persons younger than 18 years of age. (Medium) 

Mark Williams, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer –Tom Greene County– West Texas Juvenile Chiefs 

Association-representing a juvenile jurisdiction in excess of 7,500 but less than 80,000 persons 

younger than 18 years of age. (Medium) 

 

 

38



In relation to the Advisory Council’s Chief Juvenile Probation Officer membership relative to HRC 

representation requirements, the remaining members’ jurisdiction size is as follows: 

Randy Turner, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer , Tarrant County, North Central  Texas Juvenile 

Chiefs Association– juvenile jurisdiction in excess of 80,000 persons under the age of 18. (Large) 

Carrie Barden, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer , Lamb County, Panhandle Area Juvenile Chiefs 

Association-juvenile jurisdiction less than 7,500 persons under the age of 18. (Small) 

Homer Flores, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer –Nueces County – South Texas Chiefs Association- 

representing a juvenile jurisdiction in excess of 80,000 persons younger than 18 years of age. 

(Large) 

Phillip Hays, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer – Cass County-Northeast Chiefs Association- 

representing a juvenile jurisdiction less than 7,500 persons younger than 18 years of age. (Small) 

 

The following names have been submitted for Board consideration: 

 

Juvenile Court Judge 

The Honorable Mario Ramirez, 332nd District Court, Edinburg, Texas (current member) 

County Commissioner Court 

The Honorable Mark Allen, Jasper County Judge, Jasper, Texas (resume attached) 

Texas Department of Family & Regulatory Services 

Debra Emerson, LMSW-AP, Director of Permanency (appointment from TDFPS Commissioner) 

Chief Juvenile Probation Officers 

Estela Medina, Travis County, Central Texas Juvenile Chiefs Association (current member) 

Doug Vance, Brazos County, Southeast Texas Juvenile Chiefs Association (current member) 

Mark Williams, Tom Green County, West Texas Juvenile Chiefs Association (current member) 

 

You are respectfully asked to fill current Advisory Council vacancies for the Juvenile Judge position, 

Commissioner Court vacancy, Texas Department of Family and Protective Services position and 

three Chief Juvenile Probation Officer vacancies from the effected regional association categories. 

 

Attachments 

39



 

 

Mark Wayne Allen 
 
Home:  238 County Road 636 

Buna, Texas 77612 
Home:  (409) 994-4081 
Mobile: (409) 383-4592 

 
Work: 121 North Austin 

Room 106 
Jasper, Texas 75951 
Office: (409) 384-2612 
E-Mail: mark.allen@co.jasper.tx.us 

 
 

EXPERIENCE 
 

 
2007 – Present Jasper County Judge 
   Jasper, Texas 
 
RESPONISIBILITIES: 
 
 - Chief Elected Official and Senior Budget Officer, responsible for annual Jasper County budget 
preparation & oversight. 
 
 - Presiding officer over the Commissioners Court, a 5-member governing board that oversees 
Jasper County's policies, budgeting, contracts, grant applications, airports, personnel & services. 
 
 - Judicial responsibilities include presiding over court matters including: criminal 
misdemeanors; probate & guardianship; mental health commitments; juvenile hearings; civil 
trials; occupational driving license hearings; alcohol license hearings; appeals from Justice of the 
Peace courts; & the issuance of arrest & search warrants. 
 
 - Liaison between Jasper County & other local, state & federal government entities. 
 
 - Director of Emergency Management, responsible for coordinating disaster response & civil 
defense. 
 
 - Responsible for calling elections in Jasper County. 
 
 - Administrative Director of Jasper County's: 
 -- Department of Emergency Management 
 -- Information Technology Department 
 -- Courthouse & Annex Building Maintenance & Inmate Work Crew Supervision Department 
 -- Courthouse & Annex Building Janitorial Services 
 -- Courthouse Bailiff Security 
 -- Radio Communications Section 
 

40



 

 

Boards & Committees (2007 – Present): 
 
 - Deep East Texas Council of Governments (DETCOG) - (2007 - Present) 
 -- Executive Board (2011 - Present) 
 -- President (2011- 2013) 
 -- Immediate Past President (2013 - Present) 
 -- Budget & Executive Committee - (2011 - Present) 
 -- Regional Transportation Committee 
 -- Emergency Preparedness Task Force 
 -- Timber Task Force 
 -- Grants Application Review Committee 
 -- Regional Economic Development Committee 
 -- Regional Education Committee 
 -- Regional Hurricane Disaster Recovery Advisory Committee (Chairman - 2013 - Present) 
 -- Deep East Texas Regional Planning Organization 
 
 - Jasper-Newton Counties Public Health District (2007-Present) 
 -- Vice Chairman (2007 - 2013) 
 -- Treasurer (2013 - Present) 
 
 - Texas Association of Regional Councils (2012 - Present) 
 
 - Rural East Texas Health Network Local Mental Health Advisory Board (2007 - Present) 
 -- Chairman (2010 - Present) 
 
 - Rural East Texas Health Network Regional Mental Health Advisory Board (2009-Present) 
 
 - Jasper County Bail Bond Board (2007-Present) 
 -- Chairman (2011) 
 
 - 1st Judicial District Community Supervision Board (2007 - Present) 
 
 - MeadWestvaco Citizens Advisory Panel (2007 - Present) 
 
 - East Texas Mutual Aid Association Board of Directors (2013 - Present) 
 
 - Jasper County Bell Field Airport Advisory Committee (2007 - Present) 
 
 - Interstate 14/US 190/Gulf Coast Strategic Highway Coalition Board of Directors (2013 - 
Present) 
 
 - Sabine River Authority Hazard Mitigation Team (2013 - Present) 
 
 
 
 
 

41



 

 

2003 – 2006  Jasper County District Attorney’s Office 
   Jasper, Texas 
   Criminal Investigator 
 
RESPONSIBLE FOR: 
 

- Investigation of assigned cases. 
- Preparing received cases for prosecution. 
- Assisting with defendant plea-bargaining. 
- Preparation of legal documents including subpoena applications, warrants, probable cause affidavits. 
- Preparation for trial. 
- Processing subjects taken into custody. 
- Execution and service of civil papers and warrants. 
- Completion of various forms and reports.  
- Assisting local jurisdiction law enforcement agencies with investigations. 
- Assisting local jurisdiction law enforcement agencies with preparing criminal cases for prosecution. 

 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 
 
- 2004 – Academic Achievement Recognition Award – Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards & 
Education. 
 
 
2003 – 2006  Angelina Community College Police Academy 
   Lufkin, Texas 
   Police Training Instructor 
 
RESPONSIBLE FOR: 
 
 - Providing law enforcement training and instruction local police officers, dispatchers and jailers. 
 - Providing law enforcement training and instruction to local police officer cadet trainees. 
 - Creating and planning lesson plan and course curriculum for police officer training. 
 - Preparing training presentations, including MS PowerPoint presentations, for police officer training. 
 
2002 - 2006  Jasper/Newton/Sabine County Office of Emergency Management 
   Jasper, Texas 
   Assistant Emergency Management Coordinator 
 
RESPONSIBLE FOR: 
 

- Assisting the Jasper/Newton/Sabine County Emergency Management Coordinator with Emergency 
Management Plan planning and implementation. 

- Coordinating emergency operations with local response agencies in Jasper, Newton and Sabine 
Counties. 

- Acting in the absence of the Emergency Management Coordinator during emergency response 
operations. 

- Assisting with coordinating the East Texas Mutual Aid Association program. 
- Acting as local Emergency Management liaison with local, state and federal agencies. 

 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 
 

- February 2003 – Appointed as Logistics Chief during the Space Shuttle Columbia disaster recovery 

42



 

 

operation in Sabine County, Texas. 
 - August 2005 – Appointed as Deputy Incident Commander during the Hurricane Katrina Sheltering 
Operation at the East Texas Baptist Encampment, Newton County, Texas. 
 - September 2005 – Appointed as Logistics Chief during the Hurricane Rita Disaster Response/Recovery 
Operation in Jasper County, Texas. 
 
 
2002 – 2003  Jasper County Sheriff’s Office 
   Jasper, Texas 
   Sergeant – Patrol Division 
 
 
1998-2002  Jasper County Sheriff’s Office 
   Jasper, Texas 
   Deputy Sheriff – Patrol Division 
 
 
1996-1998  Jefferson County Sheriff’s Department 
   Beaumont, Texas 
   Deputy Sheriff – Jail Division 
 
 
1994-1996  Hughes Security Service, Incorporated 
   Port Arthur, Texas 
   Security Officer 
 
 
1988-1994 United States Air Force   (Law Enforcement Specialist) 
 
 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 
 
 - Awarded the U.S. Achievement Medal for meritorious service while responding to an off-base vehicle   
  accident, coordinating actions with civilian authorities and emergency personnel 
 - Handpicked to revamp and manage the unit computer program, consisting of over sixty personal 
   computer systems, serving over four hundred and fifty personnel. 
 - Awarded the U.S. Air Force Commendation Medal for meritorious service for actions taken during 
    several major military inspections, resulting in excellent to outstanding ratings; and for expertise and 
    skill lent to the Headquarters to the United States Air Forces in Europe and several U.S.A.F. and U.S. 
     Navy installations in Europe in developing and managing their own computer programs. 
 - Awarded the U.S. Air Force Achievement Medal for outstanding achievement for actions taken during a 
    response to a plane crash recovery operation at Binham, Norfolk, England. 
 - Awarded the Distinguished Honor Graduate Award for academic excellence in Airman Leadership 
    School. 
 - Additional Medals/Citations:  National Defense Service Medal; USAF Good Conduct Medal; USAF 
    Outstanding Unit Ribbon with 2 Oak Leaf Clusters; USAF Expert Marksmanship Ribbon; USAF 
    Longevity Service Ribbon; USAF NCO Preparatory Course Ribbon; USAF Basic Military Training 
    Ribbon;  USAF Overseas Long Tour Service Ribbon with 1 Oak Leaf Cluster. 
 - Active participation in McGruff the Crime Dog and D.A.R.E. crime prevention programs; coordination 
    and implementation of military demonstrations for local British orphanages, schools, shelters, local 
    constabularies, and the Scotland Yard Metropolitan Police. 
 - Efforts during VIP dignitary security measures were lauded by Secret Service personnel for security 

43



 

 

    provided during visits by former President George Bush, former Vice-President Dan Quayle, former 
    Secretary of Defense Dick Cheney, and former British Prime Minister Margaret Thatcher. 
 
 
EDUCATION & TRAINING: 
 
 - Bachelor of Arts Degree - Law Enforcement Administration, 2004 
    Ottawa University, Ottawa, Kansas 
 - Associates of Applied Science Degree - Criminal Justice, 1992 
    Community College of the Air Force, Maxwell AFB, Alabama 
 - 199 Total semester hours 
 - Certificate – Law Enforcement Technology, 2000 
    Rio Salado Community College, Phoenix, Arizona 

- Commissioners Court Leadership Academy – 2012 (Texas A&M University V.G. Young Institute of                        
County Government) 
- Commissioners Court Advanced Curriculum Certification – 2011 (Texas Association of Counties & the 
Texas A&M University V.G. Young Institute of County Government) 
 - Leadership of Southeast Texas Graduate – 2008 
 

 - Newton High School, Newton, Texas, 1987  
    -- Senior Class President 
    -- Member of the National Honor Society 
    -- Member of the Newton High School Student Council 
    -- Competed at Texas State Level in University Interscholastic League Journalism Competition 
    -- Member of the Future Farmers of America 
   -- Member of Yearbook Staff 
 - Newton Junior High School, Newton, Texas, 1983 
 - Bleakwood Elementary School, Newton, Texas, 1981 
 
 
 ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL INFORMATION: 
 

- Texas Master Peace Officer Certified – Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and    
   Education 
- Texas Jailer Certified - Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Education 
- Texas Standardized Field Sobriety Practitioner - Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and 

    Education 
- Texas TCLEOSE Instructor Certified – Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Education 
- Texas Special Investigator Certified – Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Education. 

 
AFFILIATIONS: 

 
 - Buna Masonic Lodge #1095 
 - Genesis Baptist Church, Buna, Texas 
 - American Legion 
 
 FAMILY: 
 

Married to Ekaterina Allen, raising four children, Aleksander (17), Brooke (15), Katherine (2) and 
Elizabeth (10 months) 
 

 
REFERENCES AND FURTHER INFORMATION AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 

44



 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF ADVISORY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

On this the 31st day of January, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Jane A. King      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Becky Gregory      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew       
 

Motion: Second: 

 

 

Where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, Human Resources Code 203.0081 established the TJJD advisory council on juvenile services 

that consist of the executive director of the department or the executive director’s designee; the director of 

probation services of the department or the director’s designee; the senior director of state facilities  and 

programs or the senior director’s designee; the executive commissioner of the Health and Human Services 

Commission or the commissioner’s designee; two juvenile court judges appointed by the board; one 

representative of county commissioners court appointed by the board; and seven chief juvenile probation 

officers appointed by the board as provided by Subsection (b); and 

 

WHEREAS, advisory council members, other than ex officio members, serve staggered two-year terms, 

with the terms of one-half of the members, as nearly as practicable, expiring on February 1 of each year; 

and 

 

45



 

 

 

WHEREAS, the board shall appoint to the advisory council one chief juvenile probation officer from each 

regional chiefs association in the state from a list of names submitted to the board by each regional chiefs 

association. To the greatest extent practicable, a regional chiefs association shall include in its list of 

nominees: 

  One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with a  

  population that includes fewer than 7,500 persons younger than 18 years of age; 

  One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with a  

  population that includes at least 7,500 but fewer than 80,000 persons younger than 18 years of age; 

  One chief juvenile probation officer of a juvenile probation department servicing a county with a  

  population that includes at least 80,000 persons younger than 18 years of age; and 

 

WHEREAS, the following Advisory Council Members are scheduled to complete their terms on February 1, 

2013: The Honorable Mario Ramirez – 332nd State District Court, County Commissioner – Matt Shaheen, 

Chief Juvenile Probation Officers-Estela Medina, Mark Williams, and Doug Vance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the designee for the Commissioner of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services, 

Audrey Deckinga, has retired from the agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, nominations have been solicited from the Regional Chiefs Probation Associations to bring 

forward to TJJD Board members;  

Estela Medina – Chief Juvenile Probation Officer –Travis County - Central Texas Chiefs Association 

representing a large jurisdiction 

Mark Williams – Chief Juvenile Probation Officer – Tom Green County – West Texas Chiefs    

Association representing a medium jurisdiction 

 Doug Vance – Chief Juvenile Probation Officer – Brazos County – Southeast Texas Chiefs 

Association representing a medium jurisdiction 

  

 WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services has appointed: 

 Debra Emerson, LMSW-AP, Director of Permanency  

 

WHEREAS, the County Judge for Jasper County, Mark Allen, has submitted his name for consideration to fill 

the vacant County Commissioners Court vacancy. 

46



 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Texas Juvenile Justice Board hereby makes, subject to the 

qualifications, terms and other applicable provisions contained in Section 223.0081 of the Human 

Resources Code, the following appointments to the Advisory Council on Juvenile Services: 

 

Juvenile Court Judge     County Commissioners Court 

______________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________  

 

West Texas Juvenile Chiefs Association  Southeast Texas Juvenile Chiefs Association 

______________________________________________________ ______________________________________________________ 

 

Central Texas Chiefs Association   Texas Department of Family and Protective Services 

______________________________________________________ _______________________________________________________  

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January, 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

47



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

48



 

 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Lisa Capers, Senior Director, Administration & Training 

Subject: Overview of the strategic planning process 

Date: January 9, 2014 

  

 

Strategic planning efforts for the Texas Juvenile Justice Department have begun and will 

continue through the month of June 2014.  The attached documents provide an overview of 

the strategic planning process for Texas state agencies as well as specific materials related 

to TJJD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



 

 

 

Budget Structure
Changes Approved

Texas’ Strategic Planning, Performance 

Budgeting and Performance Monitoring System 

Even Years

Odd Years

January

February 

March 

April

May
July 

August

September

October

November

January

February

March

April

MayJuneJuly

August
September 

October

November
December 2-Year Cycle 

Planning
Monitoring

Budgeting
Session

1st Qtr 
Performance 
Report Due 

2nd Qtr
Performance
Report Due

3rd Qtr
Performance
Report Due

4th Qtr
Performance
Report Due

1st Qtr
Performance
Report Due

2nd Qtr
Performance
Report Due

3rd Qtr
Performance
Report Due

4th Qtr
Performance 
Report Due 

Agencies Request 
Changes to Budget

Structures 

Statewide Goals
Established

Agency Strategic
Plan Instructions

Issued

Agency
Strategic Plans

Due

Agency Budget
Request and 

Operating Plan 
Instructions Issued 
 

Budget
Request Due

June

Budget
Hearings Held

December

Budget and Policy
Recommendations

Developed 

Budget and Policy
Recommendations 

Submitted to Legislature 

Budget Mark-up

Budget Mark-up

Budget Mark-up

Budget 
Approved 

Budget Sent to
Governor for

Signature

Budget Sent to
Comptroller for

Certification

Agency Operating Budget
and Information Resources
Operating Plan Instructions

Issued 

Key 

Budget
Hearings Held

Budget & Performance
Assessments Report

Issued

Fiscal Year Begins 

Fiscal Year 
Begins 

 Agency 
Operating 

Budgets Due

Agency Information
Resources Operating

Plans Due 

Agency Information
Resources Operating

Plans Due

Quality Assurance
Team Report Issued

Quality Assurance
Team Report Issued

Performance 
Reviews 
Begun 

Budget and Policy
Recommendations

Developed 

Budget and Policy
Recommendations

Developed 

Legislative Budget Board ‐ 2007  50

rodriguez-l
Text Box



 

• Probation 

• Courts 

• Prosecutors 

• Defense Counsel 

Juvenile 
Justice 

Practitioners 

• Management and Staff 

• Youth 

• Volunteers 

• Contractors and Providers 

State 
Institutions 

• County Commissioners' Courts 

• Juvenile Boards 

• Law Enforcement 

• School Officials 

Local & 
County 

Government 

• Parents and Family Members 

• Victims 

• Advocates 

• Faith Based Organizations 

Public 

• State agencies 

• TDFPS 

• TDSHS 

• TDARS 

Government 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Strategic Plan 2015-2019 

The Path Forward 
 

Outcomes 

Strategies 

Goals 

Mission 

JU
V

E
N

IL
E

 J
U

S
T

IC
E

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 S
T

A
K

E
H

O
LD

E
R

S
 

The 2015-2019 Strategic Plan for the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD) will define The Path Forward for the 
Texas juvenile justice system and will be prepared in 
cooperation and collaboration with system stakeholders at 
all levels. 
 51



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Strategic Plan 2015-2019 
Fundamental Components 

• Statewide Vision, Mission, Philosophy 

• Statewide Goals and Benchmarks 

• Agency Vision, Mission and Philosophy 

Section 1: Guiding 
Principles 

• Strategic Priorities, Organizational Aspects, Fiscal Aspects 

• Population & Demographics, Technological Developments, 
Economic Variables, State/Fed Regulations, Self Evaluation 

Section 2: External 
Internal 

Assessment 

• Agency Goals, Objectives, Strategics 

• Performance Measures 
Section 3: Agency 
Goals, Objectives, 

Strategies 

• Technology Assessment 

• Technology Initiative Alignment 

 

Section 4:  
Technology 

Resource Planning 

• Agency Planning Process, Org Chart, 5 Year Outcomes,  

• Performance Measure Definitions, Workforce Plan, Survey of EE 

•  Workforce Development, Customer Service Report 

Section 5:  
Appendices and 

Attachments 

52



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Strategic Plan 2015-2019 – The Path Forward 

Foundational Concepts 
 
Current Vision, Mission and Philosophy  
 
VISION  
 
The Texas Juvenile Justice Department has a vision of providing safety for 
citizens of the State of Texas through partnership with communities and the 
delivery of a continuum of services and programs to help youth enrich and value 
their lives and the community by focusing on accountability of their actions and 
planning for a successful future. 
 
MISSION  
 
The mission of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department is to create a safer Texas 
through the establishment of a continuum of services that promotes positive youth 
outcomes through:  
 
 Organizational excellence and integrity that earns and promotes public 

trust;  
 Evidence-based performance and accountability that produces results;  
 Collaboration and teamwork that builds on partnerships with youth, 

families and local communities; and  
 Innovation and technology that results in efficient systems and services.  

 
PHILOSOPHY  
 
The Texas Juvenile Justice Department strives to set an example of excellence in 
public service within limited resources, providing quality services with 
innovation, vision, collaboration with partners and stakeholders, and 
accountability for agency impacts. 
 
Juvenile Justice System Hallmarks  
(Distinguishing Characteristics of the System) 
 
 Public Safety  
 Rehabilitation  
 Victim Restoration 

 
Juvenile Justice System Tenets 
 (Fundamental Principles and Beliefs held to be True about the System) 
 
 Individualized Rehabilitation and Treatment - One Size Does Not Fit 

All 
• Base supervision and services on results of validated assessments 
• Use of principles of Risk, Need and Responsivity (RNR) 
• Use of validated risk assessment instruments to minimize 

involvement with low risk youth and prioritize restrictive 
supervision for youth most likely to reoffend 

• Comprehensively address youth needs across systems 

NOTES 

53

rodriguez-l
Text Box



 
 Positive Youth Outcomes and Lower Recidivism Through Proven 

Programs 
• Research based programs 
• Programs that reflect distinct developmental needs of adolescents 

 
 Appropriate Treatment for Youth with Mental Health Needs 

• Effective assessment and screening 
• Diversion of youth with significant mental health needs to 

behavioral health systems 
 

 Smaller Rehabilitation Settings 
• Treatment and rehabilitation oriented while ensuring public safety 
• Community based near adequate medical and mental health 

services 
 

 Ongoing Evaluation of Program Effectiveness 
• Continuous collection and use of meaningful data on youth 

outcomes 
 
New Strategic Initiatives for 2015-2019 Strategic Plan 

 
 TJJD 

• Capital Improvements for facilities to Ensure Safety & Security 
• Required IT Infrastructure Improvements 
• Specialized Treatment in State Facilities  
• Leveling of Census at State Facilities 
• Career Academies 
• Campus Program Redesign 
• Parole Redesign 

 
 

 Probation 
• Expansion and/or Replication of Research Informed/Evidence 

Based Programming 
• __________________________________________________ 
• __________________________________________________ 
• __________________________________________________ 
• __________________________________________________ 

 
 Systemic (Joint Initiatives) 

• Behavioral Health Treatment for Youth with Significant Mental 
Health Needs 

• Initiatives to Reduce Use of Seclusion and Disciplinary 
Segregation 

• Initiatives to Effectively Treat Aggressive Youth in Residential 
Care 

• __________________________________________________ 
• __________________________________________________ 
• __________________________________________________ 

NOTES 

54

rodriguez-l
Text Box



 
Funding Needs and Priorities 

 
 Research Supported Programs 
 Prevention and Intervention 

 _________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 
Former Strategic Initiatives from 2013-2017 Strategic Plan 

 
 Strengthen and enhance the safety and security protocols, procedures, 

training, equipment and technology in all state-operated secure 
institutions and halfway houses to ensure the safety of youth, staff and the 
public. 
 

 Strengthen and enhance the continuum of effective youth services 
provided by local juvenile probation departments and community-based 
juvenile justice partners to address core services and specialty population’s 
needs (mental and behavioral health, prevention and intervention). 
Identify gaps in services along the continuum and focus efforts to address 
the needs of juveniles and their families in the community. 

 
 Strengthen and enhance the provision of effective mental and behavioral 

health programs, services and treatment for  youth being served in the 
community-based juvenile justice system through a collaborative project 
funded by TJJD in  cooperation with community partners including 
juvenile probation departments, mental health authorities, TCOOMI, 
schools and community based providers as appropriate. 
 

 Strengthen and enhance the positive outcomes expected from the 
continuum of juvenile justice programs and services statewide through 
effective partnerships with local juvenile probation departments and 
community providers. 
 

 Develop and implement a collaborative border counties initiative to 
effectively address the provision of programs and services in counties 
bordering Mexico that are facing unique problems and financial 
difficulties serving Mexican national youth engaged in drug trafficking, 
human trafficking and weapons offenses in border communities. 
 

 Develop a state/local formalized collaboration and communication plan 
that promotes effective collaboration and communication between local 
juvenile probation departments, juvenile justice practitioners and TJJD. 

NOTES 

55

rodriguez-l
Text Box



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Resource Names % Complete

1 TJJD Strategic Plan 2015‐2019 196 days Tue 10/1/13 Tue 7/1/14 21%

2 Preliminary Project Planning Phase 74 days Tue 10/1/13 Fri 1/10/14 72%
3 Set up M Drive Access 5 days Mon 10/14/13 Fri 10/18/13 100%
4 Gather old SP Docs 5 days Mon 10/21/13 Fri 10/25/13 Lisa Capers,Lucy Rodriquez 100%
5 Meeting with Executive Director and COS 1 day Tue 10/22/13 Tue 10/22/13 Lisa Capers,Mike Griffiths,Linda Brooke 100%
6 Develop SP Powerpoint and Input 

Documents
12 days Mon 12/16/13 Tue 12/31/13 Lisa Capers 80%

7 Scheduling Regional Chief's Meetings 22 days Mon 12/2/13 Tue 12/31/13 James Williams 90%
8 Meeting with Executive Director 1 day Wed 12/18/13 Wed 12/18/13 Lisa Capers,Mike Griffiths 100%
9 Determine Core Team 1 day Mon 12/30/13 Mon 12/30/13 Lisa Capers 100%
10 Meeting with Graphic Designer on Design 

Format for SP
1 day Tue 12/31/13 Tue 12/31/13 Lisa Capers,Michelle Bayer 0%

11 Core Team Meeting with Assistant PMs 1 day Tue 1/7/14 Tue 1/7/14 Colleen Buck,Katrena Plumber,Lisa Capers 0%
12 Planning Meeting for LBB Budget 

Structure Development Process
1 day Tue 1/7/14 Tue 1/7/14 Lisa Capers,Mike Meyer 0%

13 Working Drafts to Divisions & Assignments 9 days Tue 12/31/13 Fri 1/10/14 Lisa Capers,Lucy Rodriquez 0%

14 Stakeholder Input Phase 58 days Wed 1/8/14 Fri 3/28/14 0%
15 Regional Chief's Meetings 38 days Wed 1/8/14 Fri 2/28/14mes Williams,Linda Brooke,Mike Griffiths 0%
16 Cameron County 3 days Wed 1/8/14 Fri 1/10/14 0%
17 SE TX Chiefs Montgomer County 1 day Fri 1/10/14 Fri 1/10/14 0%
18 NE TX Chiefs @ Tyler 1 day Fri 1/17/14 Fri 1/17/14 0%
19 CJPO Summit Focus Group @ San 

Marcos
2 days Mon 1/27/14 Tue 1/28/14 0%

20 PADJPO @ Randal County 1 day Mon 2/10/14 Mon 2/10/14 0%
21 Juvenile Law Conference Judicial 

Caucus @ Corpus
1 day Mon 2/24/14 Mon 2/24/14 0%

22 West Texas Chiefs 2 days Mon 2/24/14 Tue 2/25/14 0%
23 Compile Input from Regional Meetings 38 days Wed 1/8/14 Fri 2/28/14 Lisa Capers,James Williams 0%

24 Executive Review of Input Linda Brooke,Mike Griffiths 0%
25 Survey Monkey 47 days Thu 1/9/14 Fri 3/14/14 0%
26 Planning Meeting for Survey 

Development
1 day Thu 1/9/14 Thu 1/9/14 0%

Page 1

56

rodriguez-l
Text Box



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Resource Names % Complete

27 Development of Surveys 15 days Mon 1/13/14 Fri 1/31/14 0%
28 Dissimination of Surveys 20 days Mon 2/3/14 Fri 2/28/14 0%
29 Surveys Due Date 1 day Fri 2/28/14 Fri 2/28/14 0%
30 Analysis of Survey Data 10 days Mon 3/3/14 Fri 3/14/14 0%
31 Review of Facility & HWH Needs 35 days Mon 1/13/14 Fri 2/28/14 0%
32 Develop Capital and Operational Needs 

Survey 
0%

33 Dissimination of Survey 0%
34 Survey Due Date 0%
35 Review and Analysis of Survey Results 0%
36 Executive Review and Approval of 

Capital and Operational Needs
0%

37 Strategic Plan Development 109 days Thu 1/30/14 Tue 7/1/14 0%
38 Section 1: Guiding Principles 0%
39 Section 2: External/Internal Assessment 0%
40 Section 3:  Agency Goals, Objectives, 

Strategies
0%

41 Section 4:  Techynology Resource Planning 0%

42 Section 5:  Appendices and Attachments 0%
43 Governing Board Input/Approvals 107 days Thu 1/30/14 Fri 6/27/14 0%
44 Overview of Strategic Planning Project 2 days Thu 1/30/14 Fri 1/31/14 0%

45 Board Input on SP and Priorities 25 days Mon 2/3/14 Fri 3/7/14 0%
46 Board Approval of Draft SP 2 days Thu 3/27/14 Fri 3/28/14 0%
47 Board Approval of Final SP 2 days Thu 5/29/14 Fri 5/30/14 0%
48 Submission of Strategic Plan 5 days Wed 6/25/14 Tue 7/1/14 0%
49 Final Amendments (if any) 0%
50 Copying and Binding 0%
51 Electronic Submission of Plan 0%
52 Posting of Plan on Website 0%

Page 2

57

rodriguez-l
Text Box



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

58



 
 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Subject: TJJD Ethics Policy 

Date: January 28, 2014 

 

In August of 2013, TJJD conducted an Internal Audit of the agency’s ethics policies and 

programs. As a result of that audit, two recommendations were made to the Office of 

General Counsel.  The recommendations are listed below, along with the response and 

actions made by the General Counsel. 

 

1. “To ensure oversight and annual reporting of the ethics program, General Counsel 

should determine the need for the implementation of an Ethics Officer, an ethics 

program, and periodic reporting requirements.” 

 

An internal TJJD policy already establishes that the General Counsel serves as the 

agency’s ethics officer.   To effectuate a more formal ethics program, however, 

changes are being made to another internal policy reflecting the agency’s current 

practice of requiring each employee to complete an annual ethics and confidentiality 

e-course.  The policy also reflects the agency’s requirement for all employees to 

comply with all state and federal laws, administrative rules, TJJD policies, and 

provisions set forth in the TJJD Employee Handbook.  The policy also outlines 

reporting requirements of unlawful and unethical conduct.  The agency has long 

since had policies requiring ethical conduct, but the recent changes simply collect 

these policies into one complete “ethics program.”  These can be found in PRS 

02.03., which is in the final stages of revision. 

 

2. “To ensure Board members are kept abreast of ethics related requirements, General 

Counsel should work with the governing Board to determine the need for periodic 

ethics related training.” 

 

In response to this audit recommendation, the General Counsel determined possible 

changes to the Board Governance Manual.  To that end, a draft change is 

recommended that would mandate ethics-related continuing education as required 

59



by the Board Chair and offered by the department.  This is a flexible provision that 

allows the Chair to determine additional ethics training that would be necessary in 

collaboration with the General Counsel.  Staff recommends adopting this change to 

the Board Governance Manual. 

 

 

 

 

  

60



Section III: BOARD MEMBER TRAINING 

 

Reference:   Human Resources Code §202.006 

 (a) A person who is appointed to and qualifies for office as a member of the board may not vote, 

deliberate, or be counted as a member in attendance at a meeting of the board until the person 

completes a training program that complies with this section. 

(b) The training program must provide the person with information regarding: 

(1)  the legislation that created the department; 

(2) the programs, functions, rules, and budget of the department; 

(3) the results of the most recent formal audit of the department; 

(4) the requirements of laws relating to open meetings, public information, administrative 

procedure, and conflicts of interest; and 

(5) any applicable ethics policies adopted by the department or the Texas Ethics Commission. 

(c) A person appointed to the board is entitled to reimbursement, as provided by the General 

Appropriations Act, for the travel expenses incurred in attending the training program regardless 

of whether the attendance at the program occurs before or after the person qualifies for office.   

 

 

--- Board Policy --- 

 

In addition to the training described above, a person appointed to the board must participate in a 

periodic ethics-related continuing education course. The length of time between continuing education 

courses is to be determined by the board chairman. 

 

 

61



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO AMEND THE BOARD GOVERNANCE MANUAL 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, an internal audit was done and changes to the Board Governance Manual were recommended, 

WHEREAS, the need for Board Members to receive regular ethics training was highlighted,  

WHEREAS, the proposed changes were developed with input from the Chairman, 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes that the Board Governance Manual be 

amended to add the following language in Section III, subsection (d): “In addition to the training described 

above, a person appointed to the board must participate in a periodic ethics-related continuing education 

course. The length of time between continuing education courses is to be determined by the board 

chairman.”   

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

62



 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Office  

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations 

Subject: Contract Items Requiring Board Approval 

Date: January 10, 2014 

Per General Administrative Policy, GAP385.1101, paragraph d.1, any contract exceeding 
$500,000 and any other contract deemed appropriate for board approval as determined by the 
Executive Director will be presented for approval. 
 
TJJD has submitted the FY 14/15 medical services contract to UTMB for final review. Upon 
approval of the new contract by UTMB and TJJD Board, an amendment will be processed for 
new contract to supersede the current contract that was extended through February 28, 2014. 
The previously approved amount was $11,036,556. The new two-year contract amount 
submitted for approval is $21,671,444. 
 
Earlier this year the Ayres Halfway House located in San Antonio experienced septic systems 
issues which resulted in replacement of the entire system. Pending TJJD Board approval, TJJD’s 
Executive Director agreed to exercise the two five-year lease renewal options allowed for in the 
contract if the property owner, South New Braunfels 47, LTD, agreed to bear the entire 
replacement cost. The system has since been replaced at the owner’s expense. The original 
lease was for 10 years, from 11/01/2009 through 10/31/2019. Upon approval by the TJJD 
Board the lease term will be extend through 10/31/2029. At the current lease rate of 
$12,746/month, the cost for that 10-year period would be $1,529,520. The extension of the 
lease agreement does not affect the contract provision that makes continued leasing of the 
property contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds. 
 
Therefore we respectfully request your consideration and approval for the following FY2014 
contract amendments: 
 
Negotiated Contract for FY 2014 and FY 2015: 
 

• UTMB Medical Services   $21,671,444   FY14/15 NTE Amount 
 

• Ayres Halfway House Lease  $1,529,520  10-year Lease Extension 

63



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE AYRES HALFWAY HOUSE 

LEASE CONTRACT 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Board Governance Manual and GAP 385.1101 requires a majority of the Board to approve 
in an open meeting certain contracts with expected value exceeding $500,000 and any other contract 
deemed appropriate for Board approval as determined by the Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, the Ayres Halfway House lease contract allows for the exercising of two five-year renewal 
options; and 

WHEREAS, the Ayres Halfway House lease contract continuation is contingent upon the availability of 
appropriated state funds; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner, South New Braunfels 47, LTD, agreed to upgrade and replace the septic 
system that services the Ayres Halfway House: 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Texas Juvenile Justice Department’s 
Executive Director to execute an amendment to the Ayres Halfway House lease contract, extending it for an 
additional 10 years until 10/31/2029 at a cost of $1,529,520 for the extended 10 year period.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

64



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO EXTEND THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS MEDICAL BRANCH (UTMB) 

CONTRACT 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Board Governance Manual and GAP 385.1101 requires a majority of the Board to approve 
in an open meeting certain contracts with expected value exceeding $500,000 and any other contract 
deemed appropriate for Board approval as determined by the Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, the extension to the FY 2013 UTMB Medical Services contract will expire on 02/28/2014; and 

WHEREAS, TJJD and UTMB have successfully negotiated a contract to cover FY 2014 and FY 2015: 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Texas Justice Department’s Executive 
Director to execute the proposed UTMB contract for FY14/15 with a not-to-exceed contract amount of 

$21,671,444, and to amend the existing FY13 UTMB contract for the FY14/15 contract to supersede it. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

65



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

66



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

82



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

 Vanessa Burgess, Trust Attorney 

Subject: Discussion and possible authorization to execute a deed for Bell County to upgrade 

the entry road to the Parrie Haynes Ranch 

Date: January 8, 2014  

 

The Bell County Engineer’s Office is seeking to upgrade the portion of Gann Branch Road 
that leads to the Parrie Haynes Ranch.  The county has offered the Parrie Haynes Trust a 
total sum of $15,022.00 for the right-of-way to upgrade and pave the road.  The offer works 
out to $4.00 per linear foot for a total of 3,755.50 feet of land belonging to the trust and 
running alongside the Gann Branch Road.   
 
The proposed paving project will benefit the trust by providing for an upgraded and fully 
paved entrance to the ranch, which does not currently exist, which would be maintained by 
Bell County.  Additionally, the proposed rate for the right-of-way is in line with the current 
rate for county rights-of-way and installation of new fencing on private properties in Bell 
County. 
 
This request is for Board approval of the proposed offer of $15,022.00 for the right-of-way 
in order to allow for the paving of Gann Branch Road. 
 
 

83



 

 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ACCEPT OFFER FROM BELL COUNTY ENGINEER’S OFFICE TO 

COMPENSATE THE TRUST FOR TRUST LAND USED IN THE PAVING AND EXPANSION OF GANN 

BRANCH ROAD  

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, TJJD Board Members are trustees of the Parrie Haynes charitable trust fund for 
orphans bequeathed to the State in 1957; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Bell County Engineer’s Office has offered a sum of $15,022.00 for the right-of-way 
to upgrade and pave Gann Branch Road, which leads to the Parrie Haynes Ranch; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed paving project will benefit the trust by upgrading the current rough dirt 
road into a fully paved entrance to the ranch, which would be maintained by Bell County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed compensation rate for the right-of-way is within the current market 
rates for county rights-of-way and installation of new fencing on private properties in Bell County; 
and 

84



 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Trustees agree the proposed sum and 
construction of the paved road leading to the Parrie Haynes Ranch will benefit the Parrie Haynes 
Trust, the Trustees approve the acceptance of this offer by the Executive Director and Parrie 
Haynes Committee Chairman, Jimmy Smith on behalf of the Trustees.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile 
Justice Board. 

 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

85



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

86



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion and consideration of a mineral rights lease within the boundaries of the 

Parrie Haynes Ranch with Scully Exploration 

Date: January 9, 2014 

 

 

Scully Exploration, LLC. has made an offer to lease the mineral rights of the Parrie Haynes 
Ranch.  Scully proposes a three year primary term for the mineral rights to all 4,424 acres 
of the ranch with a lease bonus of $66,375.00 (roughly $15.00 per acre).  Scully also 
proposes a royalty of twenty percent. 
 
As a matter of due diligence, we met with the executives at Scully, researched the company 
itself and its current and past ventures, as well as explored other potential mineral lease 
options within Bell County.  As a result, we recommend the Board not accept Scully’s 
current offer; however, we recommend the Board continue to consider other offers and/or 
options concerning the mineral rights to the Parrie Haynes Ranch.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



 

 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT AN OFFER MADE BY SCULLY EXPLORATION, LLC TO LEASE THE MINERAL 

RIGHTS FOR THE PARRIE HAYNES RANCH 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III       Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King       Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, TJJD Board Members are trustees of the Parrie Haynes charitable trust fund for orphans 
bequeathed to the State in 1957; and 

WHEREAS, Scully Exploration, LLC has made an offer to lease the mineral rights of the Parrie 
Haynes Ranch; and 

WHEREAS, Scully proposes a three year primary term for the mineral rights to all 4,424 acres of the ranch 
with a lease bonus of $66,375.00 (roughly $15.00 per acre) and a royalty of twenty percent; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Trustees approve the acceptance of this offer by the 
Executive Director and Parrie Haynes Committee Chairman, Jimmy Smith on behalf of the Trustees.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

88



 

 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REJECT AN OFFER MADE BY SCULLY EXPLORATION, LLC TO LEASE THE MINERAL 

RIGHTS FOR THE PARRIE HAYNES RANCH 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III       Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King       Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, TJJD Board Members are trustees of the Parrie Haynes charitable trust fund for orphans 
bequeathed to the State in 1957; and 

WHEREAS, Scully Exploration, LLC (Scully) has made an offer to lease the mineral rights of the 
Parrie Haynes Ranch; and 

WHEREAS, Scully proposes a three year primary term for the mineral rights to all 4,424 acres of the ranch 
with a lease bonus of $66,375.00 (roughly $15.00 per acre) and a royalty of twenty percent; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Trustees reject this offer made by Scully and remain open 
to any other proposals in the future to explore for fossil fuels on the property.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

89



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

90



 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

 Vanessa Burgess, Trust Attorney 

Subject: Discussion and direction on the development of the Federal Habitat Conservation 

Plan for the Parrie Haynes Ranch 

Date: January 9, 2014  

In 2006, to obtain the required permits from the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (Fish and 

Wildlife) to construct the power line through the Parrie Haynes Ranch, Oncor signed a required 

Environmental Assessment/Habitation Plan agreeing to pay the 1.6 million dollars in mitigation 

fees, which would then be used to hire someone to manage the golden cheeked warbler and the 

black capped vireo populations at the Parrie Haynes Ranch.  Oncor paid the mitigation funds to 

Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) because at the time, TPWD managed the property 

and was in the process of taking over as trustee.  However, because TPWD never assumed the role 

of trustee of the estate, it has held the mitigation funds in an account and a wildlife management 

plan was never put into place.      

 

A representative from Fish and Wildlife, who oversees the management of federal mitigation fees, 

recently contacted TJJD to ask whether the Board, as trustees of the Parrie Haynes Trust, would be 

interested developing a wildlife management plan for the ranch utilizing the available mitigation 

funds.  The wildlife management plan would follow the terms set forth in Oncor’s original 

Environmental Assessment/Habitation Plan of protecting the two bird species and hiring someone 

to manage their respective habitats.   

 

We met with this representative and discussed different options as to how to develop a plan and 

whether different activities, such as cedar reduction, could be included in that plan.  Should the 

Board determine it is in the best interest of the trust to move forward with this plan, it would 

present a unique opportunity where a private estate works to develop a wildlife management plan 

with the federal government.  As such, the Board will be able to have significant input and propose 

terms that allow for future mineral lease prospects and to provide for important wildlife 

management and conservation efforts for the ranch.   

 

At this point, staff requests the Board to consider pursuing this option and develop a wildlife 

management plan with the mitigation funds.  If the Board chooses not to take the mitigation funds, 

the money will likely be used to buy mitigation credits at the federal level.  

 

91



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

92



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

 Vanessa Burgess, Trust Attorney 

Subject: Report on a New Grazing Lease on the Milam County Tract of the Parrie Haynes Ranch  

Date: January 9, 2014 

  

In accordance with August, 24, 2012 Board designation of authority to make day-to-day 
management decisions, TJJD staff published to the local newspaper an advertisement for a 
grazing lease on the Milam Tract of the estate.   
 
The most recent grazing lease expired in January 2014.  We received one offer to lease the 
land for $2,000 per year from the current tenants.  The previous lease was for the same 
amount; however, the current lease covers a three-year period of time.  The lease has been 
signed by the tenant, the executive director, and Mr. Jimmy Smith who serves as the 
chairman of the Parrie Haynes Committee.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

94



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Subject: Report on financial settlement from Oncor for damages at the Parrie Haynes 

  Ranch 
  
Date: January 9, 2014 
  

 

Oncor has offered to pay the Parrie Haynes Estate a total of $2,500.00 in mitigation fees for 
any grassland that was damaged during the construction of the power line at the Parrie 
Haynes Ranch.   Most of the grassland has already been reseeded or mulched, but this offer 
serves as the final offer for mitigation and release of all claims, damages, and causes of 
action. 
 
Pursuant to the August 24, 2014 Board designation of day-to-day decision-making, TJJD 
staff has directed the money be paid to the eastern/equestrian side of the property to make 
certain repairs to the property.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

96



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities  

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship and Religious Education and 37 TAC 

§380.9317, relating to Access to Personal Minister, Pastor, or Religious Counselor, 

in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

The State Programs and Facilities Division is proposing to revise 37 TAC §380.9121, 

relating to Moral Values, Worship and Religious Education, and 37 TAC §380.9317, relating 

to Access to Personal Minister, Pastor, or Religious Counselor. 

 

The staff requests approval to submit the proposed rules to the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  

 

Text of the revised rules and a resolution are attached. 

 

Summary of Revisions: 

380.9121 - Moral Values, Worship and Religious Education 

• To be consistent with current practice, the rule now establishes that the 

religious preference of each youth under 18 years old is verified with his/her 

parent or guardian. 

o TJJD honors the youth’s preference if the parent or guardian cannot be 

contacted after due diligence. 

o TJJD honors the religious preference of the parent or guardian if he/she 

disagrees with the youth’s religious preference. 

97



380.9317 - Access to Personal Minister, Pastor, or Religious Counselor 

• A personal clergy member is now defined as someone from a recognized faith 

group who has an established, professional relationship with a youth and/or the 

youth’s family prior to the youth’s admission to TJJD. 

• To reflect current practice, TJJD staff must verify a clergy member’s religious 

affiliation and relationship to a youth before approving the clergy member’s 

registration to visit a facility. 

• A personal clergy member may now visit a youth any time after reasonable 

arrangements have been made. TJJD staff will no longer place limits on the 

length of time allowed for visits or frequency of visits between a youth and 

his/her personal clergy member as long as these arrangements have been made. 

• Clarification has been made that TJJD will provide adequate space for a youth to 

have a confidential visit with a personal clergy member, but staff will maintain 

line-of-sight supervision for security purposes. 

• Clarification has been made that if a youth is under age 18, his/her 

parent/guardian may prohibit a visit between his/her child and a personal 

clergy member.  

• The title of this rule will be changed to “Visitation with Personal Clergy” to more 

accurately reflect the content of the rule. 

 

 

 

98



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9121 
General Administrative Policy Manual  
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Program Services 
Division: Basic Services 

Title: Moral Values, Worship, and Religious Education 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5F-01, 5F-02, 5F-03, 5F-04, 5F-05, 5F-06, 5F-07 

Effective Date: 11/1/11, T-116 

 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces:  GAP.91.21, 6/4/07, T-

87GAP.380.9121, 
11/1/11 

 

 
I. RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to provide establish guidelines for providing youth with the opportunity to 
participate in worship and religious education and encouragement to develop and internalize a set of 
personal moral and spiritual values. 
 

(b) General Provisions. 
 

(1) TJJD determines the religious preference of each youth admitted to TJJD. If a youth is under age 
18, TJJD contacts the youth’s parent/guardian to verify the youth’s religious preference. If there is a 
disagreement regarding the religious preference for a youth under age 18, the religious preference 
will be established by the parent/guardian. If TJJD is unable to contact the parent/guardian after due 
diligence, TJJD will honor the youth’s requested religious preference. 

 
(b2) Texas Youth CommissionThe Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TYCTJJD) shallprovides youth the 

opportunity to participate in religious education programs, and services, and counselingfor youth. 
 
(c3) Participation in religious education programs, services, and counseling isshall be voluntary. 
 
(d4) Arbitrary and discriminatory restrictions of religious freedoms are prohibited. 
 
(e5) High restriction and medium restriction facilities operated by or under contract with TJJD 

mustHalfway house and contract residential programs shall provide for reasonable access to 
religious education programs, services, and counseling, and other such resources in the community. 

 
(f6) Youth will be given the opportunity to participate in religious programs and services. Participation in 

religious education programs, services, and counseling may shall be limited only when 
documentation indicates a threat to the safety of persons involved or the activity disrupts order in the 
facility. 

 
(g7) Youth in TYCTJJD -operated facilities may request that a specific religious practice or item be made 

available to him or/ her.  A youth’s The request is subject to an assessment, accommodation, and 
approval process. 

 
(h8) TYCTJJD shall provides access to adult personal clergy for a youth’s faith group in accordance with 

§380.9317 of this title. 
 
(i9) TYCTJJD shall encourages the participation of volunteer religious groups and individuals in its 

religious services and programs. 
 

99



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9317 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 

Title: Access toVisitation with Personal Minister, Pastor, or 
Religious CounselorClergy 

 
ACA:  4-JCF-5F-02, 5F-04 

Effective Date: 9/25/00, T-46 

 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
New  Replaces: GAP.380.9317, 

9/25/00 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this policy rule is to provide for youth with privileged access to their personal 
clergyministers, pastors or religious counselors through visitation.  

 
(b) Visitation. 
 

(1) A personal minister, pastor, or religious counselorclergy member is someone from a recognized 
faith group whose personal relationship with the youth or his/her legal guardian is that of a 
minister, pastor, or religious counselorwho has an established, professional relationship with a 
youth and/or the youth’s family prior to the youth’s admission to TJJD.  

 
(2) Staff TJJD approves will verify the clergy member’s registration to visit after his/her religious 

affiliation and relationship to the youth are verifiedprior to visit. 
 
(3) Youth mayshall be allowed to receive visits from their personal ministers, pastors, or religious 

counselorsclergy member any day of the week at any time between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. and after 
5 p.m. if reasonable arrangements can be madeafter reasonable arrangements have been 
made. 

 
(4) TJJD provides adequate Sspace and supervision will be provided for the visit. TJJD ensures the 

space allows the youth to have confidential conversation with his/her personal clergy, but 
correctional staff maintain line-of-sight supervision. 

 
(5) The visitor personal clergy member iswill only be allowed to visit the youth with whom he/she 

has a personal an established professional relationship. 
 
(6) Staff may place limits on length of time allowed for visits and frequency of visits based on 

facility’s program and schedule of activities for the youth. 
 
(76) A Yyouth may decline a visit with a personal clergy memberminister, pastor, or religious 

counselor. The parent/guardian of a youth under age 18 may prohibit a visit between his/her 
child and a personal clergy member.  

 

100



	

A

O
J
t

w

W
D

W
a

W
d
s

N
3

T
B

S
	

T
	
	

_
S

A	RESOLUT
MORAL	V

ACCESS	TO	P

On	 this	31st
ustice	Board
the	Members

BOARD	MEMBE

Scott	W.	Fisher	

John	Brieden	III

Joseph	Brown	

Carol	Bush	

Becky	Gregory	

Jane	A.	King	

Scott	Matthew	

where,	amon

WHEREAS,	 T
Department	t

WHEREAS,	 t
and	§380.931

WHEREAS,	T
days’	notice	o
submit	data,	

NOW,	 THER
37	TAC	§380

The	 foregoin
Board.	

Signed	this	3

Texas	Juv

____________
Scott	W.	Fish

TION	FOR	AU
VALUES,	WOR
PERSONAL	M

t	day	 of	 Jan
d	was	held	in
s	was	presen

ER	 PRESENT	

	

I	 	

	

	

	

	

	

ng	other	matt

Texas	 Huma
to	adopt	rule

the	TJJD	 staf
17;	and	

Texas	Govern
of	its	intentio
views,	or	arg

REFORE	 BE
.9121	and	§3

ng	Resolution

1st	day	of	Ja

venile	Just

____________
her,	Chairm

 
Texas

UTHORIZAT
RSHIP	AND	
MINISTER,	P

A	3

nuary	2014,	
n	the	City	of	A
t,	to	wit:	

ABSENT	 YES

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

ters,	came	up

an	 Resource
es	appropriat

ff	 has	 recom

nment	Code	
on	to	adopt	a
guments	oral

E	 IT	 RESO
380.9317	for

n	was	 lawful

anuary	2014

tice	Board

____________
man	

s	Juvenile
RES

TION	TO	SUB
RELIGIOUS	
PASTOR,	OR
0‐DAY	PUBL

a	 duly	 calle
Austin,	Texas

S	 NO	 ABST

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

p	for	conside

s	 Code	 §242
te	to	the	prop

mended	nec

§2001.023	a
a	rule	and	to
lly	or	in	writ

LVED	 THA
r	publication	

lly	moved,	d

4.	

d	

________	

e	Justice	D
OLUTIO
BMIT	REVISI
EDUCATION

R	RELIGIOUS
LIC	COMMEN

ed	 and	 lawfu
s,	pursuant	t

TAIN	 	 BOAR

	 MaryL

	 Rene	O

	 Laura	

	 Jimmy

	 Calvin

	 Meliss

	 Motion

ration	and	ad

2.003	 requir
per	accompl

cessary	 revis

and	§2001.0
o	allow	all	in
ing;	

AT	 the	 Boa
in	the	Texas

duly	 seconde

 
Departme
N	
IONS	TO	37	
N,	AND	37	TA
S	COUNSELO
NT	PERIOD

ully	 convene
to	the	Texas	

RD	MEMBER	 P

Lou	Mendoza	

Olvera	

Parker	

y	Smith	

n	Stephens	

sa	Weiss	

n:	

doption	the	f

res	 the	 Boa
ishment	of	th

sions	 and	 cla

029	require	a
nterested	per

ard	 authoriz
s	Register	for	

ed,	 and	adop

ent	

TAC	§380.9
AC	§380.93
OR,	IN	THE	T

ed	meeting	 o
Open	Meetin

PRESENT	 ABSE

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Secon

following	Re

ard	 of	 the	 T
he	departme

arifications	 t

a	 state	agen
rsons	a	reaso

zes	 submiss
a	30‐day	pu

pted	by	 the	T

9121,	RELAT
17,	RELATIN
TEXAS	REGIS

of	 the	 Texas
ngs	Act.			A	q

ENT	 YES	 NO

	

	

	

	

	

	

nd:	

esolution:	

Texas	 Juvenil
ent’s	function

to	 37	TAC	§3

cy	 to	give	at
onable	oppor

sion	 of	 the
blic	commen

Texas	 Juveni

TING	TO	
NG	TO	
TER	FOR	

s	 Juvenile	
uorum	of	

O	 ABSTAIN

	

	

	

	

	

	

le	 Justice	
ns;			

380.9121	

t	 least	30	
rtunity	to	

e	 revised		
nt	period.	

ile	 Justice	

101



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

102



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel  

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9312, relating to Visitation, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public 

comment period 

Date: January 16, 2014 

  

The Office of General Counsel is proposing to revise 37 TAC §380.9312, relating to 

Visitation. This rule establishes who may visit youth in TJJD facilities, the process for 

registering as a visitor, and how visitation is scheduled and conducted. 

 

The staff requests approval to submit the proposed rule to the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  

 

The revised rule and a resolution are attached. 

 

Summary of Revisions: 

• In addition to individuals with convictions in the last 10 years, the list of people who 

are not eligible to visit will include individuals with outstanding felony or 

misdemeanor warrants. 

• If a person who is not an immediate family member has a felony conviction in the 

past 10 years, he/she will no longer be automatically ineligible to visit. TJJD staff 

must make a decision to allow or deny visitation. 

• A person with the following criminal history may now be denied visitation: 

o deferred adjudication or juvenile adjudication for a felony in the last 10 years; 

o current probation or parole; or 

o conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a jailable 

misdemeanor within the past five years. 

103



• For persons who may be denied visitation based on their criminal history, TJJD will 

now take into consideration the nature and extent of the criminal record and the 

time elapsed since the criminal activity when deciding whether to deny visitation. 

• Pursuant to HB 2733 (83rd Legislature), a provision has been added that prohibits 

TJJD from denying visitation for an immediate family member based solely on the 

person’s criminal history. 

• A provision has been added that allows only the division director over residential 

services or his/her designee to deny visitation to an immediate family member. 

• Pursuant to HB 2733 (83rd Legislature), a provision has been added to allow TJJD to 

retain criminal history information for a person whose visitation is denied or 

restricted because of his/her criminal history. This information will be kept until the 

youth the person is seeking to visit is released. 

• A provision has been added that allows the executive director to make exceptions to 

this rule on a case-by-case basis. 

• Clarification has been added to show that this rule does not apply to volunteers 

when they visit youth as part of their specific volunteer assignment. 

104



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9312 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 1/10/14 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 

Rule: Visitation 
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-1C-08, 3A-18, 3A-19, 3A-20 

Statute(s):  N/A 

References:  International Minimum Standard for the Treatment of Prisoners, 1977 

Effective Date: 11/15/11 

 
Page: 1 of 7 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.93.12,11/15/11 

9/21/05 
 

 
RULE 
  
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to promote and foster communication and contact between Texas Juvenile 
Justice Department (TJJD) Youth Commission (TYC) youth and their parents/guardians, immediate family 
members, and other positive individuals in their lives.  

 
(b) Applicability.  
 

(1) This rule applies to all residential facilities operated by TJJDTYC. 
 
(2) This rule does not apply to visits from:  
 

(A) attorneys, pursuant to (see §380.93.11 of this title); or  
(B) personal clergy ministers, pastors, or religious counselors, pursuant to (see §380.93.17 of this 

title).; or 
(C) registered volunteers who are visiting a youth as part of their specific volunteer assignment 

(see §385.8145 and §385.8181 of this title). 
 

(c) Definitions. 
 

As used in this rule, the following terms shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. 

 
(1) Immediate Family Member--parent (including step-parent), legal guardian, sibling (including step-

sibling), child, spouse, aunt, uncle, or grandparent of a youth in TJJD TYC custody. 
 
(2) Non-Eligible Visitor-- includes only the following individuals: 
 

(A) a former or current TJJD TYC youth, except if a former TJJD TYC youth is an immediate 
family member; 

 
(B) a parent whose parental rights have been terminated by a court, if and the youth the parent is 

seeking to visit is under age 18; 
 
(C) any person individual who is restricted from contact with a TJJD TYC youth by a valid court 

order; 
 
(D) any former or current TJJD TYC employee, unless the former or current TJJD TYC employee 

is an immediate family member of the youth, is otherwise authorized to visit the youth, or is 
approved by the chief local administrator (CLA); 

 
(E) any person individual who is not an immediate family member and who is under age 18, 

unless approved by the CLA; or and 
 
(F) any person with an outstanding warrant for a felony or misdemeanor offense; 
 
(G)  any person individual who is not an immediate family member and who has a felony conviction 

within the last ten years or is required to register as a sex offender, unless authorization for the 
visitation is obtained from the executive director or his/her designee. 

 

105



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 2 of 7 
 
(d) General Provisions. Approval to Visit. 
 

(1) All TJJD TYC youth, regardless of program placement, are shall be allowed to receive visitors. 
 
(2) Except for parents and guardians who wish to visit a youth during the youth’s initial placement at the 

orientation and assessment facility, only persons individuals whose names are on a youth’s 
approved visitor list are will be permitted to visit that youth. 

 
(3) A person An individual wishing to be placed on a youth’s approved visitor list must submit a 

completed visitor application and obtain prior approval to visit with the youth.   
 
(4) TJJD TYC may conducts background and public criminal history checks and/or require written 

authorization to conduct full criminal history checks prior to placing a person an individual on the 
youth’s approved visitor list.  

 
(A) TJJD will not release or disclose Cconfidential criminal history record information shall not be 

released or disclosed except on court order or with the consent of the person individual who is 
the subject of the criminal history record information.   

 
(B) Criminal records obtained under pursuant to this rule will be destroyed after completion of the 

visitation approval decision. However, if visitation is denied or limited based in part on a review 
of criminal history, TJJD will retain the criminal history record information of the person for 
whom access is denied or limited until the youth the person is seeking to visit is released from 
TJJD.  

 
(5) TYC may deny placing an individual’s name on a youth’s approved visitor list only if: 

 
(A) the individual is a non-eligible visitor; or 
(B) the visitor has been denied visitation pursuant to subsection (f)(7) of this section. 
 

(56) An approved visitor under the age of 18 must be accompanied by: 
 

(A) his/her parent or guardian; or 
(B) if the visitor is the child of a TJJD TYC youth, an approved visitor who is age 18 or older. 

 
(e) Denial of Visitation. 
 

(1) TJJD may deny placing a person’s name on a youth’s approved visitor list only if: 
 

(A) the person is a non-eligible visitor; or 
(B) TJJD has denied visitation for any of the reasons listed in paragraph (2) of this subsection. 

 
(2) TJJD may deny visitation if: 
 

(A) evidence exists that the person has: 
 

(i) passed contraband to a youth or staff member that constitutes a violation of law or 
creates a safety or security risk; 

 
(ii) aided a youth in an escape or attempted escape; 
 
(iii) provided false information or failed to provide accurate information to staff with regard to 

visitation;  
 
(iv) engaged in disruption of visitation similar to examples listed in subsection (h) of this 

section. The severity of the incident is a factor in determining the length of time visitation 
may be denied;  

 
(B) the person was victimized by the youth and the manager of clinical services has determined 

that visitation would be harmful to the person; 
 

106



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 3 of 7 
 

(C) there is reasonable cause to believe the person would pose a risk to the safety or security of 
the facility or interfere with a youth’s treatment, rehabilitation, or successful reestablishment in 
the community; 
 

(D) the person is required to register as a sex offender under Chapter 62 of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure; or 

 
(E) the person has the following criminal history: 

 
(i) a conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a felony within the past 

ten years; 
 
(ii) current probation or parole; or 
 
(iii) a conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a jailable misdemeanor 

within the past five years. 
 

(3) To determine whether to approve or deny visitation based on criminal history, TJJD takes into 
consideration the nature and extent of the criminal record and the time elapsed since the criminal 
activity. 

 
(4) TJJD will not deny visitation for an immediate family member of a TJJD youth based solely on a 

review of criminal history record information.  
 
(5) Only the division director over residential services or his/her designee may deny visitation for an 

immediate family member. 
 

(6) If TJJD denies placing a person’s name on a youth’s approved visitor list, TJJD will provide written 
notice to the person and the youth. The notice will include the reason for the denial and an 
explanation of the right to file a grievance to appeal the decision.   

 
(fe) Visitation Scheduling. 
 

(1) Visitation Days. 
 

Visitation days are, at a minimum, each Saturday and Sunday and major holidays.  Additional 
visitation days may be provided, as designated by the CLA or designee. 

 
(2) Visitation Hours. 

 
The facility/program must provide two 8eight-hour visitation days per week.  The facility/program 
may provide extended visitation hours, as designated by the CLA or designee. 

 
(3) Length of Visitation. 

 
(A) For Youth Not Assigned to the Security Unit. 
 

Visitation for youth not assigned to the security unit is will be at least two hours per each 
visitation, if behavior permits. 
 

(B) For Youth Assigned to the Security Unit. 
 

Visitation for youth assigned to the security unit is will be at least one hour per each visitation, 
if behavior permits. 

 
(4) Number of Visitors. 

 
There is no limit to the number of visitors per visitation. However, a youth will only be allowed two (2) 
face-to-face contact visitors at any one time during each visitation, unless the CLA or designee 
grants an increase in the number of face-to-face contact visitors for the visitation period. 

 

107



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 4 of 7 
 
(gf) Conditions of Visitation. 
 

(1) Location.  
 

(A) Adequate space is shall be provided for visitation. Outdoor visitation may be allowed if safety 
and weather permit. 

 
(B) Visitation for youth housed in a security unit during visitation hours will occur in the security 

unit. For visitation in a security unit, the CLA or designee may limit approved visitors to 
parents/guardians and grandparents. 

 
(2) Private Parental Visitation. 

 
Parents shall have the right to private, in-person communication with their child for reasonable 
periods of time. The time, place, and conditions of the private, in-person communication may only be 
regulated only to prevent disruption of scheduled activities and to maintain the safety and security of 
the facility/program. 

 
(A) Private, in-person communication means a communication between a parent and his/her child 

in a location where conversation cannot be overheard by staff. 
 

(B) Parents desiring to have a private, in-person communication with their child are expected to 
make the request at least 24 hours before the visitation. Requests not made within 24 hours 
are should be accommodated if possible. 

 
(3) Special Visitation. 

 
Special visitation is provided at times that may vary from the regular visitation schedule to 
accommodate visitors with special circumstances including, but not limited to: 

 
(A) long-distance travel requirements; 
(B) parent work schedules that preclude visiting during normal hours; or  
(C) bereavement. 

 
(4) Contact Visitation. 

 
Visitors are will be allowed to hug the youth at the beginning and end of the visit. 

 
(5) Dress Code. 

 
Visitors must abide by the following dress code: 

 
(A) no shorts (exception will be made for youth under age 13); 
 
(B) no open-toed shoes; 
 
(C) no mini skirts, see-through or sleeveless clothing, tops that expose the midriff, or any other 

clothing for youth age 13 or older which is determined by staff to be too revealing, too short, or 
otherwise inappropriate; 

 
(D) suggestive, offensive, or derogatory body art must be covered (to the extent practical); and  
 
(E) no clothing depicting drugs, sex, gang culture, obscene language, or disrespect to other 

persons or ethnicities. 
 
(h6) Removal From Disruption During Visitation and Removal. 
 

(1A) TJJD will require the visitor to leave the facility and/or notify local law enforcement The CLA or 
designee or the director of security may deny visitation if: 

 
(Ai) the a visitor appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol; 
(Bii) the a visitor refuses to cooperate; 

108



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 5 of 7 
 

(Ciii) the a visitor creates a disturbance; 
(Div) the a visitor is hostile to the point of disruption; or 
(Ev) evidence exists that the a visitor has passed contraband to a youth or staff member or aided a 

youth in an escape or attempted escape. 
 

(2B) The CLA or designee or the director of security may determine the appropriate action to be taken 
including asking the visitor to leave the facility/program or notifying local law enforcement. If local law 
enforcement is notified, any further action will be at the discretion of the local law enforcement. 

 
(7) Denial of Future Visitation for Visitors. 

 
(A) The CLA or designee may deny visitation if:  
 

(i) evidence exists that a visitor has: 
 

(I) passed contraband to a youth or staff member that constitutes a violation of law or 
creates a safety or security risk; 

 
(II) aided a youth in an escape or attempted escape; 
 
(III) provided false information or failed to provide accurate information to staff with 

regard to visitation;  
 
(IV) engaged in disruption of visitation similar to examples listed in paragraph (6) of 

this subsection.  The severity of the incident is a factor in determining the length of 
time visitation may be denied; or 

 
(ii) the visitor is a victim of the youth and the manager of clinical services has determined 

that visitation would be harmful to the visitor;  
 
(iii) based on reasonable cause to believe, the visitor would pose a risk to the safety or 

security of the facility or interfere with a youth’s treatment, rehabilitation, or successful 
reestablishment in the community. 

 
(B) If the CLA or designee denies visitation, written notice will be provided to the visitor and the 

youth. The notice will include the reason for the denial of visitation and an explanation of the 
right to file a grievance to appeal the denial of visitation.   

 
(i8) Denial of Visitation for TJJD TYC Youth. 
 

Youth may be denied a scheduled visit if there is a compelling risk to the safety of other youth or visitors or 
the security of the facility, including circumstances in which the youth is:  

 
(1A) out of control and it is unsafe to allow visitation;  
(2B) assaultive or threatens to engage in assaultive conduct during visitation; or 
(3C) engaging in misconduct during visitation. 

 
(j9) Denial of Visitation for TJJD TYC Facility or Housing Unit. 
 

(1A) If a dorm is on shut-down, youth will be allowed visitation unless youth individually meet criteria for 
denial of visitation. 

 
(2B) Denial of visitation for an entire housing unit or facility due to unrest or any other extraordinary 

situation must be approved by the division director over residential facilities or his/her designee. 
 
(k10) Refusal of Visitation. 

 
Youth may refuse to receive visitors.  

 

109



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 6 of 7 
 
(l11) Staff Availability During Visitation.  

 
The facility/program sStaff members must are required to be available to answer visitors' questions and 
address concerns during visitation hours.  

 
(m12) Publication of Visitation Rules. 
 

The facility/program staff are required to  must post the visitation rules in English and Spanish on a central 
bulletin board, and assist other non-English speaking individuals to understand posted rules, as needed. 
The visitation rules must:shall: 

 
(1A) address all pertinent issues including, but not limited to, visitation days and hours, required positive 

identification, visitor dress code, prohibited contraband, items authorized in visitation area, and 
expected demeanor of visitors; and 

 
(2B) be sent with the admission letter to each youth’s parents or legal guardian. 

 
(ng) Review Process. 
 

(1) Visitation Grievances. 
 

Grievances by immediate family members or youth with regard to visitation are filed under pursuant 
to §380.93.31 of this title. 

 
(2) Public Complaints. 

 
Complaints by members of the public with regard to visitation are filed under pursuant to §385.81.11 
of this title. 

 
(oh) Check-In Process. 
 

(1) Registration. Register. 
 

All visitors must register upon entry to a facility/program.  The facility/program staff must document 
all visitations through the computerized visitor tracking and reporting system. 
 

(2) Identification. 
 

(A) Adult visitors must produce valid picture identification for themselves and accompanying 
visitor(s) age 13 or older.  Acceptable picture identification includes: 

 
(i) valid state driver’s license; 
(ii) state-issued identification card; 
(iii) current military identification; 
(iv) school-issued identification card; 
(v) other official picture identification; or  
(vi) a TJJD TYC volunteer identification badge. 
 

(B) Visitors age 13 or older will be issued a temporary identification badge. 
 

(3) Prohibited Items. 
 

Items brought onto agency property may be limited and regulated by TJJDTYC.  For a list of 
prohibited items, see §380.97.10 of this title.  Visitors are will be allowed to bring in the items listed in 
this paragraph unless the control center posts a list of items otherwise allowed in a visitor’s 
possession while on facility grounds. The additional items must be approved by the CLA. Visitors are 
will be allowed to bring: 

 
(A) Iidentification;. 

 

110



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 7 of 7 
 

(B) Visitors with infants will be allowed to bring a bottle and diaper-changing items (for visitors with 
infants);. and   
 

(C) If vending machines are available, a maximum of up to ten dollars in coins, if for the vending 
machines are available. Youth are not permitted to handle the money. 

 
(4) Search. 

 
(A) All individuals, vehicles, and items entering the facility/program are subject to search.  For 

more information regarding entry searches, see §380.97.10 of this title. 
 

(B) Parking lots are subject to inspection by TJJD’s TYC’s canine (K-9) teams. and lLaw 
enforcement may be notified when necessary. See §380.97.13 of this title for more information 
regarding parking lot inspections of parking lots. 

 
(C) In facilities equipped with metal detectors, visitors must declare at the control center all metal 

items on their person and must successfully pass through the metal detector. Visitors refusing 
or failing to pass successfully through a metal detector will be denied access. 

 
(D) Visitors' refusal to submit to a search of their person or personal property may be considered 

legitimate grounds for denying access to the facility/program. 
 

(p) Individual Exceptions. 
 

The executive director may make exceptions to the provisions of this rule on a case-by-case basis. 
 

 
See INS.57.05 for implementation procedures. 

111



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9312, RELATING TO 

VISITATION, IN THE TEXAS REGISTER FOR A 30-DAY PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department to adopt rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the TJJD staff has recommended necessary revisions and clarifications to 37 TAC §380.9312; 

and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.023 and §2001.029 require a state agency to give at least 30 

days’ notice of its intention to adopt a rule and to allow all interested persons a reasonable opportunity to 

submit data, views, or arguments orally or in writing; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes submission of the revised  

37 TAC §380.9312 for publication in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

112



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel  

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9333, relating to Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation, in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Date: January 16, 2014 

  

The Office of General Counsel is proposing to revise 37 TAC §380.9333, relating to Alleged 

Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation. This rule addresses administrative investigations of 

alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation occurring in facilities operated or contracted by 

TJJD. 

 

The staff requests approval to submit the proposed rule to the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  

 

The revised rule and a resolution are attached. 

 

Summary of Revisions: 

• The following changes have been made to the list of dispositions used for closing a 

case: 

o “Administratively Closed” and “Administratively Confirmed” have been deleted. 

o “Not Confirmed” has been changed to “Unable to Determine.” 

• The rule will now allow the TJJD staff members involved in determining appropriate 

corrective actions to have access to the investigation report and related evidence. 

• The rule will now allow the accused TJJD employee to have access to the 

investigation report and related evidence to appeal the findings or to defend against 

discipline resulting from the findings. Any information that is confidential by law 

must be redacted prior to delivering the materials to the employee. Any names in 

113



the report must be redacted if the names are not necessary for the fair resolution of 

contested facts. 

• The definition of “Sexual Conduct” has been revised to track relevant penal code 

offenses. 

• The rule now clarifies that if an allegation meets the definition of abuse, neglect, or 

exploitation, there will always be an administrative investigation, in addition to any 

criminal investigation that may take place. The rule no longer says the allegation 

will be assigned for a criminal and/or administrative investigation. 

 

114



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9333 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 1/9/14 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 

Rule: Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation 
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3D-01 

Statute(s):  Fam. Code §§261.401301, 261.409 

Effective Date: 8/1/09, T-98 

 
Page: 1 of 9 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.93.33, 8/1/09 

6/4/07 
Admin. Directive #5 
FY07 

 

I.  RULE 
 
(a) Purpose.  
 

This rule provides for the administrative investigation of allegations of abuse, neglect or exploitation in 
programs and facilities under Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) Texas Youth Commission (TYC) 
jurisdiction. This rule also provides standards for investigations and for the compilation of investigation 
information. The purpose of all provisions in this rule is the protection of youth. 
 

(b) Applicability.  
 

(1)  This rule applies to administrative investigations involving abuse, neglect, or exploitation allegedly 
committed by employees, volunteers, or other individuals working in TJJD all programs or and 
facilities under TYC jurisdiction including institutions, halfway houses, contracted residential 
services, and parole services, and contract programs . 

 
(2) This rule applies only to administrative investigation of abuse, neglect, or exploitation conducted 

under Chapter 261 of the Family Code. Except as specifically noted herein, this rule does not apply 
to criminal investigations conducted by the TJJD TYC Office of Inspector General under Human 
Resources Code §242.102. §61.0451.   

 
(c) Additional References. 

 
(1) See §380.9337 of this title for additional requirements regarding investigations of alleged sexual 

abuse. 
 
(3)  See §93.31 of this title for procedures regarding the resolution of youth grievances.  
 
(24)  See §380.93.53 of this title for information on procedures regarding appeals to the chief executive 

director. officer.  
 

(dc) Definitions. Explanation of Terms Used.  
 

As used in this rule, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 
 
(1) Abuse--an intentional, knowing, or reckless act or omission that causes or may cause emotional 

harm or physical injury to, or the death of, a youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD. 
  
(2) Case Closure Disposition--the finding made upon official closure of a case of alleged abuse, 

neglect, or exploitation. The following dispositions are shall be used for all allegations: 
 

(A) Administratively Closed--the circumstances, facts, and/or evidence show that there is no 
merit to the allegation, or that the likelihood of solving the case is so negligible that further 
investigation is not warranted. (However, if additional information is later received, the case 
may be re-opened for investigation). 

 
(B) Administratively Confirmed--the circumstances, facts, and/or evidence are sufficient that no 

additional investigation is needed to confirm that the allegation or violation did occur. 

115



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 2 of 9 

 
 
(AC) Confirmed--an investigation established that the allegation is supported by a preponderance 

of evidence that the allegation did occur. 
 
(BD) Exonerated--an investigation established that the alleged incident occurred but was lawful 

and proper or was justified under existing conditions. 
 
(CE) Unable to DetermineNot Confirmed--an investigation resulted in insufficient evidence to 

prove or disprove the allegation(s). 
 
(DF) Unfounded--an investigation established that the allegation is false, not factual. 

 
(3) Chief local administrator (CLA)--the person employed in a TJJD TYC facility or district office that 

is responsible for overseeing the operations of a facility, contract program, or parole services. 
 
(4)  Emotional harm--an impairment in the youth's growth, development, or psychological functioning 

that normally requires evaluation or treatment by a trained mental health or health care professional, 
regardless of whether or not evaluation or treatment is actually received. Sexual conduct in 
residential facilities is presumed to cause substantial emotional harm. 

 
(5) Exploitation--the illegal or improper use of a youth or the resources of a youth committed to the 

care and custody of TJJD, for monetary or personal benefit, profit, or gain.  
 
(6) Neglect--a negligent act or omission, including failure to comply with an individual treatment case 

plan, plan of care, or individualized service plan, that causes or may cause substantial emotional 
harm or physical injury to, or the death of, a youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD. 

 
(7) Office of Inspector General (OIG)--a section of the agency with statutory authority to investigate 

crimes committed at a TYC facility, a residential facility operated under contract with TYC, by TYC 
employees, or individuals working under contract with TYC.  

 
(78) Physical injury--an injury that normally requires examination or treatment by a trained health care 

professional, regardless of whether or not examination or treatment is actually received.  
 
(89) Preponderance of the evidence--a standard of proof meaning the greater weight and degree of 

credible evidence; e.g., whether the credible evidence makes it more likely than not that abuse, 
neglect, or exploitation occurred. 

 
(910) Report--notification a report that alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a child has 

occurred or may occur.  
 
(101)  Sexual conduct--conduct that constitutes the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child or 

children under Penal Code Section 21.02, indecency with a child under Penal Code 21.11, sexual 
assault under Penal Code Section 22.011, or aggravated sexual assault under Penal Code Section 
22.021. a lewd exhibition or a sexual contact with another person, including orifice penetration, 
fondling or sexual stimulation, whether or not the conduct is consensual. 

 
(ed) Reporting Requirements. 
  

(1)  Under state law, Aany person having cause to believe that a youth has been or may be adversely 
affected by abuse, neglect, or exploitation must has an obligation under state law to report the 
matter to a law enforcement agency or to the Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS). 
The TJJD Office of Inspector General OIG is an appropriate law enforcement agency for reports of 
suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation of youths subject to the jurisdiction of TJJD. the agency. 
Any TJJD TYC employee, volunteer, or contractor working in a programs or facility operated by or 
under contract with TJJD facilities under TYC jurisdiction who has cause to believe a youth 
committed to the care and custody of TJJD TYC has been or may be adversely affected by abuse, 

116



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 3 of 9 

 
neglect, or exploitation or receives such a report must immediately report the matter to law 
enforcement in accordance with the TJJD’s agency’s reporting policies and procedures. 

 
(2)  The person making a report must will provide as much detailed information as possible regarding 

the circumstances of the report, including the identity of persons involved, the location and time of 
relevant events, and the identity of others who may provide further information. 

 
(3)  The requirement to report under this section applies without exception to a person whose personal 

communications may otherwise be privileged, including an attorney, a member of the clergy, a 
medical practitioner, a social worker, or a mental health professional.  

 
(4)  Except for investigation purposes, the identity of a person making a report is confidential.  

 
(fe)  Actions Taken upon Receipt of the Report.  
 

Upon receipt of a report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation, TJJDthe chief local administrator will:  
  

(1) in coordination with the appropriate TYC OIG and/or local law enforcement entity, immediately takes 
any action necessary to protect the youth and to preserve evidence that may be pertinent to an 
investigation of the matter; 

 
(2)  notifiesy the youth's parents or guardian of the report and notifiesy the youth if the report was made 

by a third party;  
 

(3) determines whether or not the person accused of wrongdoing must be suspended, temporarily 
reassigned, or temporarily barred from assignment to TJJD TYC facilities pending the outcome of 
the investigation; and 

 
(4) takes any action necessary to ensure that the investigation or review is conducted with the full 

cooperation of staff and youth, that adequate resources are provided, and that the youth and 
witnesses are protected from retaliation or improper influence regarding the subject of the report.  
 

(gf) Assignment for Investigation. 
 

(1) TJJD The OIG will promptly reviews each report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation.  Each 
report is will be entered into a centralized database and assigned for an official administrative and/or 
criminal investigation if the allegation meets the definition of abuse, neglect, or exploitation. The 
report may also be assigned for criminal investigation. 

 
(2) Whether to assign a report for criminal investigation by a peace officer from the Office of Inspector 

General OIG or appropriate outside law enforcement is shall be determined on a case-by-case basis 
considering all relevant factors, including the severity and immediacy of potential harm.   

 
(3)  A TJJD investigator must provide an initial response within 24 hours after TJJD receives the report if 

If a the report presents an immediate risk of physical or sexual abuse of a youth that could result in 
the death or serious harm to the youth. , the initial response by an OIG investigator will take place 
not later than 24 hours after the OIG is notified of the report.  

 
(4) If deemed to be warranted by the chief inspector general or the executive director, administrative 

head of the agency, a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation may be referred to appropriate outside 
law enforcement for investigation. 

 
(5) Regardless of whether the case is investigated administratively, criminally, or both, the OIG 

will provide a prompt and thorough administrative report in accordance with the provisions 
of this rule. 

 
(hg)  Standards for Administrative Investigations.  

 

117



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 4 of 9 

 
(1) The administrative investigation must be prompt, thorough, and directed at resolving all the relevant 

issues raised by the report. 
 
(21)  Only a person with qualified experience and training may will be assigned to conduct an 

administrative investigation of a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation.  
 
(2) In the event the OIG or other law enforcement agency has assumed a criminal investigation of a 

report, a person who has been assigned to conduct an administrative investigation in this section will 
cooperate and assist with the law enforcement agency's criminal investigation and not take any 
action that might be detrimental to it.  

 
(3)  All evidence that is relevant and reasonably available must will be gathered and preserved, including 

documents, physical evidence, witness interviews and statements, photographs, and security 
videos. 

 
(4)  For any report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation, a preliminary investigation may be 

conducted to determine whether there is any evidence to corroborate the report or to provide cause 
to believe that any abuse, neglect, or exploitation has occurred. In cases where no such evidence is 
found, the case will be administratively closed and/or referred to the appropriate TYC department for 
resolution.  

 
(5)  The administrative investigation will be prompt, thorough, and directed at resolving all the relevant 

issues raised by the report.  
 

(5A)  For With regard to a report of alleged abuse, the investigator must will find whether the:  
 

(Ai)  alleged act or failure to act occurred;  
(Bii)  act or failure to act caused emotional harm or physical injury to the youth; and  
(Ciii)  person who took the action or who failed to act did so intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly.  

 
(6B)  For With regard to a report of alleged neglect, the investigator must will find:  

 
(Ai)  whether there was substantial emotional harm or physical injury of the youth as alleged;  
(Bii)  the standard of care or duty expected under the circumstances that are alleged;  
(Ciii)  whether the actions or failure to act under the circumstances violated the standard of care or 

duty; and  
(Div)  whether the actions or failure to act caused the substantial emotional harm or physical injury 

of the youth.  
 

(7C)  For With regard to a report of alleged exploitation, the investigator must will find whether:  
 

(Ai)  a youth or a youth's resources were used by the accused person in the manner alleged;  
(Bii)  the use was for monetary or personal benefit, profit, or gain; and  
(Ciii)  the use was illegal or improper.  

 
(86)  The investigator's findings must will be based on a preponderance of the evidence.  
 
(97)  The investigator must will prepare a written investigative report of the findings, including a summary 

and analysis of the evidence relied upon in reaching the findings. Copies of relevant documents and 
photographs must will be attached to the investigative report.  

 
(108)  The investigator may make findings on misconduct other than abuse, neglect, or exploitation if the 

misconduct that is established by the evidence. However, the absence of such findings should not 
be regarded as exoneration of the respondent or other employees as to policy violations or other 
misconduct indicated by the evidence.  

 

118



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 5 of 9 

 
(ih)  Administrative Investigation Report - Submission and Closure.  
 

(1)  The investigator must will submit a written investigativeon report to his/her supervisor upon 
completion of the investigation.  
  

(2)  The investigator’s supervisor must will indicate approval of the investigation findings by officially 
closing the investigative report and indicating the final case closure disposition. The supervisor or 
designee must will then ensure notify the appropriate facility is notified of the findings. 

 
(3)  All officially closed investigativeon reports must contain the signature of the supervisor who was 

responsible for making the final closure determination and the signature of the investigator who 
gathered the evidence in the case.  

 
(4)  In the event the investigator’s supervisor disagrees with any part of the investigative report 

submitted by the investigator upon completion of the investigation, the investigative report must:  
 

(A)  include a statement by the supervisor that which describes the reasons for his/her 
disagreement;  

(B)  be forwarded to the division director or designee for resolution;  
(C)  include the signature of the division director or designee for official closure of the investigative 

report.  
 
(ji)  Actions in Response to a Closed Administrative Investigation Report.  
 

(1)  Upon receipt of a closed investigativeon report, the chief local administrator must will review the 
investigative report and:  

 
(A)  notify the youth, the youth's parents or guardian, and the person accused of wrongdoing of the 

results of the investigation; and 
 
(B) notify the youth and the youth’s parents of the right to appeal the investigation findings or to 

file a complaint regarding the conduct of the investigation under §380.93.53 of this title; and 
 
(C)  if the report is confirmed, take whatever actions are necessary and appropriate to rectify the 

wrong and prevent future harm under the same or similar circumstances.  
 
(2)  If the allegation was reported by a health care professional who provides services to TJJD TYC 

youth through TJJD’s TYC’s contract health care provider(s), TJJD must, upon request, the 
investigator’s supervisor will notify the health care professional in writing of the results of the 
investigation and the right to appeal the findings of the investigation report under §380.93.53 of this 
title. 

 
(3)  Periodic summary reports of complaints and appeals regarding investigations conducted under this 

rule, and the final decision regarding the complaints or appeals, will be provided to the TYC 
executive commissione or governing Board for review.  

 
(4)  The TYC executive commissioner or governing Board will take whatever action is determined to be 

appropriate with regard to the complaint to ensure the investigations are conducted properly.  
 
(5)  Pursuant to Family Code §261.403(b), the TYC executive commissioner or governing Board will 

ensure there is a periodic internal audit of procedures related to administrative investigations of 
alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation.  

 
(kj)  Standards for Compiling Investigation Information and Confidentiality of Reports.  
 

(1)  TJJD compiles Accurate and timely investigation information will be compiled related to the number 
and nature of reports filed, and case closure dispositions, the dates and locations of reported 
incidents, the average length of time required for investigations, and the identification of any 

119



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 6 of 9 

 
significant trends. This information must will be compiled at least twice each year and be available 
for public inspection.  

 
(2)  Additional information including a summary of the findings and corrective actions taken with regard 

to all confirmed reports is will be prepared for periodic review and analysis by the TJJD TYC 
executive staff and the TJJD TYC executive commissioner or governing Board. 

  
(3)  Periodic summaries of complaints and appeals regarding investigations conducted under this rule 

and the final decisions regarding the complaints or appeals are provided to the TJJD governing 
board for review. The TJJD executive director or governing board will take whatever action is 
determined to be appropriate with regard to the complaint to ensure the investigations are 
conducted properly.  

 
(l) Confidentiality of Reports and Investigation Information. 

 
(13) To the extent required by state or federal law, TJJD TYC will release to the public, upon request, a 

report of alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation if: 
 

(A) the report relates to a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation involving a child committed to 
TJJD TYC during the period that the child is committed to TJJDTYC; and 

 
(B) TJJD TYC is not prohibited by Chapter 552, Government Code, or other law from disclosing 

the report. 
 

(24) Any information concerning a report of alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation that is 
disclosed will be edited to protect the identity of: 

 
(A) a child who is the subject of the report of alleged or suspected mistreatment; 
(B) any other youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD TYC who is named in the report; 
(C) the person who made the report; and 
(D) any other person whose life or safety may be endangered by the disclosure. 

 
(35) Notwithstanding any other provision permitting the release of information, TJJD TYC will not disclose 

any record or information thatwhich, if released to the requestor, would interfere with an ongoing 
criminal investigation or prosecution. 

 
(46)  An investigative A report regarding an investigation of an allegation of abuse, neglect, or exploitation 

will be provided to:   
 

(A) a law enforcement agency or other criminal justice agency for purposes of investigation and 
prosecution, upon request;.  

 
(B7) A report will be provided to a parent, managing conservator, or other legal representative of a 

youth, upon request. The information contained in the report will be redacted to protect the 
identity of the person making the report, other youth, and any other person who may be 
harmed by the disclosure.; and  

 
(C8) A report will be provided, upon request, to the healthcare provider who reported an allegation. 

The information contained in the report will be redacted to protect the identity of the person 
making the report, other youth, and any other person who may be harmed by the disclosure. 

 
(5) An investigative report and evidence gathered in the course of an investigation may be provided to 

appropriate TJJD staff for the determination of corrective actions and to employees or former employees 
for use in an appeal of the investigation findings or to defend against a disciplinary action arising from the 
investigation findings.   

 

120



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 7 of 9 

 
(A) Investigative reports are confidential under Texas Family Code Chapter 261 and may be used 

by the employee only for the appeal of investigation findings or to defend against a disciplinary 
action arising from an investigation.  

 
(B) Names of individuals contained in the investigative report or related evidence will be redacted 

if the names are not necessary for the fair resolution of contested facts. Any information that is 
confidential by law will be redacted prior to delivery to the respondent. 

 
(m) Periodic Audit of Investigations. 
 

Pursuant to Family Code §261.403(b), the TJJD governing board ensures there is a periodic internal audit 
of procedures related to administrative investigations of alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation.  

 

 
II. MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS  
 
(a) Referral by Incident Reporting Center. 
 

Within two work days after receipt of a reported incident, the OIG supervisor over the Incident Reporting 
Center or designee will review the incident and refer the case for investigation and resolution to the 
appropriate TYC department, as indicated below. Reports involving separable issues which require 
resolution by different departments will be separated and referred as appropriate. 
 
(1) Incidents involving criminal allegations will be referred to the OIG Criminal Investigations 

Department for investigation and resolution. 
 
(2) Incidents involving allegations of abuse, neglect, or exploitation will be referred to the OIG 

Administrative Investigations Department (AID) for investigation and resolution in accordance with 
this policy. 

 
(3) Incidents involving youth grievances will be referred to the Youth Rights Department and processed 

in accordance with GAP.93.31. 
 
(4) Incidents that do not fall into any of the above categories will be referred to the Residential and 

Community Services Division for informational purposes and, as necessary, for corrective action. 
 

(b) Assignment and Preliminary Investigation by OIG Administrative Investigation Department. 
 

(1) Within two workdays after receipt of a referred case, AID staff will:  
 

(A) notify the appropriate facility or program administrator that an alleged abuse, neglect or 
exploitation case has been opened; and 

(B) assign an investigator. 
 

(2) Within seven calendar days after assignment, the investigator will:  
 

(A) conduct a preliminary investigation to determine if the facts warrant a full investigation; 
(B) forward a written report to AID central office staff; and 
(C) administratively close the case, administratively confirm the case, or keep the case open for a 

full investigation. 
 

(c) Notifications upon Case Opening. 
 

Within 24 hours after notification by AID staff that a case has been opened, the facility/program 
administrator or designee must: 
 

121



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 8 of 9 

 
(1) provide written notice to the youth’s parent/guardian containing the nature of the allegation, 

assurance that an investigation has been initiated, and assurance that the parent/guardian will be 
notified of the investigation findings; and 

 
(2) provide a copy of the parental notice to the youth and to the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer in the 

youth’s committing county. 
 
(d) Investigation. 
 

The investigator will complete a full investigation for each case that is not administratively closed or 
administratively confirmed.  The investigator will issue findings and the case will be closed in accordance 
with subsections (g)-(h) above.  

 
(e) Investigation Deadline. 
 

The assigned investigator must submit the completed investigation to the AID Lieutenant no later than 30 
calendar days after assignment.  In cases where the investigation is not completed within 30 calendar 
days, a justification for the delay must be submitted with the completed investigation.  A justification for 
delay must include the specific circumstances that prevented the case from being completed within 30 
days, for example: 
 
(1) the witness, complainant, or victim was unavailable for interviewing by the investigator; 
(2) evidence required to complete the investigation is being analyzed by an external agency and the 

analysis is critical to determining if abuse, neglect, or exploitation occurred; or 
(3) the investigation is delayed due to an ongoing criminal investigation. 
 

(f) Case Load Management. 
 

(1) Investigators’ case loads will be routinely monitored by Central Office AID staff to identify priority 
cases.  Priority cases include, but are not limited to: 

 
(A) death in custody; 
(B) any allegation that could result in immediate death or serious injury; and 
(C) staff-on-youth sexual assault. 
 

(2) Each AID investigator’s case load will be reviewed by AID management at least once every 90 days 
to ensure cases are correctly prioritized and appropriate time management practices are being 
utilized. 

 
(3) When AID management identifies unacceptable time management practices and/or unjustified 

delays, additional training, assistance, and/or corrective action will be initiated. 
 
(g) Actions upon Case Closure. 
 

(1) Within three workdays after the appropriate OIG supervisor closes the case: 
 
(A) for confirmed or administratively confirmed cases:  
 

(i) AID staff will send a copy of the investigation report via overnight delivery to the local 
human resources administrator (HRA), and the HRA will immediately provide a copy of 
the investigation report to the CLA; and 

 
(ii) AID staff will send a notice of the findings via email to the CLA and the central office 

director of employee relations; or 
 
(B) for all other cases, AID staff will send a notice of the findings via email to the CLA and HRA. 

 

122



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 9 of 9 

 
(2) Within 72 hours after notification by AID staff of the findings in an administrative investigation, the 

chief local administrator or designee must: 
 

(A) verbally notify the youth and provide a Request for Review of Investigation form, LS-052r; and 
 
(B) provide written notice to the youth’s parent/guardian of the findings and right to appeal, with a 

copy provided to the youth and the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer in the youth’s committing 
county; and 

 
(C) provide written notice of the findings to the staff/contractor/volunteer and his/her direct 

supervisor, and initiate corrective or disciplinary action if appropriate. 
 

(3) Immediately upon issuance of any discipline in response to a confirmed report, the CLA will notify 
the local HRA.  The HRA will enter the disciplinary action into the HRIS database. 

  
 
 See GAP.07.03 for procedures regarding staff reports of alleged mistreatment. 
 See PRS.35.01 for procedures regarding disciplinary action taken upon confirmed reports of mistreatment. 
 See PRS.35.03 for procedures regarding appeals of administrative investigative findings submitted by TJJD TYC staff, 

volunteers, or contractors. 
 See PRS.35.11 for procedures regarding appeals of administrative investigation findings submitted by the decision 

authority. 

123



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9333, RELATING TO 

ALLEGED ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND EXPLOITATION, IN THE TEXAS REGISTER FOR A 30-DAY PUBLIC 

COMMENT PERIOD 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department to adopt rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the TJJD staff has recommended necessary revisions and clarifications to 37 TAC §380.9333; 

and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.023 and §2001.029 require a state agency to give at least 30 

days’ notice of its intention to adopt a rule and to allow all interested persons a reasonable opportunity to 

submit data, views, or arguments orally or in writing; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes submission of the revised  

37 TAC §380.9333 for publication in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

124



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel  

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice 

Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers, in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period 

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

The Office of General Counsel staff has completed a review of Texas Administrative Code 

Chapter 345 (Juvenile Justice Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers). The staff 

recommends the following changes: 

• Add “youth activities supervisor” to the definition of juvenile justice professional in 

§345.100 

• Make minor terminology updates and grammatical revisions throughout the 

subchapter 

 

Attached to this memo you will find: 

• A table summarizing the rule review and proposed changes for Chapter 345 

• The text of the revised rules in Chapter 345 

• A resolution for board action 

 

Staff requests the board’s approval to publish the proposed revisions and a proposal to 

complete the rule review for Chapter 345 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period. 

 

125



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 345 Juvenile Justice Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§345.100  Definitions  Defines terms used in the chapter.  Yes   Youth activities supervisor 

was added to the definition 
of a juvenile justice 
professional. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for board review. 

§345.110  Applicability  Specifies to whom the code of 
ethics applies and its purpose. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for board review. 

§345.200  Policy and 
Procedure 

Requires juvenile probation 
departments, juvenile justice 
programs, and juvenile justice 
facilities to have written policies 
and procedures for reporting 
violations of the code of ethics.  
Specifies to whom they must 
report. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for board review. 

§345.300  Adherence and 
Reporting Violations 

Requires juvenile justice 
professionals to adhere to the 
code of ethics and to report 
unethical behavior or violations of 
the code. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for board review. 

§345.310  Code of Ethics  Establishes the code of ethics and
penalties incurred by juvenile 
justice professionals found to 
violate the code.  

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for board review. 

 

126



T
P
C
 

 

§
 
T
d
 

 

 

 

 

 

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 345

§345.100 

The following 
defined within

(1)  C

(12)  Ju
fa

(23)  Ju
 

(A

 

 
(B

(34)  Ju
 

(A

 
(B

(45)  Ju
pr
pr
un

Public 
Texas J

5   Juvenil

Definitions 

Tterms, as u
n the chapter. 

Commission--T

uvenile--A pe
acility, or parti

uvenile Justic

A) A facility
detached

(i) se
sit

 
(ii) is 
 

(I) 

 
(II)

B) The term

(Ai)  A 
§3
ho
Te
 

(Bii)  A 
§3
Co
Yo
 

(Ciii)  A 
juv
co

uvenile Justic

A) certified 
supervis

B) employe
facility as

uvenile Justic
rogram or dep
rivate vendor 
nder juvenile 

Te
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
le Justice P

sed in this ch

The Texas Ju

rson who is u
icipating in a j

ce Facility ("fa

y including the
d that:  

erves juveniles
tes, whether c

operated: 

operated 
juvenile b

) by a priva
governme

m includes, bu

public or priva
344.100 of this
oldovers) as d
exas Family C

public or priva
344.100 of this
ode §51.125, 
outh Commiss

public or priva
venile post-ad
ourt jurisdictio

ce Profession

by TJJD as a
sion officer; or

ed by a juveni
s a juvenile p

ce Program ("
partment ope
under a cont
court jurisdic

exas Adm
Corrections
stice Depar

Professiona

hapter, shall h

uvenile Probat

under the juris
juvenile justic

acility")-- 

e facility’s pre

s under juven
contiguous or

wholly or par
board; or  

ate vendor un
ental unit that

ut is not limite

ate juvenile p
s title,facility, 

defined in §35
Code §51.12;

ate juvenile p
s titlefacility re
except for a f
sion; and 

ate non-secu
djudication re
n. 

al--A person w

a juvenile prob
rand who is  

le probation d
probation offic

"program")--H
erated wholly 
tract with the 

ction or juveni

ministrativ
s 
rtment 
l Code of E

have the follow

tion Commiss

sdiction of the
ce program. 

mises and all

nile court juris
r detached, ; a

rtly by or unde

nder a contrac
t serves juven

ed to: 

pre-adjudicatio
including a s

51.1 of this titl

post-adjudicat
equired to be
facility operat

re correctiona
sidential treat

who is:  

bation officer,

department, ju
cer, youth acti

Has the meani
or partly by th
governing bo
le board juris

ve Code

Ethics for Ce

wing meaning

sion. 

e juvenile cou

l affiliated site

sdiction, includ
and 

er the authori

ct with the go
niles under ju

on secure det
hort-term det
le required to 

tion secure co
e certified in a
ted solely for 

al facilities as
tment facility 

, youth activit

uvenile justice
ivities superv

ing assigned 
he governing 
oard, or juven
diction. The t

ertified Offi

gs unless othe

urt, confined in

es, whether c

ding its prem

ity of the gove

verning board
uvenile court j

tention faciliti
tention facilitie
be certified i

orrectional fac
accordance w

children com

s defined in §3
housing juve

ties superviso

e program, or
isor, or juven

by §344.100 
board, juven
ile board that
term includes 

cers 

 

erwise expres

n a juvenile ju

ontiguous or 

ises and all a

erning board

d, juvenile bo
urisdiction.  

es, as define
esfacility (i.e.,
n accordance

cilities as defi
ith Texas Fam

mmitted to the 

355.100 of th
niles under ju

or, or juvenile 

r a juvenile ju
ile supervisio

of this title A 
ile board or b
t serves juven
 a juvenile jus

 

ssly 

ustice 

affiliated 

or, 

oard, or 

d in 
, 
e with 

ined in 
mily 
Texas 

is title 
uvenile 

ustice 
on officer. 

by a 
niles 
stice 

127



 

 

§
 
(

 
(

 
§
 
J
im
e
 

 
§
 
(

 
(

 
§
 
(

 
(

 
(

 
(

 

 

al
th

(56)  Ju
tit
es
ju
th

 
(6) T
 

§345.110 

a)  Unless 
juvenile
juvenile

b)  The cod
profess

§345.200 

Juvenile proba
mplement sha
ethics violatio

(1) th
fa

 
(2) T

§345.300 

a)  To ensu
system,

b)  Juvenile
behavio

§345.310 

a)  Juvenile
disciplin
certifica

ab)  The peo
dignity a
service.

b) As desc
certifica
code of 

c)  Juvenile
principle

(1)  Ju

lternative edu
he jurisdiction

uvenile Proba
tleAll physica
stablished un

uvenile probat
he Texas Hum

JJD--The Tex

Applicability

otherwise not
e supervision o
e probation de

de of ethics is
ionalism requ

Policy and P

ation departm
all have writte
ns are reporte

he administrat
acility; and  

JJDthe Comm

Adherence 

ure the safety
, juvenile justi

e justice profe
or or violations

Code of Eth

e justice profe
nary action inc
ation issued u

ople of Texas
and individua
. 

cribed by §34
ation or deny c

ethics.  

e justice profe
es: 

uvenile justice

ucation progra
 of the juveni

ation Departm
l offices and p

nder the autho
tion departme

man Resource

xas Juvenile J

y 

ted, this code
officers (here

epartment, juv

s intended to e
uired by TJJD

Procedure 

ments, juvenile
en policies an
ed to:  

tion of the juv

mission. 

and Reportin

y, protection, a
ice profession

essionals mus
s of the code 

hics 

essionals foun
cluding, but n
nder the auth

s expect juven
lity of human 

4.810 and §3
certification o

essionals mus

e professiona

37 TAC 

am and a non
le court or juv

ment ("departm
premises utiliz
ority of a juven
ent enumerate
es Code. 

Justice Depar

e of ethics app
eafter referred
venile justice 

ensure that ju
the Commiss

e justice prog
nd procedures

venile probatio

ng Violations

and welfare o
nals mustsha

stshall report 
of ethics. 

nd to be in vio
not limited to, 
hority of the C

nile justice pro
beings and d

349.307 of this
of a juvenile ju

st adhere The

als mustshall:

Chapter 

n-residential p
venile board j

ment")--Has th
zed by a coun
nile board(s)
ed in Title 3 o

rtment. 

plies to perso
d to as "all juv
program or ju

uvenile justice
sion as the lic

grams, and juv
s to ensure th

on departmen

s 

of the juvenile
ll adhere to th

to the approp

olation of the 
suspension, 

Commission. 

ofessionals to
display a com

s title, TJJD m
ustice profess

e Commission

345 

program that s
urisdiction an

he meaning a
nty or district 
to facilitate ex

of the Texas F

ons certified a
venile justice p
uvenile justice

e professiona
censing agenc

venile justice 
hat all for repo

nt, juvenile jus

es and families
he code of eth

priate authorit

provisions of
revocation or

o exhibit unfai
mmitment to pr

may take disc
sional who is f

n subscribes 

serves juveni
nd a juvenile p

assigned by §
level governm
xecution of th
Family Code a

as juvenile pro
professionals
e facility. 

ls adhere to t
cy issuing the

facilities mus
orting violation

stice program

s served by th
hics set forth 

ties and/or en

f this subsecti
r denial of the

iling honesty 
rofessional an

ciplinary actio
found by TJJD

to the followin

le offenders u
probation dep

§344.100 of th
mental unit 
he responsibil
and Chapter 

obation officer
s") employed b

the level of 
e certification.

st adopt and 
ns of the code

ms, or juvenile

he juvenile ju
in this chapte

ntities any une

ion shall be s
e professional

and respect f
nd compassio

n against the 
D to have vio

ng code of eth

 

 

under 
partment. 

his 

lities of a 
141 of 

rs or 
by a 

 

e of 

e justice 

stice 
er. 

ethical 

ubject to 
 

for the 
onate 

olated the 

hics 

128



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(A

(B

 
(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

(I

(J

(J

(2)  Ju

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

A)  abide by
administ

B)  respect t
board; 

C)  respect a

D)  serve ea

E)  respect t
cultivate

F)  respect a
delinque

G)  be dilige
informat

H)  report w
integrity 

)  maintain
than nee
have aut

J)  perform 
origin, re

JK)  treat all j

uvenile justice

A)  use their

B)  permit p
responsi

C)  accept g
impropri

D)  maintain
including
not limite
their fam

E)  discrimin
gender, 
status; 

F)  engage 
property

G)  be desig
investiga
Family C

H)  interfere
investiga

y all federal la
trative rules; 

the authority a

and protect th

ach child with 

the significan
 a profession

and consider 
ency; 

ent in their res
ion that could

ithout reserva
of the juvenil

n the integrity 
eded to perfor
thorized acce

all duties imp
eligion, sexua

juveniles and

e professiona

r official posit

ersonal intere
ibilities object

gifts, presents
ety or impair 

n or give the a
g, residing in a
ed to, bribery 

milies; 

nate against a
disability, nat

in behaviors t
effects or fun

gnated as a pe
ation conducte
Code Chapter

 with or hinde
ation conducte

37 TAC 

aws, federal g

and follow the

he legal rights

concern for t

ce of all elem
al cooperatio

the right of th

sponsibility to 
d contribute to

ation any corr
e justice syst

and confiden
rm their duties
ess to the info

partially and w
al orientation, 

 their families

als mustshall n

ion to secure 

est that to imp
tivity that mus

s, favors, or ot
the impartial 

appearance o
a facility or un
or, solicitatio

any employee
tional origin, r

that misuse g
ds belonging

erpetrator in a
ed by TJJD u
r 261 and Cha

er any abuse,
ed by law enf

Chapter 

uidelines and

e directives o

s of all juvenil

the child's we

ments of the ju
n with each s

he public to be

record and m
o sound decis

rupt or unethic
tem; 

ntiality of juven
s, and notnor

ormation for a 

without regard
political belie

s with courtes

not: 

privileges or 

pair the impar
st be maintain

ther advantag
and objective

f maintaining 
nder the jurisd
n or acceptan

e, juvenile, pa
religion, sexua

government p
 to a juvenile;

an Commissio
under Chapter
apter 350 of t

 exploitation,
forcement or 

345 

d rules, state 

of the juvenile 

eschildren an

lfare and with

ustice and hum
segment; 

e safeguarde

make available
sions affecting

cal behavior t

nile informatio
r reveal inform
 proper, profe

d to race, ethn
ef or socioeco

sy, considerat

advantages;

rtial and objec
ned to imparti

ges that could
e exercise of p

 an inappropr
diction of the 
nce of gifts, fa

arent, or guard
al orientation

roperty or res
; 

on abuse, ex
r 350 of this t
his title; 

and neglect 
an investigat

laws, and TJJ

court and go

nd their paren

h no expectat

man services

ed from the ef

e for review a
g a child or th

that could affe

on, and not s
mation to any 
essional use; 

nicity, gender
onomic status

tion, and dign

ctive exercise
ially execute t

d give the app
professional r

riate relations
juvenile cour

avors, or serv

dian on the b
, political beli

sources, or th

ploitation, and
title and the a

investigation,
ion conducted

JDCommissio

overning juven

nts and/or gua

tion of person

s systems and

ffects of juven

any and all 
he public safe

ect a juvenile

eek more info
person who d
and 

r, disability, na
; and 

nity. 

e of profession
their official d

pearance of 
responsibilitie

ship with a juv
rt that include
vices from juv

asis of race, e
ef, or socioec

hat use the pe

d neglect 
uthority of Te

, including a c
d under Chap

 

 

on 

nile 

ardians; 

nal gain; 

d 

nile 

ty; 

e or the 

ormation 
does not 

ational 

nal 
duties; 

es; 

venile, 
es, but is 
veniles or 

ethnicity, 
conomic 

ersonal 

exas 

criminal 
pter 350 

129



 

 

 

(I

(J

 
(K
 

and Cha
and Cha

)  deliver in
of contra
immedia
or depar

J)  use viole
and type
of juveni

K)  falsify or

apter 358 of th
apter 358 of th

nto or remove
aband or poss
ately report an
rtment; 

ence or utilize
e of force reas
les, or of the 

r make materi

37 TAC 

his title orpurs
his title; 

e from the gro
sess or contro
nd deliver thes

e unnecessary
sonably neces
facility, progr

ial omissions 

Chapter 

suant to Texa

ounds of a juv
ol any item of
such item to t

y force or viol
ssary and ap
ram, or depar

entries to gov

345 

as Family Cod

venile facility, 
f contraband b
the proper au

lence and mu
propriate whe

rtment; or 

vernmental re

de Chapter 26

program, or d
beyond the tim
uthority within

ustshall only u
en justified to 

ecords. 

61 or Chapter

department a
me period req
 the facility, p

use only the a
ensure the s

 

 

r 350 

any item 
quired to 
program 

amount 
security 

130



	

A

O
J
t

w

W
l
d

W

W

N
3
3

T
B

S
	

T
	

	
_
S

A	RESOLUTI
PUBLISH	P

On	 this	31st
ustice	Board
the	Members

BOARD	MEMBE

Scott	W.	Fisher	

John	Brieden	III

Joseph	Brown	

Carol	Bush	

Becky	Gregory	

Jane	A.	King	

Scott	Matthew	

where,	amon

WHEREAS,	T
ater	than	the
date	and	mak

WHEREAS,	t

WHEREAS,	t

NOW,	THER
37	TAC	Chap
30‐day	comm

The	 foregoin
Board.	

Signed	this	3

Texas	Juv

____________
Scott	W.	Fish

ION	FOR	AP
ROPOSED	R

t	day	 of	 Jan
d	was	held	in
s	was	presen

ER	 PRESENT	

	

I	 	

	

	

	

	

	

ng	other	matt

Texas	Govern
e	fourth	ann
ke	an	assessm

he	Office	of	G

he	staff	has	r

EFORE	BE	I
pter	345	and	
ment	period.	

ng	Resolution

31st	day	of	J

venile	Just

____________
her,	Chairm

 
Texas

PROVAL	TO
REVISIONS	F

nuary	2014,	
n	the	City	of	A
t,	to	wit:	

ABSENT	 YES

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

ters,	came	up

nment	Code	
iversary	of	t
ment	of	whet

General	Coun

recommende

IT	RESOLVE
a	proposal	t

n	was	 lawful

January	201

tice	Board

____________
man	

s	Juvenile
RES

O	PUBLISH	T
OR	37	TAC	C

COMM

a	 duly	 calle
Austin,	Texas

S	 NO	 ABST

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

p	for	conside

§2001.039	r
the	date	on	w
ther	the	reas

nsel	staff	has

ed	revisions	t

D	THAT	 the
to	complete	

lly	moved,	d

14.	

d	

________	

e	Justice	D
OLUTIO
THE	PROPOS
CHAPTER	34
MENT	PERIO

ed	 and	 lawfu
s,	pursuant	t

TAIN	 	 BOAR

	 MaryL

	 Rene	O

	 Laura	

	 Jimmy

	 Calvin

	 Meliss

	 Motion

ration	and	ad

requires	each
which	the	ru
ons	for	initia

	completed	t

to	the	rules;

e	Board	gran
the	rule	rev

duly	 seconde

 
Departme
N	
SAL	TO	COM
45	IN	THE	T
OD		

ully	 convene
to	the	Texas	

RD	MEMBER	 P

Lou	Mendoza	

Olvera	

Parker	

y	Smith	

n	Stephens	

sa	Weiss	

n:	

doption	the	f

h	state	agen
ule	takes	effe
ally	adopting

this	review	fo

nts	approval	
iew	for	thes

ed,	 and	adop

ent	

MPLETE	THE
TEXAS	REGIS

ed	meeting	 o
Open	Meetin

PRESENT	 ABSE

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Secon

following	Re

ncy	to	review
ct	and	every
g	the	rule	con

or	37	TAC	Ch

to	publish	p
e	rules	in	th

pted	by	 the	T

E	RULE	REVI
STER	FOR	A	

of	 the	 Texas
ngs	Act.			A	q

ENT	 YES	 NO

	

	

	

	

	

	

nd:	

esolution:	

w	each	of	its	
y	four	years	a
ntinue	to	exis

hapter	345;

proposed	rev
e	Texas	Regi

Texas	 Juveni

EW	AND	
30‐DAY	

s	 Juvenile	
uorum	of	

O	 ABSTAIN

	

	

	

	

	

	

rules	not	
after	that	
st;	

visions	to	
ister	for	a	

ile	 Justice	

131



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

132



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts 

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of 

Understanding, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Date: January 27, 2014 

  

The Finance Division staff has completed a review of Texas Administrative Code Chapter 

359 (Memorandums of Understanding). The staff recommends the following changes: 

• Make minor terminology updates and grammatical revisions throughout the chapter 

 

Attached to this memo you will find: 

• A table summarizing the rule review and proposed changes for Chapter 359 

• The text of the revised rules in Chapter 359 

• Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between The Texas Commission on Law 

Enforcement and The Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

• A resolution for board action 

 

Please note materials include an unsigned MOU. The signed MOU will be submitted to the 

Texas Register for publication. 

 

Staff requests the board’s approval to publish the proposed revisions and a proposal to 

complete the rule review for Chapter 359 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period. 

 

133



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 359 Memorandums of Understanding 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§359.100  Memorandum of 

Understanding 
Between the TJJD 
and the Texas 
Commission on Law 
Enforcement  

Adopts by reference a 
memorandum of understanding 
between TJJD and the Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement.  
Includes agreement establishing 
the agencies’ responsibilities in 
developing basic firearms training 
program for juvenile probation 
officers and in fulfilling related 
statutory mandates. 

 Yes   Terminology updates and 
minor clarifications have 
been made throughout this 
rule. 

 

Ready for board review. 

§359.151  Memorandum of 
Understanding 
Concerning 
Interagency 
Cooperation for 
Continuity of Youth 
Care 

Adopts by reference a 
memorandum of understanding 
between TJJD and the Texas 
Department of Family and 
Protective Services (DFPS).  
Includes agreement to provide 
coordinated, appropriate services 
to youth who are simultaneously 
under DFPS and TJJD jurisdiction. 

Yes   Terminology updates and 
minor clarifications have 
been made throughout this 
rule. 

 

Ready for board review. 

 

134



T
P
C
 
§

 
(

 
(
 
(
 
A
 
§

 
(

 
(

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 359

§359.100 

a)  The Tex
the atta
Enforce
Occupa
agencie
fulfilling

b)  The MO

c)  The effe

Attached Grap

§359.151 

a)  The Tex
memora
and Pro
Code §2
conserv
TJJDTY

b)  The MO

Public 
Texas J

9 Memor

Memorandu
Commissio
Education 

xas Juvenile J
ched memora

ement Officer 
ations Code, C
es in developi
 related statu

OU is adopted

ective date of

phic 

Memorandu
Youth Care 

xas Juvenile J
andum of und
otective Servic
244.0106 §61
vatorship of D
YC.  

OU is adopted

Te
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
andums of 

um of Unders
n and the Te

Justice Depa
andum of und
Standards an

Chapter 1701
ng a basic tra
tory mandate

d by rule in thi

f the MOU, wi

um of Unders

Justice Depa
derstanding (M
ces (DFPS). T
1.0767 to prov

DFPS and who

d by rule in 40

exas Adm
Corrections
stice Depar
Understand

standing Bet
exas Commis

rtment (TJJD
derstanding (M
nd Education.
, §1701.2598

aining program
es. 

is section. 

th respect to

standing Con

rtment (TJJD
MOU) entered
The MOU con
vide coordina
o are committ

0 TAC §702.4

ministrativ
s 
rtment 
ding 

tween the Te
ssion on Law

) Probation C
MOU) betwee
. The MOU co
8, to establish
m in the use o

the Commiss

ncerning Inte

) Youth Comm
d into by TJJD
ntains the agr
ated and appr
ted to TJJD T

425. 

ve Code

exas Juvenile
w Enforceme

Commission (C
en TJJD and t
ontains the ag

h the respectiv
of firearms by

sion, is Janua

eragency Co

mission (TYC
D TYC and th
reement requ
ropriate servic
TYC or releas

e Justice De
ent Officer St

Commission)
the Texas Co
greement req
ve responsibi
y juvenile prob

ary 1, 2010. 

ooperation fo

C) adopts by r
he Texas Dep
uired by Texas
ces to youth w
sed under sup

partment Pro
tandards and

 adopts by re
ommission on
quired by Texa
lities of these
bation officers

or Continuity

reference a 
partment of Fa
s Human Res
who are in the
pervision by 

 

obation 
d 

eference 
n Law 
as 

e 
s and in 

y of 

amily 
sources 
e 

135



Memorandum of Understanding Between TCOLE and TJJD   

 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between 
The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement and 

The Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
 
 

I. 
Parties 

 
The parties to this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) are the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement, a regulatory 
agency of the state of Texas, hereinafter called the “Commission” and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department, a 
regulatory agency of the state of Texas, hereinafter referred to as “TJJD.” 
 

II. 
Background and Purpose 

 
WHEREAS, TJJD represents that juvenile probation officers are not “peace officers” as defined under Section 1701.001 of 
the Texas Occupations Code and Article 2.12 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the 81st Texas Legislature enacted Section 142.006 of the Human Resources Code to authorize juvenile probation 
officers to carry a firearm in the course of their duties and sets forth other specific qualifying requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1701.259 of the Occupations Code was amended to require the Commission and TJJD (formerly the 
Texas Juvenile Probation Commission) to adopt an MOU to establish a basic training program in the use of firearms by 
juvenile probation officers; and 
 
WHEREAS,  this agreement, entered into pursuant to Section 1701.259 of the Texas Occupations Code, represents a mutual 
understanding and sets forth each agency’s respective responsibilities in developing a basic training program and fulfilling 
the related statutory mandates;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, know all men by these presents; that in consideration of mutual covenants, agreements and benefits 
of both parties, it is agreed as follows: 
 

III. Responsibilities of Both 
Parties 

 
By entering this agreement, the Commission and TJJD agree to: 
 

1.  Establish a program to provide instruction in: 
 

a.  legal limitations on the use of firearms and on the powers and authority of juvenile probation officers; 
 

b.  range firing and procedure, and firearms safety and maintenance; and 
 

c.  other topics determined by the Commission and TJJD to be necessary for the responsible use of firearms by 
juvenile probation officers. 

136



Memorandum of Understanding Between TCOLE and TJJD   

IV. 

 

Specific Roles and Responsibilities of Each Party (Commission) 
 
The Commission, as a signatory to this memorandum, agrees to: 

 
1.  Coordinate the development of a training curriculum in the use of firearms by juvenile probation officers based 

upon the training needs assessment conducted by TJJD and/or a designated representative; 
 

2.  Administer the training program and issue a certificate of firearms proficiency to each juvenile probation officer 
the Commission determines has successfully completed the program, contingent upon the authorization of the 
local chief juvenile probation officer of the department that employs the juvenile probation officer; 

 
3.  Ensure that each local chief juvenile probation officer submits a report of training and other 

required documentation for each course conducted in accordance with the Commission's rules;  
 

4.  Establish, at its discretion, reasonable and necessary fees for the administration of the training program; and 
 

5.  Establish or adopt, at its discretion, administrative policies, procedures and rules necessary to fully implement 
and comply with this legislative mandate. 

 
V. 

Specific Roles and Responsibilities of Each Party (TJJD) 
 
TJJD, as a signatory to this memorandum, agrees to: 

 
1.  Coordinate the development of the juvenile probation officer training curriculum based upon the training needs 

assessment conducted by TJJD and/or a designated representative; 
 

2.  Conduct a juvenile probation officer training needs assessment to be utilized by the Commission in the 
development of the firearms curriculum; and 

 
3.  Provide technical assistance to the Commission during the development of the training curriculum. 

 
VI. 

Psychological Assessment and Criminal History Background Check 
 
In compliance with the terms of this memorandum of understanding, each chief administrative officer that authorizes 
participation in the juvenile probation officer firearms proficiency training program shall: 
 

1.    Ensure that all officers making application for the certificate of firearms proficiency training program undergo  a 
psychological assessment and other applicable requirements or administrative rules of the Commission; and 

 
2.    Conduct, a complete criminal history search submitted through the Texas Department of Public Safety 

electronic clearinghouse and subscription service and Fingerprint Applicant Services of Texas (FAST) system to 
determine whether the applicant meets the minimum eligibility requirements to participate in the firearms 
training program established by the Commission. 

137



Memorandum of Understanding Between TCOLE and TJJD   

VII. 

 

Administrative Department Suspension and Officer Disqualification 
 
The Commission and TJJD, to the extent possible, further agree to the following: 
 

1.  The Commission may suspend the local juvenile probation department's administrative number with the 
Commission if the local juvenile probation department is found to be unsatisfactory under the risk assessment 
process, as defined by Chapter 1701, Occupations Code. The Commission shall reinstate the administrative 
number upon reasonable evidence that the local juvenile probation department has made the necessary 
changes as directed by the Commission; 

 
2.  The Commission shall regularly provide notification to TJJD regarding all juvenile probation departments and/or 

chief juvenile probation officers whose identifying number has been administratively suspended under the 
Commission’s rules; and 

 
3.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1701.259 and the terms of this agreement, TJJD reserves the right to 

disqualify a juvenile probation officer who has been issued a certificate of firearms proficiency by the 
Commission, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 142.006 of the Human Resources Code. 

 
4.  TJJD shall regularly provide notification to the Commission of any action by TJJD to disqualify a juvenile 

probation officer who has been issued a certificate of firearms proficiency by the Commission, in accordance 
with the provisions set forth in Section 142.006 of the Human Resources Code. 

 
VIII. Effective 

Date 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is effective on the date of the last agency signature and has no expiration date. 
Amendments will be made as deemed necessary and agreed to by the signing parties or as mandated by statute. 
 

IX. 
Execution of Agreement 

 
For the faithful performance of the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding, the parties hereto  in their capacities 
execute this agreement, affix their signatures and bind themselves. 
 
Texas Commission on Law Enforcement  

 
 
By:     
KIM VICKERS 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
Date:     

 
 
Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 
 
By:     
MIKE GRIFFITHS 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
Date:     

138



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO PUBLISH THE PROPOSAL TO COMPLETE THE RULE REVIEW AND 

PUBLISH PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 359 IN THE TEXAS REGISTER FOR A 30-DAY 

COMMENT PERIOD  

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Finance Division staff has completed this review for 37 TAC Chapter 359; 

WHEREAS, the staff has recommended revisions to the rules; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board grants approval to publish proposed revisions to 

37 TAC Chapter 359 and a proposal to complete the rule review for these rules in the Texas Register for a 

30-day comment period. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

139



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

140



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts 

Subject: Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to Contracts, in 

the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period  

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

The Finance Division staff has completed a review of Texas Administrative Code Chapter 

385 (Agency Management and Operations), Subchapter A (Contracts). The staff 

recommends the following changes: 

• Update statutory references and add minor clarifications in §385.1101 (Contract 

Authority and Responsibilities) 

• Make a substantive revision to §385.1109 (Protests) 

• Make minor terminology updates and grammatical revisions throughout the 

subchapter 

 

Attached to this memo you will find: 

• A table summarizing the rule review and proposed changes for Chapter 385, 

Subchapter A 

• The text of the revised rules in Chapter 385, Subchapter A 

• A resolution for board action 

 

Staff requests the board’s approval to publish the proposed revisions and a proposal to 

complete the rule review for Chapter 385, Subchapter A in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

comment period. 

 

141



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 385 -- Agency Management and Operations 

Subchapter A -- Contracts 
 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§385.1101  Contract Authority 

and Responsibilities 
Establishes approval authority 
and responsibilities for executing 
TJJD contracts. 

 Yes   Added minor clarifications 
to the definition of 
“Contract” 

 Specified that the executive 
director may delegate 
authority to execute 
contracts to any member of 
the executive management 
team (rather than just the 
CFO or deputy executive 
director) 

 Corrected and updated 
several references to 
statutes and rules 
governing the contracting 
process 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

 Ready for Board review. 

§385.1105  Contract Monitoring  Establishes contract monitoring 
roles and responsibilities of TJJD 
staff. Includes monitoring system 
for ensuring compliance by 
service providers with contract 
and service delivery 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for Board review. 

142



 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§385.1109  Protests  Establishes process for actual or 

prospective bidders, offerors, or 
contractors to protest TJJD's 
solicitation, evaluation, or award 
of a contract. 

Yes   Removed the requirement 
that the CFO must consult 
with the Office of General 
Counsel before issuing a 
written response to a 
protest 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for Board review. 

§385.1111  Negotiation and 
Mediation of 
Contract Disputes 

Establishes procedures for TJJD 
and its contractors to negotiate or 
mediate certain disputes involving 
claims of breach of written 
contract. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for Board review. 

 

143



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1101 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 

Title:  Contract Authority and Responsibilities 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-16, 6D-09 

Statute(s):   Gov’t Code: §2161.003, §2260.052(c),  
Gov’t Code Chapter 2254, Subchapters A and B 

Effective Date: 7/15/11, T-112 

 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces:  GAP.385.1101, 7/15/11, 

T-112GAP 111.1, 
9/21/05GAP.111.45, 
1/30/07 GAP.111.7, 
7/27/04 GAP.111.9, 
7/27/04 GAP.111.11, 
7/27/04 GAP.111.31, 
1/30/07 GAP.111.37, 
1/30/07 GAP.111.39, 
7/27/04 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 
 The purpose of this rule is to establish the approval authority and responsibilities for approving and 

executing contracts required by the Texas Juvenile Justice DepartmentTexas Youth Commission 
(TJJDTYC). 

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

This rule applies to all contracts entered into by TJJDTYC. 
 

(c) Definitions. 
 

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. 
 
(1) Board--the governing board of TJJDTYC. 
 
(2) Contract--a written contract between TJJDTYC and another party, either public or private,a 

contractor for goods or services or for a project as defined by Texas Government Code §2166.001.  
As used in this chapter, “contract” includes the following: letters of agreement; interagency/interlocal 
agreements with other government entities; memorandums of understanding; and other 
agreementsdocuments in which state funds or services are exchanged for the delivery of other 
goods or performance of services. 

 
(d) Approval Authority. 
 

(1) Board Approval. 
 

The executive director or his/her designee must shall present certain contracts to the board for 
approval, including but not limited to: 

 
(A) any contract exceeding $500,000; 
(B) any construction contract exceeding $300,000; 
(C) any construction contract change order exceeding $150,000 for a construction contract; 
(D) any contract for consultant services, as defined in Texas Government Code §2254.021, 

exceeding $15,000; 
(E) any contract for architectural or engineering services; 
(F) any contract for start-up residential operations; and 
(G) any other contract deemed appropriate for board approval as determined by the executive 

director. 
 

144



Contract Authority and Responsibilities GAP.385.1101 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(2) Agency Approval. 

 
(A) The board delegates authority to the executive director or his/her designee to approve all 

contracts not listed in subsection (d)paragraph (1) of this subsection. 
 
(B) The board delegates authority to the executive director or his/her designee to approve a 

contract listed in paragraphsubsection (d)(1) of this subsection that is executed in response to 
an emergency as defined in 34 TAC §20.32. 

 
(3) Other Approvals. 
 

(A) In accordance with Texas Government Code §321.020, all contracts involving the expenditure 
of funds for outside audit services require approval of the Texas State Auditor’s Office. 

 
(B) In accordance with Texas Government Code §402.0212, all contracts involving the 

expenditure of funds for outside legal services require approval of the Office of the Attorney 
General’s Office. 

 
(e) Authority to Execute Contracts. 
 

The board delegates authority to the executive director to execute all contracts for TJJDTYC.  This 
authority may be delegated by the executive director to another member of the executive management 
team.the deputy executive director or the chief financial officer. 
 

(f) Annual Contract Plan. 
 
(1) The executive director or his/her designee must will present to the board for its review an annual 

plan that outlines TJJD’sthe agency’s anticipated contracting actions for the next fiscal year. 
 

(2) As deemed necessary by the executive director or his/her designee, updates to the contract plan 
may will be provided to the board for review periodically throughout the fiscal year. 

 
(g) Adoptions by Reference and Statutory Citations rRelating to Contracting Responsibilities. 
 

(1) Competitive Solicitations. 
 

(A) TJJDTYC complies with Texas Government Code Chapters 2155 and 2156, relating to the 
competitive bidding process and types of solicitations used and Texas Government Code 
§2252.002, relating to awards of contracts to nonresident biddersrequests for proposals. 

(B) TJJDTYC adopts by reference 34 TAC §20.391, relating to requests for offers. 
 

(2) Historically Underutilized Businesses. 
 

TJJDTYC adopts by reference rules relating to historically underutilized businesses set forth in 34 
TAC Chapter 20, Subchapter B, relating to historically underutilized businesses. 

 
(3) 1st Choice-Recycled Content Product. 

 
TYC adopts by reference 34 TAC §20.135 relating to first choice-recycled content products. 

 
(34) Consultant Consulting Services. 

 
(A) TJJDTYC complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, Subchapter B, relating to 

concerning consulting services contracts.   
 
(B) TJJDTYC adopts by reference 34 TAC §5.54, relating to consulting services contracts.  

 

145



Contract Authority and Responsibilities GAP.385.1101 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(45) Professional Services. 

 
TJJDTYC complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, Subchapter A, within the scope of 
the practice of accounting; architecture; landscape architecture; land surveying; medicine; 
optometry; or professional engineering; real estate appraising; professional nursing; or services 
provided in connection with the professional employment or practice of a person who is licensed or 
registered as a certified public accountant; an architect; a landscape architect; a land surveyor; a 
physician, including a surgeon; an optometrist; or a professional engineer; a state-certified or state-
licensed real estate appraiser; or a registered nurse. 
 

(56) Construction Services. 
 

In awarding contracts for the construction of buildings and improvements, TJJDTYC shall awards the 
contracts in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2166, relating to building 
construction and acquisition. 
 

(67) Rate Setting. 
 

TJJDTYC complies with Texas Government Code §2261.151(a), relating to concerning payment and 
reimbursement methods and rates.   
 

(78) Exemptions from Competitive Bidding Process for Youth Services. 
 

In accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2155, Subchapter C, (relating to Ccertain 
Eexemptions from Ccompetitive Bbidding), TJJDTYC may purchase care and treatment services for 
youth committed to its care, at rates not to exceed any maximum provided by law, based on each 
provider’s qualifications and demonstrated competence. 

 
 

 

146



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1105 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 

Title: Contract Monitoring 
 
ACA:  N/A 

Statute(s): Gov’t Code §2261.202, HR Code §242.07061.052 

Effective Date: 7/15/11, T-112 

 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces:  GAP.385.1105, 

7/15/11, T-
12GAP.111.13, 
7/27/04, T-67 

 

 
(a)  Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the contract monitoring roles and responsibilities of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) Texas Youth Commission (TYC) staff, including the monitoring system 
used by TYC to ensure service providers’ compliance with contract and service delivery requirements by 
service providers.  

 
(b)  Applicability.  
 

This rule applies to all contracts between TJJD and public or private entities with which TYC has a 
contract.  

 
(c)  General Provisions.  
 

(1)  TJJDTYC will periodically monitors all public and private entities that which contract with TJJDTYC.  
 

(2)  TJJDTYC will establishes a monitoring schedule based on a risk assessment methodology. Higher -
risk contracts areshall be monitored more frequently and more comprehensively than lower -risk 
contracts.  

 
(3)  For residential program-related client services contracts, TJJDTYC will obtains and evaluates 

program cost information to ensure that each cost, including an administrative cost, is reasonable 
and necessary to achieve program objectives.  

 
(d)  Contract Monitoring Roles and Responsibilities.  
 

(1)  The TJJDTYC Internal Audit dDepartment audits contracted services and oversight monitoring 
oversight activitiesy in accordance with Human Resources Code §203.01361.0331 and based on the 
results of the an annual risk assessment conducted by TJJD Internal Audit Department.  

 
(2)  The TJJD division responsible for monitoring and inspectionsQuality assurance staff will  conducts 

program reviews of all residential facilities and parole programs operated under contract with 
TJJDTYC to ensure operations comply with applicable statutes, rules, policies, and procedures, and 
standards.  

 
(3)  Individual program areas within TJJD will:  

 
(A)  conduct provide day-to-day monitoring activities regarding financial and performance 

requirements;  
 

(B)  provide technical assistance to service providers; and  
 

(C)  initiate corrective action and/or sanctions for non-compliance when appropriate. 
 

147



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1109 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 

Title: Protests 
 
ACA:  N/A 

Statute(s):  Gov’t Code §2155.076 

Reference: 34 TAC §20.384 

Effective Date: 7/15/11, T-112 

 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces: GAP.385.1109, 7/15/11, 

T-112New  
 

 
(a)  Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the process for which actual or prospective bidders, offerors, or 
contractors may formally protest an action taken by Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TTJD) during the 
contract process.  

 
(b)  Definitions.  
 

The following words and terms, when used in this rule, shall have the following meanings unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise.  

 
(1)  Agency--TJJDThe Texas Youth Commission.  

 
(2)  Interested pParties--All vendors who have submitted bids or proposals for the provision of goods or 

services pursuant to a solicitationcontract with TJJDthe Texas Youth Commission.  
 
(c)  General Provisions.  
 

(1)  Any actual or prospective bidder, offeror, or contractor who considers himself/herself to have been 
aggrieved in connection with the agency's solicitation, evaluation, or award of a contract may 
formally protest to the chief financial officer (CFO) or his/her designeeprocurement director. Such 
protests must be made in writing and received in the office of the CFO procurement director within 
10 ten working days after the protesting party knows, or should have known, of the occurrence of the 
action that is protested. Formal protests must conform to the requirements of this subsection and 
subsection (d) of this section, and will be resolved through use of the procedures that are described 
in subsections (e) - (g) of this section. The protesting party must mail or deliver copies of the protest 
to the agency and other interested parties.  

 
(2)  In the event of a timely protest under this rule, the agency will not proceed further with the solicitation 

or award of the contract unless the deputy executive directorCFO, after consultation with appropriate 
staff, makes a written determination that the contract must be awarded without delay to protect the 
best interests of the agency.  

 
(d)  Protests.  
 

A formal protest must be sworn and contain:  
 

(1)  a specific identification of the statutory or regulatory provision that the protesting party alleges has 
been violated;  

 
(2)  a specific description of each action by the agency that the protesting party alleges to be a violation 

of the statutory or regulatory provision that the protesting party has identified pursuant to paragraph 
(1) of this subsection;  

 
(3)  a precise statement of the relevant facts;  

 
(4)  a statement of any issues of law or fact that the protesting party contends must be resolved;  

 
(5)  a statement of the argument and authorities that the protesting party offers in support of the protest; 

and  

148



Protests GAP.385.1109 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

(6)  a statement that copies of the protest have been mailed or delivered to the agency and all other 
identifiable interested parties.  

 
(e)  Resolving Protests.  
 

(1)  The CFO or his/her designeeprocurement director may settle and resolve the dispute over the 
solicitation or award of a contract at any time before the matter is submitted on appeal to the 
agency's general counsel or his/her designee. The CFO or his/her designee procurement director 
may solicit written responses to the protest from other interested parties.  

 
(2)  If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the chief financial officer (CFO) will consult with 

the office of general counsel to issues a written determination that resolves the protest.  
 

(3)  If the CFO or his/her designee, after consultation with the office of general counsel, determines that 
no violation of statutory or regulatory provisions has occurred, then he/she shall must inform the 
protesting party and any other interested parties by a letter that sets forth the reasons for the 
determination.  

 
(4)  If the CFO or his/her designee, after consultation with the office of general counsel, determines that 

a violation of any statutory or regulatory provisions has occurred in a situation in which a contract 
has not been awarded, then he/she shall must inform the protesting party and any other interested 
parties of that determination by letter that details the reasons for the determination and the 
appropriate remedy.  

 
(5)  If the CFO or his/her designee, after consultation with the office of general counsel, determines that 

a violation of any statutory or regulatory provisions has occurred in a situation in which a contract 
has been awarded, then he/she shall must inform the protesting party and any other interested 
parties of that determination by a letter that details the reasons for the determination. This letter may 
include an order that declares the contract void.  

 
(f)  Appealing a Protest.  
 

(1)  The protesting party may appeal a determination of a protest by the CFO or his/her designee to the 
general counsel or his/her designee. An appeal of the CFO's determination must be in writing and be 
received by the general counsel not later than ten 10 working days after the date on which the CFO 
or his/her designee has sent written notice of his/her determination. The scope of the appeal will be 
limited to reviewing the determination of the CFO or his/her designee  review of the CFO's 
determination. The protesting party must mail or deliver to the agency and all other interested parties 
a copy of the appeal, which must contain a certified statement that such copies have been provided.  

 
(2)  The general counsel or his/her designee may refer the matter to the executive director for 

consideration or may issue a written decision that resolves the protest.  
 
(g)  Referral of a Protest to the Executive Director.  
 

The following requirements shall apply to a protest that the general counsel or his/her designee refers to 
the executive director.  

 
(1)  The general counsel or his/her designee will delivers copies of the appeal and any responses by 

interested parties to the executive director.  
 

(2)  The executive director may consider any documents that agency staff or interested parties have 
submitted.  

 
(3)  The executive director will issue a written letter of determination of the appeal to the parties which 

shall be final.  
 

149



Protests GAP.385.1109 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(A3)  A protest or appeal that is not filed timely will not be considered unless good cause for delay is 

shown or the executive director determines that an appeal raises issues that are significant to 
agency procurement practices or procedures in general.  
 

(B4)  A written decision that either the executive director or the general counsel or his/her designee has 
issued shall beis the final administrative action of the agency.  

 
(h)  Documentation Requirements.  
 

The agency will maintains all documentation on the purchasing process that is the subject of a protest or 
appeal in accordance with the agency's retention schedule. 

 

150



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1111 
General Administrative Policy Manual  
 

Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 

Title: Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes 
 
ACA:  N/A 

Implements:  Gov’t Code §2260.052(c) 

Effective Date: 7/15/11, T-112 

 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces:  GAP.111.73, 7/27/04 
GAP.111.77, 7/27/04 GAP.111.51, 

7/27/04GAP.385.1111, 
7/15/11 

 
(a) Purpose. 
 

In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 2260, the purpose of this rule is to establish 
procedures for the Texas Youth Commission (TYC)Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) and its 
contractors to engage in negotiation and/or mediation procedures to resolve certain disputes involving 
claims of breach of a written contract.  These procedures are not intended to replace the process to 
resolve any disagreement concerning the contract in the ordinary course of contract administration under 
less formal procedures specified in the parties’ contract. 
 

(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies to TYC TJJD and its contractors, as defined in Texas Government Code 
§2260.001. 

 
(2) This rule does not apply to: 
 

(A) a claim for personal injury or wrongful death arising from a breach of contract; 
 
(B) an action of TYC TJJD for which a contractor is entitled to a specific remedy pursuant to state 

or federal constitution or statute; 
 
(C) a contract action proposed or taken by TYC TJJD for which a contractor receiving Medicaid 

funds under that contract is entitled by state statute or rule to a hearing conducted in 
accordance with Chapter 2001 of the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2001; 

 
(D) a contract that is solely and entirely funded by federal grant monies other than for a project 

defined in Texas Government Code §2166.001; 
 
(E) a contract between TYC TJJD and the federal government or its agencies, another state, or 

another nation; 
 
(F) a contract between TYC TJJD and another unit of state government; 
 
(G) a contract between TYC TJJD and a local governmental body or a political subdivision of 

another state; 
 
(H) a claim from a contractor’s subcontractor, officer, employee, agent, or other persons furnishing 

goods or services to a contractor; 
 
(I) a contract within the exclusive jurisdiction of state or local regulatory bodies; or 
 
(J) a contract within the exclusive jurisdiction of federal courts or regulatory bodies. 

 
(c) Sovereign Immunity. 
 

(1) To the extent allowed by law, Tthis rule does not waive TYC’s TJJD’s sovereign immunity to suit or 
liability. 

151



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
(2) The procedures contained in this rule are exclusive and required prerequisites to suit under Texas 

Civil Practice and Remedies Code, Chapter 107, and the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2260. 
 
(d) Contract Claims. 
 

(1) Notice of Claim of Breach of Contract. 
 
(A) A contractor asserting a claim for breach of contract under Texas Government Code Chapter 

2260, must shall file notice of the claim as provided by this subsection. 
 
(B) The notice of claim must shall: 

 
(i) be submitted no later than 180 days after the date of the event that the contractor 

asserts as the basis of the claim; 
 
(ii) be delivered by hand, certified mail return receipt requested, or other verifiable delivery 

service to the individual stated in the contract or to the executive director if no individual 
is identified; and 

 
(iii) state in detail: 

 
(I) the nature of the alleged breach of contract, including the date of the event that 

the contractor asserts as the basis of the claim and each contractual provision 
allegedly breached; 

 
(II) a description of damages that resulted from the alleged breach, including the 

amount and method used to calculate those damages; and 
 
(III) the legal theory of recovery, i.e., breach of contract, including the causal 

relationship between the alleged breach and the damages claimed; and 
 

(iv) provide supporting documentation or other tangible evidence to facilitate TYC’s TJJD’s 
evaluation of the claim; and 

 
(v) be signed by the contractor or the contractor’s authorized representative. 

 
(2) Counterclaim by TJJD the Commission. 

 
(A) In order to assert a counterclaim, TYC TJJD must shall file notice of the counterclaim not later 

than 60 days after the date of the contractor’s notice of claim.  
 
(B) The notice of counterclaim must shall: 

 
(i) be submitted in writing; 

 
(ii) be delivered by hand, certified mail return receipt requested, or other verifiable delivery 

service to the contractor or representative of the contractor; and 
 
(iii) state in detail: 

 
(I) the nature of the counterclaim; 
 
(II) a description of damages or offsets sought, including the amount and method 

used to calculate those damages or offsets; and 
 
(III) the legal theory supporting the counterclaim recovery, i.e., breach of contract, 

including the causal relationship between the alleged breach and the damages 
claimed; and 

152



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
(iv) provide supporting documentation or other tangible evidence to facilitate the contractor’s 

evaluation of TYC’s TJJD’s counterclaim; and 
 
(v) be signed by the executive director or his/her designee. 

 
(C) Nothing herein in this rule precludes TYC TJJD from initiating a lawsuit for damages against 

the contractor in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 

(e) Negotiation. 
 
(1) The parties may conduct negotiations of claims and counterclaims within a reasonable period of time 

as long as the negotiations start prior to the 120th day following the date TYC TJJD receives the 
contractor’s notice of claim.  

 
(2) The parties must shall complete the negotiations as provided by this rule as a prerequisite to a 

contractor’s request for contested case hearing no later than 270 days after TYC TJJD receives the 
contractor’s notice of claim unless the parties agree in writing to extend the time for negotiations. 

 
(3) The parties may conduct negotiations with the assistance of one or more neutral third parties. 
 
(4) To facilitate the meaningful evaluation and negotiation of the claim(s) and any counterclaim(s), the 

parties may exchange relevant documents that support their respective claims, defenses, 
counterclaims, or positions. 

 
(5) Material submitted pursuant to this subsection and claimed to be confidential by the contractor 

areshall be handled pursuant to the requirements of the Public Information Act. 
 
(6) The agreement may resolve an entire claim or counterclaim or any designated and severable portion 

of a claim. 
 
(7) The agreement must be in writing and signed by representatives of the contractor and TYC TJJD 

who have authority to bind each respective party. 
 
(8) A partial settlement does not waive a party’s rights under Texas Government Code, Chapter 2260, 

to proceed on the parts of the claims or counterclaims that are not resolved. 
 
(9) Unless the parties agree otherwise, each party is shall be responsible for its own costs incurred in 

connection with a negotiation, including, without limitation, the costs of attorney’s fees, consultant’s 
fees, and expert’s fees. 

 
(f) Mediation. 

 
(1) The parties may agree to mediate the dispute at any time before the 120th day after TYC TJJD 

receives the contractor’s notice of claim or before the expiration of any written extension agreed to 
by the parties. 

 
(2) The parties may mediate the dispute even after the case has been referred to the State Office of 

Administrative Hearings (SOAH) for a contested case.  The State Office of Administrative 
HearingsSOAH may also refer a contested case for mediation pursuant to its own rules and 
guidelines, whether or not the parties have previously attempted mediation. 

 
(3) The mediation is subject to the provisions of the Governmental Dispute Resolution Act, Texas 

Government Code, Chapter 2009.  For purposes of this rule, mediation is assigned the meaning set 
forth in the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code §154.023. 

 
(4) To facilitate a meaningful opportunity for settlement, the parties must shall, to the extent possible, 

select representatives who: (A) are knowledgeable about the dispute and:; 
 

153



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(BA) who are in a position to reach agreement; or  
(CB) who can credibly recommend approval of an agreement. 

 
(5) Sources of mediators shall include governmental officers or employees who are qualified as 

mediators under Section 154.052, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code §154.052, private 
mediators, SOAH, the Center for Public Policy Dispute Resolution at the University of Texas School 
of Law, an alternative dispute resolution system created under Chapter 152, Texas Civil Practice 
and Remedies Code, Chapter 152, or another state or federal agency or through a pooling 
agreement with several state agencies. 

 
(6) The confidentiality of a final settlement agreement to which TYC TJJD is a signatory that is reached 

as a result of the mediation is governed by Texas Government Code, Chapter 552. 
  
(7) Each party isshall be responsible for its own costs incurred in connection with the mediation, 

including costs of document reproduction for documents requested by such party, attorney’s fees, 
and consultant or expert fees.  The costs of the mediation process itself areshall be divided equally 
between the parties. 

 
(g) Settlement Agreement. 

 
(1) A settlement agreement reached as a result of negotiation or mediation that resolves an entire claim 

or counterclaim or any designated and severable portion of a claim or counterclaim mustshall be in 
writing and signed by the representatives of the contractor and TYC TJJD who have authority to bind 
each respective party. 

 
(2) If the settlement agreement does not resolve all issues raised by the claim and counterclaim, the 

agreement mustshall identify the issues that are not resolved. 
 
(3) A partial settlement does not waive a contractor’s rights under Texas the Government Code, 

Chapter 2260, as to the parts of the claim that are not resolved. 
 

(h) Referral to the State Office of Administrative Hearings. 
 

(1) The contractor may request a contested case hearing before the SOAH after the 270th day after 
TYC TJJD receives the contractor’s notice of claim, or the expiration of any written extension. 

 
(2) If a claim for breach of contract is not resolved in its entirety through negotiation or mediation in 

accordance with this rule on or before the 270th day after TYC TJJD receives notice of claim, or 
after the expiration of any written extension agreed to by the parties, the contractor may file a 
request with TYC TJJD for a contested case hearing before SOAH. 

 
(3) A request for a contested case hearing must shall state the legal and factual basis for the claim, and  

mustshall be delivered to the executive director of TYC TJJD or other officer designated in the 
contract to receive notice within a reasonable time after the 270th day or the expiration of any written 
extension agreed to by the parties. 

 
(4) TYC TJJD shall forwards the contractor’s request for a contested case hearing to SOAH within a 

reasonable period of time, not to exceed 30 days after receipt of the request. 
 
(5) The parties may agree to submit the case to SOAH before the 270th day after the notice of claim is 

received by TYC TJJD if they have achieved a partial resolution of the claim or if an impasse has 
been reached in the negotiations and proceeding to a contested case hearing would serve the 
interests of justice. 

 

154



	

A
P

O
J
t

w

W
l
d

W

W

N
3
R

T
B

S
	

T
	

	
_
S

A	RESOLUTI
PUBLISH	PR

On	 this	31st
ustice	Board
the	Members

BOARD	MEMBE

Scott	W.	Fisher	

John	Brieden	III

Joseph	Brown	

Carol	Bush	

Becky	Gregory	

Jane	A.	King	

Scott	Matthew	

where,	amon

WHEREAS,	T
ater	than	the
date	and	mak

WHEREAS,	t

WHEREAS,	t

NOW,	THER
37	TAC	Chap
Register	for	a

The	 foregoin
Board.	

Signed	this	3

Texas	Juv

____________
Scott	W.	Fish

ION	FOR	AP
ROPOSED	RE

t	day	 of	 Jan
d	was	held	in
s	was	presen

ER	 PRESENT	

	

I	 	

	

	

	

	

	

ng	other	matt

Texas	Govern
e	fourth	ann
ke	an	assessm

he	Finance	D

he	staff	has	r

EFORE	BE	I
pter	385,	Sub
a	30‐day	com

ng	Resolution

31st	day	of	J

venile	Just

____________
her,	Chairm

 
Texas

PROVAL	TO
EVISIONS	FO

FO

nuary	2014,	
n	the	City	of	A
t,	to	wit:	

ABSENT	 YES

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

ters,	came	up

nment	Code	
iversary	of	t
ment	of	whet

Division	staff	

recommende

IT	RESOLVE
bchapter	A	an
mment	period

n	was	 lawful

January	201

tice	Board

____________
man	

s	Juvenile
RES

O	PUBLISH	T
OR	37	TAC	C
OR	A	30‐DA

a	 duly	 calle
Austin,	Texas

S	 NO	 ABST

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

p	for	conside

§2001.039	r
the	date	on	w
ther	the	reas

f has	complet

ed	revisions	t

D	THAT	 the
nd	a	proposa
d.	

lly	moved,	d

14.	

d	

________	

e	Justice	D
OLUTIO
THE	PROPOS
HAPTER	38
Y	COMMENT

ed	 and	 lawfu
s,	pursuant	t

TAIN	 	 BOAR

	 MaryL

	 Rene	O

	 Laura	

	 Jimmy

	 Calvin

	 Meliss

	 Motion

ration	and	ad

requires	each
which	the	ru
ons	for	initia

ted	this	revie

to	the	rules;

e	Board	gran
al	to	complet

duly	 seconde

 
Departme
N	
SAL	TO	COM
85,	SUBCHAP
T	PERIOD		

ully	 convene
to	the	Texas	

RD	MEMBER	 P

Lou	Mendoza	

Olvera	

Parker	

y	Smith	

n	Stephens	

sa	Weiss	

n:	

doption	the	f

h	state	agen
ule	takes	effe
ally	adopting

ew	for	37	TA

nts	approval	
te	the	rule	re

ed,	 and	adop

ent	

MPLETE	THE
PTER	A	IN	T

ed	meeting	 o
Open	Meetin

PRESENT	 ABSE

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Secon

following	Re

ncy	to	review
ct	and	every
g	the	rule	con

AC	Chapter	38

to	publish	p
eview	for	the

pted	by	 the	T

E	RULE	REVI
HE	TEXAS	R

of	 the	 Texas
ngs	Act.			A	q

ENT	 YES	 NO

	

	

	

	

	

	

nd:	

esolution:	

w	each	of	its	
y	four	years	a
ntinue	to	exis

85,	Subchapt

proposed	rev
ese	rules	in	t

Texas	 Juveni

EW	AND	
REGISTER	

s	 Juvenile	
uorum	of	

O	 ABSTAIN

	

	

	

	

	

	

rules	not	
after	that	
st;	

ter	A;	

visions	to	
the	Texas	

ile	 Justice	

155



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

156



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review for 

37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.1 - §341.4, §341.9, §341.10, 

§341.16, §341.35 - §341.41, §341.65 - §341.71, and §341.80 - §341.91 

Date: January 10, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Probation and Community Services Division 

proposed revisions to assigned rules from Chapter 341 at the August 2013 Board meeting. 

The Board approved posting the revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, the staff recommends two minor changes to the proposed text: 

• In §341.3, clarify that it is the juvenile board, not the juvenile probation department, 

that is required to adopt and enforce a zero-tolerance policy regarding sexual abuse. 

• In §341.82, correct a minor grammar error. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

corrections as noted. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

157



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 341 Texas Juvenile Justice Department Standards (Proposed New Name: Juvenile Probation Department General Standards) 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

SUBCHAPTER A: DEFINITIONS 

341.1  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
the chapter. 

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 

SUBCHAPTER B: JUVENILE BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 

341.2  Administration  Establishes the administrative 
functions of the juvenile board. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.   Ready for board adoption. 

341.3  Policy and 
Procedures 

Establishes the juvenile board’s 
responsibility to adopt written 
policies and procedures. Specifies 
certain topics that must be 
included in the policies and 
procedures. 

  Yes  For personnel policies, the 
requirement to have the following 
in the probation department’s 
policies has been removed: 
 the salary scale for all juvenile 
probation officers, and  

 the provision for juvenile 
probation officers to receive all 
applicable benefits and 
allowances given to county 
employees. 

 
For volunteers and interns, 
additional provisions have been 
added to include documentation 
requirements for the sign in log. 

 
Provisions have been added 
allowing for research studies under 
certain conditions and restrictions.  
 
A provision has been added to 
require probation departments to 

Ready for board adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

158



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

adopt policies and procedures for 
zero‐tolerance for sexual abuse. 
 
Terminology updates. 

 
 
 

341.4  Waiver or Variance 
to Standards 

Refers to the juvenile board’s 
ability to submit a request for a 
waiver or variance under 
§349.200. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

SUBCHAPTER C: CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 

341.9  Policy and 
Procedure Manual 

Requires the chief administrative 
officer to maintain, enforce, 
update, and provide employees 
with access to the department’s 
written policies and procedures. 

  Yes  Added clarification that the chief 
administrative officer must ensure 
the daily practice conforms to the 
policies and procedures. 
 
Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

341.10  Participation in 
Community 
Resource 
Coordination Groups 

Requires the chief administrative 
officer or designee to serve as the 
liaison to the community resource 
coordination group. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

SUBCHAPTER D: TREATMENT AND SAFETY (OLD NAME FOR THIS SUBCHAPTER.) 

341.16  Testing  Requires the chief administrative 
officer to offer testing for sexually 
transmitted diseases for any 
juvenile designated by TJJD as a 
victim of sexual abuse. 

No  The language from this rule has 
been deleted and a provision has 
been added to §341.3 to require 
probation departments to adopt 
policies and procedures for zero‐
tolerance for sexual abuse. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

SUBCHAPTER G: CASE MANAGEMENT STANDARDS 

341.35  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
the subchapter. 

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

Terminology updates ready for 
board review. However, standards 
within Subchapter G: Case 

159



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

Management Standards have not 
been revised/updated since 2003 
and are expected to require 
extensive revisions.  A request has 
been made to the Advisory Council 
Standards Sub‐Committee for 
assistance with updating 
Subchapter G. 
 
James Williams 
Senior Director 
Probation and Community 
Services 
 
August 2015 

341.36  Screening  Requires departments to use the 
TJJD screening tool for all juveniles 
who receive a formal referral.  
Sets time limits for administering 
the tool and requires departments 
to send summary data to TJJD. 

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

See above. 

341.37  Case Planning  Requires a written case plan for 
juveniles assigned to progressive 
sanctions levels three through five 
and any juvenile given 
determinate sentence probation. 

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

See above. 

341.38  Field Supervision  Establishes requirements for 
developing the initial case plan 
and conducting case plan reviews 
for juveniles who are placed on 
field supervision. 

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

See above. 

160



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

341.39  Residential 
Placement 

Establishes requirements for 
developing the initial case plan 
and conducting case plan reviews 
for juveniles who are placed in 
residential placement.  

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

See above.
 

341.40  Level of Supervision  Requires juvenile probation 
departments to establish levels of 
supervision for juveniles under 
field supervision. Requires at least 
one face‐to‐face contact with the 
juvenile per month.  

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 
 

See above. 

341.41  Exit Plan  Outlines the requirements for 
developing exit plans for juveniles. 

  Yes  Extensive review required but 
terminology updates completed. 

See above. 

SUBCHAPTER J: RESTRAINTS 

341.65  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
the subchapter. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

341.66  Requirements  Establishes the requirements and 
limitations governing the use of 
restraints.  

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.67  Prohibitions  Establishes prohibited restraint 
techniques.  

  Yes  Additional language has been 
added to clarify the provision that 
prohibits the obstruction of the 
airway or impairs the breathing of a 
juvenile to include that nothing can 
be placed in, on, or over the 
juvenile’s mouth or nose. 

 
Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

161



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

341.68  Documentation  Requires all restraints to be 
documented and lists the type of 
information that must be 
included. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

341.69  Physical Restraint  Requires juvenile probation 
officers to be re‐certified in the 
approved physical restraint 
technique at least every two 
years. 

  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.70  Mechanical 
Restraint 

Establishes limitations and 
prohibitions governing the use of 
mechanical restraints.  

  Yes  Terminology updates.   Ready for board adoption. 
 
 

341.71  Transporting  Establishes that documentation is 
not required for use of mechanical 
restraints during transportation or 
while taking a juvenile into 
custody.  Establishes prohibitions 
on how mechanical restraints can 
be used during transportation. 

  Yes  Terminology updates. 
 
 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

SUBCHAPTER K: CARRYING OF WEAPONS 

431.80  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
the subchapter. 

 Yes  Terminology updates. Ready for board adoption. 
 

431.81  Applicability and 
Authorization 

Establishes that this subchapter 
applies only to actively certified 
juvenile probation officers who 
are authorized to carry a firearm. 
Establishes when the carrying of a 
firearm is authorized. 

 Yes  To comply with statute and reflect 
current practice, an additional 
provision has been added to 
authorization to carry a firearm: a 
juvenile probation officer must not 
be designated a perpetrator in a 
TJJD abuse, neglect, or exploitation 
investigation. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

162



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

341.82  Documentation 
Requirements (New 
Rule Name) 

Requires a juvenile probation 
officer to provide proof of certain 
qualifications prior to obtaining a 
firearms proficiency certificate 
from TCLEOSE.  

 Yes  To comply with current practice 
and statute, revisions were made to 
clarify that documentation must be 
provided to TJJD after a juvenile 
probation officer obtains the initial 
firearms proficiency certificate from 
TCOLE and every two years for a 
renewal certification. The list of 
documents required has also been 
updated to reflect current practice. 
 
The chief juvenile probation officer 
or the supervising officer of a 
juvenile probation officer seeking 
authorization to carry a firearm will 
now be responsible for sending the 
documentation to TJJD. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.83  Responsibilities of a 
Juvenile Probation 
Officer Authorized 
to Carry a Weapon 

Outlines the ongoing 
responsibilities of a juvenile 
probation officer who is 
authorized to carry a firearm.  

 Yes  The requirement for a juvenile 
probation officer authorized to 
carry a weapon to submit necessary 
documentation to TJJD has been 
removed. As required in §341.82, 
this responsibility will now be 
completed by chief juvenile 
probation officer, or the supervising 
officer of the juvenile probation 
officer.  
 
Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.84  Use of Force 
Continuum 

Establishes the right to use force 
to protect persons. Requires 
training in empty‐hand defense 

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

163



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

tactics and an intermediate 
weapon. Requires the juvenile 
probation officer to carry at least 
one intermediate weapon when 
carrying a firearm.  

341.85  Responsibilities of 
Chief Juvenile 
Probation Officers or 
Other Supervising 
Officer (New Rule 
Name) 

Outlines the responsibilities of the 
chief juvenile probation officer 
concerning any juvenile probation 
officers employed by the 
department who are authorized to 
carry a firearm.  

 Yes  The requirement for a chief juvenile 
probation officer, or designee to 
send TJJD copies of training 
certificates and forms has been 
removed from this rule because the 
requirement can be found in 
§341.82. 
 
Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 

 

341.86  Written Policies and 
Procedures 

Outlines the content of policies 
and procedures that must be 
written if juvenile probation 
officers are authorized to carry a 
weapon.  

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.87  Reporting and 
Investigating Use of 
Force Incidents 

Requires the chief juvenile 
probation officer to report to TJJD 
each incident in which a juvenile 
probation officer uses an empty‐
hand defense tactic, draws or uses 
an intermediate weapon or draws 
or discharges a firearm. 

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.88  Records  Outlines the records that must be 
kept for each juvenile probation 
officer authorized to carry a 
firearm and specifies who may 
access these records for 
audit/investigation purposes. 

 Yes  Added a requirement for the 
personnel file to contain 
documentation showing 
completion of the TCOLE’s current 
firearms training program for 
juvenile probation officers. 

Ready for board adoption. 
 

164



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, 
who is responsible for revisions 

and what is the projected 
timeline?)

 
Terminology updates. 

341.89  Training and 
Qualification 
Requirements 

Specifies training and continuing 
education requirements for 
juvenile probation officers who 
carry a firearm. 

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.90  Disqualifying 
Conduct 

Prohibits a juvenile probation 
officer from seeking authorization 
to carry a firearm if he/she has 
been designated as a perpetrator 
in a TJJD abuse, neglect, or 
exploitation investigation. 

 Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

341.91  Prohibited Conduct  Prohibits a juvenile probation 
officer who carries a firearm from 
firing warning shots, shooting at 
fleeing vehicles, and using a 
striking weapon as an 
intermediate weapon. 

 Yes   No changes required.  Ready for board adoption. 

 

 

165



T
P
C

§
T
c

 

§
(

(

(

(

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 341

§341.1 
The following 
clearly indicat

  (1) A

  (2) C
re
th

  (3) J
bo
bo
in

(A

(B

(C

  (4) R
re
pr

(5) T

§341.2 
a)  Local J

(1) T
pr

(2)  T
de
ad

(3)  W
th
pr

b) Referra
100 refe

c)  Particip

(1) Ju
to

(2)  T
d

d)  Notice 
complai

(1)  th

(2)  an
bo

Propo
Public 
Texas J

1   Juvenil
Staf

Definitions 
words and te

tes otherwise

Alleged Victim

Chief Adminis
esponsible for
he juvenile pro

uvenile Just
oard, juvenile
oard that serv

ncludes: 

A)  juvenile j

B) non-resid
court; an

C) juvenile 

Referral--A ref
esults in a fac
robation depa

JJD--Texas J

Administrat

Juvenile Prob

he juvenile bo
robation depa

he juvenile bo
epartment as
dministrative 

When probatio
he juvenile bo
rocedures are

al Ratio. The 
errals made to

pation in Com

uvenile board
o Texas Gove

he chair of th
ispute resolut

of Complain
int procedure

he juvenile pro

ny facility ope
oard. 

osed Rev
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
le Probation
ff-Recommen

erms, when us
.  

m--A juvenile 

strative Offic
r oversight of 
obation depar

ice Program
e board, or by
ves juveniles 

justice alterna

dential progra
nd  

probation dep

ferral to the ju
ce-to-face inte
artment. 

Juvenile Justi

tion 

bation Servic

oard must em
artment.  

oard must spe
 well as the a
officer.  

on services fo
oard must ens
e clearly diffe

juvenile boar
o the juvenile

mmunity Res

ds must partic
ernment Code

e juvenile boa
tion process r

t Procedures
s in a public a

obation depar

erated by the 

visions to
Corrections
stice Depar
n Departme
nded Change

sed in this ch

alleged as be

cer--Regardle
the day-to-da
rtment of a m

--A program o
y a private ven

under juvenil

ative educatio

ams that serv

partments.  

uvenile court f
erview betwee

ce Departme

ces Administ

mploy a chief a

ecify the resp
authority, resp

r adult and ju
sure that the j
rentiated.  

rd shall emplo
e probation de

source Coord

cipate in the s
e §531.055. 

ard or his/her
required by G

s. The juvenil
area of:  

rtment; and 

juvenile boar

o Texas A
s 
rtment 

ent General 

 

es in §341.3 a

apter, have th

eing a victim o

ess of title, the
ay operations

multi-county ju

or departmen
ndor under a 
e court jurisd

on programs;

ve juvenile off

for conduct d
en the juvenile

nt. 

tration.  

administrative

ponsibilities an
ponsibility, an

uvenile offend
uvenile proba

oy at least one
epartment ann

dination Gro

ystem of com

r designee mu
Government C

le board must

rd or by a priv

Administr

Standards
and §341.82

he following m

of abuse, exp

e person hired
s of a juvenile
dicial district.

nt operated w
contract with 

diction or juve

 

fenders under

efined in Tex
e and the aut

e officer for ea

nd functions o
d function of 

ders are provid
ation departm

e certified juv
nually.  

oups.  

mmunity resou

ust serve as r
Code §531.05

t post the sign

vate entity thro

rative Cod

are Marked 

meanings unle

ploitation, or n

d by a juvenil
e probation de
   

holly or partly
the governin
nile board jur

r the jurisdicti

xas Family Co
thorized staff 

ach autonom

of the juvenile
the position o

ded by a sing
ment policies, 

venile probatio

urce coordina

representative
55.  

n provided by

ough a contra

de 

ess the conte

neglect.  

e board who 
epartment, inc

y by the gove
g board or juv
risdiction. The

on of the juve

ode §51.03 th
of the juvenil

ous juvenile 

e probation 
of the chief 

gle probation o
programs, an

on officer for e

ation groups p

e to the intera

y TJJD relatin

act with the ju

 

ext 

is 
cluding 

rning 
venile 
e term 

enile 

hat 
e 

office, 
nd 

each 

pursuant 

agency 

ng to 

uvenile 

166



 

§
(

(

 

§341.3 
a) Person

b)  Departm
policies

(1)  D
pr

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(2)  V
in
vo

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(3)  E
or
ex

(4)     R
re
to

(A

(B

(C

Pr

Policy and P

nel Policies.

ment Policie
 must include

Deferred Pros
rovisions:  

A)  The max

B)  The mon
guardian

C)  The fee 

D)  The chie
for each 

E)  A deferre
schedule

Volunteers an
nternship prog
olunteer and 

A)  a descrip
work wit

B)  a require
Chapter 

C)  selection

D)  orientatio
neglect; 

E)  a require
in a prof

F)  a provisi
documen

(i) the

(ii) the

(iii) the

(iv) ge

xperimentat
r juvenile just
xperiments.  

esearch Stud
esearch is pro
o the following

A)     The juve
studies. 

B)     Approve
board.  

C)     Researc
prescribe

roposed 

Procedures 

. The juvenile

s. The juveni
e, at a minimu

secution. The

ximum superv

nthly fee must
n.  

schedule mus

ef administrati
child includin

ed prosecutio
e and rules fo

nd Interns. If 
gram, the juve
internship pro

ption of the au
h the departm

ement for crim
344 of this tit

n and termina

on and trainin
 

ement that vo
essional capa

on requiring a
nted through 

e name of the

e date and tim

e name of the

eneral descrip

ion. The juve
tice program f

dies. Particip
ohibited unles
g requirement

enile board m
Studies that i

ed research st

ch studies app
ed by TJJD p

Revision

e board must a

le board mus
um, the follow

e deferred pro

vision fee for d

t be determin

st be based o

ive officer or h
ng any waiver

on fee must no
or waiver of th

a juvenile pro
enile board m
ogram:  

uthority, respo
ment;  

minal history s
tle;  

ation criteria, i

ng requiremen

olunteers and 
acity; and  

all volunteer a
the use of a l

e volunteer/in

me (beginning

e juvenile(s) c

ption of the ac

enile board mu
from using juv

pation by juve
ss the researc
ts:  

ust promulga
include medic

tudies must a

proved by the
prior to comme

s to 37 T

adopt written 

st adopt writte
wing provisions

osecution pol

deferred pros

ned after obta

on total paren

his/her design
r of deferred p

ot be imposed
he deferred pr

obation depar
must, at a mini

onsibility, and

searches in ac

ncluding disq

nts including t

interns meet 

and intern act
og which iden

tern;  

g and ending)

contacted/serv

ctivity/service 

ust adopt a p
veniles for me

niles in medic
ch study is ap

te approved p
cally invasive 

adhere to all a

e juvenile boa
encement of t

TAC Chap

personnel po

en departmen
s:  

icy must, at a

secution case

ining a financ

nt/guardian inc

nee must app
prosecution fe

d if the juven
rosecution fee

rtment has or
imum, adopt t

d accountabil

ccordance wi

qualification b

training on re

minimum pro

tivity involving
ntifies: 

) of the activit

ved; and  

the volunteer

olicy that, at a
edical, pharm

cal, psycholog
pproved in wri

policies that g
 procedures m

applicable pol

ard must be re
the study.  

pter 341 

  

olicies.  

t policies and

a minimum, in

es is $15.00 p

cial statement

come.  

prove in writin
ees.  

ile board doe
e.  

r develops a v
the following 

ity of voluntee

ith the require

based on crim

eporting abuse

ofessional req

g contact with

ty;  

r/intern provid

a minimum, p
maceutical, or 

gical, pharma
iting by the ju

govern all aut
must be proh

icies of the a

eported to TJJ

d procedures. 

nclude the foll

per month.  

t from the par

ng the fee ass

s not adopt a

volunteer or 
policies for th

ers and intern

ements set fo

minal history; 

e, exploitation

quirements if 

h juveniles to 

ded.  

prohibits a de
cosmetic 

aceutical, or c
venile board 

thorized resea
ibited.  

uthorizing juv

JD in a forma

 

These 

lowing 

rent or 

sessed 

a fee 

he 

ns who 

orth in 

n, and 

serving 

be 

partment 

cosmetic 
subject 

arch 

venile 

at 

167



 

§
U
c

§
(

(

 

§
T
c

 

§
T
c

(D

(E

(5)     Ze
to

(A

(B

(C

 

§341.4 
Unless expres
chapter may b

 

§341.9 
a)  The chie

juvenile
departm
juvenile

b)  The chie
procedu
this revi

§341.10 
The chief adm
coordination g

§341.35 
The following 
clearly indicat

(1)  C
th
st
ad
of
S
im

(2)  C
pr
re

(3)  C
(r
re

Pr

D)     After rec
must pro

E)     Policies 
subjects

ero-Toleranc
olerance polic

A) strictly p
departm

B) establish
and TJJD

C) provide f

Waiver or V

ssly prohibited
be submitted 

Policy and P

ef administrat
e probation de
ment as adopt
e probation de

ef administrat
ure manual, re
iew, and upda

Participatio

ministrative off
group pursuan

Definitions 

words or term
tes otherwise

Case Plan--A 
he supervision
tatus and circ
ddresses a ju
f re-offending
trategies for J

mpact stateme

Case Plan Rev
rogress, inclu
esources.  

Courtesy Sup
receiving coun
eceiving coun

roposed 

ceiving a requ
ovide TJJD w

governing res
 and confiden

ce for Sexual
cies and proce

rohibit all sex
ent staff;  

h the actions d
D-confirmed i

for administra

Variance to S

d by another 
in accordanc

Procedure M

tive officer mu
epartment, wh
ted by the juv
epartment pra

tive officer mu
eview the ma
ate the manua

n in Commu

ficer or his/he
nt to Texas G

ms, when use
. 

written docum
n of the juven
cumstances o
uvenile's need
g, level of sup
Juvenile Supe
ents utilizing a

view--A writte
uding the reas

pervision--A r
nty) requestin

nty.  

Revision

uest from TJJ
ith the written

search studie
ntiality. 

l Abuse. The
edures regard

xual abuse of 

department s
incidents of s

ative and/or c

tandards 

standard, an 
e with §349.2

Manual 

ust develop, m
hich must incl
venile board. T
actice conform

ust provide al
anual at least 
al as necessa

nity Resourc

er designee m
Government C

ed in this subc

ment that sets
nile court in or
ver time. The

ds (e.g., educ
ervision, stren
ervision findin
all appropriat

en document 
ssessment an

request from 
ng supervision

s to 37 T

D, the juvenil
n results of a c

es must adher

e juvenile boa
ding sexual ab

juveniles und

staff must take
exual abuse; 

riminal discip

application fo
200 of this title

maintain, and
ude the polic
The chief adm

ms to the polic

ll employees 
once every 3
ary. 

ce Coordinat

must serve as 
Code §531.05

chapter, have

s out actions a
rder to make c
e case plan is 
ational, family
ngths and we
ngs if any, pre
e resources. 

that reviews 
nd reevaluatio

one Texas co
n for an adjud

TAC Chap

e board chair
completed re

re to all feder

rd departmen
buse. The po

der the jurisdi

e in response
and 

plinary sanctio

or waiver or v
e. 

d enforce a po
ies and proce

ministrative of
cies and proc

with a copy o
65 calendar d

tion Groups

the liaison to
5. 

e the following

and goals for
changes nece
 developed fo
y, substance 

eaknesses, an
eliminary inve
 

and measure
on of the juven

ounty (sendin
dicated juveni

pter 341 

  

r or the chief 
search study

ral requiremen

nt must adopt
olicies and pro

ction of the d

e to allegation

ons. 

variance of an

olicy and proc
edures of the 
fficer must als

cedures detail

of or access to
days, maintai

o the local com

g meanings u

r a juvenile to 
essary to bes
or each adjud
abuse, menta

ny appropriate
estigation info

es the initial c
nile's status, 

ng county) to a
ile who is or w

administrative
. 

nts governing

t and enforce 
ocedures mus

epartment by

ns of sexual a

ny standard in

cedure manua
juvenile prob

so ensure the
ed in the man

o the policy a
n documenta

mmunity reso

nless the con

follow while u
st meet the juv
dicated juveni
al health, etc.
e intake infor

ormation, and 

case plan's go
circumstance

another Texa
will be residin

 

e officer 

g human 

zero-
st:  

y 

buse 

n this 

al for the 
bation 
e daily 
nual.  

nd 
ation of 

ource 

ntext 

under 
venile's 
le and 
.), risks 
mation, 
victim 

oals for 
es, and 

as county 
g in the 

168



 

§
(

(

(

(

 

(4)  E
po
T
ju

(5)  F
§5
re

(6)  F
(A

(B

(C

(7)  R
C
ho

(8)  S
re

(9)  S
pr
th

(10)  T
w

 

§341.36 
a)  TJJD S

who rec
has bee
departm

b)  Time of
(1)  R

th
ju

(2)  R

(A

(B

c)  Admini
trained 

d)  Reports
and any
under §

Pr

xit Plan--A w
ost-supervisio
he purpose o

uvenile's famil

ield Supervis
54.04(d)(1)(A
elative or anot

ormal Referr

A)  delinque
allegedly

B)  the juven

C)  either a f
or written
juvenile 

Residential Pl
Code §54.04(d

ome or a pub

ubstitute Ca
esidential serv

upervision--
robation office

he juvenile, th

JJD Standar
who may have

Screening 

Standard Scre
ceive a forma
en completed 
ment is not req

f Screening. 
Referrals With
han 14 calend
uvenile probat

Referrals With

A)  The TJJ
detention

B)  The TJJ
juvenile 

stration of In
to administer

s to TJJD. Th
y other inform
§341.49 of this

roposed 

written docum
on reintegratio
of the exit plan
ly after proba

sion--Superv
A) where the c
ther fit person

ral--Occurs a

ent conduct, c
y committed; 

nile probation

face-to-face c
n or verbal au
board.  

lacement--Su
d)(1)(B) where
blic or private 

are Provider-
vices to juven

Supervision i
er or designe

he juvenile's fa

rd Screening
e mental healt

eening Tool.
l referral to th
within the pre

quired to com

 

hout Detentio
dar days after
tion officer.  

h Detention. 

D Standard S
n.  

D Standard S
is admitted in

nstrument. T
r the instrume

he summary s
mation required
s chapter.  

Revision

ent develope
on and specif
n is to facilitat
tion supervisi

vision ordered
child is placed
n.  

nd should be 

conduct indica
 

n department 

contact occur
uthorization to

upervision ord
e the juvenile
institution or 

-A foster hom
niles.  

nvolves the c
e through con
amily, and oth

g Tool--An ins
th needs. 

 The TJJD St
he juvenile pro
evious two we

mplete an add

on. The TJJD
r the date of th

 

Screening Too

Screening Too
nto detention. 

The TJJD Stan
ent.  

scores of all j
d by TJJD mu

s to 37 T

d for each juv
fies the comm
te a continuum
ion ends.  

d by a juvenile
d on probation

counted whe

ating a need f

has jurisdictio

rs with the offi
o detain is giv

dered by a juv
 is placed on 
agency.  

me or a public 

case managem
ntacts (face-to
her case plan

strument prov

tandard Scree
obation depar
eeks and is c
itional screen

D Standard Sc
he first face-to

ol must be ad

ol must be ad
 

ndard Screen

uveniles scre
ust be electro

TAC Chap

venile that ide
munity resourc
m of commun

e court in acco
n in the child's

en all three of

for supervisio

on and venue

ice or official 
ven by the off

venile court in
probation ou

 or private ins

ment of a juv
o-face, teleph

nning participa

vided by TJJD

ening Tool m
rtment. If the 

contained in th
ning.  

creening Too
o-face contac

dministered to

dministered w

ning Tool mus

eened using th
onically report

pter 341 

  

entifies the juv
ces available
nity services t

ordance with 
s home or in 

f the following

n, or a violati

e; and  

designated b
fice or official 

n accordance
utside the child

stitution or ag

enile by the a
hone, office, h
ants.  

D to assist in i

ust be comple
TJJD Standa
he juvenile's c

ol must be adm
ct between th

o each juvenil

within 48 hours

st be administ

he TJJD Stan
ted to TJJD o

venile's need
 to meet thos
o the juvenile

Texas Family
the custody o

g conditions e

on of probatio

by the juvenile
designated b

e with Texas F
d's home in a

gency that pro

assigned juve
home, collate

dentifying juv

eted for all juv
ard Screening
case record, t

ministered no
e juvenile and

e admitted in

s after the tim

tered by an in

ndard Screen
on a monthly b

 

s for 
se needs. 
e and the 

y Code 
of a 

exist:  

on was 

e board 
by the 

Family 
a foster 

ovides 

enile 
ral) with 

veniles 

veniles 
g Tool 
the 

o later 
d a 

to 

me the 

ndividual 

ing Tool 
basis 

169



 

§
I
fo
s

 

§
(

(

§
(

§341.37 
n accordance
for juveniles a
sentence prob

§341.38 
a)  Initial C

(1)  de
su

(2) de

(3)  sig
pro

(4)  ma
gu

b)  Case P
(1)  Ca

(A)

(B)

(C

(2)  Th
cu

(3)  Th

(A)

(B)

(C

(D

(E)

(F)

(4)  All
cu

(5)  Co
to 

 

§341.39 
a)  Initial C

(1)  be

(2)  be
su

(3)  co

Pr

Case Plann

e with §341.38
assigned to pr
bation under T

Field Super

Case Plan. Th

veloped in co
pervising juve

veloped withi

gned and date
obation office

aintained in th
ardian, or cus

lan Review. 
ase plans mus

) at least on

)  within 15 c

)  within 15 c
supervisio

he juvenile; th
stodian must 

he case plan r

)  appropriate

)  extent of th

)  extent of th

)  extent of p

)  a projectio

)  services as
needs.  

 case plan re
stodian; and t

opies of every
the juvenile a

Residential 

Case Plan. Th

 developed a

 developed in
bstitute care 

ntain specific

roposed 

ing 

8 or §341.39 
rogressive sa
Texas Family

rvision 

he initial case

onsultation wit
enile probatio

in 60 calenda

ed by the juve
r; and any int

he juvenile's c
stodian.  

st be reviewe

ce every six m

calendar days

calendar days
n.  

e supervising
participate in

review must d

eness of the j

he juvenile's c

he juvenile's c

progress towa

on of a likely d

ssessed, offe

views must b
the juvenile's 

y case plan re
and the juveni

Placement 

he initial case

nd implemen

n consultation
provider; and

c behavioral g

Revision

of this chapte
nctions levels

y Code §54.04

e plans for juv

th the juvenile
on officer; and

ar days after th

enile; the juve
terested partie

case file with 

d and update

months;  

s after a juven

s after accepta

g juvenile prob
n the review p

document the 

juvenile's cur

compliance w

compliance w

ard the goals o

date the juven

ered, or provid

be signed and
supervising j

eview must be
ile's parent, g

e plans for juv

ted within 30 

n with the juve
d the supervis

oals using the

s to 37 T

er, a written c
s three throug
4(q). 

veniles placed

e's parent, gu
d any other int

he date of the

enile's parent,
es; and  

copies provid

ed:  

nile's probatio

ance of a juve

bation officer;
process.  

following:  

rent level of s

with the individ

with the condit

outlined in the

nile is expecte

ded to the juv

d dated by the
juvenile proba

e maintained 
guardian, or c

veniles placed

calendar day

enile's parent,
ing juvenile p

e nine domain

TAC Chap

case plan mus
gh five and an

d on field supe

uardian, or cu
terested parti

e juvenile's di

, guardian, or 

ded to the juve

on is modified

enile's case f

; and at least 

supervision an

dualized case

tions of proba

e case plan; 

ed to complet

venile and fam

e juvenile; the
ation officer. 

in the juvenile
ustodian. 

d in residentia

ys after the ju

, guardian, or
probation offic

ns outlined in

pter 341 

  

st be develop
ny juvenile giv

ervision must

stodian; the j
ies;  

isposition;  

r custodian; su

enile and the 

 by a court or

from another c

one parent, g

nd services;  

e plan;  

ation;  

te probation; a

mily to addres

e juvenile's pa

e's case file w

al placement m

venile's initia

r custodian; th
cer;  

n 1 TAC §351

ped and imple
ven determina

t be:  

uvenile; the 

upervising juv

juvenile's pa

rder; and  

county for co

guardian, or 

and  

s identified ris

arent, guardia

with copies pr

must:  

l date of place

he juvenile; th

.13;  

 

emented 
ate 

venile 

rent, 

urtesy 

sks and 

n, or 

rovided 

ement;  

he 

170



 

(

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
T
c

(4)  be
pro

(5)  be
gu

b)  Case P
(1)  Ca

(2)  Th
wit

(3)  Th
six

(4)  Th
the

(5)  Ca
the

(6)  Co

 

§341.40 
a)  The juve

juvenile

b)  The leve

c)  A minim
the case

§341.41 
a)  A writte

b)  An exit 
probatio

c)  The writ
custodia

d)  The exit
the supe

e)  The orig

f)  Copies 

§341.65 
The following 
clearly indicat

(1)  A
te
bo
m

(2)  A
m

Pr

 signed by th
obation office

 retained in th
ardian, or cus

lan Review. 

ase plans mus

he juvenile an
th the substitu

he case plan r
x-point scale o

he outcome of
e child is prog

ase plan revie
e supervising 

opies of every

Level of Sup

enile probatio
e's level of sup

el of supervis

mum of one fa
e plan. 

Exit Plan 

n exit plan m

plan is to be 
on, unless the

tten exit plan 
an; and the su

t plan must be
ervising juven

ginal exit plan

of the exit pla

Definition

words and te
tes otherwise

Approved Phy
echnique that 
ody movemen

must be appro

Approved Me
manufactured 

roposed 

e juvenile; the
r; and  

he juvenile's c
stodian; and t

st be reviewe

d at least one
ute care provi

reviews must 
outlined in 1 T

f the substitut
gressing in 50

ews must be s
juvenile prob

y case plan re

pervision 

on departmen
pervision whil

sion must be i

ace-to-face-co

ust be develo

provided at a
e juvenile was

must be deve
upervising juv

e signed and 
nile probation

n must be filed

an must be pr

s 

erms, when us
.  

ysical Restra
uses a perso
nt without the
ved for use b

chanical Res
mechanical d

Revision

e juvenile's pa

case file with 
the substitute

d and update

e parent, guar
ider and the j

measure the 
TAC §351.13

te care provid
0 percent or m

signed by the 
bation officer. 

eview must be

nt must adopt 
le under field 

ncluded in th

ontact per mo

oped prior to t

 date no later
s committed to

eloped in con
venile probati

dated by the
 officer.  

d in the juven

rovided to the

sed in this su

aint Techniqu
on's physical e
e use of mech
by TJJD and a

straint Devic
device to aid i

s to 37 T

arent, guardia

copies provid
e care provide

ed at least onc

rdian, or custo
uvenile's sup

juvenile's pro
.  

der's service d
more of identif

juvenile; the 
 

e retained in t

written criteri
supervision. 

e juvenile's w

onth with the j

the juvenile's 

r than the date
o TJJD.  

nsultation with
on officer.  

 juvenile; the 

ile's case file

e juvenile and

bchapter, hav

ue ("physica
exertion to co

hanical restrai
adopted by th

ces ("mechan
n the restricti

TAC Chap

an, or custodi

ded to the juv
er.  

ce every 90 c

odian must p
pervising juven

ogress toward

delivery must
fied goals.  

juvenile's par

the juvenile's 

ia the departm
 

written case p

uvenile is ma

scheduled re

e the juvenile

h the juvenile;

juvenile's pa

.  

 the juvenile's

ve the followin

al restraint")-
ompletely or p
ints. The app

he juvenile bo

nical restrain
ion of a perso

pter 341 

  

ian; and the ju

venile; the juv

calendar days

articipate in t
nile probation

d meeting his

be assessed

rent, guardian

case file. 

ment will use 

lan.  

andatory unles

elease from p

e successfully

; the juvenile's

rent, guardian

s parent, gua

ng meanings 

--A profession
partially const
roved physica
ard.  

nt")--A profes
on's bodily mo

uvenile's supe

enile's parent

s.  

he case plan 
n officer.  

s/her goals us

d based on wh

n, or custodia

to determine 

ss otherwise 

robation.  

y completes 

s parent, gua

n, or custodia

rdian, or cust

unless the co

nally trained r
train another 
al restraint tec

ssionally 
ovement. The

 

ervising 

t, 

review 

sing the 

hether 

an; and 

a 

noted in 

ardian, or 

an; and 

todian. 

ontext 

restraint 
person's 
chnique 

e 

171



 

§
T

§
R

ap
fo

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(3)  R

 

§341.66 
The use of res

(1)  re

(2)  pr

(A

(B

(3)  re
pr

(4)  re

(5)  on

(6)  re
ot

(7)  re
se

 

§341.67 
Restraints tha

(1)  re

(2)  re
fo

(3)  re

(4)  re
ca

(5)  re

(6)  re
pl

(7)  re

(8)  re

Pr

pproved mec
ollowing are T

A)  Ankle C
restrain f

B)  Anklets-

C)  Handcu
of the ha

D)  Plastic C
moveme

E)  Waist B
secure th

F)  Wristlet
be secur

Restraints--Ph

Requiremen

straints is gov

estraints may 

rior to particip

A)  certified 

B)  trained in

estraints may 
roperty dama

estraints may 

nly the amoun

estraints must
thers; and  

estraints must
elf-injury, inju

Prohibitions

at employ a te

estraints used

estraints that 
ood, and cloth

estraints that 

estraints that 
avity;  

estraints that 

estraints that 
laces anythin

estraints that 

estraints that 

roposed 

hanical restra
TJJD-approve

Cuffs--Metal, c
free moveme

--Cloth or lea

ffs--Metal de
ands and arm

Cuffs--Plastic
ent of hands, a

and--A cloth,
he arms to th

s--A cloth or 
red to a waist

hysical or me

nts 

verned by the

be used only

pating in any r

in the use of 

n the use of a

be used only
age;  

only be used

nt of force an

t be implemen

t be terminate
ry to others, o

s 

echnique liste

d for punishm

deprive the ju
hing;  

are intended 

put a juvenile

put a juvenile

obstruct the a
g in, on, or ov

restrict the juv

obstruct the v

Revision

aint must be a
ed mechanica

cloth, or leath
ent of the legs

ther band des

vices designe
ms;  

c devices des
arms, or legs

 leather, or m
e sides or fro

leather band 
t belt.  

chanical restr

e following crit

y by juvenile p

restraint, juve

the approved

all approved m

y in instances 

d only as a las

d type of rest

nted in such a

ed as soon as
or serious pro

d in this secti

ent, discipline

uvenile of bas

to inflict pain

e face down w

e face down w

airway or imp
ver the juveni

venile's ability

view of the juv

s to 37 T

approved by T
l restraint dev

her band desig
s;  

signed to be f

ed to be faste

signed to be fa
;  

metal band de
ont of the body

designed to b

raint. 

teria:  

probation offic

enile probation

d physical res

mechanical re

of threat of im

st resort;  

traint necessa

a way as to p

s the juvenile'
operty damag

on are prohib

e, retaliation, 

sic human nec

;  

with sustained

with pressure 

air the breath
ile’s mouth or

y to communi

venile's face; 

TAC Chap

TJJD and ado
vices:  

gned to be fa

fastened arou

ened around t

astened arou

esigned to be 
y; and  

be fastened a

cers;  

n officers mu

straint techniq

estraint device

mminent self-

ary to control 

protect the hea

's behavior in
ge has subsid

bited:  

harassment, 

cessities inclu

d or excessive

on the neck o

hing of the juv
r nose;  

icate;  

 

pter 341 

  

opted by the j

astened aroun

und the ankle

the wrist to re

und the wrist o

fastened arou

around the wr

st be:  

que; and  

es;  

-injury, injury 

the situation 

alth and safet

ndicates that t
ed. 

compliance, 

uding restroo

e pressure on

or head;  

venile, includi

uvenile board

nd the ankle to

e or leg;  

estrain free mo

or legs to rest

und the waist

rist or arm tha

to others, or s

may be used

ty of the juven

the threat of im

or intimidatio

m privileges, 

n the back or c

ng a procedu

 

d. The 

o 

ovement 

train free 

t used to 

at may 

serious 

d;  

nile and 

mminent 

n;  

water, 

chest 

ure that 

172



 

§
D
t
m

§
I
b

 

§
I
g

(9)  an
ph

(10)  pe

 

§341.68 
Documentati
he document
minimum: 

(1)  na

(2)  na

(3)  da

(4)  du

(5)  lo

(6)  de

(7)  be

(8)  ty

(9)  ef

(10)  an

 

§341.69 
n addition to t
be re-certified

§341.70 
n addition to t
governed by t

(1)  R

(A

(B

(2)  P

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

 

Pr

ny technique 
hysical distre

ercussive or e

Documenta

on. Except a
tation must be

ame of the ju

ame(s) and ti

ate of the res

uration of the

ocation of the 

escription of p

ehavior that p

ype of restrain

fforts made to

ny injury that 

Physical Re

the requireme
d in the approv

Mechanical 

the requireme
the following c

Requirements

A)  Mechani

B)  There m

rohibitions. 

A)  Mechani

B)  A juvenil
period of

C)  A mecha
and/or h

D)  Mechani
so loose

E)  Mechani

F)  A juvenil

G)  Plastic c

roposed 

that does not
ss during the 

electrical sho

tion 

s provided by
e maintained.

venile;  

tle(s) of staff 

traint;  

 restraint incl

restraint;  

preceding act

prompted the 

nt applied;  

o de-escalate

occurred dur

estraint 

ents in §§341
ved physical 

Restraint 

ents in §§341
criteria: 

s.  

ical restraints

ust be provis

 

ical restraint d

le must not be
f time longer 

anical restrain
ands behind 

ical restraint d
ely as to cause

ical restraint d

le in mechani

cuffs may be u

Revision

t require the m
restraint; and

cking devices

y §341.71(a) o
 Written docu

members wh

uding notatio

tivities;  

restraint;  

 the situation 

ring the restra

.66, 341.67, 
restraint tech

.66, 341.67, 

s must only be

ions for the in

devices must 

e placed face
than necessa

nt must not se
his/her back a

devices must 
e chafing of th

devices must 

cal restraints

used only in e

s to 37 T

monitoring of 
d  

s. 

of this chapte
umentation re

ho administere

n of the time 

and alternati

aint. 

and 341.68 o
nique at least

and 341.68 o

e used in a m

nspection and

not be altere

e down while r
ary to apply th

ecure a juven
and secured 

not be secur
he skin.  

not be secur

 must not par

emergency sit

TAC Chap

the juvenile's

er, all restraint
egarding the u

ed the restrai

the restraint b

ives to restrai

of this chapter
t once every 

of this chapter

anner consis

d maintenanc

ed from the m

restrained in 
he restraint de

ile in a prone 
to his/her leg

red so tightly a

red to a statio

rticipate in an

tuations. 

pter 341 

  

s respiration a

ts must be ful
use of restrain

nt;  

began and en

int that were a

r, juvenile pro
two years. 

r, the use of m

tent with their

ce of mechani

anufacturer's

any mechani
evices.  

 position with
gs.  

as to interfere

onary object.  

ny physical ac

and other sign

lly documente
nts must inclu

nded;  

attempted; an

obation officer

mechanical re

r intended us

cal restraint d

s design.  

cal restraint f

h the juvenile’s

e with circulat

ctivity.  

 

ns of 

ed and 
ude, at a 

nd  

rs must 

estraint is 

e.  

devices.  

for a 

s arms 

tion nor 

173



 

§
(

(

(

 

§
T
c

 

§
(

(

§341.71 
a)  Using m

custody

b)  During t

c)  During t

§341.80 
The following 
clearly indicat

(1)  D
(2)  E

an
fo

(3)  In
T
fo
co
re

(4)  O
w
be
of

§341.81 
a)  Applica

authoriz

b)  Author

(1)  In
au

(A)

(B)

(C

(D

(2) In
T
fir

(3)  T

(4)  A
C
in
th

Pr

Transportin

mechanical re
y are not requ

transportation

transportation

Definitions 

words and te
tes otherwise

Draw--To unho

mpty-Hand D
nd blocking a

orearm, knee,

ntermediate W
his level of se

orce is not jus
onfrontation. 
estraint device

On-Duty--An o
within the cour

eing performe
fficer's duties

Applicability

ability. This s
zed to carry a

ization to Ca

n accordance 
uthorized to c

)  the juven
departme

)  the chief j
juvenile p
course of

)  the juven
Commiss
and 

) the juven
or exploita

n accordance 
COLE’s curre
rearm in the c

his subchapte

A license obtai
Concealed Ha
n the course o
he requiremen

roposed 

ng 

straints durin
ired to be doc

n in a vehicle,

n in a vehicle,

erms, when us
. 

olster a weap

Defense--Def
and striking te

 or leg. 

Weapons--W
elf-defense em
stified but whe
For the purpo
es, irritants, a

officer is enga
rse and scope
ed. Being on-
 unless or un

y and Autho

subchapter ap
a firearm purs

arry a Firearm

with §142.00
carry a firearm

ile probation o
ent described 

juvenile proba
probation offic
f the officer's o

ile probation o
sion on Law E

ile probation o
ation investig

with §221.35
ent firearms tr
course of the 

er does not a

ined under Ch
ndgun Licens

of the officer's
nts contained

Revision

g routine tran
cumented as 

, the juvenile 

, a juvenile m

sed in this su

pon in prepara

fensive tactic
chniques usin

Weapons desig
mploys the us
en empty-han
oses of this su
and impact we

aged in the ac
e of his/her em
call is not con
til the officer 

rization 

pplies only to 
uant to this su

m. 

06 of the Texa
m during the c

officer has be
in subparagra

ation officer o
cer authorizes
official duties

officer posses
Enforcement (

officer has no
ation. 

5 of this title, a
raining progra
officer's offici

uthorize a juv

hapter 411, S
se), does not 
s official duties
 in this subch

s to 37 T

nsportation in 
a restraint.  

may not be a

ay not be sec

bchapter, hav

ation for use a

s through the
ng natural bo

gned to neutr
se of tools to 
nd defense is 
ubchapter, int
eapons. 

ctual discharg
mployment an
nsidered as b
is actually ca

actively certif
ubchapter. 

as Human Re
course of the 

een employed
aph (B) of this

of the juvenile
s the juvenile 
;  

sses a certific
TCOLE) unde

ot been desig

a juvenile pro
am for juvenile
ial duties. 

venile probatio

Subchapter H
enable a cert
s and does no

hapter. 

TAC Chap

a vehicle and

affixed to any 

cured to anoth

ve the followin

against a perc

e use of press
dy weapons s

ralize or temp
neutralize ag
not sufficient 
termediate we

ge of the offic
nd is actually 
being engaged
lled into servi

fied juvenile p

esources Cod
officer's offici

d for at least o
s paragraph; 

e probation de
probation off

cate of firearm
er §1701.259

nated a perpe

bation officer
e probation o

on officer to c

, of the Texas
tified juvenile 
ot satisfy, and

pter 341 

  

d the taking o

part of the ve

her juvenile. 

ng meanings 

ceived threat.

sure points, re
such as an op

porarily incapa
gressive beh
for escaping

eapons includ

er's duties wh
authorized to
d in the actua
ice. 

probation offic

e, a juvenile 
ial duties if: 

one year by th
 

epartment tha
ficer to carry a

ms proficiency
9 of the Texas

etrator in a TJ

r must succes
officers to be a

carry a firearm

s Governmen
probation off

d may not be 

of a juvenile in

ehicle.  

unless the co

. 

eleases from 
pen hand, fist

acitate an ass
avior when de
 from a physi
de only electr

hen the office
o engage in th
al discharge o

cers who are 

probation offi

he juvenile pr

at employs the
a firearm in th

y issued by th
s Occupations

JJD abuse, n

ssfully comple
authorized to 

m while not on

nt Code (i.e., 
ficer to carry a
accepted in l

 

nto 

ontext 

holds, 
t, 

sailant. 
eadly 
cal 
ronic 

er is 
he work 
of the 

cer is 

robation 

e 
he 

he Texas 
s Code; 

eglect, 

ete 
carry a 

n duty. 

a firearm 
lieu of, 

174



 

§
(

(

§
A

 

§341.82 
a) Docum

after ob
the supe
followin

(1) a 

(2) a 
O

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

b) Docum
after rec
officer o
the follo

(1) a 

(2) a 
P

(3) ve
th

 

§341.83 
A juvenile pro

(1)  co
an

(2)  be

(3)  im
or

(4)  co

(5)  m

(6)  be

Pr

Documenta

ents Require
btaining the in
ervising office
g documents

copy of the J

completed, s
Officer to Carry

A) appropri
local, sta

B)  written d
applican
that the a
employin
Psycholo

C)  a written
psycholo
duties;  

D) documen
juvenile 

E)  documen
hand def

F)  documen
intermed

ents Require
ceiving a rene
or the supervi
owing docume

copy of the r

completed, s
robation Offic

erification of s
his chapter. 

Responsibi

bation officer

omply with th
nd the laws o

e knowledgea

mmediately re
r convicted of

omply with all

maintain the fir

e responsible

roposed 

tion Require

ed after Obta
itial firearms 
er of the juven
 to TJJD: 

Juvenile Prob

signed, and no
y Firearm form

ate documen
ate, and natio

documentation
t's participatio
applicant has
ng departmen
ogists;  

n declaration f
ogical and em

ntation of suc
probation offi

ntation of suc
fense tactic, a

ntation of suc
diate weapon,

ed after Obta
ewal of a firea
sing officer of
ents to TJJD: 

enewed Juve

signed, and no
cer to Carry F

successful co

lities of a Ju

r who is autho

e requiremen
of this State an

able of the pla

eport to the ch
f any criminal

l training, firea

rearm and all 

e for the safe 

Revision

ements  

aining an Init
proficiency ce
nile probation

ation Officer 

otarized copy
m, including t

tation that the
onal records to

n from each c
on in the juve
s been examin
nt and who is 

from the exam
motional health

ccessful comp
cers; 

ccessful comp
as required by

ccessful comp
, as required 

aining Renew
arms proficien
f the juvenile 

enile Probatio

otarized copy
Firearm form;

ompletion of 2

venile Proba

orized to carry

nts of this sub
nd of the Unit

aces where fi

hief juvenile p
 offense; 

arms proficien

other author

handling of th

s to 37 T

tial Firearms
ertificate from
n officer who r

Firearms Prof

y of TJJD’s Ve
the following r

e applicant ha
o disclose any

chief juvenile 
enile probation
ned by a psyc
licensed by t

mining psycho
h to carry a fi

pletion of TCO

pletion of at le
y §341.84 of 

pletion of adeq
by §341.84 o

wed Firearms
ncy certificate
probation off

n Officer Fire

y of TJJD’s Re
and 

20 hours of co

ation Officer 

y a firearm in 

chapter, the o
ted States; 

rearms or oth

probation offic

ncy, and certi

ized weapons

he firearm and

TAC Chap

s Proficiency
m TCOLE, the 
received the c

ficiency Certi

erification of E
required attac

as been subje
y criminal rec

probation offi
n officer firear
chologist who
he Texas Sta

ologist that th
rearm in the c

OLE’s current

east 20 hours
this chapter; 

quate training
of this chapter

s Proficiency
e from TCOLE
ficer who rece

earms Proficie

enewal of Ve

ontinuing educ

Authorized t

accordance w

officer's depa

her weapons 

cer and TJJD

ification requi

s in proper wo

d all other aut

pter 341 

  

y Certificate. 
 chief juvenile
certificate mu

ficate from TC

Eligibility for J
chments: 

ected to a com
cord or crimin

icer who has 
rms proficienc

o was selecte
ate Board of E

he officer poss
course of the 

t firearms train

 of training in
and 

g in the use o
r. 

y Certificate.
E, the chief ju
eives the certi

ency Certifica

rification of E

cation, as req

to Carry a Fi

with this subc

artment policie

are prohibited

if the officer i

irements of §

orking order a

thorized wea

Within five w
e probation of

ust provide the

COLE; and 

Juvenile Prob

mplete search
al history; 

authorized th
cy training pro
d by the curre

Examiners of 

sesses the re
officer's offic

ning program

 the use of an

of at least one

. Within five w
venile probat
ificate must p

te from TCOL

Eligibility for Ju

quired in §341

irearm 

chapter must:

es and proced

d; 

is arrested, ch

221.35 of this

at all times; 

pons; and 

 

orkdays 
fficer or 
e 

bation 

h of 

he 
ogram 
ent 

equisite 
cial 

m for 

n empty-

e 

workdays 
tion 
provide 

LE;  

uvenile 

1.89 of 

 

dures, 

harged, 

s title; 

175



 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
E
w

(7)  st
w

 

§341.84 
a)  A juven

the prot

b)  Prior to 
carry a 

(1)  re

(2)  re

c)  A juven
weapon

§341.85 
a)  The chie

authoriz
in accor
or other

b)  The chie
departm

c)  The chie
TJJD w

d)  The chie
policies
accorda

e)  The chie
incident
interme

f)  The chie
on adm
juvenile
or disch
conclus

§341.86 
Each chief juv
with the requir

(1)  de

(2)  st
of

(3)  re
au

(4)  re

(5)  re
of

Pr

tore the firear
weapon when 

Use of Forc

ile probation 
tection of pers

carrying a fire
firearm in acc

eceive at leas

eceive adequa

ile probation 
n at all times w

Responsibi

ef juvenile pro
zed to carry a
rdance with th
r supervising 

ef juvenile pro
ment rescinds

ef juvenile pro
ithin 24 hours

ef juvenile pro
 and procedu

ance with this

ef juvenile pro
ts in which a j
diate weapon

ef juvenile pro
inistrative lea

es if the office
harges a firea
sion of the inte

Written Poli

venile probatio
rements cont

efine which ju

tate whether t
fficer; 

equire that the
uthorized to c

equire that the

equire that the
fficer while ca

roposed 

rm and other w
the firearm o

ce Continuum

officer who sa
sons pursuan

earm in the c
cordance with

st 20 hours of 

ate training in

officer who is
when the offic

lities of Chie

obation office
a firearm is su
his subchapte
officer carry a

obation office
 its authorizat

obation office
s if an officer 

obation office
ures regarding
 subchapter. 

obation office
juvenile proba
n, or draws or

obation office
ave or reassig
r uses an em
rm. The adm
ernal investiga

icies and Pro

on officer who
ained in this s

uvenile probat

the firearm is 

e firearm and 
carry the firea

e firearm be f

e officer displ
arrying a firea

Revision

weapons in a
r other weapo

m 

atisfies the re
nt to Chapter 9

ourse of the o
h this subchap

training in the

n the use of at

s authorized to
cer carries a f

ef Juvenile P

er or the supe
bject to the s

er. This requir
a firearm or o

er or his/her d
tion for a juve

er or his/her d
who is author

er or his/her d
g a juvenile pr

er or his/her d
ation officer u
r discharges a

er or his/her d
gn him/her to a
pty-hand defe
inistrative lea
ation. 

ocedures 

o authorizes a
subchapter m

tion officers w

to be purcha

all other auth
arm and weap

fully loaded w

ay credentials
arm in accorda

s to 37 T

a secure, lock
on is not on th

equirements o
9 of the Texa

officer's dutie
pter must: 

e use of an e

t least one int

o carry a firea
firearm. 

robation Off

rvising officer
ame requirem
rement does n
ther weapon 

esignee must
enile probatio

esignee must
rized to carry 

esignee must
robation office

esignee must
uses an empty
a firearm. 

esignee must
a position hav
ense tactic, u

ave or reassig

a juvenile pro
must have writ

within the dep

ased and main

horized weap
pon(s); 

when carried o

s identifying t
ance with this

TAC Chap

ked location d
he officer's pe

of this subcha
as Penal Code

s, a juvenile p

mpty-hand de

termediate w

arm must carr

ficers or Othe

r of a juvenile
ments as an o
not mandate 
in the course

t notify TCOL
n officer to ca

t submit the r
a firearm sep

t submit to TJ
er's authoriza

t conduct an 
y-hand defen

t immediately
ving no conta
ses or draws 

gnment must b

obation officer
tten policies a

partment are a

ntained by the

ons remain u

or worn on-du

the officer as 
s subchapter;

pter 341 

  

esigned for s
erson. 

apter is justifie
e. 

probation offic

efense tactic;

eapon. 

ry at least one

er Supervisi

e probation off
officer authori
the chief juve

e of their dutie

LE and TJJD w
arry a firearm

requisite form
parates from 

JJD the depa
ation to carry 

internal inves
se tactic, draw

y place a juve
act with juven
 an intermedi
be implement

r to carry a fir
and procedure

authorized to 

e department

under the cont

uty; 

a certified juv
 

secure storage

ed in using for

cer authorize

 and 

e intermediat

ng Officer 

fficer who is 
zed to carry a

enile probatio
es. 

within 24 hou
. 

ms to TCOLE a
the departme

rtment's appr
a firearm in 

stigation in all
ws or uses an

enile probation
iles or relative
iate weapon, 
ted until the 

rearm in acco
es that: 

carry firearm

t or the individ

trol of the offi

venile probati

 

e of a 

rce for 

d to 

e 

a firearm 
n officer 

urs if the 

and 
ent. 

roved 

 
n 

n officer 
es of the 
or draws 

rdance 

ms; 

dual 

cer 

on 

176



 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

 

(6)  de
de

(7)  sp

(8)  sp

(9)  st

(10)  re
is

(11)  de

(12)  de

(13)  pr

(14)  de
w
w

(15)  re
po
in

 

§341.87 
a)  The chie

juvenile
interme

(1)  T
th

(2)  T

(3)  W
R

b)  The chie
of a fire
discharg

§341.88 
a)  The per

subchap

(1)  F

(2)  P

(3)  cr

(4)  L

(5)  pr

(6) ve
pr

b)  Juvenile
records

Pr

escribe the ci
efense and d

pecify the fire

pecify the typ

tate whether t

equire that the
s appropriate t

efine the proc

efine the proc

rohibit the con

efine the proc
which a juvenil
weapon, or dra

equire that a j
osition having

nternal investi

Reporting a

ef juvenile pro
e in which a ju
diate weapon

he initial repo
he use of forc

he initial repo

Within 24 hour
Report form m

ef juvenile pro
arm by a juve
ge. 

Records 

rsonnel file of
pter must con

irearms Profic

ID Assignme

riminal history

icensee Psyc

roof of annua

erification of s
robation office

e probation de
 pertaining to

roposed 

ircumstances
efense of a th

earms to be ca

e of ammunit

the firearm m

e firearm be e
to the situatio

cess for repor

cess for rescin

nsumption of 

cess for cond
le probation o
aws or discha

uvenile proba
g no contact w
gation as req

and Investiga

obation office
uvenile probat
n, or draws or

ort must be m
e incident. 

ort must be m

rs after the re
ust be submit

obation office
enile probatio

f each juvenile
ntain a copy o

ciency for Juv

nt (TCOLE C

y checks cond

chological and

al firearms pro

successful co
ers. 

epartments m
o firearms and

Revision

 and limitation
hird party purs

arried, includi

tion authorize

must be carried

encased in an
on; 

rting and inve

nding or susp

alcohol while

ucting an inte
officer uses an
arges a firearm

ation officer b
with juveniles 
quired in parag

ating Use of 

er or his/her d
tion officer us
r discharges a

ade to TJJD 

ade using the

port by phone
tted to TJJD v

er or his/her d
n officer imm

e probation of
of the: 

venile Probati

-1); 

ducted pursua

d Emotional H

oficiency; and

ompletion of T

must allow TC
d use of force 

s to 37 T

ns under whic
suant to Chap

ing the type o

ed for use in th

d in plain view

n appropriate 

estigating use 

pending the a

e carrying a fir

ernal investiga
n empty-hand
m; and 

e placed on a
or relatives o

graph (14) of 

Force Incide

esignee must
ses an empty-
a firearm. 

immediately, 

e toll-free num

e, the Juvenil
via fax or e-m

esignee must
ediately, but 

fficer authoriz

ion Officers A

ant to the req

Health Declara

 

TCOLE’s curre

COLE, other la
incidents for 

TAC Chap

ch the officer 
pter 9 of the T

of firearm, ma

he firearm; 

w or conceale

holster and b

 of force incid

uthorization t

rearm or inter

ation of each 
d defense tac

administrative
of the juvenile
f this section.

ents 

t report to TJJ
-hand defense

but no later t

mber as desig

e Probation O
mail. 

t report to loc
no later than 

zed to carry a

Application; 

quirements of 

ation (TCOLE

ent firearms t

aw enforceme
auditing and 

pter 341 

  

is justified to
Texas Penal 

anufacturer, m

ed; 

be worn or ca

dents; 

to carry a firea

rmediate wea

incident invo
ctic, draws or 

e leave or be 
es until the co

JD each incid
e tactic, draw

than four hou

gnated by TJJ

Officer Use of

cal law enforc
one hour afte

a firearm in ac

this subchap

E L-3);  

training progra

ent agencies, 
investigation

 use force (i.e
Code); 

model, and ca

rried in a man

arm; 

apon; 

lving a juveni
uses an inter

reassigned to
onclusion of a

dent involving
ws or uses an 

rs after the tim

JD.  

f Force Incide

cement any di
er the time of 

ccordance wit

pter; 

am for juveni

and TJJD ac
n purposes. 

 

e., self-

liber; 

nner that 

ile in 
rmediate 

o a 
n 

g a 

me of 

ent 

scharge 

th this 

le 

ccess to 

177



 

§
(

(

(

(

(

 

§
P
s
a

 

§
A
s

§341.89 
a)  A juven

the offic

(1)  co

(2)  re

(3)  co

b)  All train
approve

c)  All train
prepare
defense

d)  In addit
active c
in accor
years. T
relating 
authoriz

(1)  us

(2)  w

(3)  cr

e)  Upon co
submit p
the train

§341.90 
Pursuant to §
seeking autho
a TJJD abuse

§341.91 
A certified juv
strictly prohibi

(1)  fir

(2)  sh

(3)  us

Pr

Training an

ile probation 
cer has: 

ompleted TCO

eceived a cert

ompleted the 

ing received 
ed instructor. 

ing received 
e juvenile prob
e tactics in the

ion to the trai
certification as
rdance with th
The continuing

to the proficie
zed by this su

se of force; 

weapons reten

risis intervent

ompletion of e
proof of the s
ning. 

Disqualifyin

142.006(b) of
orization to ca
e, neglect, or e

Prohibited C

enile probatio
ited from eng

ring warning s

hooting at flee

sing a striking

roposed 

d Qualificati

officer may n

OLE’s current

tificate of firea

training requ

pursuant to th

pursuant to th
bation officers
e context of s

ning requirem
s a juvenile pr
his subchapte
g education m
ent and legal 

ubchapter. Th

ntion; and 

tion. 

each training 
uccessful com

ng Conduct 

f the Texas H
arry a firearm 
exploitation in

Conduct 

on officer auth
aging in the f

shots; 

eing vehicles

g weapon as 

Revision

on Requirem

ot be authoriz

t firearms trai

arms proficien

irements in a

he requireme

he requireme
s to carry and
elf-defense a

ments contain
robation office
er must succe
must be speci

use of a firea
e training mu

requirement,
mpletion of th

uman Resou
if the officer h

nvestigation.

horized to car
following cond

; and 

an intermedia

s to 37 T

ments 

zed to carry a

ining program

ncy from TCO

ccordance wi

nts of this sub

nts of this sub
d use firearms
and in defense

ed in Chapte
er, a juvenile 
essfully comp
ially designed
arm, empty-ha
st include, bu

 the chief juve
e training to T

rces Code, a 
has been nam

rry a firearm d
duct: 

ate weapon.

TAC Chap

a firearm in th

m for juvenile 

OLE as provid

ith §341.84 o

bchapter mus

bchapter mus
s, intermediat
e of a third pa

er 344 of this t
probation off
lete 20 hours
d to enhance 
and defense,
ut not be limite

enile probatio
TJJD within fi

 juvenile prob
med as a desi

during the cou

pter 341 

  

he course of h

probation offi

ded in §221.1

of this chapter

st be received

st be designe
te weapons, a
arty. 

title relating to
icer authorize

s of continuing
the officer's s
 and an interm
ed to: 

on officer or h
ive workdays 

bation officer 
ignated or su

urse of the off

his/her duties 

cers; 

 of this title; a

r. 

d from a TCO

d with the inte
and empty-ha

o maintaining
ed to carry a f
g education e
skills and kno
mediate weap

his/her design
after comple

is disqualified
stained perpe

ficer's official 

 

unless 

and 

OLE-

ent to 
and 

 an 
firearm 

every two 
wledge 
pon as 

ee must 
tion of 

d from 
etrator in 

duties is 

178



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 
 
§341.16
 
The chief 
HIV for an
Chapter 3
which HIV
 

Propo
Pub
Tex

341   Juv

6 Testing 

administrativ
ny juvenile de
349 of this title
V or any other

osed Rev
blic Safety a
xas Juvenile
venile Proba

ve officer shal
esignated as a
e, if the Comm
r sexually tran

visions to
and Correct
e Justice De
ation Depar

l make availa
a victim by the
mission deter
nsmitted disea

o Texas A
tions 
epartment 
rtment Gen

able testing fo
e Commissio
mines the vic
ase may be t

Administr

eral Standa

or sexually tra
n in an invest

ctim was sexu
ransmitted. 

rative Co

ards 

ansmitted dise
tigation condu

ually abused i

de 

eases includin
ucted under 
n a manner b

ng 

by 

179



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 341 AND 

THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §341.1 - §341.4, §341.9, §341.10, §341.16, §341.35 

- §341.41, §341.65 - §341.71, and §341.80 - §341.91 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapter 341 assigned to the 

Probation and Community Services Division in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends additional minor changes to the rules; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed, with changes as noted: 37 TAC §341.4, §341.9, §341.10, 

§341.16 (repeal), §341.35 - §341.41, §341.65 - §341.71, and §341.80 - §341.91. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

180



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Lisa Capers, Senior Director of Administration and Training 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 

341 and Chapter 344, and final adoption of the proposed rule review for 37 TAC 

Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.28, §341.29, and §344.800 

Date: January 10, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Administration and Training Division proposed 

revisions to assigned rules from Chapter 341 at the August 2013 Board meeting. The 

proposal also included moving the content of one rule to Chapter 344. The Board approved 

posting the revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  The staff has not recommended any additional changes. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed.  

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

181



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 341 Texas Juvenile Justice Department Standards (Proposed New Name: Juvenile Probation Department General Standards) 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, who is 
responsible for revisions and what is 

the projected timeline?)
SUBCHAPTER F: REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTIFIED OFFICERS 

341.28  Certification of Staff  Lists the positions that must 
maintain active certification. Lists 
other positions which may be 
certified. 

 Yes  Repeal §341.28 regarding 
Certification of Staff and add 
repealed language to Chapter 
344 (Certification), in §344.800. 

Ready for board adoption.  

341.29  Duties of Certified 
Juvenile Probation 
Officers 

Establishes the duties that may 
only be performed by certified 
juvenile probation officers.  Allows 
a six‐month period after the date 
of hire to obtain certification. 

Yes  Amend §341.29 to identify 
duties that must be performed 
by certified officers.  
 
Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 

 

182



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 
Subchap
 

 

§341.28
 
(a)  Indi
 

(1)  
 

(2)  
 

(3)  

 
(4)  

 
(5)  

 
(6)  

 
(7)  

 
(b)  Add

resp
 

(1)  
 

(2)  
 

(3)  

 
(c)  Juv

Juv
cert
Juv

 

Propo

341   
pter F  

8 Certifica

ividuals requi

Chief adm

Facility ad

Supervisor
supervisio

Juvenile p

Juvenile su

Youth activ

Any staff, e
administra
Program (J

ditional individ
ponsibility and

Quality ass

Juvenile p

Staff mem
Educationa

venile Supervi
venile Supervi
tification and 

venile Supervi

osed Rev
Public Sa
Texas Juv
Juvenile P
Requirem

ation of Staff

red to mainta

inistrative offi

ministrators;  

rs in the direc
n officers;  

robation office

upervision off

vities supervis

excluding cer
ation of intens
JJAEP).  

duals who ma
d essential jo

surance office

robation and 

ber responsib
al Program (J

ision Officers 
ision Officers 
employment 
ision Officer o

visions to
afety and Co
venile Justi
Probation D

ments For Ju

f 

ain an active c

icers;  

ct chain of com

ers;  

ficers;  

sors; and  

rtified physica
ive physical a

ay maintain an
b function is: 

er;  

supervision o

ble for superv
JJAEP).  

and Juvenile
and Juvenile
for both posit

or Juvenile Pr

o Texas A
orrections 
ice Departm
Department 
uvenile Pro

certification as

mmand over j

al education te
activity in a Ju

n active certif
 

officer trainer;

vision of youth

e Probation Of
e Probation Of
tions and thei
robation Offic

Administr

ment 
General St
bation Offic

s a condition 

juvenile proba

eachers, who
uvenile Justic

fication is limit

; and  

h in a Juvenile

fficers may be
fficers if they 
r job descript
er as defined

rative Co

tandards 
cers 

of employme

ation officers 

o participates 
ce Alternative 

ted to those w

e Justice Alte

e dually certif
meet all crite

tion is consist
d in §344.100 

de 

ent are:  

or juvenile 

in the 
Educational 

whose primar

ernative 

fied as both 
eria required f
tent with eithe
of this title. 

ry 

for 
er a 

183



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 
Subchap
 

 

§341.29
 
(a)  In a

the 
offic

 
  (1)

 
  (2)

 
  (3)
 
  (4)
 
  (5)

 
(b)  An 

offic
 

  (1)

 
  (2)
 
  (3)

 

Propo

341   
pter F  

9 Duties o

addition to any
following dut

cers:  

)  recommen

)  providing f

)  acting as t

)  writing and

)  conducting
the juvenile

individual hire
cer may perfo

)  has worke
date of hire

)  has receiv

)  has receiv

osed Rev
Public Sa
Texas Juv
Juvenile P
Requirem

of Certified J

y duties, resp
ies and respo

nding a dispos

final approval

he primary su

d administerin

g intake interv
e board unde

ed as a juven
orm the duties

d for the prob
e;  

ed training on

ed training in

visions to
afety and Co
venile Justi
Probation D

ments For Ju

Juvenile Prob

ponsibilities, o
onsibilities mu

sition in forma

 of written soc

upervising off

ng case plans

views and inv
er Texas Fam

ile probation 
s under subse

bation departm

n each duty lis

 recognizing a

o Texas A
orrections 
ice Departm
Department 
uvenile Pro

bation Office

or powers gran
ust be perform

al court proce

cial history re

ficer for all co

s in accordanc

estigations an
ily Code §53.

officer who is
ection (a) of th

ment for no m

sted in subse

and reporting

Administr

ment 
General St
bation Offic

ers 

nted by Title 
med only by c

eedings;  

eports;  

urt-ordered a

ce with Subch

nd making re
.01.  

s not yet certif
his section so

more than six 

ection (a) of th

g abuse, explo

rative Co

tandards 
cers 

III of the Texa
certified juven

and deferred p

hapter G of th

lease decisio

fied as a juve
o long as the 

months from 

his section; an

oitation, and n

de 

as Family Cod
ile probation 

prosecution c

his chapter; a

ons if authoriz

enile probation
individual:  

the individua

nd  

neglect. 

 

de, 

ases;  

nd  

zed by 

n 

al's 

184



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 
 
§344.80
 
(a)  Indi
 

(1)  
 

(2)  
 

(3)  

 
(4)  

 
(5)  

 
(6)  

 
(7)  

 
(b)  In a

cert
 

(1)  
 

(2)  
 

(3)  
 
(c)  You

mor
emp
sup
cha

 

Propo
Pub
Tex

344   Emp

00 Position

ividuals requi

chief admi

facility adm

supervisor
supervisio

juvenile pr

juvenile su

youth activ

any staff, e
administra
Program (J

addition to req
tification for th

quality ass

juvenile pr

staff memb

uth activities s
re than one c
ployment for t

pervisor, juven
apter. 

osed Rev
blic Safety a
xas Juvenile
ployment, C

ns Requiring

red to mainta

nistrative offic

ministrators;  

rs in the direc
n officers;  

robation office

upervision offi

vities supervis

excluding cert
ation of intens
JJAEP).  

quiring certific
he following:  

surance office

robation or su

ber responsib

supervisors, ju
ertification by
the positions 
nile supervisio

visions to
and Correct
e Justice De
Certification

g Certification

ain an active c

cers;  

t chain of com

ers;  

cers;  

sors; and  

tified physica
ive physical a

cation of the in

er;  

pervision offic

ble for superv

uvenile super
y TJJD if they 
and their job 
on officer, or j

o Texas A
tions 
epartment 
n and Traini

n 

certification ar

mmand over j

l education te
activity in a Ju

ndividuals in s

cer trainer; or

ision of youth

rvision officer
meet all crite
description is
juvenile proba

Administr

ing

re the followin

uvenile proba

eachers, who 
uvenile Justic

subsection (a

r  

h in a JJAEP. 

rs, and juvenil
eria required f
s consistent w
ation officer a

rative Co

ng:  

ation officers 

participates i
ce Alternative 

a) of this secti

 

le probation o
for certificatio
with a youth a
as defined in §

de 

or juvenile 

in the 
Educational 

on, TJJD offe

officers may h
on and 
activities 
§344.100 of t

 

ers 

hold 

this 

185



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTERS 341 AND 

344 AND THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §341.28, §341.29, AND §344.800 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapters 341 and 344 assigned to the 

Administration and Training Division in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff does not recommend any further changes to the rules; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed: 37 TAC §341.28 (repeal), §341.29, and §344.800. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

186



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review for 

37 TAC Chapter 341, for the following rules: §341.20, §341.47 - §341.56, and 

§341.60 

Date: January 9, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Finance Division proposed revisions to assigned 

rules from Chapter 341 at the August 2013 Board meeting. The Board approved posting the 

revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment 

period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, the staff recommends a minor change to the proposed text: 

• In §341.49, clarify that each probation department must send in their Electronic 

Data Interchange extract to TJJD no later than the tenth calendar day of each month 

(instead of on the tenth calendar day). 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

correction as noted. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

187



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 341 Texas Juvenile Justice Department Standards (Proposed New Name: Juvenile Probation Department General Standards) 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, who is 
responsible for revisions and what is 

the projected timeline?)
SUBCHAPTER D: ASSESSMENT AND SCREENING (NEW NAME FOR THIS SUBCHAPTER.) 

341.20  Risk and Needs 
Assessment (New 
Rule) 

Requires a juvenile probation 
department to complete a risk and 
needs assessment for each child 
under the jurisdiction of the 
juvenile probation department. 

New  New rule.  Ready for board adoption. 
 

SUBCHAPTER H: DATA COLLECTION STANDARDS 

DIVISION 1: CASEWORKER SYSTEMS (THIS DIVISION HEADING WILL BE DELETED.) 

341.47  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
this portion of the subchapter. 

 Yes  Terminology updates. 
 
Added a definition for 
SRSXEdit. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.48  Data Coordinator  Establishes the training 
requirements and duties of the 
data coordinator relating to data 
submitted to TJJD. 

Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 

341.49  TJJD Monthly Folder 
Extract 

Establishes how and when the 
monthly folder extract must be 
sent to TJJD. 

Yes  Replaced references to 
“Monthly Folder Extract” with 
“Electronic Data Interchange 
(EDI) Extract.” 
 
Added a statement requiring 
TJJD to discuss any proposed 
changes to data specifications 
with county representatives in 
advance to minimize 
disruptions or resource issues. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.50  Accuracy of Data  Establishes that the probation  Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 

188



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, who is 
responsible for revisions and what is 

the projected timeline?)
department must fill in all 
applicable data fields, run the 
Case File Edit, and correct all 
identified errors. 

341.51  Security of Data  Establishes guidelines for 
passwords in case management 
systems and establishes 
requirements for backup, 
restoration, and off‐site storage of 
security data. 

Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 

DIVISION 2: NON‐CASEWORKER SYSTEMS 

341.52  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 
this portion of the subchapter. 

No  Rule incorporated into 
§341.47. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.53  Data Coordinator  Establishes the training 
requirements and duties of the 
data coordinator relating to data 
submitted to TJJD. 

No  Rule incorporated into 
§341.48. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.54  TJPC Monthly Folder 
Extract 

Establishes how and when the 
monthly folder extract must be 
sent to TJJD.  

No  Rule incorporated into 
§341.49. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.55  Accuracy of Data  Establishes that the probation 
department must fill in all 
required data fields, adopt a policy 
on maintaining accurate data, and 
correct all identified errors.   

No  Rule incorporated into 
§341.50. 

Ready for board adoption. 

341.56  Security of Data  Requires the probation 
department to have passwords for 
their case management system, 
adopt a written policy to control 
access to the system, terminate 
access for former employees, and 
adopt a backup and restoration 

No  Rule incorporated into 
§341.51. 

Ready for board adoption. 

189



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(If not ready for board review, who is 
responsible for revisions and what is 

the projected timeline?)
policy.  

SUBCHAPTER I: ELECTRONIC DATA INTERCHANGE SPECIFICATIONS 

341.60  TJJD Monthly Folder 
Extract 

Requires the TJJD Monthly Folder 
Extract data to include all data 
fields required by TJJD Electronic 
Data Interchange Specifications. 

No  Remove attachments/figures 
and incorporate rule into 
§341.49 (c). 

Ready for board adoption. 

 

190



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 

 

§341.20
 
A juvenile
and needs
assessme
 

(1) 
 

 
(2) 

(3) 
 

§341.47
 
The follow
context cl
 

(1)  

 
(2)  

 
(3)  

 
(4)  

 
(5) 

 

Propo
Pub
Tex

341   Juv
S

0 Risk and

e probation de
s assessmen
ent for each c

Selection 

(A) All ju
Instr

(B) Dep
need

Administr
administer
 
Reports to

(A) The 
asse
acco
 

(B) All ri
form

 
7 Definitio

wing words or
early indicate

Case Man
probation o

 Data Coor
by the juve
relating to 

 TJJD Elec
submit mo
extract mu

 Comprehe
Manageme
information
questionab

 SRSXEdit-
using the C
TJJD. 

osed Rev
blic Safety a
xas Juvenile
venile Proba
Staff-Recom
d Needs Ass

epartment mu
t instrument o

child under the

of Risk and 

uvenile proba
rument (RANA

artments may
ds assessmen

ration of Inst
red by an indi

o TJJD. 

summary risk
essment instru
ordance with §

isk and needs
mat prescribed

ons 

r terms, when
es otherwise. 

nagement Sy
officers a sys

rdinator--A p
enile board to
data collectio

ctronic Data 
odified case re
ust be comple

ensive Folde
ent System (J
n. This report 
ble data that i

--An audit pro
Caseworker o

visions to
and Correct
e Justice De
ation Depar
mmended C
sessment 

ust, before the
or process pro
e jurisdiction o

Needs Asse

tion departme
A).   

y request and
nt instrument 

trument. The 
vidual trained

k and needs s
ument must b
§341.49 of th

s factor inform
d by TJJD. 

 used in this s
 

stem--A com
tematic meth

person employ
o serve and fu
on and reporti

Interchange 
ecords from th
eted in accord

er Edit--A rep
JCMS) applic
identifies inc
mpact the ac

ogram develo
or JCMS appl

o Texas A
tions 
epartment 
tment Gene

Changes in §

e disposition o
ovided or app
of the juvenile

essment Instr

ents may use

d receive appr
other than th

risk and nee
d to administe

scores of all j
be electronica
is chapter. 

mation must b

subchapter, h

mputer-based 
od to track an

yed by a juve
unction as the
ing.  

(EDI) Extrac
he departmen
ance with this

port generated
ation that per

correctly enter
ccuracy of the

ped by TJJD
ication with v

Administr

eral Standa
§341.49 are

of a child's ca
proved by TJJ
e probation d

rument. 

e the TJJD Ris

 
roval from TJ

he RANA. 

ds assessme
er the instrum

uveniles asse
ally reported t

be electronica

have the follow

tracking syste
nd manage ju

nile probation
e primary cont

ct--An automa
nt's case man
s chapter.  

d in the Casew
rforms an exte
red data, unre

e reports and 

to assist juve
verifying their 

rative Co

rds 
e Marked  

ase and using
JD, complete 
epartment. 

sk and Needs

JD to use a v

ent instrument
ment.  

essed with a 
to TJJD on a 

ally reported to

wing meaning

em that provid
uvenile offend

n department 
tact with TJJD

ated process 
nagement sys

worker or Juv
ensive edit of
ecoverable fil
programs.  

enile probatio
data prior to s

de 

g a validated r
a risk and ne

s Assessmen

validated risk 

t must be 

risk and need
monthly basis

o TJJD in the

gs unless the

des juvenile 
der caseloads

who is desig
D on all matte

to extract and
stem to TJJD.

venile Case 
f the case file
es, and 

n department
submission to

 

risk 
eeds 

t 

and 

ds 
s in 

e 

e 

s.  

nated 
ers 

d 
. The 

e 

ts not 
o 

191



 

 

(6)  

 
§341.48
 
(a)  Tra
 

(1)  
 
(2)  

 
(b)  Dut
 

(1)  

 
(2)  

 
§341.49
 
(a)  The
 
(b)  The

repo
 
(c)   The

staf
des
any

 
§341.50
 
(a)  Req

refe
 
(b)  Mon

SRS
 
(c)  Erro

sub
and

 
 
§341.51
 
(a)  Pas
 

(1)  

 

P

 EDI Speci
structures 
EDI extrac

8 Data Co

ining Requir

The data co

The data co
needed.  

ties.  

The data co
juvenile pro
requiremen

The data co
applicable d

9 TJJD ED

e TJJD EDI Ex

e extract is du
orting period.

e TJJD EDI Ex
ff must discus
signated repre
y disruption an

0 Accurac

quired Fields
erral in the de

nthly Edit. Th
SXEdit on a m

ors. Errors de
bmission of th
d Planning Div

 Security

sswords.  

Each user o
password to
persons. 

roposed 

fications--Do
that each juv

ct.  

oordinator 

rements.  

oordinator mu

oordinator mu

oordinator is r
obation depart
ts.  

oordinator mu
due date. 

DI Extract 

xtract must b

ue to the TJJD
 

xtract data m
ss any propos
esentatives be
nd/or resourc

cy of Data 

s. The juvenile
partment’s ca

he juvenile pr
monthly basis

etected by the
e EDI Extract
vision upon a

y of Data 

of the juvenile
o the system.

Revision

ocument deve
venile probatio

ust have a tho

ust complete t

responsible fo
tment is accu

ust ensure tha

e sent to the 

D on no later t

ust include al
sed changes t
efore making 
e issues that 

e probation d
ase managem

robation depa
s.  

e Comprehen
t. Errors detec
nalysis must

e probation de
 Passwords m

ns to 37 T

eloped by TJJ
on departmen

orough unders

training relate

or ensuring th
urate, timely, a

at the TJJD E

TJJD via the 

than the tenth

ll data fields r
to the specific
substantive c
may be asso

epartment mu
ment system t

artment must

nsive Folder E
cted by a TJJ
be corrected 

epartment’s c
must not be s

TAC Chap

JD outlining th
nt is required 

standing of TJ

ed to data rep

hat all data su
and consisten

DI Extract is 

Internet.  

h calendar da

required by th
cations with ju
changes to th
ociated with th

ust fill in all a
to minimize m

run the Comp

Edit must be c
JD monitoring
prior to a dat

case managem
shared with de

pter 341 

he data fields
to follow in su

JJD’s reportin

porting provide

ubmitted to the
nt with TJJD’s

received on o

ay of each mo

he EDI Specif
uvenile proba
he specificatio
he changes. 

pplicable data
missing inform

prehensive Fo

corrected prio
g visit or the T
te provided by

ment system 
epartment em

s and file 
ubmitting the 

ng requireme

ed by the TJJ

e TJJD by the
s reporting 

or before the 

onth following 

fications. TJJD
ation departm
ons to minimiz

a fields for ea
mation.  

older Edit or 

or to the next 
TJJD Researc
y TJJD. 

must obtain a
mployees or o

 

 

TJJD 

nts.  

JD as 

e 

 the 

D 
ents’ 
ze 

ach 

ch 

a 
ther 

192



 

 

(2)  

 
(3)  

 
(b)  Bac
 

The
proc

 
(c)  Off-
 

The
disa

 
 
 

P

Each depar
in the depa

Access to th
termination 

ckup and Res

e juvenile prob
cedures relat

-Site Storage

e juvenile prob
aster at the de

roposed 

rtment must li
rtment’s case

he departmen
of a user’s e

storation.  

bation depart
ing to data in 

e.  

bation depart
epartment (e.

Revision

mit the numb
e managemen

nt's case man
mployment. 

ment must ad
their case m

ment must st
g., fire, torna

ns to 37 T

ber of employe
nt system.  

nagement sys

dopt and follo
anagement s

ore a system 
do, etc.).  

TAC Chap

ees who are a

stem must be 

ow a written po
system.  

 backup off-s

pter 341 

authorized to

removed con

olicy for back

ite to be acce

 delete inform

ncurrent with 

kup and resto

essible in cas

 

 

mation 

the 

ration 

e of a 

193



Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 
 
§341.52

 
The follow
meanings
 

(1)  

 
(2)  

 
(3)  

 
§341.53
 
(a)  Tra

nec
and

 
(b)  Dut
 

(1)  

 
(2)  

 
§341.54
 
(a)  The

incl
 
(b)  The
 
§341.55
 
(a)  Req
 

(1)  

 
(2)  

 

Propo
Pub
Tex

341   Juv

2 Defini

wing words or
s unless the c

Data Coord
by the juven
matters rela

TJPC Mont
in the case 
success, an
specified by

Electronic 
outlining the
submitting t
are publishe

3 Data Co

ining Require
cessary by the
d requirement

ties.  

The data co
the local juv
Commissio

The data co
the applicab

4 TJPC M

e TJPC Month
ude all data f

e extract is du

5 Accurac

quired Fields.

Department
Layout.  

If the Comm
manageme

osed Rev
blic Safety a
xas Juvenile
venile Proba

tions 

r terms, when
ontext clearly

dinator--A pe
nile board to s
ating to data c

thly Folder E
management

nd profiling of
y the TJPC E

Data Interch
e data fields a
the TJPC Mo
ed in Subcha

oordinator 

ements. The d
e Commission
ts.  

oordinator is r
venile probati
n reporting re

oordinator sha
ble due date. 

onthly Folde

hly Folder Ext
ields required

ue to the Com

cy of Data 

  

ts shall fill in a

mission requir
nt system to 

visions to
and Correct
e Justice De
ation Depar

 used in Divis
y indicates oth

erson employe
serve and fun
collection and

Extract--An au
t system desi
f juvenile offen
lectronic Data

hange Specif
and file struct
nthly Folder E
pter I, §341.6

data coordina
n, relating to u

responsible fo
on departmen

equirements. 

all ensure tha

er Extract 

tract data sha
d by the TJPC

mmission on th

all applicable 

res additional
include such 

o Texas A
tions 
epartment 
tment Gene

sion 2 of this s
herwise.  

ed by a juven
nction as the p
d reporting.  

utomated pro
gned to analy
nders. The ex
a Specificatio

fications--Do
ures that eac
Extract. The E
60 of this chap

tor shall atten
updates on st

or ensuring th
nt is accurate

at the TJPC M

all be sent to t
C Electronic D

he tenth day o

fields as spe

fields, each d
information. 

Administr

eral Standa

subchapter, s

nile probation 
primary conta

ocess to gathe
yze crime and
xtract shall be
ns.  

ocument deve
ch departmen
Electronic Dat
pter. 

nd training, as
tatistical and 

hat the data s
e, timely, and 

Monthly Folde

the Commiss
Data Interchan

of each month

ecified in the C

department s

rative Co

rds 

shall have the

department w
act with the C

er data relatin
d juvenile tren
e submitted in

eloped by the 
t is required t
ta Interchang

s required an
research-bas

ubmitted to th
consistent wi

r Extract is re

ion via the int
nge Specifica

h following th

CASEWORKE

shall update th

de 

e following 

who is design
Commission o

ng to all case 
nds, program 
n the format 

Commission 
to follow in 

ge Specificatio

d deemed 
sed informatio

he Commissio
ith the 

eceived on or 

ternet and sh
ations.  

e reporting pe

ER Extract Fi

heir case 

nated 
n all 

files 

ons 

on 

on by 

by 

all 

eriod. 

le 

194



 

(b)  Maintaining Accuracy.  
 

(1)  Each department shall have a written policy and procedure to maintain accuracy of data 
submitted and methods of correcting errors.  

 
(2)  Each department shall report data elements that are consistent with the Commission 

definitions.  
 
(c)  Errors. Errors detected by the department during daily operation, or by the Commission during the 

annual monitoring visit or by the Commission Research and Planning Division analysis shall be 
corrected prior to the next submission of the TJPC Monthly Folder Extract. 

 
§341.56 Security of Data 
 
(a)  Passwords.  
 

(1)  Department users shall be required to obtain a password to their case management system.  
 
(2)  Each department shall have a written policy and procedure to ensure secured access and to 

limit the number of employees that have access to delete information from the case 
management system.  

 
(3)  Access to the department case management system shall be terminated for people no longer 

employed by the department.  
 
(b)  Backup and Restoration. All juvenile probation departments shall adopt and follow a written policy 

for backup and restoration. 
 
§341.60 TJPC Monthly Folder Extract 
 
The TJPC Monthly Folder Extract data shall include all data fields required by TJPC Electronic Data 
Interchange Specifications found in the figures below.  
 

195



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 341 AND 

THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §341.20, §341.47 - §341.56, and §341.60 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapter 341 assigned to the Finance 

Division in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends one additional change to the rules; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed, with the additional changes as noted: 37 TAC §341.20 (new), 

§341.47 - §341.51, and §341.52 - §341.60 (repeals). 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

196



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Director of State Programs and Facilities 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review for 

37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8501, §§380.8503 

– 380.8555, §§380.8559 - 380.8569, and §380.8575 

Date: January 21, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the State Programs and Facilities Division proposed 

revisions to assigned rules from Chapter 380/A at the October 2013 Board meeting. The 

Board approved posting the revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register 

for a 30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, TJJD staff has recommended the following changes: 

• In §380.8501, the definition of “Offense Severity” will be revised to include use or 

possession of weapons (in addition to firearms) as an aggravating factor. This change is 

consistent with TJJD’s current practice. 

• In §380.8501, a definition for “Conditional Placement” will be added. 

• In §380.8525, clarification will be added that time a youth spends on a conditional 

placement will count towards his/her minimum length of stay. 

• In §380.8545, new subsection (f) will be added to establish criteria for approving 

conditional placements. 

o The following youth will not be eligible for conditional placements:  

� sentenced offenders; and 

� youth with deferred sex offender registration who have not completed sexual 

behavior treatment. 

197



o To be considered for a conditional placement: 

� youth who have not completed their initial minimum length of stay must meet 

all requirements to qualify for parole except for completion of the minimum 

length of stay; 

� youth who are past the initial minimum length of stay date must meet only the 

following requirements: 

− completion or participation in assigned specialized treatment; and 

− completion of the gang intervention program, if required. 

o The senior director of state programs and facilities or his/her designee will be the 

final approval authority for conditional placements. 

o Once a conditional placement is approved, the youth cannot be returned to a high 

restriction facility without a Level II due process hearing. Youth can be returned for 

violations of the conditional placement agreement, for rule violations, or when the 

conditional placement is no longer viable. 

• In §380.8555, references to another TJJD rule will be revised to cite the correct rule 

number. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

changes as noted. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

198



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 ‐ Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 ‐ Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 380 ‐ Rules for State‐Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter A ‐ Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 

(State Programs and Facilities) 
 

  

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8501  Definitions  Defines terms used throughout 

this subchapter. 
 Yes   Clarified that committing 

offense determines more than 
just minimum length of stay, 
such as facility restriction level, 
type of approval needed for 
release, length of time on 
parole, etc. 

 Added definition for 
“Conditional Placement” 

 Revised the definition of 
“Offense Severity” to include 
use or possession of weapons (in 
addition to firearms) as an 
aggravating factor.  

 Deleted unnecessary definitions. 
 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8503  Admission Process  Provides an overview of the 
admission process for youth 
committed to TJJD.  

 Yes   TJJD will accept youth from 
counties between 8am‐7pm, 
rather than 8am‐8pm. 

 Deleted committing court, 
prosecuting attorney, and chief 
probation officer from list of 
people notified when youth is 
moved from Orientation Unit to 
first placement. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

199



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8505  Initial Assessment  Establishes the initial assessment 

process for each youth admitted 
to TJJD. 

 Yes  Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8521  Facility Assignment 
System 

Establishes an objective system of 
assigning youth to the most 
appropriate facility considering 
TJJD’s responsibilities to provide 
for public protection and 
promotion of rehabilitation. 

 Yes   Added that youth may be 
assigned to a co‐ed facility 
during orientation and 
assessment. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8524  Assessment for Safe 
Housing Placement 

Establishes a system to assess the 
threat of harm posed by a youth 
to others and a youth's potential 
vulnerabilities to make housing 
and supervision assignments. 

 Yes   Added that the housing 
assignment system takes into 
consideration gender non‐
conforming appearance or 
manner, or identification as 
lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
transgender, or intersex (LGBTI); 

 Added new requirement that 
LGBTI youth must not be placed 
in a particular housing unit, bed, 
or other program assignment 
based solely on the basis of such 
identification or status; and 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

200



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8525  Minimum Length of 

Stay/Minimum 
Period of 
Confinement 

Establishes a minimum period of 
time youth will spend in high or 
medium restriction placements. 

 Yes   Clarified that youth are referred 
to the Release Review Panel if 
they have determinate and 
indeterminate commitment 
orders and the minimum length 
of stay has already passed when 
the determinate sentence is 
completed. 

 Clarified that youth who have 
more than one indeterminate 
commitment receive a minimum 
length of stay for each 
commitment, and these run 
concurrently. 

 Clarified that time a youth 
spends on a conditional 
placement counts toward 
his/her minimum length of stay 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8527  Program Restriction 
Levels 

Defines the restriction levels that 
apply to all TJJD placements. 
Levels are based on the amount of 
access youth have to the public.  

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8531  Temporary 
Admission Awaiting 
Transportation 

Allows TJJD youth to be 
temporarily detained in a high 
restriction facility when the youth 
is being transported and the 
destination cannot be reached in a 
single day.  

 Yes   Clarified that the division 
director over residential services 
or his/her designee, not the 
facility superintendent, 
approves this type of admission. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

201



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8533 
(new #) 
 
380.8575 
(old #) 
 

Temporary 
Admission Awaiting 
Permanent 
Placement  

Allows TJJD youth to be 
temporarily placed at any 
residential TJJD facility if the 
youth’s current placement is no 
longer valid and a new placement 
has not yet been identified. 

   Renumbered as 380.8533 
(instead of 380.8575) so this rule 
will be next in sequence after 
other rule about temporary 
admissions. 

 Clarified that this rule applies to 
youth on parole. 

 Specified the time limit on 
extensions and the staff position 
responsible for approving 
extensions. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

202



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8545  Movement Before 

Program Completion  
Establishes criteria for moving 
youth who have not completed all 
required programming to 
placements of equal or lesser 
restriction. 

 Yes   Allow the superintendent 
(rather than Central Office) to 
approve the transition of youth 
with low‐ or moderate‐severity 
offenses who are past their 
minimum length of stay but 
meet all other transition criteria. 

 Added a new section to establish 
a system for making conditional 
placements on a trial basis at 
lesser restrictive placements for  
youth who haven’t met program 
completion requirements. 

 Added a requirement that 10 
days before a scheduled release 
or transition, TJJD must notify 
any agency that has an active 
warrant for the youth.  

 Deleted redundant provisions 
covered by other rules. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

203



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8555  Program Completion 

for Non‐Sentenced 
Offenders 

Establishes criteria and the 
approval process for paroling 
youth with indeterminate 
commitments who have 
completed required programming. 

 Yes   Reduced the deadline to 15 days 
(instead of 30 days) for TJJD to 
notify the youth, family 
members, victims, and 
designated advocates of the 
release review conducted by the 
local facility staff. (Note: all 
parties still receive 30 days’ 
notice if the youth’s case is 
referred to the Release Review 
Panel in Central Office.)  

 Added a requirement that 10 
days before a scheduled release, 
TJJD must notify any agency that 
has an active warrant for the 
youth.  

 Deleted redundant provisions 
covered by other rules. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

204



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8559  Program Completion 

for Sentenced 
Offenders 

Establishes criteria and the 
approval process for paroling 
youth with determinate sentences 
who have completed required 
programming. 

 Yes   Deleted provisions about youth 
who were committed before 
September 1, 2005. 

 Deleted redundant provisions 
covered by other rules. 

 Reduced the deadline for 
releasing a sentenced offender 
to TJJD parole to 60 days (rather 
than 120 days) after program 
completion criteria are met. 

 Removed the 120‐day deadline 
for moving sentenced offenders 
to adult parole after program 
completion criteria are met. 
Youth will be moved on or 
before the 19th birthday. 

 Added a requirement that 10 
days before a scheduled release, 
TJJD must notify any agency that 
has an active warrant for the 
youth. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

380.8565  Discharge of 
Sentenced 
Offenders upon 
Transfer to TDCJ or 
Expiration of 
Sentence 

Establishes criteria and an 
approval process for:  
 requesting court approval to 
transfer sentenced offenders to 
adult prison, or  

 discharging sentenced 
offenders whose sentences 
have expired or who have not 
completed required 
programming. 

 Yes   Deleted redundant provisions 
covered by other rules. 

 Added a requirement that 10 
days before a scheduled transfer 
to TDCJ, TJJD must notify any 
agency that has an active 
warrant for the youth. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

205



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified 

by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8569  Transfer of 

Sentenced 
Offenders 
Adjudicated for 
Capital Murder 

Establishes criteria and the 
approval process for transferring 
sentenced offenders adjudicated 
for capital murder to the Texas 
Department of Criminal Justice‐
Parole Division or Institutional 
Division.  

 Yes   Deleted redundant provisions 
covered by other rules. 

 Added a requirement that 10 
days before a scheduled transfer 
to TDCJ, TJJD must notify any 
agency that has an active 
warrant for the youth. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

 

206



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8501 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Definitions 

Rule:  Definitions 
 
ACA:  N/A 

Statutes: N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8551, 9/1/09 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE  
 
The following words and terms, as used in this chapter, shall have the following meanings unless the context 
clearly indicates otherwise. 

 
(1) Assessment Rating--a score derived from evidence-based criminogenic factors in a youth’s history 

used to assess the danger a youth poses to the community. 
 
(2) Committing Offense--the most serious of the relevant offenses found at the youth’s commitment 

proceeding and any probated offense(s) modified by the commitment order. If a committing offense 
is a violation of a federal statute, the offense will be treated as a violation of a state statute which 
prohibits the same conduct as the relevant federal offense. The committing offense is a significant 
factor in determining the restriction level of the initial placement, initial minimum length of stay, 
transition criteria, approvals needed for release, and length of time on parole. 

 
(3) Community Re-entry/Transition Plan (CRP-T)--an individual case plan that includes conditions of 

parole or placement for youth who are moving to a less restrictive environment. The CRP-T 
summarizes the youth’s progress to date, identifies risk factors and protective factors, provides 
referrals to community services and supports, and identifies objectives for the youth to complete at 
the next placement.   

 
(4) Community Re-Integration Plan--a workbook-style document that a youth revises over the course 

of his/her rehabilitation program based on feedback from the case manager, group, family members, 
and multi-disciplinary team. The document demonstrates the youth’s understanding of his/her risk 
and protective factors; development of skills, abilities, and knowledge to reduce risk factors and 
increase protective factors; identification of goals and a plan of action to achieve goals; and 
identification of obstacles that may hinder successful community re-entry and plans to deal with 
those obstacles. 
 

(5) Conditional Placement--a trial living arrangement at a lower restriction level without changing the 
youth’s currently assigned placement. Conditional placements may be to medium restriction facilities 
or approved home placements. Continued placement at the lower restriction level is dependent on 
meeting pre-established conditions. 

 
(65) Discharge--an action that ends the Texas Juvenile Justice Department’s (TJJD’s) jurisdiction over a 

youth. 
 
(76) Exit Review--a process by which staff determines whether the youth meets transition criteria or 

program completion criteria and whether the community re-entry/transition plan adequately 
addresses the youth’s identified risk factors for re-offending. As part of the exit review,  a face-to-
face interview is required for sentenced offenders and youth with a committing offense of high 
severity, along with review and approval of the release documents.  

 
(87) High Restriction and Medium Restriction--see definitions in §380.8527 of this title. 
 
(98) Home Placement--a placement in the home of the parent, other relative or individual acting in the 

role of parent, managing conservator, or guardian, or in an independent living arrangement 
(excluding contract independent living programs), for youth who have earned parole status.   

 
(109) Home Substitute Placement--a program placement in the community that is not high restriction for 

youth who have earned parole status.  
 

207



Title: Definitions GAP.380.8501 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(110) Indicator--tasks that clarify and show evidence of completing the stage objective. These tasks are 

completed by the youth and involve discussion with the youth’s case manager, group, multi-
disciplinary team, and/or family/adult mentor. To complete an objective, all indicators must be 
completed. 

 
(121) Initial Placement--a placement to which youth are assigned following a period of assessment at a 

TJJD orientation and assessment unit upon being committed to TJJD. 
 
(132) Minimum Length of Stay--the predetermined minimum period of time established by TJJD that a 

youth will be assigned to live in a high or medium restriction placement before being placed on 
parole status. 

 
(143) Minimum Period of Confinement--the predetermined minimum period of time established by law 

that a youth committed to TJJD on a determinate sentence must remain confined in a high restriction 
placement. 

 
(154) Most Serious of the Relevant Offenses--the offense that carries the most severe consequences, 

which are, from most to least severe: 
 

(A) an offense which carries a determinate sentence; 
(B) the offense for which the designated minimum length of stay will produce the longest time in 

the physical custody of TJJD; 
(C) the offense which requires the highest level of restriction in placement; 
(D) the offense which carries the most severe criminal penalty; and 
(E) the most recently adjudicated offense. 

 
(165) Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT)--a group of staff in TJJD-operated residential facilities who partner 

with the youth to facilitate his/her progress in the rehabilitation program. In high restriction facilities, 
the MDT consists of, at a minimum, the youth’s assigned educator, the youth’s case manager, and a 
juvenile correctional officer IV, V, or VI familiar with the youth. In medium restriction facilities, the 
MDT includes an administrator, the youth’s case manager, and a juvenile correctional officer. The 
youth’s family, along with other relevant staff members (psychologist, program specialist, principal, 
medical staff, etc.) involved in the youth’s treatment and rehabilitation are encouraged to attend and 
participate in MDT meetings. 

 
(176) Non-Sentenced Offender--a youth who is committed to TJJD for an indeterminate period of time, 

not to exceed age 19. 
 
(187) Objective--the most important concepts or skills necessary to earn a stage and to progress in the 

rehabilitation program. Each objective has one or more indicators of completion. 
 
(198) Offense Severity--a rating of high, moderate, or low based on the degree of the committing or 

revocation offense as defined by the Texas Penal Code or relevant federal statute and any of the 
following applicable aggravating factors: 

 
(A) sex offense as identified in §62.001 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure;  
(B) felony against a person;  
(C) possession or use of a weapon or firearm during the commission of the committing offense. 

 
(2019) Parole status--a status assigned to a youth when program completion criteria have been met or 

the Release Review Panel orders the youth’s release under supervision. Parole status qualifies the 
youth for placement in the home or a home substitute and ensures that the youth may not be moved 
to a high restriction placement without the highest level of due process afforded to TJJD youth. 

 
(210) Program Completion--occurs when a youth has met specific requirements established by rule in 

order to earn release from a residential program.  
 
(221) Release Under Supervision (or Release)--the act of placing a youth on parole status. The youth 

remains under the jurisdiction of TJJD and is subject to the conditions of parole supervision. 
 

208



Title: Definitions GAP.380.8501 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(232) Revocation Offense--the offense on which a youth’s minimum length of stay is based following a 

parole revocation hearing. It is the most serious of the relevant offenses found at a parole revocation 
hearing. 

 
(23) Risk and Protective Factors--risk factors are aspects of a youth’s environment, behavior, and 

mental processes that contribute to potential for further delinquent activity. Protective factors are 
positive aspects of individual youth situations that keep a youth away from delinquent activity.  
These factors are used as the foundation to design individual rehabilitation plans so that youth can 
learn to reduce their risk factors and increase their protective factors. 

 
(24) Sentenced Offender--a youth committed to TJJD pursuant to Family Code §54.04(d)(3) or 

§54.05(f) with a fixed sentence assigned by the committing court.  Depending on the length of the 
sentence, a youth may be transferred to the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to 
complete the sentence. 

 
(25) Stage--measure of progress through TJJD’s rehabilitation program. The youth’s stage assignment 

reflects the stage objectives he/she is currently working on. 
 

(26) Transfer--a movement of a sentenced offender to the TDCJ - Institutional Division or TDCJ - Parole 
Division. 

 
(27) Transition--the act of moving a youth from a high restriction facility to a medium restriction facility 

without placing the youth on parole status. Transitions are used to facilitate the youth’s adjustment to 
the community.  

 
 

209



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8503 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Commitment and Reception 

Rule:  Intake and Admission Process 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5A-01, 5A-03 

Statute(s): Family Code §58.209 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 2 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8503, 9/1/09 
 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the process for receiving youth into the custody of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).  

 
(b) Intake and Admission Process. 
 

(1) TJJD orientation and assessment units perform all intake activities, including receipt of the youth 
from the committing county.  

 
(2) The orientation and assessment units receive youth between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., Monday 

through Friday. 
 

(3) Youth are not allowed to have personal possessions while at the orientation and assessment units.  
 

(4) TJJD staff perform the following admission procedures, at a minimum:  
 

(A) search each youth in accordance with §380.9709 of this title;  
(B) inventory any personal possessions and return them to the county transporter;  
(C) complete a body identification form; 
(D) require the youth to shower, screen the youth for pediculosis, and provide treatment if 

indicated; 
(E) complete an initial health screening;  
(F) issue clothing; 
(G) provide personal hygiene articles; 
(H) photograph and fingerprint each youth;  
(I) assign an official TJJD number; 
(J) initiate sex offender registration with the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS), if required; 

and   
(K) take a blood sample from each youth for the DPS DNA database. 

 
(5) TJJD notifies the youth’s parent/guardian in writing of the following, at a minimum:  

 
(A) the youth’s admission; 
 
(B) TJJD’s medical consent authority in accordance with §380.9181 of this title; 
 
(C) contraband money as defined in §380.9107 of this title found in possession of a TJJD youth in 

a residential program will be deposited in the student benefit fund; 
 
(D) providing contraband to a TJJD youth, including alcohol, drugs, tobacco, or a cellular phone, is 

a criminal offense and could be subject to prosecution; 
 
(E) procedures for communicating with their child through mail, phone calls, and visits;  
 
(F) TJJD may use the chemical agent Oleoresin Capsicum, also known as OC spray, as 

necessary under §380.9723 of this title; and    

210



Intake and Admission Process GAP.380.8503 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
(G) the parent/guardian’s rights as provided in the TJJD parents’ bill of rights. 

 
(6) TJJD provides orientation to youth about the TJJD system and documents the orientation as 

required in §380.9115 of this title. 
 

(7) TJJD provides youth with counseling services and academic instruction during the youth’s stay at 
the orientation and assessment unit.  

 
(8) Upon transportation of youth to their initial placements, TJJD notifies the parent/guardian, parole 

officer, and others as needed of the initial placement location. 
 
(9) TJJD provides each youth a written explanation of §58.209 of the Texas Family Code, regarding 

access to records, and sends a copy to the youth’s parent/guardian.  
 

 
See INS 11.01 for implementation procedures. 

211



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8505 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Commitment and Reception 

Rule:  Initial Assessment 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-4E-01, 5A-02, 5B-02, 5C-03, 5D-04 

Statute(s): HR Code §244.001 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 2 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8505, 11/1/11
 
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the assessment process for each youth initially admitted to the 
Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).    
 

(b) General Provisions. 
 

(1) Assessments are used to identify:  
 

(A) immediate safety, medical, mental health, and housing needs; 
(B) specialized treatment needs; 
(C) case planning issues, including individual risk and protective factors; and 
(D) risk and restriction level for initial placement. 

  
(2) The assessment process is designed to be completed within 21 calendar days after receipt of the 

youth at the orientation and assessment unit.    
 
(3) Treatment and case planning activities initiated at the orientation and assessment unit focus on the 

youth’s long-term needs and eventual re-entry into the community. 
 
(c) Assessments Completed prior to Dormitory Placement. 
 

Within 24 hours after admission and prior to assigning a youth to a dormitory in the orientation and 
assessment unit, appropriate staff conduct:  
 
(1) medical and mental health screenings, which include, at a minimum, a review of the youth’s: 

 
(A) suicide risk; 
(B) medical history; 
(C) substance abuse history; 
(D) treatment history; 
(E) psychiatric history; 
(F) violent offense history; and  
(G) sex offense history; and 

 
(2) a screening for risk to display sexually aggressive or assaultive behavior or to be sexually victimized; 

and 
 
(3) a safe housing assessment in accordance with §380.8524 of this title.  

 
(d) Assessments Completed within 21 Days after Admission. 
 
 No later than 21 calendar days after a youth’s admission to TJJD, appropriate staff at the orientation and 

assessment unit conduct additional assessments, including, but not limited to: 
  

(1) assessment of individual risk and protective factors; 
 

212



Initial Assessment GAP.380.8505 
Page 2 of 2 

 
(2) religious preference assessment; 
 
(3) educational assessment; 
 
(4) workforce development needs and skills; 
 
(5) substance abuse screening and assessment; 
 
(6) assessment of need for specialized treatment; 
 
(7) assessment of behavior while at the orientation and assessment unit;  
 
(8) comprehensive psychological evaluation, including review of prior treatment; 
 
(9) dental examination; 
 
(10) medical examination, including review of history and prior treatment; and 
 
(11) comprehensive psychiatric evaluation of the youth, including review of prior treatment, when:  

 
(A) a youth has been identified during admission as being currently prescribed psychotropic 

medication;  
 
(B) a youth’s psychological evaluation shows the need for a psychiatric referral; or 
 
(C) a youth has been assigned a minimum length of stay of 12 months or longer, unless the 

agency receives the results of a comprehensive psychiatric evaluation of the youth conducted 
not more than 90 days prior to admission. 

 
(e) Treatment and Case Planning. 

 
(1) A summary of assessment results and treatment needs is developed for each youth while at the 

orientation and assessment facility.  This summary is used as a basis for placement decisions, in 
accordance with §380.8521 of this title, and for development of the individual case plan, in 
accordance with §380.8701 of this title. 

 
(2) For each youth assessed as having one or more specialized treatment needs, a specialized 

treatment plan is developed, reviewed, and re-evaluated in accordance with §380.8751 of this title. 
 

 
See CMS Chapter 1, CMS.02.29, CMS.13.09, HSP.06.02, and EDU Chapter 13 for implementation procedures. 

213



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8521 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Commitment and Reception 

Rule:  Facility Assignment System 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-04, 5B-01 

Statute(s): HR Code §243.001 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 2 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8521 
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish an objective system of assigning youth to the most appropriate 
facility considering the Texas Juvenile Justice Department’s (TJJD’s) responsibilities to provide for public 
protection and promotion of rehabilitation. 

 
(b) General Provisions. 
 

(1) This rule applies to placement decisions made:  
 
(A) upon release from an intake unit on initial commitment or recommitment to TJJD; and  
(B) following a parole revocation hearing.   

 
(2) Youth may be assigned to subsequent residential placements based on changing treatment needs, 

progress in rehabilitation programming, safety issues, or overpopulation concerns.  For more 
information on transfers between facilities and transitions to less restrictive placements, see 
§380.8545 of this title. 

 
(3) Placements described in this rule are limited to high or medium restriction facilities.  For more 

information on facility restriction levels, see §380.8527 of this title. 
 
(c) Placement System Factors. 
 

Placement decisions are based on factors including but not limited to those listed in paragraphs (1) – 
(4) of this subsection, with each factor given priority in the order listed. 
 
(1) Gender--Youth are generally assigned to male-only or female-only facilities.  However, during 

orientation and assessment or to receive treatment for certain specialized treatment needs, youth 
may be assigned to co-educational facilities. Youth in co-educational facilities have equal access 
to agency programs and activities. 

 
(2) Treatment Needs--Of the facilities available for the youth’s gender, youth are assigned to the 

facility that is best suited to meet the youth’s individual treatment needs. Youth with the highest 
need for any of the following specialized treatment services will be placed in a facility that 
provides those services: mental health, mental retardation, sexual behavior, capital/violent 
offender, or alcohol or other drugs. Whenever possible, youth with co-occurring specialized 
treatment needs are assigned to placements providing each indicated type of treatment. See 
§380.8751 of this title for more information on the assessment of specialized treatment needs. 
Age and medical needs are also considered in determining an appropriate facility assignment. 

 
(3) Risk Assessment--Of the facilities available for the youth’s gender and treatment needs, youth 

are assigned to a high or medium restriction facility based on an assessment of risk factors that 
includes offense history, age at first referral to juvenile court, past facility escapes, behavior while 
at the orientation and assessment unit or on parole, and other criminogenic factors.    

 

214



Facility Assignment System GAP.380.8521 
Page 2 of 2 

 

(A) Placement upon Initial Commitment or Recommitment to TJJD.  
 

(i) Except as provided in clause (ii) of this subparagraph, non-sentenced offenders with 
a committing offense of high or moderate severity and all sentenced offenders are 
initially assigned to a high restriction facility. 

 
(ii) Non-sentenced offenders with a committing offense of moderate severity who score 

in the lowest category on the risk assessment are initially assigned to a high or 
medium restriction facility, depending on the nature of the committing offense and 
other factors identified in this rule. 

 
(iii) Non-sentenced offenders with a committing offense of low severity are initially 

assigned to a high or medium restriction facility, depending on the results of the risk 
assessment and other factors identified in this rule. 

 
(B) Placement upon Disciplinary Transfer from Parole to a Residential Facility. 
 

(i) Following a Level I due process hearing held in accordance with §380.9551 of this 
title, non-sentenced offenders found to have engaged in felony-level conduct while 
on parole and all sentenced offenders are assigned to high restriction facilities. 

 
(ii) Following a Level I due process hearing held in accordance with §380.9551 of this 

title, non-sentenced offenders found to have violated conditions of parole that are not 
law violations or engaged in misdemeanor-level conduct are assigned to high or 
medium restriction facilities, depending on the results of the risk assessment and 
other factors identified in this rule. 

 
(4) Proximity to Home -- Of the facilities available for the youth’s gender, treatment needs, and risk 

assessment, youth are assigned to the facility closest to the residence of the youth’s 
parent/guardian. In cases where the closest placement is at or above established population 
capacity or specialized treatment population capacity, the youth may be assigned to another 
appropriate placement. 

 
(d) Waivers. 
 

Except for non-sentenced offenders with a committing offense of high severity and sentenced 
offenders, the facility restriction level required under this rule may be waived by the division director 
over residential services or his/her designee.  A designated restriction level may be waived in order to 
meet a youth’s specific treatment needs or when it is determined that a youth has a disability or special 
medical condition that would prevent the youth from functioning in the designated restriction level. 

 
(e) Parent Notification. 
 

Parents or guardians of youth are notified of placement assignments in accordance with §380.8705 of 
this title.  
 

(f) Individual Exceptions. 
 

The executive director or his/her designee may make exceptions to placement assignments under this 
rule on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration a youth’s specific treatment needs and public 
safety. 

 

 
See CMS.01.25 for procedures relating to assessment of specialized treatment needs. 
See CMS.01.70 for procedures relating to facility assignment. 
See INS.11.01 for procedures relating to offense severity and assessment of risk factors. 

215



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8524 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule:  Assessment for Safe Housing Placement 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3D-03, 5B-01, 5B-02, 5B-05 

Statute(s): HR Code §243.001; 28 CFR §§115.341, 115.342 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8524, 8/1/09 

 

RULE 
 
(a) Policy. 
 

The Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) uses an objective system to assess the threat of harm 
posed by a youth to others and a youth’s potential vulnerabilities to make housing and supervision 
assignments. 
 

(b) Applicability. 
 

This rule applies to high and medium restriction TJJD-operated facilities. 
 

(c) Definitions. 
 

Safe Housing Assessment--an instrument designed to determine the appropriate housing assignment at 
a youth’s assigned facility and the level of supervision for an individual youth. The assessment considers 
factors including, but not limited to, the following: 

 
(1)  evidence-based criminogenic factors in a youth’s history that indicate level of risk to others; 
(2)  age and physical stature of youth;  
(3) potential vulnerability to sexual victimization or likelihood of sexually aggressive behavior;  
(4) gender non-conforming appearance or manner, or identification as lesbian, gay, bisexual, 

transgender, or intersex (LGBTI); and 
(5)  special needs including medical needs, suicide risk, disabilities, mental health, or other placement 

concerns. 
 

(d) General Provisions. 
 

(1) Each facility establishes a written housing plan that describes the housing levels allowed, staffing 
requirements, security level, and programming schedule of each housing unit. 

 
(2) TJJD conducts a safe housing assessment for each youth upon arrival at the orientation and 

assessment unit, prior to facility transfer, and at the initial permanent placement. Safe housing 
assessments are conducted at specified intervals thereafter, and may be conducted at any time as 
indicated by youth needs, serious incidents, or facility security needs. 

 
(3) Youth are assigned to housing units based on the results of the safe housing assessment.  

Placement within the housing unit may also be determined by the results of the safe housing 
assessment. 

 
(4) Unless it is determined necessary to ensure youth safety, a youth 14 years of age or younger may 

not be assigned to the same dormitory as a youth 17 years of age or older. 
 
(5) Male and female youths may not occupy the same sleeping room. 
 
(6) LGBTI youth must not be placed in a particular housing unit, bed, or other program assignment 

based solely on the basis of such identification or status. 
 
(7) Unless otherwise approved on a case-by-case basis by the division director over residential services 

or his/her designee, youth who have a reportable adjudication for a sex offense, as defined in 
Chapter 62, Code of Criminal Procedure, are assigned to an open bay dorm with direct line-of-sight 
supervision or a single-occupant room.   

 

 
See CMS.01.75 for implementation procedures. 

216



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8525 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule:  Minimum Length of Stay/Minimum Period of 
Confinement 

 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-24, 3A-25, 5B-01 

Statute(s): HR Code §243.002, §245.051(c) 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8525, 11/1/11
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

This rule establishes a minimum period of time youth will spend in high or medium restriction facilities.    
 
(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This policy applies only to: 
 

(A) youth committed to the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) or Texas Youth 
Commission (a predecessor agency to TJJD) on or after February 1, 2009; and 

(B) youth whose parole is revoked on or after February 1, 2009, regardless of the commitment 
date. 

 
(2) Youth who were committed to the Texas Youth Commission and/or whose parole was revoked 

prior to February 1, 2009, remain subject to provisions of this rule in effect at the time of the 
commitment or revocation. 

 
(c) Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

(1) Minimum Length of Stay Assigned upon Commitment. 
 

The initial minimum length of stay applies only to non-sentenced offenders. The initial minimum 
length of stay is calculated based on the severity of the committing offense and an assessment of 
the danger the youth poses to the community. 

 
(A) Youth whose committing offense is of high severity are assigned the following minimum 

length of stay: 
 

(i) 24 months, for youth with a high assessment rating; 
(ii) 18 months, for youth with a medium assessment rating; or 
(iii) 15 months, for youth with a low assessment rating. 
 

(B) Youth whose committing offense is of moderate severity are assigned the following minimum 
length of stay: 

 
(i) 15 months, for youth with a high assessment rating; 
(ii) 12 months, for youth with a medium assessment rating; or 
(iii) 12 months, for youth with a low assessment rating. 
 

(C) Youth whose committing offense is of low severity are assigned the following minimum length 
of stay: 

 
(i) 12 months, for youth with a high assessment rating; 
(ii) 9 months, for youth with a medium assessment rating; or 
(iii) 9 months, for youth with a low assessment rating. 

 

217



Minimum Length of Stay/Minimum Period of Confinement GAP.380.8525 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(2) Minimum Length of Stay Assigned upon Parole Revocation. 

 
(A) Sentenced and non-sentenced offender youth whose parole is revoked are assigned the 

following minimum length of stay: 
 

(i) 9 months, for youth found to have engaged in felony level conduct; 
 
(ii) 6 months, for youth found to have broken a federal, state, or other law that is not a 

felony grade offense; or 
 
(iii) 3 months, for youth found to have violated a condition of parole that is not also a 

violation of law. 
 
(B) At the parole revocation hearing, the designated minimum length of stay may be reduced by 

the presiding staff attorney if extenuating circumstances to the offense are found. 
 

(d) Minimum Period of Confinement. 
 

The minimum period of confinement applies only to sentenced offenders.  The minimum period of 
confinement is: 

 
(1) ten years for youth sentenced for capital murder;  
(2) three years for youth sentenced for an aggravated controlled substance felony or a felony of the 

first degree;  
(3) two years for a felony of the second degree; or  
(4) one year for a felony of the third degree. 

 
(e) Creditable Time for Non-Sentenced Offenders. 
 

(1) When a youth is admitted, the minimum length of stay is counted from the first day the youth 
reaches any TJJD-operated or assigned facility.  

 
(2) When a youth is recommitted, the minimum length of stay is counted from the first day the youth 

reaches any TJJD-operated or assigned facility and runs concurrently with any incomplete 
minimum length-of-stay requirements. 
 
(A) A youth who is recommitted for the same conduct following an appeal of the original 

commitment is given credit toward completion of the new minimum length of stay for any time 
spent in TJJD custody as a result of the original commitment. 

 
(B) A youth who is recommitted for the same conduct for which a Level I hearing has already 

been held is given credit toward completion of the new minimum length of stay for the time 
already served as a result of that hearing.  

 
(3) After the count begins, all time spent in program, on furlough as defined in §380.8707 of this title, 

on a conditional placement, or in detention or jail (except as a disposition in a criminal case) is 
counted toward meeting a minimum length of stay requirement. 

 
(4) Time spent as an escapee from a TJJD placement, in jail, or in a court-ordered placement in an 

adult correctional residential program as disposition in a criminal case is not counted toward 
meeting the minimum length-of-stay requirement. 

 
(f) Creditable Time for Sentenced Offenders. 
 

(1) For sentenced offenders committed prior to June 9, 2007, the minimum period of confinement is 
counted from the first day a youth reaches any TJJD residential facility.  

 
(2) For sentenced offenders committed on or after June 9, 2007, TJJD applies any credit granted in the 

218



Minimum Length of Stay/Minimum Period of Confinement GAP.380.8525 
Page 3 of 3 

 
commitment order toward completion of the minimum period of confinement.  This type of credit is 
for time spent in a secure detention facility in connection with the committing case prior to 
admission to TJJD.  

 
(3) Regardless of the date of commitment: 
 

(A) once a youth reaches a TJJD facility and is credited with any applicable time in detention, 
only time spent in a TJJD residential facility is credited toward completion of the minimum 
period of confinement; and  

 
(B) credit is granted toward completion of the sentence for time spent in a secure detention 

facility in connection with the committing case prior to admission to TJJD.  
 

(g) Multiple Commitments. 
 

(1) Multiple Indeterminate Commitments. 
 

If a youth is committed to TJJD under more than one indeterminate commitment, a minimum length 
of stay is assigned for each commitment. The minimum lengths of stay will run concurrently. 

 
(2) Concurrent Indeterminate and Determinate Commitments. 
 

If a youth is committed to TJJD under determinate and indeterminate commitment orders, the 
minimum period of confinement and minimum length of stay will run concurrently.   

 
(A) The youth is managed as a sentenced offender until he/she is discharged from the 

determinate commitment. 
 
(B) If a youth completes the determinate sentence before he/she meets discharge criteria for the 

indeterminate commitment, the youth: 
 

(i) is discharged from the determinate commitment; and 
(ii) is: 

 
(I) required to serve any remaining minimum length of stay associated with the 

indeterminate commitment; or 
(II) referred to the Release Review Panel under §380.8557 of this title if the 

minimum length of stay associated with the indeterminate commitment has 
already been completed. 

 
(h) Reductions to Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

(1) The minimum length of stay requirement may be reduced by the TJJD executive director or his/her 
designee when it is determined that the minimum length of stay is not justified because of the 
nature of the offense and offense history or when it is determined that the youth has made sufficient 
progress in treatment programs.  

 
(2) Upon a recommendation by the facility administrator, the division director over residential services 

or his/her designee may reduce a youth’s minimum length of stay up to three months due to 
positive progress in treatment programs so long as the youth serves at least nine months in a 
residential placement. 

 

 
See form CCF-040 for calculation of minimum length of stay upon commitment. 

219



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8527 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule:  Program Restriction Levels 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5B-01 

Statute(s): N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8527, 6/21/99
 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 
 The purpose of this rule is to categorize programs in which TJJD youth may be placed.  The categories 

are based on a youth’s access to the general community while in that program. The level of restriction 
assists TJJD staff in placing youth in the least restrictive, most appropriate placement available. 

 
(b) Definitions.  
 

As used in this rule, the following terms have the following meanings. 
 

(1) Self-contained--a 24-hour supervision program in which the treatment, training, and education 
program is conducted on the premises. A self-contained program does not allow routine, 
unsupervised access to the community, unless otherwise stated. 

 
(2) Routine, Unsupervised Access to the Community--a privilege offered by some programs 

whereby a youth may be absent from the program without staff supervision for 48 hours or more per 
month prior to the youth’s last month in the program. 

 
(c) Restriction Levels. 
 

(1) High Restriction--a facility that does not allow routine, unsupervised access to the community and 
is typically secured by a perimeter fence.  For example: 

 
(A) TJJD institutions;  
(B) self-contained, residential contract placements; and 
(C) state hospitals. 

 
(2) Medium Restriction--any residential program that may provide routine, unsupervised access to the 

community. For example: 
 

(A) TJJD halfway houses; and 
(B) residential contract programs that are not self-contained (e.g., certain substance abuse 

programs, residential treatment centers, group homes, or organizational foster care). 
 

(3) Minimum Restriction--any residential program that does not provide on-site supervision and allows 
routine access to the community (e.g., independent living preparation in a structured apartment 
setting). 

 
(4) Home--the home of the parent, other relative, or individual acting in the role of parent, managing 

conservator, or guardian, or an independent living arrangement.  
 

220



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8531 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule:  Temporary Admission Awaiting Transportation 
 
ACA:  N/A 

Statute(s): N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8531, 4/1/05 
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to provide for temporary admissions into Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
(TJJD) facilities for youth who are awaiting transportation. 

 
(b) General Provisions. 
 

(1) A youth may be admitted to a TJJD-operated high restriction facility and held in the security unit 
for up to 48 hours when the youth’s destination cannot be reached in a single day, including 
transportation: 

 
(A) following a Level I or II hearing that results in transportation to another facility; or 
(B) between facilities not resulting from disciplinary actions. 

 
(2) Only the division director over residential services or his/her designee may approve a temporary 

admission awaiting transportation.   
 

221



Texas Juvenile Justice Department   GAP.380.8533 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities  
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, and Program Completion  
Division: Placement Planning  

Rule:  Temporary Admission Awaiting Permanent Placement 
 
ACA:  N/A 
Statute(s): N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces:  GAP.85.75, 11/1/11 
 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to provide for temporary placement for a youth assigned to a home or home 
substitute whose placement is no longer valid or available but a new placement has not yet been secured.  

 
(b) General Provisions.  
 

(1) A youth assigned to a home or home substitute may be temporarily admitted to any Texas Juvenile 
Justice Department-operated residential facility while waiting for assignment to a permanent 
placement if no disciplinary hearing is involved and if no alternative temporary placement can be 
found. 

 
(2) A youth may remain at the facility as a temporary admission for up to 14 calendar days.  Extensions 

may be granted for up to 30 additional days by the division director over residential services or 
his/her designee.  

 
(3) During a temporary admission, youth are assigned a case manager and participate in regular 

activities within the general population at the facility.  
 

  
See CMS.01.70 for implementation procedures. 

222



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8545 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Movement Before Program Completion 

Rule:  Movement Before Program Completion 
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-24, 5I-04 

Statute(s): HR Code §245.051; Family Code §54.0491 

Reference(s): Morales v Turman Settlement Agreement Section (V)(H) 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 5 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8545, 7/1/11 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and procedures for moving youth who have not met 
program completion requirements to placements of equal or lesser restriction. 

 
(b) General Provisions. 
 

Prior to a transition, a youth may request and in doing so will be granted a Level II hearing. 
 

(c) Transition Movements Before Initial or Revocation Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

(1) Eligibility. 
 

The following youth are not eligible for transition movement before completion of the initial or 
revocation minimum length of stay: 
 

(A) sentenced offenders; and  
(B) sex offenders with court orders deferring their sex offender registration requirements 

who have not successfully completed an assigned sexual behavior treatment program.   
 

(2) Transition Movement Criteria. 
 

Youth in a high restriction facility may be eligible for transition to a medium restriction facility before 
completion of the initial or revocation minimum length of stay when the following criteria have been 
met: 

 
(A) no major rule violations confirmed through a Level II due process hearing:  
 

(i) within 60 days before the exit review or during the approval process, for youth with 
committing offenses of low or moderate severity; or  

 
(ii) within 120 days before the exit review or during the approval process, for youth with 

committing offenses of high severity; and 
 
(B) completion of the following:  

 
(i) for youth who have not completed the initial minimum length of stay:  
 

(I) youth with a committing offense of low severity must complete six months of the 
initial minimum length of stay in high restriction facilities; or 

 
(II) youth with a committing offense of moderate severity must complete nine months 

of the initial minimum length of stay in high restriction facilities; or  
 
(III) youth with a committing offense of high severity must complete all but six months 

of the initial minimum length of stay in high restriction facilities; or 
 

223



Movement Before Program Completion GAP.380.8545 
Page 2 of 5 

 
(ii) for youth placed in a high restriction facility following revocation of parole, the youth 

must complete at least 2/3 of the revocation minimum length of stay; and 
 

(C) participation in or completion of assigned specialized treatment programs or curriculum as 
required under §380.8751 of this title; and 

 
(D) completion of the following rehabilitation program requirements: 
 

(i) for TJJD-operated facilities, assignment by the multi-disciplinary team to the second 
highest stage in the assigned rehabilitation program as described in §380.8703 of this 
title, which reflects that the youth is currently: 

 
(I) consistently participating in academic and/or workforce development programs 

commensurate with abilities as reflected in the youth’s educational plan; and  
 
(II) consistently participating in skills development groups, as reflected in the youth’s 

individual case plan; and 
 
(III) consistently demonstrating learned skills, as reflected in the documentation of the 

youth’s behavior; or 
 
(ii) for facilities operated under contract with TJJD, completion of requirements for transition 

to a community residential placement as defined in the TJJD-approved approved 
rehabilitation program; and 

 
(E) completion of a draft community reintegration plan (or equivalent in a contract facility), to be 

finalized at the medium restriction facility, that demonstrates the youth’s: 
 

(i) understanding of his/her risk and protective factors; and 
 
(ii) development of skills, abilities, and knowledge to reduce risk factors and increase 

protective factors; and 
 
(iii) identification of goals and a plan of action to achieve goals in the medium restriction 

placement; and 
 
(iv) identification of obstacles that may hinder successful community re-entry and plans to 

deal with those obstacles in the medium restriction placement; and 
 

(F) completion of a criminal street gang intervention program, if required by court order. 
 

(3) Decision Authority for Approval of Transition. 
 

The final decision authority ensures, before approving the transition, that the youth meets all 
transition criteria and the community re-entry/transition plan adequately addresses risk factors. 
 
(A) For youth with committing offenses of low or moderate severity, the final decision authority is 

the: 
 

(i) facility administrator if the youth is assigned to a TJJD-operated facility; or 
 
(ii) division director over residential services or his/her designee if the youth is assigned to 

a facility operated under contract with TJJD.  
 

(B) For youth with a committing offense of high severity, the final decision authority is the division 
director over residential services or his/her designee. 

 

224



Movement Before Program Completion GAP.380.8545 
Page 3 of 5 

 
(d) Transition Movements after Completion of Initial or Revocation Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

(1) Eligibility. 
 
The following youth are not eligible for transition movement after completion of the initial or 
revocation minimum length of stay: 
 

(A) sentenced offenders; and  
(B) sex offenders with court orders deferring their sex offender registration requirements 

who have not successfully completed an assigned sexual behavior treatment program.  
 
(2) Transition Movement Criteria. 
 

Youth in a high restriction facility may be eligible for transition to a medium restriction facility after 
completion of the initial or revocation minimum length of stay when the following criteria have been 
met: 
 
(A) no major rule violations confirmed through a Level II due process hearing within 30 days 

before the exit review or during the approval process; 
 
(B) participation in or completion of assigned specialized treatment programs or curriculum as 

required under §380.8751 of this title; and 
 
(C) completion of a criminal street gang intervention program, if required by court order. 

 
(3) Decision Authority for Approval of Transition. 

 
The final decision authority ensures, before approving the transition, that the youth meets all 
transition criteria and the community re-entry plan adequately addresses risk factors. The final 
decision authority for approving transitions after completion of the initial or revocation minimum 
length of stay is:  
 
(A) the staff member identified in subsection (c)(3) of this section if the youth meets all criteria in 

subsection (c)(2) of this section but is past his/her minimum length of stay; or 
 
(B) the division director over residential services or his/her designee for all other youth. 

 
(e) Population Control Movements.  

 
(1) When overpopulation occurs in a high restriction facility and other remedial actions are not 

successful in managing facility populations, non-sentenced offender youth who do not otherwise 
qualify may be released or transitioned. In such cases, the executive director establishes the criteria, 
taking into account factors including, but not limited to, the following: 

 
(A) progress in the rehabilitation program; 
(B) amount of the minimum length of stay completed;  
(C) severity of the committing offense; 
(D) completion of required specialized treatment programs; 
(E) participation in or completion of any statutorily required rehabilitation programming; and 
(F) current risk assessment. 
 

(2) Youth will be transitioned to a suitable TJJD-operated medium restriction placement or contract care 
facility or will be released to a suitable home or home substitute. 

 
(f) Administrative Transfers. 
 

Administrative transfers may be made for non-disciplinary, programmatic purposes among facilities of 
equal restriction without a due process hearing. An administrative transfer may not be made in lieu of a 
disciplinary transfer for which a due process hearing is mandatory. 

225



Movement Before Program Completion GAP.380.8545 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 

(g) Reassignment of Youth Initially Eligible for Placement in a Medium Restriction Facility. 
 

(1) A youth may be reassigned to a medium restriction facility if the youth was initially eligible for such 
placement under §380.8521 of this title but was placed in a high restriction facility in order to 
address one or more placement system factors that could not be appropriately addressed in a 
medium restriction facility. Such youth are not required to meet transition criteria set forth in 
subsections (c) or (d) of this section.   

 
(2) The division director over residential services or his/her designee is the final decision authority for 

approving the facility reassignment. 
 

(h) Conditional Placements. 
 

(1) Eligibility. 
 
The following youth are not eligible for conditional placement: 
 
(A) sentenced offenders; and  
 
(B) sex offenders with court orders deferring their sex offender registration requirements who 

have not successfully completed an assigned sexual behavior treatment program. 
 

(2) Criteria for Conditional Placement. 
 

(A) Before the Initial Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

To be considered for a conditional placement before completing the initial minimum length of 
stay, a youth must meet all program completion criteria set forth in §380.8555 of this title, with 
the exception of the requirement to complete the minimum length of stay.   
 

(B) After the Initial Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

A youth may be considered for a conditional placement after completing the initial minimum 
length of stay when the following criteria have been met: 
 
(i) the youth’s treatment team has determined that, due to the youth’s treatment needs, the 

conditional placement would be in the youth’s best interests; 
 
(ii) the youth has participated in or completed assigned specialized treatment as required 

under §380.8751 of this title; and 
 
(iii) the youth has completed a criminal street gang intervention program, if required by court 

order. 
 

(3) Decision Authority for Approval of Conditional Placement. 
 

The division director over residential services or his/her designee is the final decision authority for 
approving the conditional placement. 
 

(4) Conclusion of Conditional Placement. 
 

A conditional placement ends when: 
 
(A) the youth is assigned to a medium restriction facility or home placement because the youth: 
 

(i) earns parole status under §380.8555 of this title or is placed on parole status under 
§380.8557 of this title; 

 
(ii) is transitioned to a medium restriction facility under subsection (c) or (d) of this section; 

or 

226



Movement Before Program Completion GAP.380.8545 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
(iii) is reassigned to a medium restriction facility under subsection (g) of this section; 

 
(B) the youth is discharged under §380.8557 or §380.8595 of this title; or 
 
(C) the youth is returned to the sending facility through a Level II due process hearing held in 

accordance with §380.9555 of this title for reasons including, but not limited to: 
 

(i) commission of a rule violation listed in §380.9503 or §380.9504 of this title; 
(ii) violation of the conditional placement agreement; or 
(iii) the conditional placement is no longer viable. 

 
(ih) Hardship Cases. 

 
In hardship cases, the executive director or his/her designee may approve placing a non-sentenced 
offender youth on parole status without meeting program completion criteria. 

 
(ji) Youth with Mental Illness or Mental Retardation. 

 
Pursuant to §380.8779 of this title, certain youth may be discharged following application for appropriate 
services to address their mental illness or mental retardation. 
 

(kj) Notification. 
 

(1) TJJD provides the committing juvenile court a copy of the youth’s community re-entry/transition plan 
and a report concerning the youth’s progress while committed to TJJD no later than 30 days before 
the date of the youth’s release. Additionally, if on release the youth is placed in another state or a 
county other than a county served by the committing juvenile court, TJJD provides the community 
re-entry/transition plan and progress report to a juvenile court having jurisdiction over the county of 
the youth’s residence. 

 
(2) TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s release or transition:  
 

(A) the committing juvenile court;  
(B) the prosecuting attorney;  
(C) the youth’s parole officer;  
(D) the chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and  
(E) any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.  

 
(lk) Individual Exceptions. 
 

The executive director or his/her designee may make exceptions to provisions of this rule on a case-by-
case basis, based on a consideration of the youth’s best interests and public safety. 

 

 

 See CMS.03.11 for procedures relating to the criminal street gang intervention program. 

 See CMS.02.40 for procedures relating to administrative transfers. 

 See CMS.02.47 for procedures relating to transition movement prior to completion of initial minimum length of stay. 

 See CMS.02.48 for procedures relating to transition movement following completion of the initial minimum length of 
stay. 

 See CMS.02.46 for procedures relating to reassignment of youth initially eligible for placement in medium restriction 
facilities. 

 See CMS.02.38 for procedures relating to conditional placements. 

 See CMS.02.63 for procedures relating to the 10-day release/transition notice. 

 

227



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8555 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Program Completion and Release 

Rule: Program Completion for Non-Sentenced Offenders 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-22, 3A-23, 3A-25, 3A-26, 5I-01 

Statute(s):  HR Code §245.051; Education Code §30.106; Family Code §54.0491 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8555, 9/1/10 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and the approval process for release of youth upon program 
completion. 

 
(b) Applicability.  
 

(1) This rule does not apply to sentenced offenders.   
(2) This rule does not apply to decisions by the Release Review Panel. See §380.8557 of this title for 

more information on the Release Review Panel. 
 

(c) General Provisions. 
 

A detainer or bench warrant is not an automatic bar to earned release. The Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD) releases youth to authorities pursuant to a warrant. 

 
(d) Program Completion Criteria. 
 

Youth in high or medium restriction facilities are eligible for release to TJJD parole when the following 
criteria have been met: 

 
(1) no major rule violations confirmed through a Level I or II due process hearing within 30 days before 

the exit review or during the approval process; and 
 
(2) completion of the minimum and/or extension length of stay; and 
 
(3) participation in or completion of assigned specialized treatment programs or curriculum as required 

under §380.8751 of this title; and  
 
(4) completion of the following rehabilitation program requirements: 
 

(A) for TJJD-operated facilities, assignment by the multi-disciplinary team to the highest stage in 
the assigned rehabilitation program as described in §380.8703 of this title, which reflects that 
the youth is currently: 

 
(i) consistently participating in academic and workforce development programs 

commensurate with abilities as reflected in the youth’s educational plan; 
 
(ii) consistently participating in skills development groups, as reflected in the youth’s 

individual case plan; 
 
(iii) consistently demonstrating learned skills, as reflected in the documentation of the 

youth’s behavior; or 
 

(B) for facilities operated under contract with TJJD, completion of requirements for release to 
parole as defined in the TJJD-approved rehabilitation program; and 

 

228



Program Completion for Non-Sentenced Offenders GAP.380.8555 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(5) completion of a community re-integration plan (or equivalent in a contract facility), approved by the 

youth’s treatment team, that demonstrates the youth’s: 
 
(A) understanding of his/her risk and protective factors; 
 
(B) development of skills, abilities, and knowledge to reduce risk factors and increase protective 

factors; 
 
(C) identification of goals and a plan of action to achieve those goals; and 
 
(D) identification of obstacles that may hinder successful re-entry and plans to deal with those 

obstacles; and 
 

(6) participation in or completion of any statutorily required rehabilitation programming, including but not 
limited to: 

 
(A) participation in a reading improvement program for identified youth to the extent required 

under §380.91.55 of this title; 
 
(B) participation in a positive behavioral interventions and supports system to the extent required 

under §380.91.55 of this title; and 
 
(C) completion of at least 12 hours of a gang intervention education program, if required by court 

order. 
 

(e) Review and Approval Process. 
 

(1) Treatment Team Review. 
 

(A) Before the expiration of a youth’s minimum length of stay, the youth’s treatment team reviews 
and determines whether the youth meets program completion criteria.   

 
(B) The review and determination must occur at least:  
 

(i) 30 days before the expiration of the minimum length of stay for youth with a committing 
offense of low or moderate severity; or  

 
(ii) at least 90 days in advance for youth classified as Type A violent offenders before 

February 1, 2009, or youth with a committing or revocation offense of high severity. 
 
(C) If the treatment team determines the youth does not meet program completion criteria, the 

youth’s case is referred to the Release Review Panel for decision in accordance with 
§380.8557 of this title. 

 
(D) If the treatment team determines the youth does meet program completion criteria, the youth’s 

case is referred to the final decision authority. 
 

(2) Final Decision Authority for Approval of Release. 
 

(A)  The final decision authority will ensure the youth meets all release criteria and the community 
re-entry/transition plan adequately addresses risk factors prior to approving the release. 

 
(B) The final decision authority for youth classified as Type A violent offenders before February 1, 

2009, and youth with a committing offense of high severity is the executive director or his/her 
designee.  

 
(C) The final decision authority for all other non-sentenced offender youth is: 
 

(i) the facility administrator for youth assigned to a TJJD-operated facility; or 

229



Program Completion for Non-Sentenced Offenders GAP.380.8555 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(ii) the division director over residential services or his/her designee for youth assigned to a 

facility operated under contract with TJJD. 
 

(D) If the final decision authority approves the release, the youth must be placed on parole or 
parole status no later than 15 calendar days after the minimum length of stay date. 

 
(E) If the final decision authority does not approve the release, or if the youth loses release 

eligibility before the minimum length of stay date and the treatment team confirms that the 
youth no longer meets program completion criteria, the youth’s case is referred to the Release 
Review Panel. 

 
(f) Notifications. 
 

(1) TJJD notifies the youth, the youth’s parent/guardian, any designated advocate for the youth, and any 
identified victim(s) of the treatment team’s pending release review at least 15 days before the date of 
the review. 

 
(2) TJJD notifies the youth, the youth’s parent/guardian, and any designated advocate for the youth of 

the review decision at least 30 days before the expiration of the minimum length of stay. 
 
(3) TJJD provides the committing juvenile court a copy of the youth’s community re-entry/transition plan 

and a report concerning the youth’s progress while committed to TJJD no later than 30 days before 
the date of the youth’s release.  Additionally, if on release the youth is placed in another state or a 
county other than a county served by the committing juvenile court, TJJD provides the community 
re-entry/transition plan and progress report to a juvenile court having jurisdiction over the county of 
the youth’s residence. 

 
(4) TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s release:  
 

(A) the committing juvenile court;  
(B) the prosecuting attorney;  
(C) the youth’s parole officer;  
(D) the chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and 
(E) any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.  

 

 
 See CMS.02.50 and CMS.02.51 for procedures relating to the release process. 
 See CMS.02.77 for procedures relating to release of youth with non-immigration detainers. 
 See CMS.02.75 for procedures relating to release of undocumented foreign nationals. 
 See CMS.02.62 for procedures relating to the 30-day report to the committing court (CCF-180). 
 See CMS.02.63 for procedures relating to the 10-day release/transition notice (CCF-186). 

 See CMS.03.11 for procedures relating to the gang intervention education program. 

 See EDU.13.51 for procedures relating to participation in the reading program and Positive Behavioral Interventions and 
Supports system. 

230



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8559 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Program Completion and Release 

Rule: Program Completion for Sentenced Offenders 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-22; 3A-23; 3A-24; 3C-17; 5B-04; 5I-01, 5I-02 

Statute(s):  HR Code §§244.015, 245.051, 245.054; Education Code §30.106; Family 
Code §54.0491 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8559, 9/1/10 
 
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and the approval process for sentenced offender youth to 
qualify for release or transfer to parole by completing required programming.  

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies only to sentenced offenders.   
  
(2) This rule does not apply to sentenced offenders who are:  

 
(A) discharged due to expiration of the sentence or transferred to the Texas Department of 

Criminal Justice (TDCJ) by court order or by aging out of the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD). See §380.8565 of this title; or  

 
(B) adjudicated for capital murder. See §380.8569 of this title. 

 
(c) General Requirements.  
 

(1) A detainer or bench warrant is not an automatic bar to earned release. TJJD releases youth to 
authorities pursuant to a warrant. 

 
(2) To determine eligibility for release or transfer, TJJD reviews each youth’s progress: 
 

(A) six months after admission to TJJD;   
 
(B) when the minimum period of confinement is complete;  
 
(C) to determine eligibility/recommendation for transfer to TDCJ-Institutional Division (ID) or 

TDCJ-Parole Division (PD), on or before: 
 

(i) 18 years of age and 18 years and six months of age for youth committed on or after 
June 9, 2007; or 

(ii) 20 years of age and 20 years and six months of age for youth committed before June 9, 
2007; 

 
(D) within 45 days after revocation of parole, if applicable; and 
 
(E) at other times as appropriate.  
 

(3) TJJD notifies the youth, the youth’s parent/guardian, any designated advocate for the youth, and 
any identified victim(s) of a pending exit review/interview at least 30 days before the date of the 
review. The notification informs the recipients that they have the opportunity to submit written 
comments to TJJD.  The notification also informs the parent/guardian and any identified victim(s) 
that they may present information in person during the youth’s exit review process.  Any information 

231



Program Completion for Sentenced Offenders GAP.380.8559 
Page 2 of 4 

 
received from a youth’s family members, victims, local officials, staff, or the general public is 
considered by TJJD and included in the release/transfer packet. 

  
(4) Sentenced offenders must serve the entire minimum period of confinement applicable to their 

committing offense in high restriction facilities unless:  
 

(A) the youth is transferred to TDCJ-ID by the committing court. See §380.8565 of this title;  
(B) the youth is approved by the committing court to attain parole status before completion of 

serving the minimum period of confinement;  
(C) the youth’s sentence expires before the minimum period of confinement expires; or 
(D) the executive director waives such placement. 

 
(d) Program Completion Criteria.  

 
(1) A sentenced offender may be considered for release or transfer from a high restriction facility when the 

following criteria have been met:  
 

(A) no major rule violations confirmed through a Level I or II due process hearing within 90 days 
prior to the exit interview or during the approval process;  

 
(B) participation in or completion of assigned specialized treatment programs or curriculum as 

required under §380.8751 of this title;  
 
(C) assignment by the multi-disciplinary team to the highest stage in the assigned rehabilitation 

program as described in §380.8703 of this title, which reflects that the youth: 
 

(i) is consistently participating in academic and workforce development programs 
commensurate with abilities as reflected in the youth’s educational plan; 

 
(ii) is consistently participating in skills development groups, as reflected in the youth’s 

individual case plan; 
 
(iii) is consistently demonstrating learned skills, as reflected in the documentation of the 

youth’s behavior; and 
 
(iv) has completed a community reintegration plan, approved by the multi-disciplinary team, 

that demonstrates the youth’s: 
 

(I) understanding of his/her risk and protective factors; 
(II) development of skills, abilities, and knowledge to reduce risk factors and increase 

protective factors; 
(III) identification of goals and a plan of action to achieve those goals; and 
(IV) identification of obstacles that may hinder successful re-entry and plans to deal 

with those obstacles;  
 

(D) participation in or completion of any statutorily required rehabilitation programming, including 
but not limited to: 

 
(i) participation in a reading improvement program for identified youth to the extent 

required under §380.9155 of this title; 
 
(ii) participation in a positive behavioral interventions and supports system to the extent 

required under §380.9155 of this title; and 
 
(iii) completion of at least 12 hours of a gang intervention education program, if required by 

court order; and 
 

232



Program Completion for Sentenced Offenders GAP.380.8559 
Page 3 of 4 

 
(E) completion of:  
 

(i) all but nine months of the sentence if the sentence expires before the minimum period of 
confinement or simultaneously with the minimum period of confinement; or  

 
(ii) the entire minimum period of confinement if the sentence expires after the minimum 

period of confinement. 
 

(2) Youth are released to TJJD parole unless, at the time the youth meets program completion criteria, 
he/she is: 

 
(A) within two months before his/her 19th birthday, if committed to TJJD on or after June 9, 2007, 

in which case the youth will be transferred to TDCJ-PD; or  
 
(B) at least 19 years of age if committed to TJJD before June 9, 2007, in which case the youth will 

be transferred to TDCJ-PD. 
 
(e) Release or Transfer Approval.  
 
For sentenced offenders, the executive director or his/her designee is the final decision authority for release or 
transfer. The final decision authority will ensure that the youth meets all program completion criteria and that the 
community re-entry/transition plan adequately addresses risk before approving the release or transfer.    
 
(f) Loss of Release or Transfer Eligibility. 
 

(1) Eligibility for release or transfer is lost when any of the following occurs after the exit interview: 
 

(A) youth commits a major rule violation that is confirmed through a Level I or II due process 
hearing; or 

 
(B) the youth’s multi-disciplinary team determines that the youth no longer meets the required 

rehabilitation program criteria.  
 

(2) Except as described in paragraph (3) of this subsection, a youth who loses release or transfer 
eligibility will not be eligible for release or transfer until such time as the youth meets program 
completion criteria and a subsequent exit review/interview confirms eligibility.   

 
(3) If a youth is being considered for release or transfer nine months before his/her sentence completion 

and he/she loses eligibility for release or transfer, he/she will remain in high restriction until the 
sentence has expired. 

 
(g) Release or Transfer Date. 
 

(1) TJJD holds the exit interview within 14 calendar days after the date a youth meets program 
completion criteria as set forth in this rule.   

 
(2) If the youth meets program completion criteria, the youth is:   
 

(A) released to TJJD parole within 60 calendar days after the date the youth met program 
completion criteria, unless the youth loses release eligibility in which case the release process 
is re-initiated when the youth meets program completion criteria; or 

 
(B) transferred to TDCJ parole on or before the youth’s 19th birthday.    

 
(h) Notification. 
 

(1) TJJD provides the committing juvenile court a copy of the youth’s community re-entry/transition plan 

233



Program Completion for Sentenced Offenders GAP.380.8559 
Page 4 of 4 

 
and a report concerning the youth’s progress while committed to TJJD no later than 30 days before 
the date of the youth’s release or discharge.  Additionally, if on release the youth is placed in another 
state or a county other than a county served by the committing juvenile court, TJJD provides the 
community re-entry/transition plan and progress report to a juvenile court having jurisdiction over the 
county of the youth’s residence. 

 
(2) TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s release:  
 

(A) the committing juvenile court;  
(B) the prosecuting attorney;  
(C) the youth’s parole officer;  
(D) the chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and 
(E) any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.  

 

 

 See CMS.02.56 and CMS.02.57 for procedures relating to the release process. 

 See CMS.02.77  for procedures relating to release of youth with non-immigration detainers. 

 See CMS.02.75  for procedures relating to release undocumented foreign nationals to parole. 

 See CMS.02.62 for procedures relating to the 30-day report to the committing court (CCF-180). 

 See CMS.02.63 for procedures relating to the 10-day release/transition notice (CCF-186). 

 See CMS.03.11 for procedures relating to the gang intervention education program. 

 See EDU.13.51 for procedures relating to participation in the reading program and Positive Behavioral Interventions and 
Supports system. 

234



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8565 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Program Completion and Release 

Rule: Discharge of Sentenced Offenders upon Transfer to 
TDCJ or Expiration of Sentence 

 
ACA:  4-JCF-5I-01 

Statute(s):  HR Code §§244.014, 244.015, 245.054 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8565, 9/1/10 
 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and an approval process for:  
 
(1) requesting court approval to transfer sentenced offenders to adult prison; and  
 
(2) discharging sentenced offenders: 

 
(A) whose sentences have expired; or  
(B) who have not qualified for release or transfer based on completing required programming.  

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies only to the disposition of the original determinate sentence. 
 
(2) This rule applies only to sentenced offenders.  
 
(3) This rule does not apply to: 

 
(A) sentenced offenders who qualify for release or transfer to parole due to completion of required 

programming. See §380.8559 of this title; or 
(B) sentenced offenders adjudicated for capital murder. See §380.8569 of this title. 

 
(c) General Requirements. 
 

(1) By law, sentenced offenders are transferred from the custody of the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD) no later than the youth’s: 

  
(A) 19th birthday for youth committed to TJJD on or after June 9, 2007; or 
(B) 21st birthday for youth committed to TJJD before June 9, 2007. 
 

(2) Youth must serve the entire minimum period of confinement applicable to their committing offense in 
high restriction facilities unless:  

 
(A) the youth is transferred to Texas Department of Criminal Justice - Institutional Division (TDCJ-

ID) in accordance with legal requirements or committing court approval;  
(B) the youth is approved by the committing court to attain parole status before completion of the 

minimum period of confinement;  
(C) the youth’s sentence expires before the minimum period of confinement expires; or 
(D) the executive director waives such placement.  

 
(3) TJJD reviews each youth’s progress:  
 

(A) six months after admission to TJJD;  
(B) when the minimum period of confinement is complete;  

235



Discharge of Sentenced Offenders upon Transfer to TDCJ or Expiration  
of Sentence 

GAP.380.8565 
Page 2 of 4 

 
(C) to determine eligibility/recommendation for transfer to TDCJ-ID or the Texas Department of 

Criminal Justice - Parole Division (TDCJ-PD) on or before: 
 

(i) 18 years of age and 18 years and six months of age for youth committed on or after 
June 9, 2007; or 

(ii) 20 years of age and 20 years and six months of age for youth committed before June 9, 
2007; 

 
(D) within 45 days after revocation of parole, if applicable; and 
(E) at other times as appropriate.    
 

(4) TJJD notifies the youth, the youth’s parent/guardian, any designated advocate for the youth, and any 
identified victim(s) of a pending exit review/interview at least 30 days before the date of the review. 
The notification informs the recipients that they have the opportunity to submit written comments to 
TJJD. The notification also informs the parent/guardian and any identified victim(s) that they may 
present information in person during the youth’s exit review process.  Any information received from 
a youth’s family members, victims, local officials, staff, or the general public is considered by TJJD 
and included in the release/transfer packet. 

 
(5) TJJD jurisdiction is terminated and a youth is discharged when he/she is transferred to TDCJ or his/her 

sentence has expired, except when the youth is committed to TJJD under concurrent determinate and 
indeterminate commitment orders as specified in §380.8525 of this title.  

 
(d) Transfer Criteria. 
 

(1) Transfer to TDCJ-ID for Youth Whose Conduct Occurs While on Parole Status.  
 

TJJD may request a juvenile court hearing to recommend transfer of a youth to TDCJ-ID if all of the 
following criteria are met: 

 
(A) the youth’s parole has been revoked or the youth has been adjudicated or convicted of a felony 

offense;  
(B) the youth is at least age 16;  
(C) the youth has not completed his/her sentence; 
(D) the youth’s conduct indicates that the welfare of the community requires the transfer; and 
(E) the conduct leading to parole revocation, adjudication, or conviction occurred while on parole 

status. 
 

(2) Transfer to TDCJ-ID for Youth Whose Conduct Occurs While in High Restriction Facilities.   
 

TJJD may request a juvenile court hearing to recommend transfer of a youth in a high restriction facility 
to TDCJ-ID if the following criteria are met: 

 
(A) the youth is at least age 16; and 
 
(B) the youth has spent at least six months in high restriction facilities; and  
 
(C) the youth has not completed his/her sentence; and 
 
(D) the youth meets at least one of the following behavior criteria: 
 

(i) the youth has committed a felony or Class A misdemeanor while assigned to a 
residential facility; or 

 
(ii) the youth has committed major rule violations as confirmed though a Level I or II due 

process hearing on three or more occasions; or 
 

236



Discharge of Sentenced Offenders upon Transfer to TDCJ or Expiration  
of Sentence 

GAP.380.8565 
Page 3 of 4 

 
(iii) the youth has engaged in chronic disruption of program, which is defined as at least five 

security program admissions or extensions in one month or ten in three months (see 
§380.9740 of this title for information on the security program); or 

 
(iv) the youth has demonstrated an inability to progress in his/her rehabilitation program due 

to persistent non-compliance with objectives; and  
 

(E) alternative interventions have been tried without success; and 
 
(F) the youth’s conduct indicates that the welfare of the community requires the transfer.  

 
(3) Transfer to TDCJ-PD for Youth in High Restriction Facilities.  

 
A youth in a high restriction facility who has not completed transfer criteria in §380.8559 of this title 
and who has not received court approval for transfer to TDCJ-ID must be transferred to TDCJ-PD to 
complete his/her sentence:  
 
(A) no later than the youth’s 19th birthday, for youth committed on or after June 9, 2007; or 
(B) no later than the youth’s 21st birthday, for youth committed before June 9, 2007. 

 
(4) Transfer to TDCJ-PD for Youth on TJJD Parole.  

 
A youth on TJJD parole who has not completed his/her sentence must be transferred to TDCJ-PD 
no later than the youth’s:  
 
(A) 19th birthday, for youth committed on or after June 9, 2007; or 
(B) 21st birthday, for youth committed before June 9, 2007. 
 

(5) Youth Committed on or after June 9, 2007, Who Will Not Complete the Minimum Period of 
Confinement Before Age 19. 

 
For a youth sentenced on or after June 9, 2007 who will not have completed his/her minimum period 
of confinement upon reaching his/her 19th birthday, TJJD requests a court hearing to determine 
whether the youth will be transferred to TDCJ-ID or TDCJ-PD.  TJJD considers the following in 
forming a recommendation for the committing court:  
 
(A) length of stay in TJJD; 
(B) youth’s progress in the rehabilitation program; 
(C) youth’s behavior while in TJJD; 
(D) youth’s offense/delinquent history; and 
(E) any other relevant factors, such as: 

 
(i) risk factors and protective factors the youth possesses as identified in his/her 

psychological evaluation; and 
(ii) the welfare of the community. 

 
(e) Discharge Criteria. 
 

TJJD discharges youth from its jurisdiction when one of the following occurs: 
 

(1) expiration of the sentence imposed by the juvenile court, unless the youth is under concurrent 
commitment orders as described in §380.8525 of this title; or  

 
(2) the youth has been transferred to TDCJ-ID under court order or transferred to TDCJ-PD. 

 

237



Discharge of Sentenced Offenders upon Transfer to TDCJ or Expiration  
of Sentence 

GAP.380.8565 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(f) Decision Authority for Approval to Transfer. 
 

(1) TJJD does not transfer youth from a high restriction facility to TDCJ-PD until the executive director 
or his/her designee determines the youth’s community re-entry/transition plan adequately addresses 
risk factors. 

 
(2) When a determination has been made that the youth meets transfer criteria to TDCJ or cannot 

complete his/her minimum period of confinement before the expiration of TJJD’s jurisdiction, the 
executive director or his/her designee approves the request for a hearing by the committing juvenile 
court.    

 
(3) The committing juvenile court is the final decision authority for transferring a youth to TDCJ-ID.  

 
(g) Notification. 
 

(1) For youth who will not be returning to court for a transfer hearing, TJJD provides the committing 
juvenile court a copy of the youth’s community re-entry/transition plan and a report concerning the 
youth’s progress while committed to TJJD no later than 30 days before the date of the youth’s 
release or discharge.  Additionally, if on release the youth is placed in another state or a county 
other than a county served by the committing juvenile court, TJJD provides the community re-
entry/transition plan and progress report to a juvenile court having jurisdiction over the county of the 
youth’s residence. 
 

(2) TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s transfer: 
 

(A) the committing juvenile court;  
(B) the prosecuting attorney;  
(C) the youth’s parole officer;  
(D) the county chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and 
(E) any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.  

 

 
 See CMS.02.57 for procedures relating to the transfer to TDCJ-PD process. 

 See CMS.02.58 for procedures relating to the transfer to TDCJ-ID process. 

 See CMS.02.77 for procedures relating to transfer/discharge of youth with non-immigration detainers. 

 See CMS.02.75 for procedures relating to transfer/discharge of undocumented foreign nationals. 

 See CMS.02.62 for procedures relating to the 30-day report to the committing court (CCF-180). 

 See CMS.02.63 for procedures relating to the 10-day release/transition notice (CCF-186). 
 
 

238



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8569 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Program Completion and Release 

Rule: Transfer of Sentenced Offenders Adjudicated for Capital 
Murder 

 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-22, 3A-23 

Statute(s):  HR Code §244.015; Education Code §30.106; Family Code §54.0491 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8569 
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose.   
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and the approval process for transferring sentenced 
offenders adjudicated for capital murder to the Texas Department of Criminal Justice–Parole Division 
(TDCJ-PD) or the Texas Department of Criminal Justice–Institutional Division (TDCJ-ID).  

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

This rule applies only to sentenced offender youth adjudicated for capital murder.  
 
(c) General Provisions. 
 

(1) A detainer or bench warrant is not an automatic bar to earned release. The Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD) releases youth to authorities pursuant to a warrant. 

 
(2) TJJD reviews each youth’s progress: 
 

(A) six months after admission to TJJD; 
 
(B) when the minimum period of confinement is complete; 
 
(C) to determine eligibility/recommendation for transfer to TDCJ-ID or TDCJ-PD, on or before: 

 
(i) 18 years of age and 18 years and six months of age for youth committed on or after 

June 9, 2007; or 
 
(ii)  20 years of age and 20 years and six months of age for youth committed before June 9, 

2007; and 
 

(D) at other times as appropriate.  
 

(3) TJJD notifies the youth, the youth’s parent/guardian, any designated advocate for the youth, and any 
identified victim(s) of a pending exit review/interview at least 30 days before the date of the review. 
The notification informs the recipients that they have the opportunity to submit written comments to 
TJJD. The notification also informs the parent/guardian and any identified victim(s) that they may 
present information in person during the youth’s exit review process. Any information received from 
a youth’s family members, victims, local officials, staff, or the general public is considered by TJJD 
and included in the release/transfer packet. 

 
(4) Youth whose committing offense is capital murder must serve the entire minimum period of 

confinement applicable to the youth’s committing offense in high restriction facilities unless:  
 

(A) the youth is transferred to TDCJ-ID in accordance with legal requirements or committing court 
approval; or 

(B) the youth is approved by the committing court to attain parole status before completion of the 
minimum period of confinement; or 

(C) the youth’s sentence expires before the minimum period of confinement expires. 

239



Transfer of Sentenced Offenders Adjudicated for Capital Murder
GAP.380.8569 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

(5) A youth who has not received court approval to transfer to TDCJ-ID must be transferred to TDCJ-
PD no later than the age at which TJJD jurisdiction ends.  

 
(6) TJJD jurisdiction is terminated and a youth is discharged when he/she is transferred to TDCJ or his/her 

sentence has expired, except when the youth is committed to TJJD under concurrent determinate and 
indeterminate commitment orders as specified in §380.8525 of this title.  

 
(d) Program Completion Criteria.  
 

TJJD reviews youth for program completion and possible transfer to TDCJ-PD when the following criteria 
have been met:  

 
(1) no major rule violations confirmed through a Level I or II due process hearing within 90 days before 

the exit interview or during the approval process; and 
 
(2) completion of at least three years toward the minimum period of confinement; and 
 
(3) participation in or completion of assigned specialized treatment programs or curriculum as required 

under §380.8751 of this title; and  
 
(4) assignment by the multi-disciplinary team to the highest stage in the assigned rehabilitation program 

as described in §380.8703 of this title, which reflects that the youth: 
 

(A) is consistently participating in academic and workforce development programs commensurate 
with abilities as reflected in the youth’s educational plan; 

 
(B) is consistently participating in skills development groups, as reflected in the youth’s individual 

case plan; 
 
(C) is consistently demonstrating learned skills, as reflected in the documentation of the youth’s 

behavior; and 
 
(D) has completed a community reintegration plan, approved by the multi-disciplinary team, that 

demonstrates the youth’s: 
 

(i) understanding of his/her risk and protective factors; and 
 
(ii) development of skills, abilities, and knowledge to reduce risk factors and increase 

protective factors; and 
 
(iii) identification of goals and a plan of action to achieve those goals; and 
 
(iv) identification of obstacles that may hinder successful re-entry and plans to deal with 

those obstacles; and 
 

(E) participation in or completion of statutorily required rehabilitation programming, including but 
not limited to: 

 
(i) participation in a reading improvement program for identified youth to the extent 

required under §380.9155 of this title; 
 
(ii) participation in a positive behavioral interventions and supports system to the extent 

required under §380.9155 of this title; and 
 
(iii) completion of at least 12 hours of a gang intervention education program, if required by 

court order. 
 

240



Transfer of Sentenced Offenders Adjudicated for Capital Murder
GAP.380.8569 

Page 3 of 4 
 
(e) Youth Who Do Not Meet Program Completion Criteria. 
 

If the youth does not meet the criteria in subsection (d) of this section, TJJD recommends transfer to 
TDCJ-PD or TDCJ-ID to the committing juvenile court and will consider the following in forming its 
recommendation: 

 
(1) length of stay in TJJD; 
(2) youth’s progress in the rehabilitation program; 
(3) youth’s behavior while in TJJD; 
(4) youth’s offense/delinquent history; and 
(5) any other relevant factors, such as: 

 
(A) risk factors and protective factors the youth possesses as identified in his/her psychological 

evaluation; and 
(B) the welfare of the community. 

 
(f) Transfer to TDCJ–ID Before Termination of TJJD’s Jurisdiction. 

 
TJJD may request a juvenile court hearing to recommend transfer of a youth in a high restriction facility to 
TDCJ-ID if the following criteria are met: 

 
(1) the youth is at least age 16; and 
 
(2) the youth has spent at least six months in high restriction facilities; and 
 
(3) the youth has not completed his/her sentence; and  
 
(4) the youth meets at least one of the following behavior criteria: 

 
(A) the youth has committed a felony or Class A misdemeanor while assigned to a residential 

facility; or 
 
(B) the youth has committed major rule violations as confirmed through a Level I or II due process 

hearing on three or more occasions; or 
 
(C) the youth has engaged in chronic disruption of program, which is defined as at least five 

security program admissions or extensions in one month or ten in three months (See 
§380.9740 of this title for information on the security program.); or 

 
(D) the youth has demonstrated an inability to progress in his/her rehabilitation program due to 

persistent non-compliance with objectives; and 
 

(5) alternative interventions have been tried without success; and 
 
(6) the youth’s conduct indicates that the welfare of the community requires the transfer. 

 
(g) Decision Authority for Approval to Transfer. 

 
(1) No later than five months before a youth reaches the age at which TJJD’s jurisdiction ends, the 

executive director or his/her designee must:  
 

(A) determine whether the youth meets criteria under this rule for transfer to TDCJ-PD or transfer 
to TDCJ-ID; and 

(B) approve the request for a hearing by the committing juvenile court to transfer the youth to 
TDCJ-PD or TDCJ-ID. 

 

241



Transfer of Sentenced Offenders Adjudicated for Capital Murder
GAP.380.8569 

Page 4 of 4 
 

(2) The committing juvenile court is the final decision authority for transferring a youth to TDCJ-PD or 
TDCJ-ID.  

 
(h) Notification. 
 

TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s transfer:  
 
(1) the committing juvenile court;  
(2) the prosecuting attorney;  
(3) the youth’s parole officer;  
(4) the chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and 
(5) any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.   

 

 
 See CMS.02.57 for procedures relating to the transfer to TDCJ-PD process. 
 See CMS.02.58 for procedures relating to the transfer to TDCJ-ID process. 
 See CMS.02.77 for procedures relating to transfer of youth with non-immigration detainers. 
 See CMS.02.75 for procedures relating to transfer of undocumented foreign nationals. 
 See CMS.02.62 for procedures relating to the 30-day report to the committing court (CCF-180). 
 See CMS.02.63 for procedures relating to the 10-day release/transition notice (CCF-186). 

242



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 380/A AND 

THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §380.8501, §§380.8503 – 380.8555, §§380.8559 – 

380.8569, and §380.8575 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapter 380/A assigned to the State 

Programs and Facilities Division in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends additional changes to the rules; 

WHEREAS, one of the proposed changes is to renumber §380.8575 as §380.8533; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed, with changes as noted: 37 TAC §380.8501, §§380.8503 – 

380.8533, §§380.8545 - 380.8555, and §§380.8559 – 380.8569. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 243



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

244



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review for 

37 TAC Chapter 342 and Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: 

§§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8571, and §380.8595 

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Probation and Community Services Division 

proposed revisions to assigned rules from Chapters 342 and 380/A at the October 2013 

Board meeting. The Board approved posting the revisions and a notice of the rule review in 

the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, the staff recommends two minor changes to the proposed text: 

• In §342.3, clarify that it is the out-of-state entity, and not the contract, that must 

provide additional documentation before transferring a youth to a Texas facility. 

• In §380.8539 and §380.8595, the term “surveillance and supervision” will be 

replaced with “parole supervision” to use consistent terminology throughout TJJD 

rules. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

corrections as noted. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

245



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 ‐ Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 ‐ Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 342 ‐ Standards for Housing Non‐Texas Juveniles in Texas Detention and Correctional Facilities 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is 
the timeline for the revision?) 

342.1  Authority to House 
Out‐of‐State 
Juveniles 

Establishes that only a 
governmental unit or a private 
vendor operating under a contract 
with a governmental unit may 
house out‐of‐state juveniles. 

   Terminology updates  Ready for board adoption. 

342.2  Registration and 
Standards 
Compliance 

Establishes that facilities housing 
out‐of‐state juveniles must 
register with TJJD and are subject 
to TJJD standards. 

   Language has been added that 
requires a facility to possess a 
certification of suitability in 
accordance with the requirements 
in the Texas Family Code, §§51.12, 
51.125, and 51.126. 

 
 Terminology updates. 

 Ready for board adoption. 

342.3  Contracts with Other 
States for Housing 
Non‐Texas Juveniles 

This rule establishes that the 
facility must have a contract with 
each out‐of‐state entity that sends 
juveniles to the Texas facility. This 
rule also lists the mandatory 
provisions of the contract. 

   The list of mandatory contract 
provisions will now require the 
sending entity to: 

o fully disclose a juvenile’s record 
of  suicidal and self‐harming 
behaviors and sexually 
aggressive behaviors; 

o provide all appropriate and 
available mental health 
information for the juvenile; 
and  

o provide all appropriate and 
available education information 
for the juvenile. 

 
 Clarification is added to show that it 
is the authorizing governmental 
unit (e.g., juvenile board), not the 
facility administrator, who ensures 

Ready for board adoption. 

246



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision Identified by 

Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is 
the timeline for the revision?) 

there is a written contract for 
accepting out‐of‐state juveniles. 

 Terminology updates. 

 

247



T
P
C

 

 

 

§
T
a
c

 
§
(

(

 
§
T
e
 

 

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 342

§342.1 
The only entit
adjudication s
convicted of o

(1)  a 

(2)  a 
co
th

§342.2 
a)  Prior to 

(1)  be
re

(2)  po
C

(3) ad

b)  A facility
the facil

§342.3 
The authorizin
each out-of-st

(1)  re
se

 
(2) re
 

(A

 
(B

 
(C
 
(D

Public 
Texas J

2   Standa
Correct

Authority to

ies other than
secure correct
offenses comm

governmenta

private vendo
orrectional fac
his state. 

Registration

receiving out

e registered w
equirements i

ossess writte
Code §§51.12

dhere to the r

y housing out
lity with TJJD

Contracts w

ng governmen
tate entity tha

equire that all 
ending entity;

equire the out

A) the juven
harming 

B) all appro
screenin

C) all appro

D) all appro

Te
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
rds for Hou
tional Facil

Staff-Reco

o House Out-

n the state au
tional facility, 
mitted agains

al unit in this s

or operating a
cility, or non-s

n and Standa

t-of-state juve

with the Texa
n the Texas F

n certification
, 51.125, and

rules (i.e., sta

t-of-state juve
.  

with Other St

ntal unit must
at sends juven

juveniles con
  

t-of-state entit

nile’s record o
behaviors, a

opriate medica
ng or treatmen

opriate and av

opriate and av

exas Adm
Corrections
stice Depar

using Non-T
ities
ommended C

-of-State Juv

uthorized to op
or non-secur
t the laws of a

state; or  

a pre-adjudica
secure correc

ards Complia

eniles, each fa

s Juvenile Ju
Family Code §

n of suitability 
 51.126; and

andards) in Ch

eniles must id

ates for Hou

t ensure that t
niles to the Te

nfined pursua

ty to provide t

of institutiona
nd sexually a

al information
nt; 

vailable menta

vailable educa

ministrativ
s 
rtment 
Texas Juven

Changes in §

veniles

perate a pre-a
re correctiona
another state

ation secure d
ctional facility 

ance

acility must: 

stice Departm
§§51.12, 51.1

in accordanc

hapters 343, 3

entify the out

using Non-Te

there is a writ
exas facility. A

ant to the cont

the following 

l violence, es
aggressive be

n of the juveni

al health infor

ation informat

ve Code

niles in Tex

§342.3 are Ma

adjudication s
al facility in thi
e or the United

detention faci
under a cont

ment (TJJD) i
125, and 51.1

ce with the req

344, 345, 355

t-of-state pop

exas Juvenile

tten and fully 
At a minimum

tract be relea

information b

scape, attemp
ehaviors; 

ile, including 

rmation for th

tion for the ju

xas Detentio

arked 

secure detent
is state to hou
d States are: 

ility, post-adju
tract with a go

n accordance
126;  

quirements in

5, and 358 of 

ulations serve

es

executed ann
m, the contract

ased within the

before transfe

pted escape, s

certification fo

he juvenile; an

venile. 

on and 

Effec

tion facility, po
use juveniles
 

udication secu
overnmental u

Effec

e with the 

n the Texas F

this title.  

ed when regis

Effec

nual contract 
t must: 

e jurisdiction 

erring the juve

suicidal and s

or tuberculos

nd  

 

ctive Date 
ost-

ure 
unit in 

ctive Date 

Family 

stering 

ctive Date 

with 

of the 

enile: 

self-

is 

248



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 ‐ Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 ‐ Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 380 ‐ Rules for State‐Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter A ‐ Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 

(Probation and Community Services Division) 
 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8539 
(New #) 
 
380.8571 
(Old #) 

Home Placement  Establishes criteria for identifying 
a suitable parole placement for 
youth who have completed 
residential program requirements. 

Yes   The rule no longer limits the 
background and criminal 
history checks to the 
primary caregiver as a 
prerequisite to placing a 
youth in the home of a close 
family friend. These checks 
may now be conducted on 
any individual over the age 
of 14 in the home. 
 

 This rule has been 
renumbered as 380.8539 
(instead of 380.8571); 
therefore, this rule will now 
be in Division 3 (Placement 
Planning), which is a more 
appropriate location. 
 

 Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 

380.8595  Parole Completion 
and Discharge 

Establishes criteria for discharging 
non‐sentenced offenders from 
agency jurisdiction. 

Yes   Any entity that has issued 
an active warrant for the 
youth will now be notified 
at least 10 days before a 
youth is discharged. 
 

 Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 

 

249



Texas Juvenile Justice Department   GAP.380.8539 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities  
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, and Program Completion 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule:  Home Placement 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5I-02 
Statute(s):  Human Resources Code §245.015  

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8571, 

11/15/11 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 

 

RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) recognizes that positive contact with parents, family 
members, guardians, and other significant persons can greatly enhance a youth’s successful re-entry into 
the community. TJJD considers the totality of the home environment when making decisions regarding an 
appropriate home placement for youth.  The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria and procedures to 
identify a suitable parole placement for youth who have completed residential program requirements.  

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This policy applies to youth who will be placed on parole prior to age 19. 
 
(2) This policy does not apply to sentenced offenders whose minimum period of confinement will expire 

within two months prior to the youth’s 19th birthday or after the 19th birthday, because the youth, if 
released to parole, will be under the supervision of the Texas Department of Criminal Justice-Parole 
Division. 

 
(c) Definitions.  
 

As used in this rule, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 

 
(1) Close Family Friend--a person at least 21 years of age who has a longstanding, significant 

relationship with the youth.  Examples may include a godparent or someone considered to be an 
aunt or uncle even though not related to the youth. 

 
(2) Guardian--has the meaning assigned in Chapter XIII, Section 601 of the Probate Code. 
 
(3) Parent--an individual who has established a parent-child relationship under §160.201 of the Family 

Code. Parent does not include an individual whose parental rights have been terminated. 
 
(4) Relative--any person at least 21 years of age, other than a parent, who is: 
 

(A) currently related to the youth in any of the following ways by blood or adoption: grandparent, 
sibling, great-grandparent, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, first cousin, first cousin once-removed 
(the child of one’s first cousin), second cousin (the child of the first cousin of one’s parent), 
great uncle, or great aunt;  

 
(B) the spouse of the youth or a person listed in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph; or 
 
(C) the youth’s step-father, step-mother, or adult step-sibling. 
 

(d) General Provisions. 
 

(1) TJJD attempts to place paroled youth in the home of the youth’s custodial parent(s) or legal guardian 
whenever possible.  All parole placements are made consistent with the best interests, safety, 
rehabilitative needs, and special needs of the youth. 

250



Title:   Home Placement GAP.380.8539 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
(2) TJJD may place a youth at the following placements: 
 

(A) home of the custodial parent(s) or legal guardian; 
(B) home of the non-custodial parent; 
(C) home of a relative; 
(D) home of a close family friend; 
(E) program placement such as a halfway house, subsidized independent living, or foster home; 

or 
(F) if the youth meets required parole supervision and surveillance levels, an unsupervised home 

location such as an apartment, dormitory, or homeless shelter. 
 

(3) TJJD considers input from the youth, the youth’s parents/guardian, and relatives when determining 
the parole placement that is in the youth’s best interest. 

 
(4) For youth under supervision of both the Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) and 

TJJD, TJJD collaborates with DFPS to determine the appropriate home placement. 
 
(5) TJJD will conduct home placement assessments for youth referred for parole supervision through 

the Texas Interstate Compact for Juveniles Office according to the rules of the Interstate 
Commission for Juveniles. 

 
(6) TJJD may conduct background and criminal history checks of individuals over the age of 14 as a 

prerequisite to placing a youth in the home of a close family friend. Confidential criminal history 
record information will not be released or disclosed except on court order or with the consent of the 
individual who is the subject of the criminal history record information. Criminal records obtained 
pursuant to this rule will be destroyed after completion of the home placement decision. 

 
(7) For youth under age 18 whose parents cannot be located or refuse to allow the youth to return home 

and TJJD is unable to locate a placement with a relative, TJJD will refer the matter to DFPS. 
 
(8) Based on a consideration of the youth’s best interests and public safety, the executive director or 

his/her designee may make exceptions to provisions of this rule on a case-by-case basis. 
 
(e) Placement Assessment. 
 

(1) The assigned parole officer must evaluate the parole placement options of each youth upon 
commitment to TJJD. If it is determined that the home of the custodial parent/legal guardian is not 
available for a parole placement, alternative placement options will be identified in consultation with 
the youth’s case manager, the youth, and when possible, the youth’s parent/guardian. 

 
(2) The assigned parole officer must assess the home of each youth in his/her jurisdiction, provide a 

parent/parole orientation, and determine whether the home is approved or disapproved for 
placement. The home placement assessment will be completed in the home where the youth will be 
placed.  

 
(3) The home placement assessment status may be changed but only as a result of a follow-up home 

placement assessment by the assigned parole officer. 
 
(4) A completed home placement assessment is considered current for 12 months. Home placement re-

assessments are conducted annually. 
 
(5) Any time new evidence or special circumstances warrant, a follow-up home placement assessment 

must be conducted. 
 

251



Title:   Home Placement GAP.380.8539 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

(f) Disapproval Criteria for Home Placements. 
 

(1) A home may be disapproved if one or more of the following criteria exists and can be documented: 
 

(A) physical abuse; 
 
(B) sexual abuse; 
 
(C) physical absence of parent caretaker due to criminal incarceration or physical/psychiatric 

hospitalization; 
 
(D) serious physical/survival neglect; 
 
(E) legal termination of parental rights for youth under 18 years of age; 
 
(F) the youth is a sex offender, the victim or a potential victim resides in the home, and 

requirements for family reintegration have not been met; 
 
(G) the legal head of household cannot or will not supervise the youth and/or the youth is not 

welcome in the home; or 
 
(H) the home being assessed is that of a close family friend and there is documented evidence 

that an individual in the home has a criminal or other background that would present or has 
presented a negative and/or unsafe influence or impact on the youth. 

 
(2) If a home is disapproved, parole staff must provide supports and services to the family that will assist 

with addressing safety or other issues identified as disapproval criteria. A disapproved home may 
later be approved as a placement if the assigned parole staff determines specific actions have been 
taken to address the identified issues.   
 

(3) If a home is not approved, parole staff must provide the parent(s) or legal head of household with 
written notice of the disapproval, the reasons for the disapproval, any action that may be taken to 
correct a deficiency, and information concerning the right to file a grievance concerning the decision. 

 
(g) Non-Relative Placements. 
 

(1) Youth under 18 years of age may only be placed with a close family friend or in an unsupervised 
home location if approved by the executive director or his/her designee, and for placements with a 
close family friend, only if appropriate criminal history checks have been conducted. 
 

(2) If a parent/guardian objects to a non-relative placement, the objection will be considered in the final 
decision. 

 

 
See CMS.12.05 for implementation procedures. 

252



Texas Juvenile Justice Department GAP.380.8595 
General Administrative Policy Manual  
 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge  
Division: Parole Placement and Discharge  

Rule: Parole Completion and Discharge  
 
ACA: N/A   

Statute(s): HR Code §244.005, §245.151   

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8595, 11/1/11
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish criteria for discharging youth from the jurisdiction of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).  

 

(b) Applicability. 
  

This rule applies only to non-sentenced offenders.  Refer to §380.8565 of this title for information relating 
to discharge of sentenced offenders.  

 

(c) Discharge Criteria. 
 

(1) Discharge Due to Successful Completion of Parole. 
 

(A) Youth who have never been classified as a Type A Violent offender and whose committing 
offense(s) are of moderate or low severity may qualify for discharge upon completion of the 
following criteria: 

 
(i) successful completion of the pre-discharge level of parole surveillance and supervision; 
 
(ii) compliance with the youth’s conditions of parole, based on the individual needs 

assessment; 
 
(iii) no pending delinquency petitions or criminal charges; 
 
(iv) completion of 60 hours of community service as specified in the youth’s conditions of 

parole (credit is granted for community service performed while in a medium restriction 
facility, if applicable); and 

 
(v) completion of 40 hours of constructive activities as defined on the conditions of parole 

each week for at least 30 days. Constructive activity includes, but is not limited to time 
spent working, attending school, attending treatment/counseling, completing community 
service, actively searching for employment, and providing direct supervision to a child. 

 
(B) The executive director or his/her designee may approve the discharge of a youth prior to 

completion of the requirements in subparagraph (A) of this paragraph when consideration of 
a youth’s committing offense, behavior, history, and progress towards completion of parole 
conditions justifies an earlier discharge. 

 

(2) Direct Discharge from Residential Facility by Release Review Panel. 
 

Pursuant to §380.8557 of this title, the Release Review Panel may discharge a youth directly from a 
residential placement upon a finding that the youth is no longer in need of rehabilitation or that TJJD 
is no longer the most suitable location to provide the needed rehabilitation. 
 

(3) Discharge Due to Age. 
 

(A) Youth committed to TJJD before February 1, 2009, who were ever classified as Type A 
Violent offenders or youth committed to TJJD on or after February 1, 2009, with committing or 
revocation offenses of high severity are discharged on: 

253



Parole Completion and Discharge GAP.380.8595 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

(i) the day before the 19th birthday, if the youth is assigned to a residential facility; or 
(ii) the last working day prior to the 19th birthday, if the youth is assigned to a non-

residential placement. 
 

(B) Any youth who has not previously been discharged due to successful completion of parole or 
by the Release Review Panel is discharged on: 
 
(i) the day before the 19th birthday, if the youth is assigned to a residential facility; or 
(ii) the last working day prior to the 19th birthday, if the youth is assigned to a non-

residential placement. 
 

(C) A youth on parole status who is discharged due to age is considered to have successfully 
completed parole if the youth: 

 
(i) is not in jail or on abscond status; 
(ii) has no pending delinquency petitions or criminal charges; and  
(iii) has substantially complied with all parole requirements. 

 
(4) Discharge due to Special Circumstances. 

 
(A) Youth who have never been classified as a Type A Violent offender and do not have a 

committing offense of high severity may be discharged prior to completion of parole 
requirements to enlist in the military. Only the executive director may approve such a 
discharge.   

 
(B) Youth placed out of state may be discharged when requested by the placement state for 

satisfactory adjustment or when court action is taken by the placement state. Only the  
executive director may approve such a discharge. 

 
(C) Youth who have completed length-of-stay requirements and who are unable to progress in the 

agency’s rehabilitation program because of mental  illness or mental retardation may be 
discharged as specified in §380.8779 of this title.   

 
(D) Youth who have never been classified as a Type A Violent offender and do not have a 

committing offense of high severity who are age 18 or older may be discharged prior to 
completion of parole requirements in order to obtain appropriate services. Only the executive 
director may approve such a discharge.  

 
(E) Youth may be discharged for special circumstances other than those addressed in 

subparagraphs (A) - (D) of this paragraph upon the executive director’s approval. 
 

(5) Other Types of Discharges. 
 

(A) TJJD discharges youth when:  
 

(i) the youth is placed on actively supervised adult probation for conduct that occurred 
while on TJJD parole status;  

 
(ii) the youth is sentenced for a minimum of 180 days in a state or county jail as part of the 

disposition of a criminal case; 
 

(iii) the court orders a reversal of the commitment;  
 
(iv) records are closed following a youth’s death; or 
 
(v) the youth is sentenced to the Texas Department of Criminal Justice – Institutional 

Division. 
 

254



Parole Completion and Discharge GAP.380.8595 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(d) Notification. 
 

(1) TJJD immediately notifies the youth of the discharge and provides  the youth and the 
parent/guardian a written explanation of procedures for sealing records.  

 
(2) TJJD notifies the following at least ten calendar days before the youth’s discharge or as soon as 

practicable:  
 

(A) the committing juvenile court;  
(B) the prosecuting attorney;  
(C) the youth’s parole officer;  
(D) the county chief juvenile probation officer in the county to which the youth is being moved; and 
(E)  any entity that has issued an active warrant for the youth.  

 

 
For discharge and notification procedures, see CMS.02.63, CMS.02.65, and CMS.12.21.  
 

255



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTERS 342 AND 

380/A AND THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8571, and 

§380.8595 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapters 342 and 380/A assigned to 

the Probation and Community Services Division in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends additional, minor changes to the rules; 

WHEREAS, one of the proposed changes is to renumber §380.8571 as §380.8539; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed, with changes as noted: 37 TAC §§342.1 - 342.3, §380.8539, 

and §380.8595. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 
256



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and rule review for 

37 TAC Chapter 380, Subchapter A, for the following rules: §380.8502, §380.8557, 

and §380.8579 

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Office of General Counsel proposed revisions to 

assigned rules from Chapter 380/A at the October 2013 Board meeting. The Board 

approved posting the revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, the staff recommends two minor changes to the proposed text in 

§380.8502: 

• clarify that “upon a youth’s acceptance to TJJD, TJJD will issue a written receipt to 

the entity delivering the youth”; and  

• replace the term “undocumented alien” with “undocumented foreign national” to 

use consistent terminology throughout TJJD rules. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

corrections as noted. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

257



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 ‐ Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 ‐ Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 380 ‐ Rules for State‐Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter A ‐ Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 

(Office of General Counsel) 
 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
380.8502  Legal Requirements 

for Admission 
Establishes what documents are 
necessary when a juvenile court 
commits a juvenile to TJJD. 

Yes  Terminology updates.  Ready for board adoption. 

380.8535 
(New #) 
 
380.8579 
(Old #) 

Undocumented 
Foreign Nationals 
(New Name) 

Establishes procedures for TJJD to 
work with United States 
Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement (ICE) to determine 
the residency status of youth who 
are undocumented foreign 
nationals. 

 Yes   The rule will now require 
TJJD to contact ICE if TJJD 
does not have 
documentation identifying 
the residency status of a 
committed youth. (The 
current rule requires TJJD to 
contact ICE only when ICE 
has already issued an 
immigration detainer for the 
youth.) 

 
 Renumbered as 380.8535 
(instead of 380.8579) so this 
rule will now be in Division 3, 
which is a more appropriate 
location. 
 

 Terminology updates. 

Ready for board adoption. 

380.8557  Release Review 
Panel 

Establishes the Release Review 
Panel by outlining the 
qualifications of the panel 
members, what evidence they 
must consider, and their overall 
function. 

Yes   The Release Review Panel’s 
decision to release or 
discharge a youth with a 
Type A – Violent or High 
Severity committing offense 
will no longer be subject to 
approval by the executive 

Ready for board adoption. 

258



Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
director. 
 

 A procedure has been added 
to notify a youth’s identified 
victim(s) when the youth’s 
case is referred to the panel 
for review at the conclusion 
of an extension length of 
stay. 
 

 Clarification had been added 
concerning what information 
should be included in a 
reconsideration request. 
 

 Terminology updates. 
 

259



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8502 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, Release, and Discharge 
Division: Commitment and Reception 

Rule: Legal Requirements for Admission 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-21 

Statute(s):  HR Code §243.005  

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8502, 9/1/09 

 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE  
 
(a) The purpose of this rule is to establish documentation required and requested by the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Department (TJJD) from each juvenile court committing youth to TJJD. 
 
(b) The committing court must submit all documents referenced in Texas Human Resources Code 

§243.005. 
 
(c) TJJD requests the following additional documents from the committing court: 
 

(1) detention order(s) (initial and subsequent) for offense(s) that resulted in commitment to TJJD; 
 
(2) for sentenced offenders, the amount of time spent in detention in connection with the offense for 

which the youth was sentenced.  It is preferable for the detention information to be included in the 
Order of Commitment; and 

 
(3) education records, including any special education records. 
 

(d) No youth, under any circumstance, will be admitted to TJJD without immunization records (except for 
undocumented foreign nationalaliens) and a certified copy of the order of commitment. All other 
documents may be received after admission. 
 

(e) Before TJJD admits the youth, TJJD intake staff will review the commitment order to determine if, on its 
face, it meets all requirements for a proper commitment. TJJD will not look beyond the document itself 
for determining whether a commitment is proper. 

 
(f)  Upon a youth’s acceptance to TJJD, TJJD will issue a written receipt to the entity delivering the youth. 
 

260



Texas Juvenile Justice Department   GAP.380.8535 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, and Program Completion 
Division: Placement Planning 

Rule: Undocumented Foreign Nationals 
 
ACA:  N/A  

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.8579, 9/1/10  

 
 

RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish guidelines for the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) to 
work with United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) concerning youth who are 
undocumented foreign nationals.   

 
(b) Definitions. 
 

Undocumented Foreign National--A foreign-born youth who does not have legal authorization to reside 
in the United States. 

 
(c) General Provisions. 
 

(1) TJJD will not detain an undocumented foreign national in a secure facility for the sole purpose of 
deportation. An ICE detainer is not an automatic bar to earned release.  

 
(2) TJJD will work with ICE to determine the residency status of a youth who does not have 

documentation identifying his/her residency.  
 

(3) TJJD will notify ICE of the release date of a youth 10 days prior to release from a high 
restriction/secure facility if ICE has issued a detainer for the youth.  

 
 (4) If ICE fails to pick up a youth on or before the release date, TJJD will proceed with placement 

options for the youth. TJJD may hold a youth after the scheduled release date for pick up by ICE, 
but such a hold may not exceed 48 hours after the scheduled release date.  

 
(5) TJJD monitors the cases of youth detained by ICE until the youth are discharged from TJJD.  

 

 
See CMS.02.75 for implementation procedures. 

 
 

261



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.8557 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 

Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Admission, Placement, and Program Completion 
Division: Program Completion and Release 

Rule:  Release Review Panel 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-22, 3A-23, 3A-25 
Statute(s): HR Code §§245.101 - 245.104  

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces:  GAP.380.8557, 9/15/11
 

 
RULE  
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

This rule establishes a Release Review Panel to determine whether a youth who has completed his/her 
minimum length of stay should be discharged from the custody of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
(TJJD), released under supervision, or given an extended length of stay. This rule also establishes a 
process to request reconsideration of an order issued by the Release Review Panel. 

 
(b) Applicability. 
 

This rule applies to all youth committed to the TJJD without a determinate sentence who have completed 
the minimum length of stay and have not been approved for release under §380.8555 of this title.  

 
(c) Definitions. 
 

Except as specified in this subsection, see §380.8501 of this title for definitions of terms used in this rule. 
The following terms, as used in this rule, have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 
 
(1) Clear and Convincing Evidence – a standard of proof meaning that measure or degree which will 

produce in the mind of the trier of facts a firm belief or conviction as to the position sought to be 
established; more than a preponderance of the evidence, but less than beyond a reasonable doubt. 

 
(2) Extension Length of Stay – a period of time in addition to the minimum length of stay that a youth 

is required to remain in residential placements.  An extension length of stay may only be assigned 
by the Release Review Panel in accordance with provisions of this rule. 

 
(3) Major Rule Violation – a violation in the most serious category of rule violations for residential 

facilities, as listed in §380.9503 of this title. 
 
(4) Progress Review Team – the multi-disciplinary team as defined in §380.8501 of this title or TJJD 

contract placement monitoring staff who are designated to assess a youth’s progress in treatment 
programming. 

 
(5) Release Review Panel (or Panel) – the TJJD Central Office staff members appointed to determine 

if a youth who has completed his/her minimum length of stay will be discharged, released, or given 
an extended length of stay. 

 
(6) Residential Placement - a high or medium restriction facility, as defined in §380.8527 of this title. 

 
(d) General Provisions. 
 

(1) Panel Members. 
 

(A) The panel must consist of an odd number of members appointed by the executive director for 
terms of at least two years.  

 

262



Title: Release Review Panel GAP.380.8557 
Page 2 of 4 

 
(B) Each member of the panel must be a TJJD employee who works at the TJJD Central Office.  

Panel members may not be involved in any supervisory decisions concerning youth in the 
custody of TJJD. 

 
(2) Evidence Used by the Panel.  
 

(A) The panel may review any information relevant to the youth’s progress and rehabilitation. 
 
(B) Evidence of factors other than rule violations may be considered by the panel irrespective of 

its form.  
 
(C) A youth, the parents/guardian of a youth, victims of a youth, or any advocate chosen by a 

youth may submit information for the panel’s consideration.  Information and arguments 
should be submitted to the panel in writing on or before the expiration of the youth’s minimum 
length of stay, or if applicable, expiration of the extension length of stay.  A youth may request 
assistance from any TJJD staff member, volunteer, or advocate in communicating with the 
panel. 

 
(D) A parent/guardian, victim, or person representing a youth may make a written request for 

personal communication with a member of the panel before the expiration of the youth’s 
minimum length of stay, or if applicable, expiration of the extension length of stay.  The time, 
place, and manner of communication will be established by the panel.  

 
(E) The panel may, at its discretion, interview the youth or any other individual who may have 

information relevant to the youth’s rehabilitation needs.  When notified that a youth has a 
representative assisting him/her with the review, the panel must notify the representative of 
any scheduled interviews with the youth prior to conducting the interview.  A youth’s refusal to 
speak to the panel is not held against the youth when making the release decision. 

 
(F) To be considered as a factor in a determination to extend a youth’s stay, a violation of the 

rules of conduct must have been proven via due process, which provides advance written 
notice of the alleged violation, a written statement by the fact finder of the evidence relied 
upon and the reason for the decision, an opportunity to call witnesses and present evidence, 
and a neutral decision maker.   

 
(3) Deadline for Release or Discharge.  

 
(A) If the panel determines that a youth's length of stay should not be extended, TJJD must 

release or discharge the youth within 15 calendar days after the date of the panel decision. 
 
(B) A request for reconsideration of a release or discharge order may temporarily delay the 

release or discharge of the youth until the panel reaches a decision on the request in 
accordance with timeframes established in subsection (g)(7) of this section. 

 
(e) Completion of Minimum Length of Stay. 
 

(1) Referral by the Progress Review Team. 
 
At least 30 calendar days prior to the expiration of a youth’s minimum length of stay, the progress 
review team must determine whether or not the youth meets program completion criteria as 
established in §380.8555 of this title or is likely to meet such criteria on or before his/her minimum 
length of stay date.   
 
If the progress review team determines the youth does not meet program completion criteria, is not 
likely to meet program completion criteria on or before his/her minimum length of stay date, or 
recommends discharge of the youth, the following actions must occur: 

 

263



Title: Release Review Panel GAP.380.8557 
Page 3 of 4 

 
(A) The progress review team or facility designee must notify the youth, parent/guardian, and any 

identified victims that the case has been referred to the panel for review. 
 
(B) The progress review team must discuss with the youth the reasons for the decision to refer the 

youth’s case to the panel. 
 
(C) Before the date the minimum length of stay expires, the progress review team must submit to 

the panel any information relevant to the decision on whether the youth is in need of additional 
rehabilitation in a residential placement. 
 

(2) Panel Decision. 
 

(A) Not later than 30 calendar days after expiration of the youth’s minimum length of stay, the  
panel must make a determination as to whether TJJD will discharge the youth, release the 
youth, or extend the youth’s stay in a residential placement. 

 
(B) The panel may extend the youth's stay only if the panel determines by majority vote and on 

the basis of clear and convincing evidence that: 
 

(i) the youth is in need of additional rehabilitation from TJJD; and  
(ii) a residential placement will provide the most suitable environment for that rehabilitation. 

 
(C) The panel’s determination may include assessments of factors including, but not limited to, the 

following: 
 

(i) the youth’s efforts to reduce individual risk factors and increase individual protective 
factors; 

(ii) degree and quality of the youth’s participation in available treatment programs; 
(iii) behavior during the youth’s length of stay; and  
(iv) participation in and/or completion of statutorily required or court-ordered treatment 

programs. 
 

(D) If the panel extends the length of a youth’s stay, the panel must: 
 

(i) specify the additional period of time that the youth must remain in residential 
placements; and 

 
(ii) provide a written report explaining the reason for the extension to the youth, parent/ 

guardian, and any designated advocate.  The report must be provided within ten 
calendar days after the date of the panel decision. 

 
(f) Completion of Extension Length of Stay. 
 

(1) Facility Review. 
 

Before a youth completes an extension length of stay, the progress review team must review 
whether the youth has met or is likely to meet program completion criteria on or before the 
completion of his/her extension length of stay.  If the youth has not met or is not likely to meet 
program completion criteria, the facility must refer the youth’s case to the panel. The progress 
review team or facility designee must notify any identified victims that the case has been referred to 
the panel for review.   

 
(2) Notification. 

 
At least seven calendar days before the expiration of an extension length of stay, the panel must 
notify the youth and the youth’s parents/guardian that the youth’s case is pending review before the 
panel. 
 

264



Title: Release Review Panel GAP.380.8557 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(3) Panel Decision. 

 
Not later than 30 calendar days after expiration of the youth’s extension length of stay,  the panel will 
conduct a review and make a determination to discharge the youth, release the youth, or extend the 
length of stay in a residential placement.  The panel must mail notification to all parties of the 
decision within ten calendar days after the date of the decision. 
 

(g) Request for Reconsideration of an Extension Order. 
 

(1) A request for reconsideration of an extension order may be submitted by: 
 

(A) the youth, 
(B) the youth’s parent/guardian,  
(C) the youth’s designated advocate,  
(D) the youth’s victim(s),  
(E) a TJJD employee,  
(F) an employee of a TJJD contractor, or  
(G) a person who provides volunteer services at a TJJD facility.  

 
(2) The request for reconsideration must be in writing and should be received by the panel within 15 

calendar days after the date of the written notice explaining the reason for the extension. 
 
(3) The youth may request assistance from any TJJD staff member, volunteer, or advocate in 

completing a request for reconsideration. 
 
(4) The person submitting the request for reconsideration must state in the request the reason for the 

request. The request should relate to the reasons given for the extension or be based on relevant 
information concerning the youth’s programming and treatment progress.   

 
(5) Upon receipt of a request for reconsideration, the panel must reconsider an extension order that: 
 

(A) extends the youth's stay in TJJD custody by six months or more; or 
(B) will result in an extension of the youth's stay in TJJD custody by six months or more when 

combined with previous extension orders. 
 
(6) The panel may, at its discretion, accept requests for reconsideration other than those described in 

paragraph (5) of this subsection.  
 
(7) For reconsideration requests accepted by the panel, the panel must provide a written reply to all 

parties with an explanation of the panel's decision no later than 15 calendar days after receipt of the 
request.  The reply must include an indication that the panel has considered the information 
submitted in the request. 

 
(8) A reconsideration decision by the panel exhausts all administrative remedies regarding release after 

expiration of the minimum length of stay. 
 

(h) Request for Reconsideration of a Release or Discharge Order.  
 
The facility administrator or appropriate contract care monitoring staff may request reconsideration of a 
release or discharge order at any time prior to the youth’s release or discharge if new information becomes 
available or the youth is alleged to have committed a major rule violation of which the panel was unaware 
at the time of its original decision. The facility must provide the youth a copy of the request for 
reconsideration. The youth may provide information to the panel concerning the reason(s) for the request. 

 
 
See CMS.02.53 for implementation procedures. 

265



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 380/A AND 

THE RULE REVIEW FOR THE FOLLOWING RULES: §380.8502, §380.8557, and §380.8579 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of rules in Chapter 380/A assigned to the Office 

of General Counsel in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends additional, minor changes to the rules; 

WHEREAS, one of the proposed changes is to renumber §380.8579 as §380.8535; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to the following rules as proposed, with changes as noted: 37 TAC §380.8502, §380.8535, and 

§380.8557. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

266



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9198, 

relating to Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health Purposes 

Date: January 8, 2014 

  

At its October 2013 meeting, the Texas Juvenile Justice Board approved the posting of 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9198 (Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental 

Health Purposes) in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period.   

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rule.  However, the staff recommends a minor change to the proposed text: 

• Paragraph (f)(4)(G) will be re-numbered as (f)( 4)(C) to correct a drafting error. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rule, with the correction as noted.  

 

For reference, the following is a summary of the changes, which were reviewed at the 

October 2013 meeting: 

General Changes: 

• The rule no longer refers to these kinds of restraints as therapeutic restraints.   

• The rule has been narrowed to apply only to four-point restraints, rather than all 

restraints used for medical or mental health purposes. This has always been the intent, 

but it was not clear in the previous version.  

• Four-point restraint chairs are now allowed, in addition to restraint beds. 

• Clarification has been added to reflect that four-point restraints are not authorized for 

any reason other than medical or mental health purposes. 

267



Medical Four-Point Restraints: 

• The rule now allows four-point medical restraints only at facilities that have been 

authorized by the executive director to use them. 

• Justification for use of medical restraints now requires a determination that transfer to 

an emergency room is not immediately feasible. 

• The rule no longer allows medical restraints to last for 12 hours.  If restraint is still 

needed after one hour, the treatment plan must include transfer to an emergency 

room or other appropriate facility. 

Mental Health Four-Point Restraints 

• The mental health professional must now conduct a face-to-face evaluation of the 

youth before the end of the second hour of the restraint (rather than the end of the first 

hour).  

• Before the end of the fourth hour, the psychiatric provider must now be notified of the 

situation and the youth’s status. 

• Consultation with the psychiatric provider is now required at the 8-hour mark (rather 

than the 12-hour mark).  

• The rule no longer requires the psychiatric provider to directly observe the youth at 

the 12-hour mark. If restraint is still required: 

o the provider must provide written orders to extend the restraint; and 

o the designated mental health professional (i.e., doctoral-level) must provide 

written instructions for continued assessment and monitoring. 

• The rule now requires a specially trained, on-site staff member to be assigned to 

manage the entire restraint incident. 

268



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9198 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 12/19/13    
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Program Services 
Division: Healthcare Services 

Rule: Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health 
Purposes 

 
ACA:  4-JCF-2A-18(M), 4C-47(M) 

Statute(s):  N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 

 
Replaces:  GAP380.9198, 11/1/11 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

This rule establishes the criteria, procedures, and limitations for use of four-point restraints when used for 
medical or mental health purposes. 
 

(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies to all residential facilities operated by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
(TJJD) that are authorized to administer four-point restraints.  

 
(2) This rule applies only to four-point mechanical restraints. For all other types of restraint used for 

medical or mental health purposes, provisions of §380.9723 of this title apply. 
 

(c) Additional References. 
 

For criteria and procedures on administering a psychotropic drug in a psychiatric emergency when a youth 
will not give consent for the administration, see §380.9192 of this title. 
 

(d) Definitions. 
 

(1) Designated Mental Health Professional--has the meaning assigned by §380.9187 of this title. 
 
(2) Four-Point Restraint--a professionally manufactured and commercially available restraint chair or 

bed designed to secure both arms and both legs to the chair or bed with cloth or leather straps. 
 
(3) Medical Provider--a: 
 

(A) Texas-licensed physician; or  
(B) Texas-licensed mid-level practitioner, such as a nurse practitioner or physician assistant, 

acting under the authorization of a physician.  
 
(4) Mental Health Professional--has the meaning assigned by §380.9187 of this title. 
 
(5) Psychiatric Provider--a:  
 

(A) Texas-licensed psychiatrist; or 
(B) Texas-licensed psychiatric physician assistant or psychiatric nurse practitioner acting under 

the authorization of a psychiatrist.  
 
(e) General Provisions. 
 

(1) Four-point restraints may only be used for medical or mental health purposes as described by this 
rule. Four-point restraints may not be used for any other purpose. 

 
(2) Restraint equipment used for medical or mental health purposes must be used only in a manner 

consistent with its intended design and purpose. 
 
(3) Only restraint equipment approved by the executive director or designee may be used in TJJD 

facilities. 
 

269



Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health Purposes GAP.380.9198 
Page 2 of 4 

 
(4) TJJD staff who may be expected to participate in application of four-point restraints or monitoring, 

managing, or approving the restraint must receive special training and may not participate in its 
implementation until the training has been received. The training will include proper use and 
application of restraint devices and applicable TJJD policies and guidelines regarding the 
implementation, documentation, and possible continuation of the restraint. 

 
(5) If facility resources are not sufficient to support the procedural requirements specified in this rule, 

four-point restraints must not be used.  
 
(6) A medical provider must be consulted prior to placing a youth in a four-point restraint device if the 

youth is pregnant or has a seizure disorder or any other medical condition that contraindicates such 
restraint. 

 
(7) The facility administrator or designee must ensure that the parent/guardian of a youth placed in a 

four-point restraint is notified within 24 hours after the restraint is initiated. 
 

(f) Four-Point Restraints for Medical Purposes. 
 

(1) Authorized Facilities. 
 

Four-point medical restraints are authorized only at high restriction facilities that:  
 
(A) operate an on-site infirmary; and 
(B) have been authorized by the executive director or designee to administer four-point restraints. 

 
(2) Criteria for Use. 
 

Medical restraints may be used only to administer medical treatment to a resistant youth when 
failure to administer the treatment could have serious health implications as determined by a 
physician or mid-level practitioner (such as a nurse practitioner or physician assistant). 

 
(3) Authorization for Use. 
 

(A) Only a medical provider may order a medical restraint. The order must be based upon a 
determination that:  

 
(i) all appropriate, less restrictive interventions have proved unsuccessful in controlling the 

youth’s behavior to a degree that would allow the medical treatment to be administered; 
and 

 
(ii) transfer to a local emergency room or other appropriate facility is not immediately 

feasible. 
 
(B) An order for medical restraint must specify the type of restraint to be used, duration of the 

restraint, any special instructions, and justification for the restraint. 
 
(C) Prior to the expiration of the first hour, a registered nurse must contact the medical provider to 

develop a treatment plan, if the restraint is still needed. The treatment plan must include 
transfer to a local emergency room or other appropriate facility if the need for restraint 
exceeds one hour. 

 
(4) Procedural Requirements. 
 

(A) A medical provider or nurse must be present during the application of restraints. 
 
(B) Youth are provided: 
 

(i) 15-minute checks by healthcare staff to assess the youth’s condition, including 
circulation, position, and open airway. Such checks must be documented in the youth’s 
medical record; 
 

(ii) range-of-motion exercises performed by a nurse at least every 30 minutes for a period 
of at least five minutes;  

270



Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health Purposes GAP.380.9198 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
(iii) regularly scheduled meals and drinks;  
 
(iv) continuous visual supervision by staff; and 
 
(v) opportunities for elimination of bodily waste as needed.  

 
(CG) A medical restraint must be terminated upon a determination by the medical provider that the 

youth’s behavior no longer justifies application of medical restraints or expiration of the 
provider’s order, whichever occurs first. 

 
(g) Four-Point Restraints for Mental Health Purposes. 
 

(1) Authorized Facilities. 
 

Four-point mental health restraints are authorized only at facilities designated by the executive 
director or designee. 

 
(2) Criteria for Use. 

 
(A) Four-point restraints for mental health purposes are authorized for use only when the restraint 

is necessary to prevent serious self-injury and all appropriate, less restrictive interventions 
have proven unsuccessful in controlling the youth’s self-injurious behavior, as determined by a 
designated mental health professional or a psychiatric provider. 

 
(B) The restraint must be terminated as soon as the youth’s behavior indicates the threat of 

imminent self-injury is absent, as determined by a designated mental health professional or 
psychiatric provider.  

 
(3) Authorization to Initiate and Continue Restraint. 

 
(A) Only a designated mental health professional or a psychiatric provider may authorize the 

initiation of a mental health restraint.  
 
(B) At least one staff member trained specifically in mental health restraint techniques must be 

involved in the application of the restraint. If at least one trained staff member is not available, 
the restraint may not be used.  

 
(C) Before the end of the first hour of restraint, the designated mental health professional or 

psychiatric provider must determine whether to continue the restraint.   
 
(D) Before the end of the second hour of restraint: 
 

(i)  a mental health professional must conduct a face-to-face assessment of the youth; and 
(ii) the designated mental health professional or psychiatric provider must determine 

whether to continue the restraint. 
 
(E) Before the end of the fourth hour of restraint and at least once every four hours thereafter: 
 

(i) a mental health professional must conduct a face-to-face assessment of the youth;  
 
(ii) the designated mental health professional and psychiatric provider must be notified of 

the youth’s status; and  
 
(iii) the designated mental health professional or psychiatric provider must determine 

whether to continue the restraint. 
 
(F) No order or approval for mental health restraint may be in force for longer than eight hours 

without consultation with a psychiatric provider.  
 
(G) No order or approval for mental health restraint may be in force for longer than 12 hours 

without:  
 

271



Four-Point Restraints for Medical and Mental Health Purposes GAP.380.9198 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(i) direct observation of the youth by the designated mental health professional;  
(ii) a written order to extend the restraint from the psychiatric provider; and 
(iii) written instructions from the designated mental health professional regarding continued 

assessments and monitoring. 
 

(4) Procedural Requirements. 
 
(A) A specially trained, on-site staff member must manage the entire restraint incident. Duties of 

this staff member include: 
 
(i) ensuring policy and procedure are followed;  
 
(ii) notifying the designated mental health professional or psychiatric provider of any 

significant changes in the youth’s behavior;  
 
(iii) ensuring required documentation and notifications are completed; and 
 
(iv) assigning one or more staff members to: 

 
(I) provide continuous supervision of the youth for the duration of the incident;  
(II) document the youth’s behavior and emotional state; and 
(III) facilitate communication between all staff members involved in the restraint. 

 
(B) Staff must ensure the youth's personal dignity by providing a protected environment and as 

much privacy as possible. 
 
(C) Youth must be provided: 
 

(i) regular checks, performed by a nurse, of the physical condition of the youth and the 
placement of the restraints within the first 30 minutes and every hour during the 
restraint; 

 
(ii) an assessment of circulation, position, and open airway checks at least every 15 

minutes by trained staff;  
 
(iii) opportunity for range of motion exercises at least every 30 minutes for a period of at 

least five minutes by trained staff;  
 
(iv) regularly scheduled meals and drinks; 
 
(v) opportunity for elimination of bodily waste at least once every two hours; and 
 
(vi) continuous visual supervision by staff. 

 
(D) The designated mental health professional, in consultation with a psychiatric provider if 

indicated, must develop a detailed plan for clinical follow-up, which may include referral to a 
TJJD stabilization unit or state hospital if the youth meets criteria in §380.8767 or §380.8769 
of this title. 

 

 
See HSP.04.11 for implementation procedures. 

272



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9198, RELATING 

TO FOUR-POINT RESTRAINTS FOR MEDICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH PURPOSES  

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department to adopt rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of 37 TAC §380.9198 in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rule; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff recommends one additional change to the rule; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to the 

following rule as proposed, with the additional change as noted: 37 TAC §380.9198. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

273



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

274



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 

Subject: Discussion and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9723, 

relating to Use of Force 

Date: January 9, 2014 

  

At its October 2013 meeting, the Texas Juvenile Justice Board approved the posting of 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9723 (Use of Force) in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.   

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any comments on the proposed 

rule.  The staff has not recommended any additional changes.  

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rule as proposed.   

 

For reference, the following is a summary of the changes, which were reviewed at the 

October 2013 meeting: 

• The rule now requires staff to be sprayed with OC during their first OC spray training, 

unless it is medically contraindicated. 

• Clarification has been added to show that this rule does not apply to the use of four-

point restraints for medical or mental health purposes. 

• When a youth is in mechanical restraints, approvals to extend the restraint must now 

be obtained: 

o after the first 30 minutes (instead of 15 minutes); and 

o every two hours thereafter (instead of every 30 minutes). 

• Clarification has been added to show that the timeframes above do not apply if the 

mechanical restraint is for medical purposes. In those cases, the provider’s order 

governs the duration of the restraint. 

275



• The rule now requires youth in mechanical restraints to be offered opportunities for 

elimination of bodily waste at least once every two hours and to be provided regularly 

scheduled meals and drinks. 

• Clarification has been added to show that a medical provider’s order is required before 

staff will use force to allow for the administration of medical treatment. 

• The rule now specifies that at medium restriction facilities, staff must contact medical 

staff as soon as possible after a use of force. The rule no longer implies that youth at 

medium restriction facilities will be seen by medical staff after each use of force. 

276



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9723 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 10/2/13 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Security and Control 

Rule: Use of Force 
 
ACA:  4-JCF- 2A-16, 2A-17, 2A-27(M), 2A-29(M) 

Statute(s):  N/A 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 7 

 
Replaces: GAP.380.9723, 11/1/11 
 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

This rule establishes the procedures for staff intervention when youth behavior threatens safety and order. 
 

(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies to all facilities, offices, and programs operated by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department (TJJD), unless specifically stated otherwise in this rule. 

 
(2) This rule does not apply to peace officers employed and commissioned by TJJD or the TJJD Office 

of Inspector General. 
 
(3) This rule does not apply to the use of four-point mechanical restraints for medical or mental health 

purposes. See §380.9198 of this title. 
 
(c) General Provisions. 
 

(1) Non-physical interventions are preferred and must be used to the extent practical to manage youth 
behavior. 

 
(2) TJJD authorizes its staff to use reasonable force as a last resort to maintain safety and order. Only 

staff who are trained in agency-approved techniques are authorized to use force.    
 
(3) The use of force as punishment or for convenience of staff is strictly prohibited. 
 
(4) Approved use of force techniques are those determined by TJJD to minimize risk of harm to youth 

and staff. 
 
(5) Staff must release youth from manual or mechanical restraint as soon as the purpose for the 

restraint has been achieved. 
 
(6) If a staff member observes a use of force in violation of policy, he/she must take action, as practical, 

to protect the youth from harm. 
 
(7) Staff must report any violations of this policy as soon as possible, but no later than the end of the 

current shift. 
 
(8) Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 

employment. 
 
(9) After any manual restraint or use of oleoresin capsicum (OC) spray in a high restriction facility, a 

youth must be assessed by medical staff as soon as reasonably possible under the totality of the 
circumstances. After any manual restraint in a medium restriction facility, medical staff must be 
consulted as soon reasonably possible. Any injuries must be documented in the medical record 
along with an explanation from the youth describing how the injuries occurred. Photographs must be 
taken of all injuries. 

 

277



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 2 of 7 

 
(10) Only restraint equipment approved by the executive director or his/her designee may be used in 

TJJD facilities. All restraint equipment must be used in a manner consistent with its design and 
intended purpose. 

 
(d) References.  

 
(1) For riot control procedures, see §380.9727 of this title. 
 
(2) For procedures and programs designed to allow youth time to regain self-control, see §§380.9520, 

380.9739, and 380.9740 of this title. 
 

(3) For criteria and procedures on administering a psychotropic drug in a psychiatric emergency when a 
youth will not give consent for the administration, see §380.9192 of this title. 

 
(4) For procedures relating to youth searches, see §380.9709 of this title. 

 
(e) Definitions. 
 

(1) Handle With Care®--an agency-trained physical intervention system. 
 
(2) Imminent Harm--a reasonable belief that harm to persons or property is about to occur, unless 

immediate action is taken. 
 
(3) Medical Provider--has the meaning assigned by §380.9198 of this title. 
 
(4) Positional Asphyxia--the reduction in oxygen in the bloodstream and tissues due to an impairment 

of a person’s respiratory system caused by body positioning or the application of external 
weight/pressure.   

 
(5) Practical--a reasonable belief that something is capable of being done. 
 
(6) Reasonable Belief--a belief that would be held by a similarly trained staff considering the totality of 

the circumstances.   
 
(7) Reasonable Force--the least amount of force which a trained staff, in like circumstances, would 

reasonably believe to be necessary to maintain order and safety as authorized under this rule. 
 
(8) Serious Bodily Injury--an injury that creates a substantial risk of death, serious permanent 

disfigurement, or extended loss or impairment of the function of any bodily member or organ. 
 
(9) Substantial Property Damage--at least $500 in damage to state property or another's personal 

property. 
  
(10) Totality of the Circumstances--facts and circumstances known by the actor at the time of the 

incident. 
 
(11) Use of Force--physical measures used to direct, compel, or restrain bodily movement of a non-

compliant youth. 
 

(f) Non-Physical Interventions. 
 

Alternatives to force must be used whenever practical to assist a youth in maintaining or regaining self-
control. Staff are prohibited from using profanity or slang based on race, gender, sexual orientation, or 
ethnicity to manage youth behavior. Staff will be trained in the use of the following non-physical 
intervention techniques: 
 
(1) Staff presence--this includes mere presence of staff to include non-verbal gestures made with eyes, 

hands, head, or body utilizing proximity, standing, eye contact and/or facial expressions; and/or 
involving additional staff to intervene. 

 

278



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 3 of 7 

 
(2) Verbal de-escalation--this includes verbal prompting, directive statements, and redirecting youth 

attention and/or behavior. 
 
(3) Use of problem-solving groups.   

 
(g) Physical Interventions. 

 
When reasonable force is necessary, staff are authorized to use the following methods:   

 
(1) Physical Escort--touching of the arm, elbow, shoulder, or back for the purpose of directing the 

youth from one location to another.    
 
(2) Mechanical Restraint--use of a mechanical device applied to a youth as a means of restricting a 

youth’s freedom of action. 
 
(3) Manual Restraint--use of hands-on techniques as a means of restricting a youth’s freedom of 

action. 
 
(4) Planned Team Restraint--restraint of a youth who is in a locked or barricaded room by a pre-

assembled team. 
  

(5) OC Spray--oleoresin capsicum spray, also known as pepper spray. Oleoresin capsicum is a mixture 
of essential oil and resin found in nature and derived from any plant of the genus capsicum, such as 
jalapeño, cayenne, or habanero. 

 
(h) Criteria for Use of Force. 
 

Except as otherwise indicated in this rule, reasonable force is authorized under the following 
circumstances: 

 
(1) protection of youth from imminent self-harm; 
 
(2) protection of self from imminent harm; 
 
(3) protection of other youth or third parties from imminent harm; 
 
(4) protection of property from imminent, substantial damage; 
 
(5) prevention of escape or fleeing apprehension; 
 
(6) movement of a youth referred to the security unit, other temporary isolation room, or alternative 

classroom;  
 
(7) movement of a resistant youth within the security unit when the youth’s behavior is substantially 

disruptive and the youth refuses to stop the behavior; 
 
(8) movement of a resistant youth from a dangerous situation;  
 
(9) to conduct a search of a resistant youth reasonably believed to be in possession of a weapon, an 

item that can be adapted for use as a weapon, a controlled substance, or other item(s) that breech 
the security of the facility;  

 
(10) to conduct a search of a resistant youth entering the security unit; or 
 
(11) a medical provider orders a restraint for the purpose of administering medical treatment to a 

resistant youth when failure to do so could have serious health implications. 
 
(i) Determining the Intervention or the Reasonable Force to be Used. 
 

In determining the type of intervention or the reasonable force to be used, staff must consider whether 
action needs to be taken immediately or can be delayed until additional staff can organize a team 

279



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 4 of 7 

 
response. However, only a medical provider may determine the type of intervention or the reasonable 
force to be used in administering medical treatment to a resistant youth. 

 
(j) Approved Use of Force Techniques. 
 

Use of force techniques that may be used are limited to: 
 

(1) agency-trained: 
 

(A) physical escort; 
(B) Handle With Care® methods of manual restraint; 
(C) mechanical restraints; 
(D) OC spray, under certain limited circumstances; and 

  
(2) other non-prohibited methods of manual restraint that under the totality of circumstances existing at 

the time: 
 

(A) are more practical than the agency-trained Handle With Care® methods of restraint, taking into 
account the youth’s and staff’s particular vulnerability to harm; 

 
(B) involve a use of force that is measured and progressive to a degree no greater than that 

reasonably believed necessary to achieve the objective; and 
 
(C) do not unduly risk serious harm or needless pain to the youth or staff. 

 
(k) Prohibited Restraint Techniques. 
 

(1) Prohibited restraint techniques include the following: 
 

(A) restricting respiration in any way, such as applying a chokehold or pressure to a youth’s back 
or chest or placing a youth in a position that is capable of causing positional asphyxia; 

 
(B) using any method that is capable of causing loss of consciousness or harm to the neck; 
 
(C) pinning down with knees to torso, head, and/or neck; 
 
(D) slapping, punching, kicking, or hitting; 
 
(E) using pressure point, pain compliance, and joint manipulation techniques, other than an 

approved Handle With Care® method for release of a chokehold, bite, or hair pull; 
 
(F) modifying restraint equipment or applying any cuffing technique that connects handcuffs 

behind the back to ankle restraints; 
 
(G) dragging or lifting of the youth by the hair or ear or by any type of mechanical restraints; 
 
(H) lifting a youth’s arms behind the back, while in mechanical restraints, in a manner that is 

capable of causing injury to the shoulder; 
 
(I) using other youth or untrained staff to assist with the restraint; 
 
(J) securing a youth to another youth or to a fixed object, other than to an agency-approved full-

body restraint device; or  
 
(K) administering a drug for controlling acute episodic behavior as a means of physical restraint, 

except when the youth’s behavior is attributable to mental illness and the drug is authorized by 
a licensed physician and administered by a licensed medical professional. 

 
(2) A physical contact that would otherwise be prohibited under the above paragraph does not include 

one that is only accidental and momentary. 
 

280



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 5 of 7 

 
(l) Requirements for Planned Team Restraint Situations. 

 
(1) Criteria for Use. 

 
Planned team restraint is authorized only to: 

 
(A) stop the youth from engaging in self-harm; 
(B) prevent substantial property damage; or 
(C) recover a weapon or item that has been adapted for use as a weapon and is capable of 

causing death or serious bodily injury. 
 

(2) Requirements for Use. 
 

(A) Prior to approval of planned team restraint, the facility administrator or administrative duty 
officer must personally observe the situation. Only the facility administrator or administrative 
duty officer may authorize a planned team restraint. 

 
(B) All planned team restraints must be videotaped when practical, including a recording of a 

verbal description of the youth’s conduct and all warnings provided the youth according to the 
agency-approved script. 

 
(C) Only staff trained in planned team restraint may participate in the team that is assembled for 

the room entry. 
 
(D) The youth must be warned to discontinue the misconduct at least two times after the team is 

assembled and before the room entry. The team must provide continuous opportunities for 
compliance during the room entry. 

 
(E) Use of the riot shield during a planned team restraint is limited to cases in which a youth has a 

weapon or a youth’s behavior indicates there is a significant risk of harm to the staff members 
involved in the restraint. 

 
 (m) Requirements for Use of Mechanical Restraints. 

 
(1) Guidelines for Use. 

 
(A) Mechanical restraint equipment must not be secured so tightly as to interfere with circulation 

or so loosely as to permit chafing of the skin.  
 
(B) When mechanical restraints are employed on a youth in a prone position, the youth is placed 

on his/her side as soon as practical in order to help ensure adequate respiration and 
circulation. The youth must be allowed to sit up as soon as his/her behavior is under control. 

  
(C) A mechanical restraint for other than transportation, riot control, or medical purposes must be 

terminated as soon as the purpose for which the youth was restrained under subsection (h) of 
this section has been achieved, but in any event within 30 minutes, unless an extension is 
granted. Extensions may be granted by the facility administrator or designee for up to two-hour 
intervals, until termination of restraint.    

 
(D) A mechanical restraint for medical purposes must be terminated as soon as the purpose for 

which the youth was restrained has been achieved or upon expiration of the medical provider’s 
order, whichever occurs first. 

 
(E) When mechanical restraints are applied, staff must:  
 

(i) check the youth for adequate respiration and circulation every 15 minutes;  
 
(ii) provide regularly scheduled meals and drinks; 
 
(iii) provide opportunity for elimination of bodily waste at least once every two hours; and 
 
(iv) provide continuous visual supervision and appropriate assistance until the mechanical 

restraint is terminated. 

281



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 
(F) Mechanical ankle and wrist restraints attached to a waist belt by a lead chain may be used 

when transporting a youth to a security unit, within a security unit, and from a security unit in 
order to prevent harm to the youth or others. These restraints may not be attached in a 
manner that prevents the youth from being able to stand upright. Mechanical restraints may 
remain on the youth for the duration of the activity, if circumstances warrant such restraints.  

 
(2) Restrictions on Use During or After Childbirth. 

 
(A) TJJD staff may not use mechanical restraints to control the movement of a youth who is in 

labor, during delivery, or during recovery from delivery unless the executive director or 
designee determines that the use of restraints is necessary to: 
 
(i) ensure the safety and security of the youth, the infant, a staff member, or a member of 

the public; or 
(ii) prevent a substantial risk that the youth will attempt to escape. 
 

(B) If restraint is approved by the executive director or designee, staff must use the least 
restrictive type and method of restraint necessary to achieve the purpose of the restraint. 

 
(3) Mechanical Restraint Use by TJJD Transportation Staff. 

 
Mechanical ankle and wrist restraints attached to a waist belt by a lead chain must be used during 
secure transportation by designated TJJD transportation staff. Exceptions may be made for youth 
being transported following release on parole from a residential program or when medically 
necessary. 

 
(4) Mechanical Restraint Use by Other Transporters. 

 
(A) Mechanical ankle and wrist restraints attached to a waist belt by a lead chain must be used 

during transportation when a youth is being transported to a high restriction program. 
 
(B) Mechanical ankle and wrist restraints attached to a waist belt by a lead chain may be used 

when transporting a youth off-campus. 
 
(n) Requirements for Use of OC Spray.   
 

(1) Authorization and Training for Use of OC Spray. 
 

(A) OC spray is permitted only in TJJD-operated high restriction institutions. 
 
(B) Unless reasonably believed necessary to prevent loss of life or serious bodily injury, 

authorization to use OC spray must be obtained from the facility administrator, assistant 
superintendent, or administrative duty officer prior to each use. 

 
(C) The only staff authorized to routinely carry OC spray on-person are the facility administrator, 

assistant superintendent, administrative duty officer, juvenile correctional officer shift 
supervisor (one per shift), program supervisor, and security personnel whose primary 
responsibility is to patrol the campus and respond to security-related incidents.  Any staff 
positions in addition to those listed must be authorized in writing by the executive director or 
his/her designee.  

 
(D) Only staff who have been trained by TJJD in the use of OC spray are authorized to use it. 

TJJD’s OC spray training curriculum must include a requirement that each staff member be 
sprayed with OC if: 
 
(i) the staff member is receiving his/her first OC spray training as a TJJD employee; and 
(ii) exposure to OC is not medically contraindicated. 

 

282



Use of Force GAP.380.9723 
Page 7 of 7 

 
(2) Criteria for Use. 

 
(A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B) of this paragraph, OC spray is authorized for use only 

when non-physical interventions and other physical interventions have failed or are not 
practical, and it is reasonably believed necessary to: 

 
(i) quell a riot or major campus disruption; 
(ii) resolve a hostage situation; 
(iii) remove youth from behind a barricade in a riot or self-harm situation; 
(iv) secure an object that is being used as a weapon and that is capable of causing serious 

bodily injury;  
(v) protect youth, staff, or others from imminent serious bodily injury; or 
(vi) prevent escape. 

 
(B) Unless reasonably believed necessary to prevent loss of life or serious bodily injury, OC spray 

is not authorized for use on a youth when a medical provider has diagnosed the youth with a 
chronic, serious respiratory problem or other serious health condition identified by TJJD (e.g., 
significant eye problems, known history of severe allergic reaction to OC, or severe 
dermatological problems). 

 
(3) Guidelines for Use. 

 
(A) OC spray canisters must be carefully controlled at all times.   
 
(B) Any youth affected by OC spray will be decontaminated with cool water as soon as the 

purpose of the restraint has been achieved. 
 
(C) Immediately following decontamination from OC spray, medical staff will be contacted to 

examine and, if necessary, treat and monitor all youth and staff affected by OC spray. 
 
(D) Each individually assigned canister of OC must be weighed at the time it is assigned and after 

each use.  
 

 
For implementation procedures, see GAP.07.23. 

283



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9723, RELATING 

TO USE OF FORCE  

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department to adopt rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of 37 TAC §380.9723 in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rule; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff has not recommended any additional changes; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9723 as proposed. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

284



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

  

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Subject: Discipline of Certified Officers Default Judgment 

Date: January 10, 2014 

The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) has the authority to reprimand, suspend, 

or revoke the certification of a certified juvenile probation or detention/supervision officer under 

Section 222.053 of the Texas Human Resources Code.  The officer is entitled to a hearing before the 

State Office of Administrative Hearings (SOAH) if revocation or suspension of the certification is 

recommended.  

Agency administrative rules found in Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Chapter 349 allow the 

TJJD to dispose of certain disciplinary cases without referring the cases to SOAH.  

The rules require TJJD to give to the certified officer a statement of facts or conduct alleged to 

warrant an adverse certification action as well as notice of the discipline sought to be imposed.  The 

notice must invite the officer to show compliance with all requirements of law for the retention of 

the license, give notice that the officer must file a written answer to the formal charges in 

compliance with TJJD administrative rules found in Chapter 349, and give notice that a failure to file 

a written answer may result in the alleged conduct being admitted as true and the relief sought 

being granted by default.  The notice must be sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 

certified officer’s most recent address of record with TJJD. 

The administrative rules require the certified officer to file an answer to a formal disciplinary action 

within 20 days of receipt of the action.  If an officer fails to respond to a disciplinary action notice, 

the officer waives the opportunity to contest the charges and waives objection to the proposed 

sanction. Agency standards authorize TJJD to enter a default judgment against the officer and 

impose the disciplinary action sought. The default orders are based upon the factual allegations and 

sanctions recommended in the formal charges. 

Attached for your review are the Default Order recommended for default, Recommendation for 

Default, and the Affidavit of the Attorney for each case.   The Office of General Counsel determined 

that proof of proper notice and failure to respond exists in each case.   The Request for Default 

Order explains the notice provided, the lack of response, the alleged conduct and violations, and the 

requested sanction. 

285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



Page 1 of 2 

 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

MASTER DEFAULT ORDER 
 

A MASTER DEFAULT ORDER RELATED TO DISCIPLINARY CASES OF CERTIFIED JUVENILE 

PROBATION OR SUPERVISION OFFICERS 

On this the 31st day of January, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and vote Requests for Default Orders in the 

following matters related to the discipline of certified juvenile probation or supervision officers: 

DOCKET NUMBER NAME, CERTIFICATION NUMBER, LOCATION RECOMMENDED ORDER TERMS COUNTY 

14-22560-130102 
Tyrone McDonald, #22560, Harris County 

Juvenile Probation 
Revocation Harris 

14-25374-130125 
Everett Green, #25374, Lyle B. Medlock 

Treatment Facility 
Suspension Dallas 

14-27220-130524 
Tiara Hodge, #27220, Rockdale Regional 

Justice Center 
Revocation  Milam 

13-25800 
Jessica Maupin, #25800, Bexar County 

Juvenile Probation Dept. 
Suspension Bexar 

13-25847 
Emmanuel Munoz, #25847, Cameron County 

Juvenile Probation Dept. 
Suspension Cameron 

13-23473-130079 
Russell Overly, #23473, Lubbock County 

Juvenile Justice Center 
Suspension Lubbock 

14-258628-130098 
Juan Vera, #258628, Cameron County Juvenile 

Probation Dept. 
Suspension  Brownsville 

 

340



Page 2 of 2 

 

WHEREAS the Board has jurisdiction over these actions pursuant to Texas Human Resources Code 

§222.053 and 37 Texas Administrative Code §349.305 et seq. and authority to enter a Default Order under 

37 Texas Administrative Code §349.340, pursuant to Texas Government Code §2001.056; and  

WHEREAS the Board considered the Requested Default Order in each matter and a motion to  adopt the 

recommended findings and facts and conclusions of law as set forth in the Final Orders was lawfully 

moved, duly seconded, and approved by a majority of the present and voting members of the Texas 

Juvenile Justice Board; and 

 

WHEREAS the following Board members recused themselves from participation in a particular matter: 

BOARD MEMBER NAME OF OFFICER(S) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDERED THAT the Final Order in each referenced matter shall become 

effective as provided therein according to the date this Order is signed and that a copy of this Order shall be 

affixed to each Final Order. 

 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

 

341



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

342



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion and approval of the Delegation of Authority to the Executive Director of certain 

property that is not currently utilized 

Date: January 14, 2014 

  

 

Pursuant to SB 1011, 64th Legislature, RS and SB 13, 65th Legislature, 2nd CS, held in 1975 

and 1977 respectively, TJJD was required to transfer two specified parcels of land to the 

Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ).  The parcels are referred to as Mountain View 

and Gatesville.  A deed transferring the Mountain View parcel was previously executed.  

However, the Gatesville property was never formally transferred.  We are being asked by 

TDCJ to complete the transfer.   

 

Staff asks that the Board approve the transfer and authorize the Executive Director to 

execute the deed conveying the Gatesville property to TDCJ.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

343



 

 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF TJJD 

On this 31st day of January 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to SB 1011, 64th Legislature, RS and SB 13, 65th Legislature, 2nd CS, TJJD was 

required to transfer two parcels of land, the Mountain View parcel and the Gatesville parcel, to the Texas 

Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ); and 

WHEREAS, the deed for the Mountain View parcel was previously executed; and 

WHEREAS, the deed for the Gatesville parcel has not yet been executed; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Trustees approve to designate the authority to the 

Executive Director of TJJD to execute the deed of transfer of the Gatesville parcel to TDCJ with said transfer 

being completed under the authority granted to TJJD in SB 653.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 31st day of January 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

344



 

 

TJJD Parrie Haynes Committee meeting 

March 22, 2013 

 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Parrie Haynes Committee Meeting 

Brown Heatly Building – 2nd Floor Conference Room 

4900 North Lamar Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751 

Friday, March 22, 2013 – 7:45 a.m. 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:     

The Honorable Jimmy Smith, Committee Chairman 

Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman     

The Honorable John Brieden III      

Becky Gregory 

 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Monika Arvelo, Staff Attorney 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

Art Hinojosa, Director of Construction

345



 

 

TJJD Parrie Haynes Committee meeting 

March 22, 2013 

Call to order 

 

Chairman Jimmy Smith called the meeting to order at 7:50 a.m.  

 

November 15, 2012 meeting minutes 

Judge John Brieden moved to approve the November, 15, 2012 meeting minutes.  Chairman Scott 

W. Fisher seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Update on acquiring insurance  

 

Insurance quotes have been acquired and discussed.  One company has quoted $30,000 per year for 

general liability and $11,000 for Trustee professional liability.  Brett said he wasn’t surprised at the 

amount of the quotes based on the general nature of activities.  Quotes often take several months to 

produce due to the need to shop specialty markets, research exclusions, et cetera.   

 

The broker for C5 has stated that they have a current policy through ACORD Corp.   The certificate 

for the property identifies the land owner as an additional insured.  In the lease agreement, there’s an 

indemnification clause, so TJJD is covered by this policy.  But if, for example, someone comes onto 

the property and is involved in an accident unrelated to C5, this policy may not cover the land owner. 

 The certificate states that the insurance covers up to $5 million.  Further discussion ensued regarding 

the need for additional insurance beyond this coverage.  Discussion ensued regarding whether this is 

private property or state property and the taxes for each situation. 

 

TJJD is still looking into options for additional insurance, and more information regarding quotes 

will be researched and brought before the trustees.   

 

Discuss future plans to hold or sell the Milam County tract  

 

This 150-acre tract of land separate from the main property is currently being leased for cattle 

grazing.  The 2012 market value according to the tax records is $189,000; taxes are based on the 

346



 

 

TJJD Parrie Haynes Committee meeting 

March 22, 2013 

assessed value of $4,310.  There is a state exemption.  Discussion ensued regarding not taking the 

state exemption and considering the property to be private property.   

 

If the property is sold, more than likely the money will go into state coffers.  Milam County is an 

extremely depressed economy due to the plant closing, and they are not in development mode at this 

point.  This property is in the northwest corner of Milam County and closer to the corridor.  Given 

the state economy, the potential return in five or ten years could be greater.  There is no offer 

currently on the table.  There is a General Land Office (GLO) lease for oil and gas on the property 

currently as well as the cattle grazing lease.  Discussion ensued regarding the pros and cons of selling 

the property now and the benefits to selling or keeping the mineral rights to the property in the event 

of an eventual sale. 

 

Other individuals are interested in leasing the property when the current lease expires.  Discussion 

ensued.  Grazing rights are approximately $15 to $20 an acre.  It was decided that decisions 

regarding the sale of the property would be tabled for the time being.  An item will be added to a 

future Board meeting to approve Mr. Griffiths to go out for bids regarding the leasing of the 

property. 

 

Report on repair expenditures and recommendations  

 

Art Hinojosa, Director of Construction, and his staff have been out to the ranch several times and 

have done a great job identifying and addressing electrical and fire hazard issues.  Almost all of the 

electrical issues have been repaired, and the rest have been identified and will be addressed.  

Expenditures so far have totaled $361.  Larger issues involve a couple of water heaters, a furnace 

replacement in the library, and the possible replacement of the air conditioning (AC) unit in the 

dining hall.  The estimation of cost for one water heater is approximately $500.  The AC unit will be 

approximately $5000.  The electrical issue was a pre-lease existing condition and was a fire hazard.  

It was a simple fix.  Discussion ensued regarding what items should be the responsibility of TJJD 

and what should be the responsibility of C5.   

 

347



 

 

TJJD Parrie Haynes Committee meeting 

March 22, 2013 

A report will be given to C5 regarding the repairs that have been completed so far.  Mr. Hinojosa 

will continue with some of the electrical repairs that have already been identified.  After these repairs 

are addressed, it will be C5’s responsibility to pursue any additional needed repairs. 

 

Discuss issues with TCEQ water testing  

 

Water testing samples were not taken for November, December 2012 and January 2013.  Notices 

were received regarding the need for this testing.  All compliant testing was completed in February 

2013.  One of the tests showed the presence of coliform bacteria, which required retesting four times 

in 24 hours; those reports came back clear.  C5 has been working with TCEQ to comply with 

standards and send in testing.  They have also contracted with Clear Water to do the testing.   

 

Update on general ranch activities  

 

Fort Hood will be using the ranch during the year.  C5 is identifying and connecting with various 

groups who might want to use the property during times when C5 is not.  The new site director, Kate 

Love, is living on the property. The website has been updated to reflect these activities as well.  C5 

has been attending the Friends of Parrie Haynes Ranch monthly meetings and is coordinating activity 

weekends and facility maintenance with Friends of Parrie Haynes Ranch.  C5 has had 755 youth 

stays on the ranch this year so far, as well as 97 adult stays.   

 

TJJD has received a general proposal to lease the oil and gas rights to the property from Scully 

Exploration, LLC.  A prior lease signed by Cherie Townsend, former TJJD Executive Director, for 

these rights expired in November 2010.  Discussion ensued regarding this inquiry.   

 

The process of putting up signage is still being explored.  Risk Management provided a report saying 

that signage was necessary and the details for this signage are being worked out. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 a.m. 

348



 

 

 

 
 

 

E-Mail Message Regarding C5 Lease with Silver Horse Livery 
 

 
 

From: Vanessa Burgess  

Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 3:42 PM 
To: 'Charles Burkhart'; Brett Bray; Chelsea Buchholtz 

Cc: Rosemary Anderson 
Subject: RE: SHL lease 

 

Chuck, 

 

I’m writing you in response to our conversation yesterday and in response to this most recent draft of 

the sublease.  I just wanted to touch base with you before I leave.  After reviewing the terms of our 

agreement with C5 and the sublease agreements with both Ona and the hunting group, I wanted to 

clarify our position on the matter.  Section 13 requires C5 to obtain written consent from TJJD’s BOD or 

their designee.  I have spoken with Brett at length about this provision and we are in agreement that we 

consider any current or future executed subleases that do not have our written approval to be in breach 

of our agreement with you.    

 

That said, we are mostly concerned seeing that with these subleases both parties agree to all of the 

proposed terms, but prior to the actual execution of the agreement.  That way, we review the terms of 

the agreement once they have been negotiated and we see what the final proposed terms are and are 

not in the midst of your actual contract negotiations prior to that point.  So, with regard to Ona’s lease, 

we would like to see it and provide our written approval once the terms have been agreed upon; 

however, because this situation is particularly complicated any updates are appreciated from both 

parties.   

 

With regard to the hunting sublease, we discussed yesterday a possible re-execution of the agreement 

once we have provided written approval as to the agreed upon terms (including any provisions we feel 

are necessary in order to protect the interests of the estate).  I think that would be the best option and I 

imagine you’ll need to update that agreement anyways if there is a change to the terms of Ona’s lease 

for the turkey hunting.  I am copying Brett and Chelsea on this e-mail in case you need to get in touch 

with them while I am out of town.  I have kept them up on the situation at hand.  I will be back the first 

week in January.  Thanks again for speaking with me yesterday and I hope you have a great holiday.   

 

-Vanessa  

 
Vanessa Burgess 

Attorney 

Office of the General Counsel 

(512) 490-7623 ofc | 

Main Phone Number (512) 490-7130 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

11209 Metric Blvd., Bldg H 

Austin, TX 78758  

P.O. Box 12757 

Austin, TX 78711 

 

 

349



 

 

 

From: Charles Burkhart [mailto:cburkhart@coca-cola.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 10:21 AM 

To: Vanessa Burgess 

Cc: Rosemary Anderson 
Subject: FW: SHL lease 

 

 
Hi Vanessa, 

  

Attached please find what we plan on sending to Ona.  We are in the process of editing now but as we 

agreed yesterday we wanted to get this to you in case you had any additional thoughts or 

questions.  Thanks again for all your help. 

  

Have a safe and happy Holiday on the other side of the pond. 

  

All the Best, 

Chuck 

 

350



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H, Austin, Texas 78758 
Thursday, October 17, 2013– 11:00 a.m. 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Calvin Stephens, Committee Chairman  The Honorable John Brieden 
Jane King 
Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman 
Becky Gregory 
     
 
EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 
Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 
Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 
Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 
Elaine Mays, Chief Technology Officer 
Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 
Teresa Stroud, Sr. Director of State Programs & Facilities 
Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director 
Brett Bray, General Counsel 
 
 
OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 
Art Hinojosa, TJJD 
Camilla Cannon, TJJD 
Carolyn Jackson, TJJD 
Chelsea Buchholtz, TJJD 
Dorothy Roberts, TJJD 
Fred Meinke, TJJD 
Jeannette Lepe, TJJD 
Jimmy Smith, TJJD 
John Isle, TJJD 
John Trevino, TJJD 
Karol Davidson, TJJD 
Kenneth Ming, TJJD 
Kevin DuBose, TJJD 
Rejeana Reynolds, TJJD 
Rob Ries, Lt. Governor’s Office 
Stephanie Melot, TJJD 
Steve Rehberg, TJJD 

351



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

Call to order 

Committee Chairman Stephens called the meeting to order at 11:14 a.m.  

 

Updates from the Chief Financial Officer  
a. FY 2013 budget wrap up/highlights 
b. CAPPS update 
c. Probation grants calendar 
d. Probation funds withholding policy 
e. Annual Statewide HUB Report 
f. Construction Status Report 

 
Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer, presented updates from the Finance Department, primarily for 

informational purposes. The actual average daily population for state facilities, halfway houses and 

contract care were all below performance measure targets in the G.A.A., as were commitments. Overtime 

and workers’ compensation payments were both down by over 16% compared to FY 2012 and actual 

FTE’s were well below our cap. Due to careful budget management, a broad-scale hiring freeze and other 

efforts to scale back expenditures, the agency was able to pay the cost of the Centralized Accounting 

Payroll/Personnel System (CAPPS) implementation and to recognize the outstanding work of TJJD 

employees through one-time merit pay. The latter of these two was a near herculean task and was owed 

to the leadership of the Board and the Executive Director and the tireless efforts of staff members in 

processing the thousands of documents involved. The CAPPS project was approved at the July board 

meeting and we remain on track to go live beginning at the start of the FY 2015.  

The agency would like to formulate certain grant-related procedures to enhance predictability, 

transparency and accountability. The first of these has to do with non-formula funding distributions to 

probation departments. Agency staff proposes three non-formula funding distributions over the course 

of the year from what we call supplemental and emergent needs and a fourth non-formula distribution 

toward the end of the year for special purposes. This proposal was shared with the Advisory Council at 

its most recent meeting and was met with a favorable response. Pending any changes from the 

committee, Advisory Council members will distribute the proposal and application forms to the field for 

their input.  The intent is for a final version to go into effect January 1, 2014. 

The second item is policies and procedures withholding of grant funds due to issues of non-compliance. 

The intent is to formalize the procedures already largely in place so they are more predictable and 

transparent. Prior to any formal process, agency staff will exhaust any informal means available to 

resolve issues of non-compliance. Stage 1 involves formal notification to the department of the items 

requiring corrective action and requires the approval of a corrective action plan within 14 calendar 

352



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

days.  Stage 2 is initiated with a non-compliance citation report and notification to the department chair 

and depending upon all non-funding formula and waiver of the requests.  Closure of this stage would 

require the approval of the corrective action plan within 30 days. Stage 3 begins with notification of the 

first payment to be withheld, continuing from that point indefinitely until corrective actions have been 

completed. After that point, payments may be restored subject to certain conditions. Departments would 

have the opportunity to appeal the outcome of the process to the Board.  

The Annual Statewide Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUB) report is expected to be published at 

the end of this month. Unfortunately, it was not ready in time for this Board meeting. The construction 

status report has been provided for information only in your materials.  

 

August 29, 2013 meeting minutes 

Chairman Stephens moved to recommend approval by the full board. Board Chairman Fisher seconded.  

The motion passed. 

 
Housing allowance designation for Chaplains  
 
Brett Bray, General Counsel, presented this report. The Texas Juvenile Justice Department, (TJJD) has a 

housing allowance for Chaplains at each of our secure facilities. Under the Internal Revenue Service 

(IRS) code, Chaplains are allowed to request an amount of their compensation as a housing allowance on 

their tax returns based upon their employer designating a certain amount. For the process to work the 

Chaplains need to be able to claim a housing allowance.   

Clergy members, as well as military officers, are exempt from income tax and the portion of their 

compensation dedicated to housing. The agency recommends the Board approve the designations 

submitted by the Chaplains for their housing allowance.  To further clarify, while the Board approves the 

amount designated as the housing allowance, it is the Chaplains responsibility to document their 

housing expenses for income tax purposes.  Any debate, dispute and/or discussion are between the 

Chaplains and the IRS.  Board Chairman Fisher moved to recommend approval by the full board, the 

housing allowance concept and the amount designated by each individual Chaplain. Ms. King seconded. 

The motion passed. 

 

 

 

353



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

Contract items requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, 

and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board review and action 

a. Cornell Corrections of Texas, dba Abraxas 
b. Associated Marine Institute Kids (AMIkids) 
c. Byrd’s Foster Group Home 
d. Gulf Coast Trades Center 
e. Unity Children’s Home 
f. University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB) 

 
Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts, presented adjustments to contract not-to-

exceed amounts for residential service contracts.  The Board previously approved the agency to renew 

these contracts in July 2013.  At that time, the agency budget had not been finalized and now they are.  

The contract amounts are being adjusted to match the projections for the contract bed facilities.  

Included on the list are some contracts under the $ 500,000.00 threshold only because they were 

approved in July and we want to make the board aware of the increase of the total of all contracts. The 

total amount for all five contracts is $ 2,168,000.00. We are increasing the total to $ 3,233,000.00 – a 

49% increase. These are ‘not to exceed’ amounts; there is no guarantee in any of the contracts that TJJD 

has to use the contracted parties or spend what has been indicated in each contract. This is simply a 

measure to go along with Mr. Griffiths’ plan to increase the usage of contract care beds. 

The agency requests the Board to approve the increases outlined in these contracts. Chairman Stephens 

asked that, in the event that TJJD has to use these contracts, the Board be advised. As stated in the ‘Path 

Forward’ documents, TJJD is trying hard to level its state facilities to an operational level that is 

consistent with best practices. We are proposing a plan to try to get the populations down, especially 

down at Gainesville State School and, at present, Mart due to a lot of youth being moved from Giddings 

to those locations. Mr. Ming reiterated that these are FY14 amounts and so, prior to the beginning FY15, 

they will be coming back for additional renewal approval for these programs. Board Chairman Fisher 

asked if these are in line with budget numbers and are not an increase in budget. Mr. Griffiths then 

clarified that if we closed the dorm in one location that would give the funding from that goal to do this, 

which is in the same goal, and it would be budget neutral. 

The agency requests the Board to approve a two month extension to the current fiscal year contract for 

the University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB).  The additional time will allow Dr. Parikh, TJJD Medical 

Director, to finalize negotiations of the contract with UTMB staff.  Mr. Griffiths added that this will also 

give TJJD time to find out the decision from LBB and how that will affect this particular contract.  Mr. 

Ming clarified the Board had already approved the entire funding for FY 2014 – this is simply asking for 

354



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

additional time to negotiate. Board Chairman Fisher moved to recommend approval by the full board. 

Ms. King seconded. The motion passed. 

Non-Secure residential program services 

Mr. Ming reported TJJD is in the final stages of reviewing four proposals for non-secure residential 

services and is requesting the Board authorize Mr. Griffiths’ approval to enter into negotiations and 

possibly award one or more contracts, not to exceed $ 500,000.00 each, for these services and to execute 

contracts with any or all of these vendors determined to provide services at best value.  Ms. King moved 

to recommend approval by the full board. Board Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Audit of Giddings State School 
 
Mr. Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor, presented the draft audit as required by Senate Bill 653 to 

conduct facility audits and reviews.  The objective was to determine compliance with required 

operations and protection of youths’ rights. The audit included test objectives in the areas of campus 

work program, fixed assets, case management, coaching and mentoring tools, and the Star Team 

activities. The audit covered the period September 2012 through September 2013. Overall, facility 

processes can be improved to provide consistent practices and compliance.  Specifically, oversight of the 

campus work program which entails the students work during the school days, the process for 

conducting the annual inventory of fixed assets, case management coaching and mentoring tools and 

controls over the Star Team activities.   Management concurred with the findings.  Mr. Griffiths added 

that significant management changes and realignment of responsibilities have recently been made at 

Giddings and he commended Teresa Stroud and others in their work toward that end. Dramatic 

improvements are already being seen on the campus and in case management. Chairman Stephens 

moved to recommend approval by the full board. Ms. King seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Audit of Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 202: 
 
Mr. Garcia reported the objective was to determine agency compliance with the requirements of the 

Texas Administrative Code. TAC 202, Information and Security Standards, are standards set by the 

Department of Information Resources that apply to state agencies. The standards provide guidelines for 

the agencies to follow to ensure security of information resources. The findings were that the agency 

does not fully comply with the requirements and, while threats to the security of the agency are being 

continually monitored, management over security controls needs to be strengthened to ensure 

protection of the information resources of the agency. We are working closely with Ms. Elaine Mays, 

355



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

Chief Technology Officer. Ms. Mays added that security measures have been put in place. Part of the TAC 

202 covers the business continuity plan that addresses the disaster recovery of the agency.  The 

Information Technology Division will put together an initial plan by the end of November 2013 and have 

a final Disaster Recovery document by May 2014. Mr. Garcia thanked Ms. Mays for her expertise in this 

area. Board Chairman Fisher moved to recommend approval by the full board. Ms. King seconded. The 

motion passed. 

 
Audit of Agency Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Mr. Garcia presented the draft audit which was conducted to ensure that monitoring is being done 

correctly and to assist the agency in achieving stated objectives and to identify best practices. The first 

line of defense includes management reviews, second line of defense is accomplished through the 

compliance function of Monitoring and Inspections and the Office of General Counsel and the third line 

of defense being the external reviews such as those from the Ombudsman, Office of Inspector General 

(OIG), Internal Audit and the State Auditor’s Office. Chairman Stephens moved to recommend approval 

by the full board.  Ms. King seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Internal Audit Charter 
 
Mr. Garcia reported the charter was last updated on September 28, 2012. The reporting and follow up 

timeframe was changed from quarterly to periodically, with the intention to do so semi-annually, in 

January and July. Chairman Stephens moved to recommend full approval by full board. Board Chairman 

Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

FY 2013 Internal Audit Annual Report 

Mr. Garcia presented the draft annual report. The Internal Audit Annual report will be submitted to the 

Governor’s office, Legislative Budget Board (LBB), State Auditor’s Office and Sunset Advisory 

Commission by November 1, 2013. Guidelines for this report are provided by the State Auditor’s Office 

and are covered under House Bill 16. This includes an audit plan for FY 2014. Ms. Jane King moved to 

recommend approval by the full board. Board Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

 

 

 

 

356



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
October 17, 2013 

 

Internal Quality Assessment 

Mr. Garcia reported whereas an external audit is required every 3 years, the internal quality assessment 

is completed every year.  Customer satisfaction survey results are at 4.4 on a scale of 1 to 5. A review of 

the internal audit staff and their qualifications is also provided.  The Internal Audit Department has 8 

performance measures and achieved 7 out of 8. The one that was not achieved was 75% of staff having 

certification. New auditors are learning the process and going through the process of testing for 

certification.  Proposed performance measures for 2014 are included in this topic. Ms. King moved to 

recommend approval by the full board. Board Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:52 a.m. 

357



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

358



 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer 

Subject: Updates from the Chief Information Officer 

Date: January 10, 2014 

  

This memo is primarily for informational purposes; none requires formal Board action at 

this time. 

 

Project Status Updates: 

 

Kronos:  70% complete and 44% of budget.  This is the time keeping system. 

 

Time-line: Key Milestones Start Date End Date 

• Develop training materials for managers and 

employees 

9/23/13 11/4/13 

• Employee Training at facilities 11/04/13 1/13/14 

• Pilot Kronos to first facility 12/2/13 1/10/14 

• Deployment of Kronos HR, Workforce Timekeeper, 

Leave, Accruals, Time Clock to all facilities 

1/20/14 1/24/14 

• Deployment of Analytics( in-depth reporting 

capabilities) 

5/21/14 10/8/14 

 

JCMS: 45% Complete based on statewide implementation expectations through the end of 

2015.  

Key Milestones Start Date End Date 

• 45 Departments migrated from Caseworker to JCMS 01/15/13 10/31/13 

• 74 Departments underwent a major version upgrade 10/01/13 11/16/13 

• 30+ Departments have been schedule to migrate in the 

first half of 2014 

12/15/13 06/28/14 

• JCMS Train-the-Trainer (February Go Live) 01/14/14 01/15/14 

• February JCMS Go-Live  02/26/14 02/27/14 

359



• JCMS Train-the-Trainer (March Go Live) 02/04/14 02/05/14 

• March JCMS Go-Live  03/26/14 03/27/14 

• JCMS Train-the-Trainer (April Go Live) 03/04/14 03/05/14 

• April JCMS Go-Live  04/23/14 04/24/14 

 

CAPPS (Centralized Accounting & Payroll/Personnel System):  60% Complete of the 

pre-work needed prior to working with CPA in January 2014 

 

Key Milestones Start Date End Date 

• Signed Contract 8/26/13 8/31/13 

• Kick-off Meeting with CPA 8/28/13 8/28/13 

• Overview with CPA 9/11/13 9/11/13 

• TJJD review Modules 9/13/13 9/27/13 

• TJJD Action items 9/27/13 12/5/13 

• CPA workgroup on General Ledger Module 11/14/13 11/14/13 

• Meet with CPA to review high level milestones 11/21/13 11/21/13 

• Prototype workshops with TJJD 1/2/14 2/28/14 

• System Testing 2/28/14 5/2/14 

• TJJD Acceptance Testing 5/2/14 8//8/14 

• TJJD Go-Live with CAPPS 9/1/14 9/1/14 

 

Office 365: 50% complete.  This is to replace legacy hardware and email application 

system. 

 

Key Milestones Start Date End Date 

• Project Kickoff 10/29/13 10/29/13 

• Office 365 Contract 11/1313 11/13/13 

• License Procurement 12/6/13 12/6/13 

• Active Directory Remediation  1/15/14 1/15/14 

• Server Configuration  1/15/14 1/15/14 

• Server Acceptance  2/5/14 2/5/14 

• Migration Schedule/Final Baseline 1/29/14 1/29/14 

• Email Migration Completion 3/6/14 3/6/14 

• Project Closure 4/1714 4/17/14 

 

AVPN Circuit/Bandwidth Upgrade: This is to migrate from the statewide legacy network. 

 

Key Milestones Start Date End Date 

• Project Kickoff   

• 4000 W 2ND Ave Corsicana 04/07/14 04/07/14 

• 1379 FM Rd 678 Gainesville 04/07/14 04/07/14 

• 3801 E Monte Cristo Rd Edinburg 04/07/14 04/07/14 

• 11209 Metric Blvd, LAN 1001, Austin, TX  04/07/14 04/07/14 

 

 

 

360



IT Overall Update: 

 

Key Milestones 

• Met with Division Directors to understand service received from IT and how IT can 

partner moving forward.  Gathering Business area IT needs in the next several years. 

• IT established its Mission/Vision statement and logo 

• All IT employees completed a skills inventory and had meeting with CIO to discuss skill 

sets and the direction of IT  

• IT continue to evaluate processes and define where they can be streamlined 

• Started developing draft roadmaps for IT for the next 5 years 

• Several site visits to the facilities  

• Continue to address and work through outstanding audits (6) 

• In the process of developing IT standards 

• Project Management Team providing project training to employees and other agency 

employees 

• In the process of recommending an IT re-org to address audit concerns around 

separation of role and responsibilities 

• Working with Business Continuity Team to establish agency Disaster Recovery plan 

• Working in coordination with DIR and Gartner to perform a Security assessment of the 

agency 

• Complete agency external website and in the process of updating the intranet 

 

IT/Agency Needs moving forward: 

 

Future plans and needs 

• IT staffing (decreased from 2009 (81) 2012 (69) Present (58) decrease by 23 FTEs 

supporting 2500+ agency systems. Industry median staff to ratio supports 1:27 (50%).  

Seek to increase FTEs to have redundancy in IT support. 

• Agency legacy systems replacement desktop (5 yrs.) laptops (3-4 yrs.) – Establish a plan to 

adhere to the documented State life cycle plan. 

• Multiple IT legacy in-house developed applications – establish one application for the 

youth to serve many departments. 

• Develop a plan to eliminate manual processes (ex.  Case Managers, Physiologist 

handling case paperwork twice or more)  

• IT staff pay does not align to similar jobs in other state agencies with similar roles, 

causing agency to lose historical knowledge and skills to those other agencies.   

• Resources require training to elevate skills to Industry trends and best practices 

(limited funds for training) 

• Develop plan and purchase an Enterprise Service Management tool to manage IT 

demands from the customers. 

• Implementation of a comprehensive Disaster Recovery plan is limited due to agency 

resources.  

• Limited funds available for maintenance on critical IT components/software 

applications 

 

361



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

362



 

 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Updates from the Chief Financial Officer 

Date: January 10, 2014 

  

 

The following memo provides informational updates on several matters of interest to the 
Board. 
 
Follow-up from October Board Meeting 
 
At its October meeting, TJJD Board members requested information on current agency 
contracts with an original effective date prior to the merger of TJPC and TYC.  The attached 
list of such contracts is sorted by service provider.  Excluding grant contracts with juvenile 
probation departments, there are 199 contracts that were first effective prior to the 
merger, of which all but one were associated with TYC.  The largest contract by far is with 
UTMB for the provision of medical services, with a current two-year value close to $26 
million.  All TJJD contracts are subject to a renewal process, generally each year, and many 
are presented to the Board for approval in compliance with state statute and agency policy. 
 
First Quarter Budget Highlights 
 
The attached table shows appropriations, the agency’s amended budget as given by 
internal accounting systems, the operating budget as it was submitted to the Legislative 
Budgeted Board (LBB) in the beginning of December, year to date expenditures, the 
percent of amended budget expended to date, and the percent of operating budget 
expended to date.  The amended budget does not reconcile to the operating budget because 
agency staff are awaiting resolution on several matters, principally on the fate of the 
Corsicana facility.  Once a decision is reached, the internal budget will be appropriately 
adjusted and will prevail.  At this time, the Operating Budget provides the most up-to-date 
revenue information and therefore the best point of comparison for analyzing expenditure 
patterns.  

363



 

 

 
Through the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, agency expenditures were 
approximately on track with expected levels of 233/4 to 261/4 percent of annual budget.  
Grant disbursements to probation departments exceeded this range due to agency policy to 
disburse one-sixth, or two months’ worth of grant awards in September.1  Due to this 
practice, agency-wide first quarter expenditures also exceeded the expected range.  
However, as shown on the last page of the attachment, when Goal A is excluded agency 
spending was below the range and a straight line projection yields a year-end balance of 
$2.7 million in Goals B-E. 
 
General Revenue spending on halfway house operations, the Office of the Independent 
Ombudsman, the Interstate Agreement, and Information Resources slightly exceeded the 
expected range; agency staff will continue to monitor these strategies to determine if 
corrective steps will be necessary.  Expenditures for contract capacity also exceeded the 
expected range due to an operational decision to increase the use of these beds.  Any 
overage in this strategy will be offset by savings elsewhere in Goal B. 
 
The final page of the handout also shows first quarter expenditures for the strategies most 
affected by the status of the Corsicana facility (B.1.1-B.1.9 and B.2.2).  These strategies have 
been the focus of conversations with LBB staff on funding needs should the facility remain 
in operation.  In those strategies, the hiring freeze in effect throughout the quarter resulted 
in spending below the expected range.  A straight line projection would indicate a year-end 
balance of $1.3 million2, however it is expected that facility expenditures will increase 
somewhat once the fate of Corsicana is known and the hiring freeze is lifted. 
 
First Quarter Performance Measure Highlights 
 
First quarter performance measures have been submitted to the Legislative Budget Board 
(LBB).  These average daily population/attendance (ADP/ADA) and cost per day (CPD) 
measures were within 5 percent of the target set in the General Appropriations Act: 
 

ADP: Probation    104% of target 
ADA: JJD Operated Schools  97% 
ADP: General Rehabilitation  101% 
ADP: Specialized Treatment  98% 
CPD State Correctional Facilities 95% 
CPD Health Care Services  97% 

 
First quarter measures differed from their target by more than five percent in these areas: 
 
 ADP: Deferred Prosecution  108% of targeta 

 ADP: Conditional Release  79%b 

 ADP: Residential Placement  78%c 

                                                           
1
 In Strategy A.1.3 (Community Programs), General Revenue expenditures show as negative because refunds 

received from probation departments exceeded disbursements. 
2 This amount is included in the $2.7 million figure given earlier in this section. 

364



 

 

 ADP: Assessment and Orientation 93%b 
 ADP: Institutional Programs 106%a 

 ADP: Halfway Houses  72%d 
 ADP: Contract Capacity  130%e 

 ADP: Parole    89%b 
 
aTo date, the actual decline in ADP has been less than the projected decline. 
bAttributable to declining populations. 
cAttributable to the increased availability of community programs and the increasing cost 
of residential placements. 
dAttributable to declining populations and limited number of youth eligible for medium 
restriction facilities.  
eAttributable to the increased agency use of contract facilities as a tool to reduce 
institutional ADP. 
 
Corsicana Residential Treatment Center – Pending LBB Decision 
 
The Mental Health Treatment Program and all associated youth were relocated from the 
Corsicana facility (CRTC) to the Mart Facility in December.  This action was taken with the 
affirmation of legislative leadership; however, leadership has also expressed interest in 
repurposing the facility and returning youth there at some future date.    
 
At the request of legislative offices, agency staff had previously projected the cost of several 
operational scenarios that included the CRTC.  At a recent meeting with the Lieutenant 
Governor and staff of several other offices, the agency was directed to work with 
Legislative Budget Board staff (LBB) on the cost of repurposing Corsicana as a 
transition/vocational facility, either operated by TJJD (Scenario 4) or by a contract vendor 
(Scenario 5).  There would be no distinction between Scenarios 4 and 5 other than who 
operates the facility. 
 
Youth selected for the Corsicana facility would be generally higher-functioning, older youth 
who have already received a high school diploma or GED and can focus educational efforts 
on acquiring marketable skills and/or college credit.  The facility would continue to be 
secure, but may afford graduated levels of independence to youth earned through positive 
behavior.  Some amount of facility retrofitting may be required to ensure adequate 
vocational training space and equipment, and to allow for progressively independent living.   
 
Initial internal projections indicated a fiscal year 2015 deficit in either operational 
scenario, the lessor of which by several million dollars being if the facility is operated by a 
contract vendor.  For fiscal year 2014, initial internal projections indicated that the agency 
can most likely achieve either scenario within existing appropriations.  Estimation of the 
cost of retrofitting the facility is in progress, and discussions with the LBB regarding all 
projections are ongoing. 
 
 

365



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

1 Youth Services
293RD & 365TH 

Judicial District
PS114 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $45,625.00 Parole

2 Youth Services
32ND Judicial 

District JPB
PN1111 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $18,250.00 Parole

3 Youth Services
36TH Judicial 

District JPD
PS1113 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $45,625.00 Parole

4 Youth Services 38th Judicial District PS117 Parole Services 9/1/2011 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $18,250.00 Parole

5 Youth Services
8TH Judicial District 

JPD
PN1110 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $9,125.00 Parole

6 Human Resources
AAA Urgent Care 

Centers, LLC
PM119

Pre-Employment  - 

Evins 
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $2,100.00 Pre-Employment for Evins

7
Youth Services / 

Parole
ADAPT AMSE116

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

1/1/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional term plus 

one two year term
$0.00 CD and MH in Eastern Service Area

8
Youth Services- 

Interstate Compact

Airport Assistance 

Center
ICJ101 ICJ 9/1/2009 8/31/2014 1-1 year renewal left $8,500.00 Transportation or Supervision of Youth

9
Youth Services / 

Parole

Alice Counseling 

Center
AMSS1110

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 MH and CD Multiple Counties

10
Youth Services / 

Parole

Alternative Life 

Solutions 

Counseling

AMSN116

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 MH, CD and SO multiple Counties

11
Office of General 

Counsel
Ann L. Campbell P1113

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

12
Office of General 

Counsel
Ann Lawler P1021

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

13
Youth Services / 

Superintendent

Bam Joint Ventures 

(UCN0371)
LHH115

Lease Halfway House -  

Schaeffer
1/14/2003 1/13/2023 No renewals left $12,644.81

Lease for Schaeffer Halfway House 

(UCN0371) Amount Shows Monthly

14
Office of General 

Counsel
Barbara  Saldana P103

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

15 Youth Services Beverly Greiner AMSN1113 Specialized Treatment 4/29/2011 8/31/2014
1additional terms of 2 

years left
$0.00 CD & MH for Lubbock area

16
Youth Services / 

Superintendent

Bill 

Burns(UCN0372)
LHH113

Lease Halfway House  -  

Tamayo
4/1/2001 9/30/2014

Renewed for 3 more 

years in August 2011 

INCLUDES 

TRANSITION 

LANGUAGE

$5,823.00
Lease for Tamayo Halfway House (Old 

Number UCN0372) (monthly amount)

17 Education Bobby Todd SI1122 Psychological Services 4/19/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each remain
$12,000.00 Psychological - LSSP for Ron Jackson

366



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

18
Youth Services / 

Parole

Brazos County 

Juvenile Probation
PS112 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $74,750.00 Parole

19 Education

Brazos Valley 

Workforce 

Development

MOU1113 Workforce  Reentry 5/1/2011 none Indefinite $0.00

To Provide workforce development services 

to TJJD Youth.  There is no longer any 

Project RIO.

20
Office of General 

Counsel
Brian Sylvester P1116

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

21
Youth Services / 

Parole

Cameron County 

Juvenile Justice 

Dept

I114
Lease- Maintenance 

Fee
6/22/2011 8/31/2014 may be renewed $300/Mo Maintenance fee for use of Bridge Building

22
Youth Services / 

Parole

Cameron County 

Juvenile Probation
MOU114 MOU 11/1/2010 8/31/2014 $0.00

MOU Between Cameron County JP, 

Harlingen Police and TYC

23 Education / RIO

Cameron County 

WDB, DBA 

Workforce

MOU118
Cameron County 

Workforce Solutions
2/1/2011 none Indefinite $0.00

To Provide workforce development services 

to TJJD Youth.  There is no longer any 

Project RIO.

24 Human Resources CareNow PM117
Pre-Employment - 

Willoughby
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed yearly $1,000.00 Pre-Employment FOR Willoughby HWH

25
Youth Services / 

Parole
Carlos L. Lopez AMSS112

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 SO and MH for Multiple Counties

26
Office of General 

Counsel

Carole Ann 

Chamberlain
P1011

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

27
Youth Services / 

Parole

CCD Counseling, 

P.A.
SN114

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 no renewals left $0.00 MH for Multiple Counties

28
Youth Services / 

Parole

CEN-TEX Regional 

Board
PS111 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $48,000.00 Multiple Counties

29
Office of General 

Counsel
Chung Lee P111

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

30 Risk Management City of Beaumont I0914
Fire Protection for Al 

Price
8/31/2010 8/31/2020

Valid until cancelled by 

one of the two parties
$2,500.00 Fire Protection for Al Price

31 Construction City of Giddings I0831 Interagency - Utilities 7/22/2008 7/22/2018 $14,000.00
Agreement with City to install crane for 

Giddings lift station sewer 

32
Youth Services / 

Giddings State 

School

City of Giddings I0915 Utilities - Water- ILC 9/1/2009 8/31/2019 $61,200.00
Water and sewage agreement with City of 

Giddings.

33
Human Resources 

/ Turman HWH

Concentra Medical 

North Austin
PM1118

Pre-Employment  

Turman HWH
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed yearly $1,080.00 Pre-Employment for Turman House.

34 Youth Services Conextions, Inc. SI0913 COPYRIGHT 1/14/2009 1/13/2019 six renewals left $0.00
MOU agreement to allow TYC to use the 

name "CONEXTIONS". No Cost.

367



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

35
Youth Services / 

Parole
Connexion FX SS114

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CD only

36 Youth Services
Cornell DBA 

Abraxas(RS08489)
RS081 Residential 6/1/2008 8/31/2014

NO EXPIRATION DATE 

CAN BE RENEWED 

ENDLESSLY

$627,800.00 Non-Secure Residential/MALE

37 Education Dallas ISD MOU1010
ISD Education - 

Cottrell HWH - MOU
7/1/2010 6/30/2014 $0.00

ISD Educational Services for Cottrell HWH 

youth.

38
Office of General 

Counsel
Danyale K. Holland P107

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

39
Office of General 

Counsel
Darcy Deno P1016

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

40
Office of General 

Counsel
Daryl R. Atkinson P118

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

41
Office of General 

Counsel

David Benning 

Smith
P1112

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

42
Office of General 

Counsel
David C. Hesse P1119

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

43
Office of General 

Counsel

Debbie Kay 

Unruh/Ombudsman
MOU124 Ombudsman - MOU 9/1/2011 8/31/2015 $0.00

New Ombudsman MOU Develpoed by Legal 

Department

44 Education / RIO
Deep East Texas 

WDB - Workforce
MOU116 Project RIO - MOU 11/1/2010 none Indefinite $0.00

To Provide workforce development services 

to TJJD Youth.  There is no longer any 

Project RIO.

45 Human Resources
Deer Oaks EPA 

Services LLC
CS111

Employee Assistance 

Program
10/1/2010 8/31/2014

1-2 year renewal left; 

then 6 months if needed
$106,686.00

Employee Assistance Program for all TYC 

Employees and their families.

46
Youth Services/ 

Superintendent

Devary Durrill 

FoundationUCN037

5

LHH116
Lease Halfway House  - 

York
1/1/2003 12/31/2017 $7,880.57

Lease for York Halfway House (OLD 

NUMBER UCN375) Amount Shows Monthly

47
Youth Services / 

Parole

Diagnostic and 

Counseling 

Services

AMSN111

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH & SO/Dallas area

48 Youth Services Diverse Recovery SE126 Specialized Treatment 11/21/2011 10/31/2013
In Process of being 

renewed
$0.00 Chemical Dependency

49
Youth Services / 

Superintendent

Donald and Sarah 

Patterson
LHH051

Lease Halfway House - 

Willoughby
11/1/2005 10/31/2015 $6,184.28 Willoughby HWH Lease (monthly amount)

50
Office of General 

Counsel

Donald M. 

Cartwright
P1025

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

51 Youth Services
Eckerd Youth 

Alternatives
AMSN1115

Family Reunification 

Programs
8/11/2011 8/31/2014 2 additional 1 year term $191,625.00 Family Reunification Programs

52
Office of General 

Counsel
Elaine Davis P121 Outside Legal Counsel 9/1/2011 8/31/2014 one year option $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

368



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

53 Education
Epic Pediatric 

Therapy
SI1128 Speech 8/24/2011 8/31/2014

2 additional terms of 2 

years each remain
$114,000.00 Speech

54
Office of Inspector 

General

Federal Correctional 

Institute -Canine 

Services

MOU106
Mutual Assistance - 

MOU
9/1/2009 8/31/2020 $0.00

To provide mutual assistance during a 

natural disaster/with Federal Correctional 

Institute of Bastrop

55 Education / IRD
Follett Software 

Company
IT111 Software License 3/14/2011 7/31/2015 No renewals left $42,208.00 Education

56 Education Ft. Worth ISD MOU109

ISD Education - 

Willoughby HWH - 

MOU

7/1/2009 6/30/2014 $0.00
ISD Educational Services for Willoughby 

HWH youth.

57 Youth Services
Garner & 

Associates
SE124 Specialized Treatment 10/28/2011 8/31/2015 no renewals left $0.00 Specialized Treatment

58 Executive Services
Garza/Gonzalez & 

Associates

665-12-0018       

CS-131
Auditing Services 9/1/2011 8/31/2013

In Process of being 

renewed
$54,200.00 Internal Auditing And Desk Review

59
Youth Services / 

HWH
George Phillips AMSH102 Psychological Services 9/1/2009 8/31/2015 No renewals left $5,000.00 Psychological Evaluations

60
Youth Services / 

Parole
George Phillips AMSS1116 MH & SO 5/26/2011 8/31/2014

1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00

MH & SO for multiple counties (only SO 

provider for valley)

61
Office of General 

Counsel
Glen G. Halsell P102

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

62 Youth Services Global Counseling AMSE121 Specialized Treatment 8/16/2011 8/31/2014
two additional 2 year 

terms
$0.00 Specialized Treatment

63 Youth Services Grace M. Henry SE123 Specialized Treatment 10/24/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 Specialized Treatment

64
Youth Services / 

Parole

Gray County 

Juvenile Probation
PN111 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $45,625.00 Parole

65 Youth Services

Gulf Coast 

Rehabilitative 

Services

AMSS121 Specialized Treatment 8/19/2011 8/31/2014 one 2 year renewals $0.00 Specialized Treatment

66 Youth Services
Gulf Coast Trades 

Center (RE11506)
RE111 Residential 9/1/2010 8/31/2014

2 OPTIONS YEARS 

LEFT
$348,940.00

Vocational Training  Residential Male and 

Female Juvenile offenders

67
Human Resources 

/ RON JACKSON

Gwendolyn Allen, 

M.D.
PM1115

Pre-Employment  - 

Ron Jackson
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $22,500.00 Pre-Employment for Ron Jackson

68
Youth Services / 

Parole

Hardin County 

Juvenile Probation
PE112 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $18,250.00 Parole

69 Education Harlingen ISD MOU092
ISD Education - 

Tamayo HWH - MOU
9/1/2008 6/30/2014 $0.00

ISD Educational Services for Tamayo HWH 

youth.

369



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

70 Youth Services HHSC MOU128

Traumatic Brain Injury 

Screening for TJJD 

youth

11/17/2011 9/30/2013
Waiting to receive new 

contract fro HHSC
$0.00

Traumatic Brain Injury Screening for TJJD 

youth

71
Youth Services / 

Parole
Iman Ross AMSN1111

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 MH & SO Multiple Counties

72 Parole Services
Interra-Habitat Point 

West, LLC

TFC Lease

#20048

TFC Lease for Houston 

District Office
7/1/2004 6/30/2014 No renewals left $9,088.84/mo

Lease Space Reduction & Notice of Intent to 

Renew Lease

73
Youth Services / 

Parole
J. Kwame Bruce SH113

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 Turman House and Austin Area

74
Office of General 

Counsel

Jeannette Cantu-

Bazar
P1038

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

75
Youth Services / 

Parole

Jefferson County 

Juvenile Probation
PE111 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $73,000.00 Parole

76
Office of General 

Counsel

Jennifer Garrett 

Deen
P116

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

77
Office of General 

Counsel
Jenny Henley P1013

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

78
Office of General 

Counsel
John R. Dysart P1027

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

79
Office of General 

Counsel
Josh Stephens P123

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/28/2011 8/31/2014 three- one year option $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

80 Education Judson ISD MOU104
ISD Education - Ayres 

HWH - MOU
10/15/2009 6/30/2014 $0.00

ISD Educational Services for Ayres HWH 

youth.

81
Youth Services / 

Parole
Kevin Lofton SE122

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

10/20/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH & Multiple Counties

82 Construction KGA Architecture C103 Construction Services 1/5/2010 2/2/2014 No renewals left $153,656.00
Professional A & E Services for Group III 

Projects

83
Office of General 

Counsel

Langston Scott 

Adams
P1035

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 two one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

84
Office of General 

Counsel

Law Office of 

C.S.Hall, PLLC
P1028

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

85
Office of General 

Counsel

Law Offices of 

Warren Allen Wolf
P105

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

86
Youth Services / 

Superintendent

Lena Pope Home 

(UCN0370)
LHH114

Lease Halfway House  - 

McFadden Ranch
7/1/2001 6/30/2021

4-10 year renewals left, 

180 day notice required
$14,410.00

Lease for McFadden Ranch (OLD NUMBER 

UCN0370) (monthly amount)

87 Youth Services
Lena Pope Home, 

Inc..
AMSN121 Specialized Treatment 8/22/2011 8/31/2014 One 2 year renewals $0.00 Specialized Treatment

370



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

88
Youth Services / 

Parole

Lena Pope Home, 

Inc..
PN102

Family Functional 

Therapy Services
3/1/2010 8/31/2014

one (1) one (1) year 

option remaining 
$59,500.00 Family Functional Therapy Services

89 Youth Services Linda Mitchell SN122 Specialized Treatment 8/11/2011 8/31/2014 Two 2 year renewals $0.00 Specialized Treatment

90
Youth Services / 

Parole
Lubbock MHMR MOU123 STD Prevention - MOU 9/1/2011 8/31/2014

Continually renewed 

each year
$0.00

To provide education outreach to Youth for 

HIV and other education interventions

91
Office of General 

Counsel
Luis Cuellar P108

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

92
Youth Services / 

Parole
Madden Counseling AMSN118

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 MH & CD Multiple Counties

93
Office of General 

Counsel

Mais, Boucher and 

Associates,
P1017

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

94
Office of General 

Counsel
Mark K.Vasquez P1023

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

95
Youth Services / 

Parole
Mark M. Asteries AMSE118

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

1/1/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH & SO at Multiple Counties

96 Human Resources Mary's Clinic, Inc. PE121 Pre-Employment 6/17/2011 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $10,350.00 Pre-Employment for Giddings SS. 

97
Office of General 

Counsel
Matthew L. Finch P1046

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

98 Finance McDonald's Lease LP111 Property Lease 4/17/1999

OPTIONS 

THAT GO 

THROUGH 

4/16/24

REVENUE

Wende Trust Property/ Property Leased 

1999 With Options to Extend through  2024. 

Lease amount from 4/17/09-4/16/2012 

467,458 Annually 

99 Human Resources Medical & Surgical PM121 Pre-Employment 9/1/2011 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $10,000.00 Pre-Employment for Corsicana RTC.

100
Youth Services / 

Parole

MEPMG DBA MCC-

Harwin
LDO099

Lease District Office - 

Houston
7/1/2004 6/30/2014

1-10 year renewal left, 

requires 365-210 day 

notice to LESSOR

$9,427.35
Houston District Office Lease (MONTHLY 

AMOUNT)

101
Youth Services / 

Parole

Merismos 

Counseling Center
AMSS118

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH & CD Multiple Counties

102
Office of General 

Counsel
Michelle J. Latray P1018

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

103 Youth Services

Midland County 

Juvenile Probation 

Department

MOU125 MOU 9/29/2011 8/31/2015 Renewable $0.00 TJJD to share space with Midland Co. JBD

104
Office of General 

Counsel
Misty Groschke P106

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

371



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

105 Education Misty Groschke SI1125
Speech Language 

Pathology
5/16/2011 8/31/2014

1 additional term of 2 

year remains
$24,000.00 Speech at McLennan I & II

106 Youth Services

National Mentor 

Healthcare LLC 

(RS11825) 

(RS11703)

RN113 Residential 1/1/2011 8/31/2014
2 OPTIONS YEARS 

LEFT
$139,853.40 Foster Care/Child Placing Agency (RFP)

107 Education Navarro College I105
College Credit    Dual 

Credit Classes offered
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 $150,000.00

Dual Credit and College Credit classes will 

be offered

108 Training Academy Navarro College I122 Classes for JCO 9/1/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms 2 

years each
Revenue Human Resource ($150,000)

109
Youth Services / 

Parole

New Lite 

Counseling Center
AMSE114

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

11/15/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH, CD & SO Multiple Counties

110 Education Northwest ISD I0719

ISD Education - 

McFadden Ranch 

HWH - Interagency

10/1/2011 9/30/2013
being replaced with 

I1412
$70,000.00

ISD Educational Services for McFadden 

Ranch HWH Youth.

111
Youth Services / 

Parole

Oakbrook Plaza, 

Ltd.
LDO096 Lease District Office 5/1/2002 5/31/2017

1-5 year renewal left, 

180 day notice required
$4,220.00

Dallas District Office Lease - Also entered 

under UCN0357 (monthly amount)

112
Human Resources 

/ Ayres

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM1111
Pre-Employment  

Ayres HWH
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $600.00 Pre-Employment for Ayres House

113
Human Resources 

/ McLennan

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM1117
Pre-Employment  

McLennan Co.
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $10,000.00 Pre-Employment for McLennan County

114 Human Resources

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM112 Pre-Employment 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $5,000.00 Pre-Employment for Houston Area

115
Human Resources 

/ Cottrell

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM114
Pre-Employment  

Cottrell HWH
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $1,200.00 Pre-Employment Contract for Cottrell House.

116
Human Resources 

/ Schaeffer HWH

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM115
Pre-Employment  

Schaeffer HWH
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $1,000.00 Pre-Employment for Schaeffer House

117
Human Resources 

/ York

Occupational Health 

Centers , DBA 

Concentra

PM118
Pre-Employment  York 

HWH
9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed yearly $1,000.00 Pre-Employment for York House

118
Youth Services / 

Parole
Pat Lovell, M. ED. AMSN117

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 CD & MH for Multiple Counties

119
Youth Services / 

Parole
Patterson, Donald LDO097

Lease District Office - 

Ft. Worth
5/1/2001 2/29/2016 No renewals left $4,000/Mo

Ft. Worth District Office Lease Also listed as 

Muckleroy Prop (monthly amount)

372



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

120
Youth Services / 

Parole

People Need 

People
AMSE111

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CH, MH & SO Multiple Counties

121 Finance
Peter Pan -Mini-

Golf
LP112 Property Lease 4/1/1999 3/31/2019

$15,816 FOR 

YEARS 4/1/2009 - 

3/31/2014

Wende Trust Property Lease of property 

between TYC & St. Andrews Mini-Golf dba 

Peter Pan Golf

122
Youth Services / 

Parole

Pinnacle Social 

Services
SN112

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each left
$0.00 MH for El Paso

123 Youth Services Positive Solutions T081 License 9/1/2007 8/31/2014 $30,000.00
Licensing Agreement between TJJD & 

Positive Solutions

124
Youth Services / 

Parole

Providence Service 

Corporation
SN113

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 no renewals left $0.00 MH in Multiple Counties

125
Office of General 

Counsel

Rashaun Nicole 

Stagg/Law Office of 

James & Stagg

P1012
Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

126
Youth Service / 

Parole

Reclamation 

Counseling Center
AMSS1115 CD & MH 6/14/2011 8/31/2014

1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CD & MH Multiple Counties

127
Youth Services / 

Parole

Resource Education 

Center
AMSE113

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
2 additional terms of 1 

years each
$0.00 MH & CD Multiple Counties

128
Office of General 

Counsel

Rhoda Appiah- 

Boateng
P1121

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

129 Youth Services

Rio Grande Marine 

Institute (RGMI ) 

(RS05453)

RS064 Residential 2/1/2005 8/31/2014

NO EXPIRATION DATE 

CAN BE RENEWED 

ENDLESSLY

$578,212.00 Non-Secure Male Residential 

130
Office of General 

Counsel

Robynn Fletcher-

Davis
P1040

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

131
Youth Services / 

Parole
Ryan K. Watson AMSN1114 CD, MH & SO 6/24/2011 8/31/2015

1 additional terms of 2 

years left
$0.00 CD, MH & So for multiple counties

132
Youth Services / 

Parole

Safe Harbor Family 

Services
AMSN113

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
2 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CH & MH Multiple Counties

133 Youth Services

Safy Specialized 

Alternatives for 

Youth  (RS11199)

RN112 Residential 1/1/2011 8/31/2014
1 OPTION YEARS 

LEFT
$160,000.00 Foster Care/Child Placing Agency (RFP)

134
Youth Services / 

Parole

Sage Social 

Services
AMSS114

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CD & MH Multiple Counties

373



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

135 Education Sharyland ISD MOU097
ISD Education          

Beto HWH
11/17/2009 6/30/2014 $0.00

ISD Educational Services for Beto HWH 

youth.

136 Title IV-E
Social Security 

Administration
MOU0911

Title IV-E SSA 

Eligibility - MOU
1/1/2010 12/31/2013

With Provider for 

Signature
$0.00

SSA Agrees to Disclose info relating To 

eligibility for SSA benefits, Supplemental 

Security Income Payments and Tax Return 

Information

137
Youth Services / 

Ayres

South New 

Braunfels 47 LTD
LHH091

Lease Halfway House  - 

Ayres
10/1/2009 8/31/2019 $12,746.00 Ayres HWH Lease (monthly amount)

138
Youth Services / 

Parole

Southwest Key 

Programs
AMSS1111

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CD & MH Multiple Counties

139 OIG Special Prosecutor MOU1220 MOU 1/11/2011 1/31/2020 no end date $0.00
response to SB 103 to investigate criminal 

cases for TJJd

140 Audit
State Auditors 

Office
I0614 Software License 11/1/2005 8/31/2014 $2,100.00 Teammate software License Agreement

141
Office of General 

Counsel
Susan R. Deski P1033

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

142 Construction
T. Howard + 

Associates
C102 Professional A&E 2/24/2010 2/24/2014 No renewals left $261,886.00 Professional A&E

143 Youth Services

Tarrant County 

Adult Health 

Services

MOU111 STD Prevention - MOU 7/15/2010 8/31/2014 $0.00
MOU for Tarrant County Adult Health 

Services to provide STD prevention

144
Youth Services / 

Parole

Taylor County 

Juvenile Probation
PN114 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $9,125.00 Parole (Callahan & Coleman Counties)

145
Youth Services / 

Parole

Taylor County 

Juvenile Probation
PN115 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be rewed yearly $27,375.00 Parole/Taylor County Only

146
Facilities Business 

Management

Texas Adjutant 

General's Office
LP115 Lease 6/1/2011 8/31/2015 No renewals left Revenue

Texas Adjutant General's Office leasing 

Sheffield property from TJJD

147
Management 

Information 

Systems

Texas Conference 

of Urban Counties
I133

Software Operation, 

Maintenance & 

Implementation

10/1/2011 8/31/2015 $441,901.80
Operations, Maintenance, and 

Implementation Support for JCMS Basic 

148 Executive
Texas Conference 

of Urban Counties
MOU0922

Nondisclosure 

Agreement
11/13/2008 8/31/2020 Indefinite $0.00

Nondisclosure agreement between TJJD & 

TX Conference of Urban Counties

149 Health Services
Texas Department 

of Agriculture
I0910

Interagency  National 

School Lunch and 

Breakfast Program

1/1/2008 8/31/2035 REVENUE
National School Lunch and Breakfast 

Program - Indefinite

150 Youth Services
Texas Department 

of Criminal Justice
I087

Laundry Services to 

Corsicana and Mart
9/1/2008 8/31/2014 Renewalable $5,000.00

Laundry services for Corsicana and 

McLennan County

374



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

151
Office of General 

Counsel

Texas Department 

of Criminal Justice
MOU04004

Confidentiality 

Agreement - MOU
9/1/2003 8/31/2020 $0.00 Confidentiality agreement

152
Office of General 

Counsel

Texas Department 

of Criminal Justice
MOU119

Medical Records 

Access - MOU
2/16/2011 2/16/2021 $0.00

MOU To allow TDCJ access to Medical 

Records.

153 Youth Services

Texas Department 

of Family and 

Protective Services

MOU091

TYC and DFPS 

monthly data sharing 

between both for the 

purpose of treatment

9/1/2008 8/31/2020 $0.00 shall continue until mutually terminated

154 Youth Services

Texas Department 

of Family and 

Protective Services

MOU1020
Medical Records 

Access - MOU
1/1/2010 12/31/2035 $0.00

Sharing Medical Records - To Promote and 

Foster Healthy Families Indefinite

155
Office of General 

Counsel

Texas Department 

of Family and 

Protective Services  

(530-09-0260-

00001)

MOU1014
Conservatorship Youth 

Services - MOU
4/30/2010 8/31/2035 $0.00

Coordination between TYC AND DFPS to 

assure youth receive appropriate services 

when they are in conservatorship OF DFPS 

and committed to TYC  Indefinite

156 Human Resources
Texas Department 

of Public Safety
I1015 TLETS access - IAC 12/15/2009 8/31/2035 $0.00 Access to TLETS  Indefinite

157 IRD
Texas Department 

of Public Safety
MOU108

TLETS, NLETS, TCIC 

and NCIC Membership
9/1/2009 8/31/2034 $0.00

TLETS, NLETS, TCIC AND NCIC 

Membership

158
Youth Services / 

Treatment

Texas Department 

of State Health 

Services

I0822

Chemical Dependency 

Treatment Funding - 

IAC

9/1/2007 8/31/2013
In Process of being 

renewed
$691,000.00

This contract provides TYC with Supplement 

Funding at 3 facilities for Chemical 

Dependency Treatment

159 Executive

Texas Department 

of State Health 

Services

MOU0711
Youth Counseling - 

MOU
4/9/2007 8/31/2035 $0.00

Agreement between TYC AND DSHS for 

counseling any youth who may have been a 

victim while in TYC Custody  Indefinite

160
Facilities Business 

Management

Texas General land 

Office (AL PRICE)
I101

Utilities /                Al 

Price
9/1/2009 8/31/2015 $65,000.00 Al Price Gas Utility Contract

161
Facilities Business 

Management

Texas General Land 

Office 

(GAINESVILLE)

I1016 Utilities/   Gainesville 2/1/2010 8/31/2015 $68,000.00 Gainesville Gas Utility Contract

375



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

162
Facilities Business 

Management

Texas General Land 

Office 

(MCLENNAN)

I1017 Utilities/     McLennan 2/1/2010 8/31/2015 $93,500.00 McLennan Gas Utility Contract

163 Finance
Texas Parks and 

Wildlife
LP113 Property Lease 4/1/2003 3/31/2018

THE AMOUNT 

OF LEASE IS 

SET FOR A 

REDUCTION 

EACH YEAR

Parrie Haynes Ranch & Youth Cooperation 

Tracts of land Leased Between TYC & Parks 

& Wildlife for Camp  Coco-Cola

164 Youth Services
Texas Prevention 

Network
AMSE122 Specialized Treatment 11/21/2011 10/31/2013

In Process of being 

renewed
$0.00 Chemical Dependency & Mental Health 

165 Title IV -E
Texas Workforce 

Commission
I1021

Youth Foster Care 

Qualifications - IAC
5/1/2010 8/31/2014 $3,000.00

Contract to Enable TYC to qualify children 

for Foster Care Program

166 Risk Management

TexasDepartment 

of Insurance/Fire 

Inspections

I077 Insurance 9/1/2007 8/31/2015 Renewable $0.00 Insurance/Fire Inspections

167 Youth Services
The Center for 

Cognitive Education
AMSS1117 Specialized Treatment 6/29/2011 8/31/2014

Two additional two 

terms
$0.00 Specialized Treatment - CD. MH & SO

168
Youth Services / 

Parole

The Family 

Empowerment 

Center

AMSN114

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 MH & SO Multiple Counties

169
Office of General 

Counsel
Theresa Caballero P112

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

170
Office of General 

Counsel
Thomas A. Rewine P1015

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

171
Office of General 

Counsel
Thomas Hille P1014

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

172
Office of General 

Counsel
Thomas L. G. Ross P1026

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

one- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

173
Youth Services / 

Parole

Tom Green Juvenile 

Probation
PN113 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed yearly $9,125.00 Parole (Covers 6 counties) 

174
Office of General 

Counsel
Traci Evans P1029

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

175
Youth Services / 

Willoughby HWH
Tracy Crain SH115

Suicide Assessment - 

Willoughby
2/1/2011 8/31/2014

1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$5,200.00 For Suicide Assessment at Willoughby HWH

176 Youth Services Turning Point SS121 Specialized Treatment 6/27/2011 8/31/2014
One additional two 

terms
AOD services

177 Youth Services
Unique Drugs & 

Alcohol 
SE125 Specialized Treatment 11/15/2011 10/31/2013

In Process of being 

renewed
$0.00 Chemical Dependency Counseling

178 Youth Services

Unity Children's 

Home Inc.. 

(RN11922)

RN114 Residential 1/1/2011 8/31/2014
2 OPTIONS YEARS 

LEFT
$312,440.00 GROUP HOME (RFP)

376



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

179 Health Services

University of Texas 

Health Science 

Dept.

I0828

Interagency  Medical - 

Psychiatric Oversight 

by Medical Director

6/1/2008 8/31/2015 $100,000.00

Provide Psychiatric Oversight for 16 hours 

per week, Attend meetings with Medical 

Director

180 Health Services
University of Texas 

Medical Branch
I107

Interagency  Medical - 

Statewide contract
9/1/2009 2/28/2014 $25,975,041.00

Statewide Medical Services Contract for FY 

12 & FY 13

181 Education Upper Rio Grande MOU1112 Workforce Solutions 4/1/2011 none Indefinite $0.00

To Provide workforce development services 

to TJJD Youth.  There is no longer any 

Project RIO.

182 Executive Services Urban Institute
PO 694-12-

140116
evaluation of CAPSSY 11/30/2011 12/31/2013

grant expires 08/31/2013 

no renewals required
$74,914.00

independent evaluation of the Effectiveness 

of Comprehensive Approach to Promoting 

Sexual Safety for Youth (CAPSSY)

183 Education
UT Austin K-16C 

Scoring Center
I121 GED Scoring Services 7/1/2011 6/30/2014

One 2 year renewal 

remains
$30,000.00 GED Scoring Services

184
Youth Services / 

Volunteer 

Coordinator

UT San Antonio I104
Volunteer Internship 

Program - IAC
9/1/2009 8/30/2014 $0.00

Volunteer internship program for Ayres 

HWH, with University of Texas

185 Health Services
UTMB AT 

Galveston
MOU095

Medical Records 

Access - MOU
9/1/2008 8/31/2028 $0.00

Agreement to Allow Access to Medical 

Records to TYC 

186
Youth Services / 

Parole

Victoria County 

Juvenile Probation
PS118 Parole Services 9/1/2010 8/31/2014 Can be renewed $73,000.00 Parole

187 Youth Services
Visionquest 

National , LTD.
AMSE1110

Family Reunification 

Programs
8/3/2011 8/31/2014 2 additional 1 year term $229,858.00 Family Reunification Programs

188
Youth Services / 

Parole

Visionquest 

National , LTD.
PE101

Family Functional 

Therapy Services
3/1/2010 8/31/2014

1 renewal option left 

for 1 year 
$120,000.00 Family Functional Therapy Services

189
Youth Services / 

Superintendent

W O Davis Realty, 

LP
LHH112

Lease Halfway House  - 

Cottrell
9/1/2003 8/31/2018 1 five-year term $6,827.15 Lease for Cottrell HWH -(monthly amount)

190
Office of General 

Counsel
W. David Scales P114

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014

two- one year options 

left
$0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

191 Youth Services W.O. Davis Realty LH112 5-yr Lease for Cottrell 9/1/2003 8/31/2018 1 additional 5-year term $6,827.15/mo CPI increase effective 9/1/13

192 Youth Services Wade French AMSN1112

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

3/22/2011 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 Specialized treatment for multiple counties

193 Education West OSO ISD MOU098
ISD Education - York 

HWH - MOU
8/23/2011 6/30/2014 $0.00

ISD Educational Services for York HWH 

youth.

194
Youth Services / 

Parole

William Phillips 

Associates
AMSN112

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2014
1 additional terms of 2 

years each
$0.00 CD & MH in Dallas

195
Youth Services / 

Parole

William Phillips 

Associates
SH1010

General Counseling 

Contract
9/1/2009 8/31/2014 no terms left $24,000.00 General and Family Seminar Counseling

377



TJJD Contracts Active Since Prior to Current Board

Nu. Requesting Dept. Provider Contract No. Type of Service Start Date End Date Renewal Options Cost Description

196
State Programs & 

Facilities

Willoughby 

Management LLC
694-J-59-05 10-year Lease 11/1/2005 10/31/2015 Two 5-year renewals $6,207.47/mo.

CPI increase for Willoughby House effective 

11/1/13

197 Education

Worksource - 

Greater Austin 

Workforce Board

MOU03009
Workforce Investment 

Act - MOU
8/1/2003 8/31/2020 $0.00

Allow referral of TYC Youth , under TYC 

Supervision, who are returning to Travis 

County to Workforce Investment ACT (WAA) 

198
Office of General 

Counsel
Wytaine E. Smith P1051

Indigent Youth Legal 

Counsel
9/1/2010 8/31/2014  one year options left $0.00

Legal Counseling Services for Indigent 

Youth at Hearings

199
Youth Services / 

Parole
Yvette Phillips AMSN1110

Specialized 

Treatment/Multiple 

Services

9/1/2010 8/31/2015 No renewals left $0.00 MH & SO Multiple Counties

378



26.3% 26.3%

 General 

Appropriations Act 
 Amended Budget 

 Operating 

Budget 

 Expended/

Disbursed

YTD 

Percent Amended 

Budget Expended

Percent 

Operating 

Budget 

Expended

Strategies:

A.1.1. Prevention and Intervention

          General Revenue 3,092,556                    3,093,412                    3,093,412            702,731                 22.7% 22.7%

Subtotal 3,092,556                    3,093,412                    3,093,412            702,731                 22.7% 22.7%

A.1.2. Basic Supervision

          General Revenue 45,287,285                  45,287,285                  45,287,285          -                         0.0% 0.0%

          Appropriated Receipts 1,150,000                    1,150,000                    -                       -                         0.0% N/A

Subtotal 46,437,285                  46,437,285                  45,287,285          -                         0.0% 0.0%

A.1.3. Community Programs

          General Revenue 7,446,634                    7,446,634                    7,446,634            (999,278)                -13.4% -13.4%

          Federal funds 7,000,000                    7,000,000                    6,899,730            160,701                 2.3% 2.3%

          Appropriated Receipts -                              -                              1,150,000            -                         N/A 0.0%

Subtotal 14,446,634                  14,446,634                  15,496,364          (838,576)                -5.8% -5.4%

A.1.4. Pre and Post Adjudication Facilities

          General Revenue 58,984,173                  58,984,173                  58,934,173          33,702,717            57.1% 57.2%

Subtotal 58,984,173                  58,984,173                  58,934,173          33,702,717            57.1% 57.2%

A.1.5. Commitment Diversion Initiatives

          General Revenue 19,846,054                  19,846,054                  19,896,054          6,179,162              31.1% 31.1%

Subtotal 19,846,054                  19,846,054                  19,896,054          6,179,162              31.1% 31.1%

A.1.6. JJAEP

          Interagency Contracts 8,614,302                    8,614,302                    8,614,302            603,081                 7.0% 7.0%

Subtotal 8,614,302                    8,614,302                    8,614,302            603,081                 7.0% 7.0%

A.1.7. Mental Health Services

          General Revenue 12,804,748                  12,804,748                  12,804,748          3,894,590              30.4% 30.4%

Subtotal 12,804,748                  12,804,748                  12,804,748          3,894,590              30.4% 30.4%

B.1.1. Assessment, Orientation, Placement

          General Revenue 1,804,177                    2,254,967                    2,254,466            532,158                 23.6% 23.6%

Subtotal 1,804,177                    2,254,967                    2,254,466            532,158                 23.6% 23.6%

B.1.2. State Operated Secure Operations

          General Revenue 79,262,340                  78,871,330                  78,330,807          19,674,891            24.9% 25.1%

          Federal funds 2,050,686                    2,657,901                    2,093,085            899,994                 33.9% 43.0%

          Appropriated Receipts 383,913                       80,061                         383,913               12,041                   15.0% 3.1%

Subtotal 81,696,939                  81,609,292                  80,807,805          20,586,926            25.2% 25.5%

B.1.3. Education

          General Revenue 10,402,546                  10,826,206                  10,400,850          2,420,739              22.4% 23.3%

          Federal funds 2,010,000                    2,010,000                    2,010,000            441,187                 21.9% 21.9%

          Interagency Contracts 4,737,281                    3,961,221                    4,016,406            877,589                 22.2% 21.9%

Subtotal 17,149,827                  16,797,427                  16,427,256          3,739,515              22.3% 22.8%

B.1.4. Halfway House Operations

          General Revenue 9,023,633                    9,380,856                    9,171,745            2,426,086              25.9% 26.5%

          Federal funds 399,975                       335,424                       559,975               102,300                 30.5% 18.3%

Subtotal 9,423,608                    9,716,280                    9,731,720            2,528,386              26.0% 26.0%

B.1.5. Health Care

          General Revenue 10,007,986                  9,557,627                    9,557,627            2,140,137              22.4% 22.4%

Subtotal 10,007,986                  9,557,627                    9,557,627            2,140,137              22.4% 22.4%

B.1.6. Mental Health (Psychiatric) Care

          General Revenue 1,028,570                    925,713                       925,713               205,650                 22.2% 22.2%

Subtotal 1,028,570                    925,713                       925,713               205,650                 22.2% 22.2%

B.1.7. General Rehabilitation Treatment

          General Revenue 7,115,014                    8,592,401                    8,546,813            2,093,760              24.4% 24.5%

Subtotal 7,115,014                    8,592,401                    8,546,813            2,093,760              24.4% 24.5%

B.1.8. Specialized Rehabilitation Treatment

          General Revenue 5,033,350                    4,894,169                    4,926,642            1,022,718              20.9% 20.8%

          Interagency Contracts 691,000                       691,000                       691,000               136,231                 19.7% 19.7%

Subtotal 5,724,350                    5,585,169                    5,617,642            1,158,949              20.8% 20.6%

B.1.9. Contract Capacity

          General Revenue 2,312,237                    2,756,469                    2,653,139            905,531                 32.9% 34.1%

          Federal funds 1,758,000                    1,227,540                    1,330,870            185,480                 15.1% 13.9%

Subtotal 4,070,237                    3,984,009                    3,984,009            1,091,011              27.4% 27.4%

  Texas Juvenile Justice Department
      Executive Summary by Strategy

     FY 2014 through November 30, 2013

379



26.3% 26.3%

 General 

Appropriations Act 
 Amended Budget 

 Operating 

Budget 

 Expended/

Disbursed

YTD 

Percent Amended 

Budget Expended

Percent 

Operating 

Budget 

Expended

Strategies:

  Texas Juvenile Justice Department
      Executive Summary by Strategy

     FY 2014 through November 30, 2013

B.1.10. Parole Services

          General Revenue 4,040,426                    4,055,748                    4,073,915            1,011,609              24.9% 24.8%

          Federal funds 15,500                         15,500                         186,334               51,904                   334.9% 27.9%

Subtotal 4,055,926                    4,071,248                    4,260,249            1,063,513              26.1% 25.0%

B.2.1. Office of the Inspector General

          General Revenue 2,022,196                    1,890,766                    2,023,732            450,774                 23.8% 22.3%

Subtotal 2,022,196                    1,890,766                    2,023,732            450,774                 23.8% 22.3%

B.2.2. Health Care Oversight

          General Revenue 1,124,604                    1,012,671                    1,012,671            198,121                 19.6% 19.6%

Subtotal 1,124,604                    1,012,671                    1,012,671            198,121                 19.6% 19.6%

B.3.1. Construct & Renovate Facilities

          Federal funds -                              -                              754,375               -                         N/A 0.0%

          General Obligation Bonds 5,500,000                    5,500,000                    8,257,781            1,989,304              36.2% 24.1%

Subtotal 5,500,000                    5,500,000                    9,012,156            1,989,304              36.2% 22.1%

C.1.1. Office of the Independent Ombudsman

          General Revenue 438,831                       422,731                       354,321               94,403                   22.3% 26.6%

          Interagency Contracts (Crim. Just. Grant) -                              158,253                       158,253               1,122                     0.7% 0.7%

Subtotal 438,831                       580,984                       512,574               95,525                   16.4% 18.6%

D.1.1. Training and Certification

          General Revenue 868,585                       1,109,092                    1,109,292            140,519                 12.7% 12.7%

          Appropriated Receipts 95,000                         95,000                         95,000                 -                         0.0% 0.0%

Subtotal 963,585                       1,204,092                    1,204,292            140,519                 11.7% 11.7%

D.1.2. Monitoring and Inspections

          General Revenue 3,335,906                    3,392,352                    3,142,114            724,279                 21.4% 23.1%

          Federal funds -                              -                              100,270               -                         N/A 0.0%

Subtotal 3,335,906                    3,392,352                    3,242,384            724,279                 21.4% 22.3%

D.1.3. Interstate Agreement

          General Revenue 283,998                       255,974                       286,411               82,891                   32.4% 28.9%

Subtotal 283,998                       255,974                       286,411               82,891                   32.4% 28.9%

E.1.1. Central Administration

          General Revenue 6,729,842                    6,525,093                    6,765,388            1,520,949              23.3% 22.5%

Subtotal 6,729,842                    6,525,093                    6,765,388            1,520,949              23.3% 22.5%

E.1.2. Information Resources

          General Revenue 5,360,576                    5,354,329                    5,498,882            1,448,257              27.0% 26.3%

Subtotal 5,360,576                    5,354,329                    5,498,882            1,448,257              27.0% 26.3%

Total - Strategies 332,061,924                333,037,002                335,798,128        86,034,328            25.8% 25.6%

Method of Finance:

General Revenue 297,656,267                299,540,800                298,496,834        80,573,393            26.9% 27.0%

Federal Funds 13,234,161                  13,246,365                  13,934,639          1,841,566              13.9% 13.2%

General Obligation Bonds 5,500,000                    5,500,000                    8,257,781            1,989,304              36.2% 24.1%

Appropriated Receipts 1,628,913                    1,325,061                    1,628,913            12,041                   0.9% 0.7%

Interagency Contracts 14,042,583                  13,424,776                  13,479,961          1,618,023              12.1% 12.0%

Total - Method of Finance 332,061,924                333,037,002                335,798,128        86,034,328            25.8% 25.6%

Notes:  

1.  The normal range is +/- 5% of the straight-line projection of 25% for November.

2.  Amounts reflect grant funds disbursed to the counties.

3.  Red represents areas ≥ (greater than or equal to) 26.25%.

380



26.3% 26.3%

 General 

Appropriations Act 
 Amended Budget 

 Operating 

Budget 

 Expended/

Disbursed

YTD 

Percent Amended 

Budget Expended

Percent 

Operating 

Budget 

Expended

Strategies:

  Texas Juvenile Justice Department
      Executive Summary by Strategy

     FY 2014 through November 30, 2013

B.1.1-B.1.9, B.2.2

          General Revenue 127,114,457                129,072,409                127,780,473        31,619,791            24.5% 24.7%

          Federal funds 6,218,661                    6,230,865                    5,993,930            1,628,961              26.1% 27.2%

          Appropriated Receipts 383,913                       80,061                         383,913               12,041                   15.0% 3.1%

          Interagency Contracts 5,428,281                    4,652,221                    4,707,406            1,013,820              21.8% 21.5%

Total - Selected Strategies 139,145,312                140,035,556                138,865,722        34,274,613            24.5% 24.7%

 Straight Line 

Projection 

(Over)Under 

Amended Budget

(Over)Under 

Operating 

Budget

Gen. Rev. 126,479,164          2,593,245             1,301,309          

Federal 6,515,844              (284,979)               (521,914)           

Approp. Rec. 48,164                   31,897                  335,749             

IACs 4,055,280              596,941                652,126             

Total 137,098,452          2,937,104             1,767,270          

Goals B-E

          General Revenue 150,194,817                152,078,494                151,034,528        37,093,471            24.4% 24.6%

          Federal funds 6,234,161                    6,246,365                    7,034,909            1,680,865              26.9% 23.9%

          General Obligation Bonds 5,500,000                    5,500,000                    8,257,781            1,989,304              36.2% 24.1%

          Appropriated Receipts 478,913                       175,061                       478,913               12,041                   6.9% 2.5%

          Interagency Contracts 5,428,281                    4,810,474                    4,865,659            1,014,942              21.1% 20.9%

Total - Selected Goals 167,836,172                168,810,394                171,671,790        41,790,623            24.8% 24.3%

 Straight Line 

Projection 

(Over)Under 

Amended Budget

(Over)Under 

Operating 

Budget

Gen. Rev. 148,373,886          3,704,608             2,660,642          

Federal 6,723,460              (477,095)               311,449             

G.O. Bonds 7,957,216              (2,457,216)            300,565             

Approp. Rec. 48,164                   126,897                430,749             

IACs 4,059,768              750,706                805,891             

Total 167,162,494          1,647,900             4,509,296          

381



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

382



 
 

 

 

To:               Finance and Audit Committee Members  

  Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

  TJJD Executive Team 

From:  Eleazar Garcia, Chief Auditor 

Subject: Results of Audit Follow-up Review, Project 14-2 

Date:  January 31, 2014 

 
Attached for your review is our report on the Agency’s implementation status of audit 

recommendations and management responses. 

The Internal Audit Charter and Audit standards require Internal Audit to follow-up and report on 

the current status of prior audit recommendations, as well as to verify effective implementation for 

recommendations that have been reported as implemented by management.  There are 92 total 

recommendations in eighteen audits, including seventeen internal audits and one external SAO 

audit, dating from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2014.  Management provided status updates on the 

outstanding recommendations.  This report was completed to determine the status of the 40 

outstanding recommendations that were to be implemented prior to September 3, 2013.  Internal 

Audit performed verification on those recommendations that were reported by management as 

implemented.   

Internal Audit addressed to TJJD management staff the importance of timely implementation as 

well as the cooperation that is needed between auditors and division managers to properly report 

on the status of corrective actions.  Executive management has expressed their support by 

allocating resources to enforce and assist with the ongoing follow-up process.    

This audit follow-up review was conducted in conformance with the International Standards for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.  

These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate 

evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit 

objective.  We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and 

conclusions based on our audit objectives. 

  

383



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

384



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

RESULTS 

Management continues to address and improve upon the 

implementation of corrective actions. 

Follow-up on audit recommendations is an ongoing process requiring assessment of management 

responses and actions. 

Audit performed follow-up on 20 (50%) recommendations that were previously reported by 

management as planned or underway.  The division manager for each recommendation reported the 

current status of the corrective action along with an explanation and date of projected implementation. 

Audit performed verification on 20 (50%) recommendations that were previously reported by 

management as implemented as of September 3, 2013.  Managers provided documentation to support 

implementation and auditors completed testing to determine if the corrective action addressed the 

reported finding.  Based on the auditors review, a final status of each recommendation was determined, 

independent of the division manager. 

The status of corrective action was determined by Auditors and division managers based on the 

following: 

• Implementation Verified – Corrective action has been implemented and verified by Auditors.  

No further action is required. 

• Management Reports as Implemented – Management reports that corrective action has been 

implemented; however, implementation was completed after the 09/03/2013 cut-off date.  

Verification will be completed in the next follow-up review. 

• Underway – Management has not implemented corrective action; therefore, the 

implementation date has been revised to a subsequent date.  Follow-up will continue. 

• Revised – Factors outside of management control have caused unexpected delays to the 

implementation of corrective action; however, corrective action is still planned for the future. 

• Withdrawn/Closed – Corrective action is no longer applicable due to changes within the agency, 

or recommendation was readdressed in a subsequent audit report.  

• Delayed – The projected implementation date for this recommendation has been extended 

twelve months beyond from the previously reported implementation date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Delayed Recommendations: Implementation of a comprehensive Change Management process for the 

AMI audit.   

**Withdrawn Recommendations: The recommendation is no longer valid based on agency resources, or 

processes.  

Status  Total 

Recommendations  
Percentage  

Implementation Verified 13 33% 

Management Reports as Implemented 17 43% 

Underway 6 15% 

Revised 3 8% 

Delayed * 1 3% 

Withdrawn/Closed** 0 0% 

Total 40 100% 

385



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Comprehensive Overview 

The eighteen audits that were addressed during this follow-up report ranged from April 2012 to October 

2013.  The table below shows all of the audits that had outstanding recommendations prior to this 

report.  Of the eighteen audits that required follow-up/verification work, Auditors determined that two 

(11%) are closed due to recommendations being fully implemented while 16 (89%) still require 

corrective action and statuses will be reviewed during the next follow-up report.  

 

Report Title Total # of 

Recommen

dations

Verified Management 

Reports as 

Implemented 

Underway Revised Delayed Withdrawn/

Closed

11-9 Case Management (April 2012) 7 7 0 0 0 0 0

12-5 Software Licenses (August 2012) 2 0 0 1 1 0 0

12-8 IT General Controls (October 

2012)
7 2 3 2 0 0 0

12-9 Financial Controls (October 2012) 1 0 0 1 0 0 0

13-3 Grant Funds (December 2012) 2 2 0 0 0 0 0

13-2 Phoenix Program (December 

2012)
2 1 1 0 0 0 0

13-1A Cottrell House (January 2013) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

13-1B Evins (March 2013) 7 2 2 3 0 0 0

13-1C York House (May 2013) 6 4 1 1 0 0 0

13-7 Alleged Mistreatment (May 2013) 13 4 2 6 0 1 0

13-14 Student Use PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013)
5 0 4 0 1 0 0

13-4 Due Process Hearings (August 

2013)
5 0 1 4 0 0 0

13-5 Procurement Cards (September 

2013)
1 0 0 1 0 0 0

13-8 Ethics (September 2013) 6 0 1 5 0 0 0

13-12 Parole Audit (September 2013) 3 0 0 3 0 0 0

SAO - Education Reading Program 

Audit (September 2013)
17 0 2 15 0 0 0

13-10 TAC 202 Compliance (October 

2013)
3 0 0 3 0 0 0

13-1D Giddings (October 2013) 4 0 0 4 0 0 0

Total: 18 Audits 92 22 17 49 3 1 0

Shaded Row: Recommendations are fully implemented for entire audit. No future follow-up required. 

386



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Detailed Results for Follow-Up and Verification 

 
The following two tables outline the results of each outstanding recommendation.  The first table (Exhibit I) provides the follow-up results for 

recommendations that were previously reported as underway or planned with a projected implementation date that was on or prior to our 

testing date of September 3, 2013.  Division managers provided a status as well as an explanation of the progress for implementing the 

corrective action.  

 

The second table (Exhibit II) provides results for recommendations that were previously reported by management as implemented and are in the 

verification stage.  If testing showed that corrective action has been implemented and the reported finding no longer exists, the 

recommendation is “Implementation Verified” and no future follow-up is needed.  If after testing the implementation could not be verified or if 

the corrective action did not address the initial finding, the recommendation has been labeled as “Underway” and managers provided new 

corrective action plans and new projected implementation dates.      

 

Exhibit I. Recommendations in Follow-up Stage 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

12-5 Software 

Licenses (August 

2012) 

The Chief Information Officer will ensure that the 

agency implements a software management process 

to include establishing responsibility, maintaining an 

accurate inventory, ensuring license compliance, and 

effectively allocating the use of software applications.  

This will include a periodic review and reporting of 

the agency’s compliance with software requirements. 

TJJD has implemented a software 

procurement and installation policy effective 

November 2013.  Plans are in place to 

develop an approved software list on data 

they currently have and will continue to 

update as necessary.  In addition, there are 

plans to request software in use from each 

division to try and match up with purchase 

orders on file.   

Revised 

12-8 IT General 

Controls (October 

2012) 

To ensure inactive accounts are removed from the 

Active Directory, the Chief Information Officer will 

research the capability to run a script to identify 

accounts that have been inactive for a specified time 

frame and take appropriate actions. 

This is an ongoing task, we will continue to 

monitor for non-active accounts and 

communicate with appropriate parties to 

obtain necessary paperwork.  This task is 

completed.   

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

387



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

12-8 IT General 

Controls (October 

2012) 

The Chief Information Officer will work with agency 

management to identify personnel utilizing generic 

logon credentials and coordinate their removal and 

assignment of unique user IDs. 

This process is implemented and will 

continue to be an ongoing task. 

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-2 Phoenix 

Program 

(December 2012) 

To assure compliance with the Phoenix Program, the 

Facility Superintendent should ensure oversight 

outlined in CMS 03.75 be completed to identify 

concerns and that proper actions are taken to 

address them. 

Revisions to CMS 03.75 (Programming for 

Youth in Phoenix Program) have been 

completed, and a new action plan is in place 

that includes how oversight of the CMS 03.75 

will occur. 

Management 

Report as  

Implemented 

13-1A Cottrell 

House (January 

2013) 

To ensure JCO work scheduling practices and 

expectations are consistent, the Sr. Director of State 

Programs and Facilities should ensure policies over 

the halfway houses are finalized and codified a report 

on compliance and timeliness. 

Policies and procedures pertaining to halfway 

houses were created and are currently being 

reviewed by General Counsel. 

Revised 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The Director of Security should ensure compliance of 

Level III requirement by implemented a consistent 

review process.  

The Dorm Supervisor was moved to Director 

of Security on 8/15/13.  He has been checking 

the level III extension paperwork.  Monitoring 

and Inspections have provided training to all 

security staff, dorm supervisors and 

caseworkers on how to properly complete 

extensions and the required paperwork.  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The Facility Business Coordinator should ensure 

escheatment reports are completed within 

timeframe required by agency policy.  

The business manager provided training to all 

finance clerks in June and July, 2013.   

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

388



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

13-14 Student Use 

PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013) 

To bring the facility schools into compliance with 

established guidelines, the Senior Director of 

Education should communicate and ensure 

application through increased training on computer 

resources and “Drop Folder” utilization, periodic 

reviews of required forms, inventories, and 

classroom management.   

Education staff have reviewed and signed 

EDU 060 on 09/01/2013. Procedures for 

having new education employees review and 

sign EDU 060 added to NEO training on 

10/01/2013.  All students’ flash drives were 

collected by IT.  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-14 Student Use 

PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013) 

To ensure collaboration and application of necessary 

protocols with agency systems, the Chief of Staff 

should ensure the MOUs provide for pre-

authorization and/or overview by IS&T of any IT 

related resources.   

The Contracts and Procurement Division are 

currently updating their policy and procedure 

manual.  After the updates are completed the 

audit recommendation will be met.   

Revised 

13-14 Student Use 

PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013) 

To ensure protection of agency resources, the Chief 

Technology Officer should work with the Senior 

Director of Education to assess the need for use of 

student flash drives statewide including collection of 

all flash drives that are not in use. 

Steps outlined under the Management 

response section are fulfilled; however we 

are rewriting the USB policy to include 

exceptions. All USBs drives were taken from 

the facilities and issued agency approved 

ones.  This will be ongoing tasks as 

employees arrive and depart from the 

agency.  We are at the monitoring and 

control stage.   

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-14 Student Use 

PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013) 

To ensure consistency and promote enhanced 

controls over agency hardware, the Chief of Staff 

should work with the Chief Technology Officer to 

standardize the purchase and use of flash drives. 

Policy was implemented on 11/15/13 GAP 

05.10: Acquisition and Use of USB Storage 

Devices  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

389



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure that contraband is being documented and 

secured in accordance with established guidelines, 

the Superintendent should review and establish a 

process that adheres to policy. 

The contraband seized is being identified, 

and documented on the CCF-225 as required 

by GAP 380.9711. This is an ongoing 

process.    

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-4 Due Process 

Hearings (August 

2013) 

The Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 

should ensure due process hearing documentation is 

properly filed in the youths’ folders.   

The Security files at all institutions are now 

being filed in chronological order with the 

most recent incident on top.  This will help 

ensure that all items related to a hearing 

packet are filed in the appropriate place 

according to date and should be easier to 

locate and verify. 

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

The Chief Technology Officer should enforce policy 

related to change management controls and system 

documentation requirements to ensure data 

reliability and security of the ANE database. 

The members of the division will continue to 

seek and work on the initiatives to develop 

and implement solutions and steps aligned 

with the overall Change Management 

process in an effort to phase aspects of 

Change Management into the fabric of the IT 

organization.  The expectation is to have a 

comprehensive Change Management process 

in place by December 2014.   

Delayed 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

The Chief Inspector General should submit a proposal 

to upgrade OIG system resources to implement the 

full use of the Investigative Reports Manager System.   

The Office of Inspector General has partnered 

with the Information Technology Division and 

submitted a comprehensive plan to upgrade 

and replace computer systems for the OIG 

and other divisions in the agency by 

December 31, 2013.   

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

390



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To ensure proper identification and tracking of all 

referred incidents including both parts of a dual 

assignment, the Chief Inspector General should 

discuss the ability of the IRC Complaint Manager to 

allow dual referrals for one reported incident.   

The recommendation is implemented on an 

Excel tracking sheet on 11/21/2013.  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-8 Ethics 

(September 2013) 

To ensure accurate reporting of the Training Tracking 

System, the Senior Director of Administration and 

Training should work with IS&T to ensure reliable 

tracking of training records.   

The recommendation is fully Implemented on 

July 19, 2013.  The 40 hours of annual 

training that was originally calculated as a 

block has now be separated into individual 

course codes and staff may receive credit as 

they pass each course individually instead of 

one pass/fail notation.  This change ensures 

more accurate reporting to determine who is 

out of compliance with all or part of their 

annual training.  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

391



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Current Status  per Management 

(Summarized) 

Reported Status 

SAO - Education 

Reading Program 

Audit (September 

2013) 

To strengthen its reading program in the schools at 

all of its facilities, the Department should consistently 

conduct classroom observations in the schools at its 

facilities to help ensure instructional quality. 

File folders are maintained on the agency’s M 

drive where principals at each location file 

schedules for classroom visits, quick visit 

tools, and weekly summaries.  This data is 

required to be placed in the M drive during 

certain times of the month for review by the 

superintendent of education.  In addition, 

principals place teacher lesson plans in the 

file folder which includes documentation for 

reading strategies used in every class and the 

amount of time spent teaching those 

strategies.  The superintendent of education 

will review all lesson plans and report any 

concerns to principals at that time for 

corrective action.    

Management 

Report as  

Implemented 

SAO - Education 

Reading Program 

Audit (September 

2013) 

The Department should provide additional training to 

teachers and attendance clerks on attendance coding 

to improve the accuracy of attendance records. 

Training has occurred in June and November 

2013 with additional training scheduled in 

spring 2014.  

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

SAO - Education 

Reading Program 

Audit (September 

2013) 

The Department should ensure that daily attendance 

reconciliations consistently include a review of all 

supporting documentation, including all student 

movement logs, to improve the accuracy of 

attendance records. 

Procedures have been drafted and are 

awaiting approval and once approval is 

obtained, training will occur. 

Underway 

 

Exhibit II. Recommendations in Verification Stage 

392



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Verification Work Completed by Auditor Status 

Determined by 

Auditor 

11-9 Case 

Management 

(April 2012) 

The Chief Information Officer should work with the 

State Data Center Services vendor to investigate, 

isolate, and address the issues associated with data 

input and utilization of CCS and Assessments.Com. 

Based on discussion with Chief Info & 

Technology Officer (CITO) Elaine Mays 

during Parole and Facility Audits in FY 2013 

and auditor observations, the problem has 

been resolved.  Internal Audit will continue 

to monitor through audits and provide 

update to management if warranted.  

Implementation 

verified 

12-8 IT General 

Controls (October 

2012) 

The Chief Information Officer will coordinate with the 

Human Resources Division Manager on 

implementation of a periodic review over the User 

Access Log On/Disable Request process to include a 

report on compliance and timeliness. 

Results indicate that recommendation has 

been implemented and has been verified by 

auditor.   

Implementation 

verified 

12-8 IT General 

Controls (October 

2012) 

The Chief Information Officer will document and 

implement procedures to ensure weekly backups for 

non-DCS servers are maintained in a location separate 

from the TJJD Central Office. 

All servers are now being backed up in DCS. 

The agency is utilizing the DCS daily and 

weekly backup schedule. 

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

13-3 Grant Funds 

(December 2012) 

To maintain transparency and accountability in the 

agency’s grant funding methodologies to the 

probation departments, the Sr. Director of Finance and 

Technology should ensure the methodologies are 

appropriately documented.  And, if documented 

within multiple sources, consistent. 

Auditor reviewed the December 2012 and 

2013 "Community Juvenile Justice 

Appropriations, Riders and Special Diversion 

Programs" reports which are submitted 

annually to the Governor and Legislative 

Budget Board and list funding 

methodologies for the various county grants 

to determine if the allocation method for 

grant funds are appropriately and 

consistently documented.   

Implementation 

verified 

393



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Verification Work Completed by Auditor Status 

Determined by 

Auditor 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The facility Superintendent should ensure the Training 

Advisory Committee is utilized in accordance with 

established guidelines. 

Implemented needs improvement.  Auditor 

reviewed minutes 12/18/13.  While all 

departments attended meetings and 

recommended training in various areas, 

there is not consistent documentation of 

which recommendations would be 

implemented or a timeframe for resolving 

training issues.  Some items have 

timeframes while others do not.  Discussed 

these results with Evins Superintendent 

Donald Brooks who was receptive to them. 

Implementation 

verified 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The facility Superintendent should ensure 

documentation consistently supports that youth are 

receiving large muscle exercise. 

Implementation needs improvement.  Daily 

reports documented dorms receiving or 

refusing large muscle exercise for the days 

of 12/2-12/6/13. 12/20/13 - Discussed 

improved documentation with Evins 

Superintendent Donald Brooks as well as the 

fact that the exercise log only indicated 45 

minutes as opposed to the hour required by 

policy.  

Implementation 

verified 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The facility Superintendent should ensure the 

conference request process is being administered in 

accordance with established guidelines.  

Previously reported as implemented; 

however, auditor review identified 

recommendation has not been 

implemented on all campus dorms.  

Underway 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The facility Superintendent should ensure a process of 

collecting medical certification for employee absences 

is in place and that disciplinary action is implemented.  

Previously reported as implemented; 

however, management response was that 

JCOs are not being held accountable for 

missing work for several days and medical 

documentation is not being obtained.  

Underway 

394



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Verification Work Completed by Auditor Status 

Determined by 

Auditor 

13-1B Evins 

(March 2013) 

The Director of Specialized Treatment should work 

with facility and Central Office Administration to 

ensure the quality assurance reviews of suicide alert 

program requirements are completed to meet the 

established requirements. 

Previously reported as implemented; 

however, auditor review identified that not 

all required reviews are being completed.   

Underway 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure accurate completion and documentation of 

community service hours meets agency expectations, 

the Superintendent should implement a review of 

hours. 

Previously reported as implemented; 

however, Auditor review identified 

discrepancies on logs obtained for 

community service.  

Underway 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure the training department remains up to date 

for all required training, the Superintendent should 

ensure the tracking tool is sufficient to meet staffs’ 

specific training needs. 

The supplemental training is being tracked.  Implementation 

verified 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure youth grievances are administered in 

accordance with established guidelines, the 

Superintendent should complete monthly reviews. 

Implementation needs improvement. Upon 

review of grievances, auditors identified that 

the 2 day requirement for assignment was 

being met; however, a total of 3 out 7 

grievances were resolved past their due 

date with justification included (42%).  

Implementation 

verified 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure that career ladder adjustments are being 

administered in accordance with guidelines, the 

Director of Human Resources should clarify the 

process with Human Resources Administrators. 

Of the 13 JCO employees 12 (92%) have a 

current Performance Evaluation and one 

(8%) is past due.  

Implementation 

verified 

395



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Verification Work Completed by Auditor Status 

Determined by 

Auditor 

13-1C York House 

(May 2013) 

To ensure the conference request log is being 

administered in accordance with established 

guidelines, the Superintendent should complete 

monthly reviews. 

Auditor reviewed the conference Request 

Log for Sept. 2013 to present which 

indicated all fields of binder being 

completed including youth name, TJJD#, 

staff name the conference was held with, 

date conference held, and youth signature.  

Implementation 

verified 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To ensure all abuse, neglect, and exploitation 

allegation incidents are investigated, the Chief 

Inspector General should work with the Chief of Staff 

to appoint a Decision Authority over the handling of 

rejected incidents that include elements of ANE. 

The OIG has implemented the IRC Reference 

Sheet based on feedback obtained from 

staff in OIG, AID, Youth Rights, Youth 

Services (State Program & Facilities), Human 

Resources and Monitoring and Inspections 

to assist in the referral process.   

Implementation 

verified 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To ensure proper management of incidents forwarded 

to the State Programs and Facilities, the Senior 

Director of State Programs and Facilities should 

develop procedures for the handling and proper 

storage of data received. 

Auditor verified IRC incidents being tracked 

on public, M Drive along with documented 

procedures. 

Implementation 

verified 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To ensure reported incidents are appropriately 

categorized, referred, and accepted, the Chief 

Inspector General should implement a periodic review 

of referred incidents to the Executive Director. 

Auditor verified incidents were being 

reported to and discussed with Executive 

Director.  

Implementation 

verified 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To improve reporting of AID case handling, the 

Director of AID should report the full timeframe for 

completion of investigations as part of the dashboard 

reports to the Board.   

Previously reported as implemented; 

however, discussion with management 

indicated this was being completed verbally; 

however, recommendation required to be 

included in the dashboard reports.   

Underway 

396



Audit Follow-Up January 2014 

 

Audit Control 

#/Title/Date 

Recommendation Verification Work Completed by Auditor Status 

Determined by 

Auditor 

13-7 Alleged 

Mistreatment 

(May 2013) 

To ensure appropriate documentation for non-

acceptance of cases, the Director of AID should include 

a review of rejection documentation within the quality 

assurance reviews. 

Recommendation implemented needs 

improvement to ensure:  (1) all reject 

reasons include if the incident does not 

contain elements of ANE; (2) reviews are 

done timely; and (3) the reviews are done 

by someone other than the person analyzing 

the case for acceptance or rejection.   

Implementation 

verified 

13-14 Student Use 

PCs and Flash 

Drives (May 2013) 

To further enhance the agency’s abilities to protect 

against unauthorized use, the Chief Technology Officer 

should assess deployment of SOPHOS or like program 

to all agency systems. 

All machines that were on the network or 

physically available were updated. The 

laptops by individual employees were 

notified to obtain access in order to update 

them. The education machines were 

disconnected by education and when 

education decided to utilize those machines 

in the future Sophos will be installed at that 

time. 

Management 

Report as 

Implemented 

 

397



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

398



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 
Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

 

Thursday, July 25, 2013 – 3:30 p.m. 
11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H - Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78758 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Joe Brown, Committee Chairman   The Honorable Laura Parker 
The Honorable Carol Bush      
Becky Gregory 
 
EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 
Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 
Brett Bray, General Counsel 
Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 
Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 
Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 
Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services 
Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 
James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 
Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 
 
OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Daniel Berumen, TJJD     Katrena Plummer, TJJD 
Nadine Butler, TJJD     Martha Carroll, TJJD 
Xavier Casares, TJJD     Ashley Kintzer, TJJD 
Karol Davidson, TJJD     Kevin Dubose, TJJD 
Kavita Gupta, TJJD     Peter Heller, TJJD 
Lizet Hinojosa, TJJD     Jeannette Lepe, TJJD 
Stephanie Melot, TJJD     Steve Roman, TJJD 
Nancy Slott, TJJD      Rod Venner, TJJD 
Robert Walker, TJJD     Christine Mallette, TJJD 
Terry Dollar, TJJD     Christina Ybarra, TJJD 

399



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m.  A quorum was present.   

 

March 21, 2013 meeting minutes 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the March 21, 2013 meeting minutes. The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

May 30, 2013 meeting minutes 

 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the May 30, 2013 meeting minutes. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

Office of the Inspector General update 

Chief Inspector General Roland Luna referred to the Investigative Analysis for OIG, reporting a 

7% increase in total calls to the IRC.  He noted that the numbers are actually trending down 

through the month of June.  He responded to an inquiry regarding a 56% increase in criminal 

investigations opened.  Chief Luna responded that complaints have increased over the past 

three fiscal years in part due to reporting; youth reports have been constant with no increase 

in reports from staff.  On March 15, 2013, there was a change to the automatic reporting policy, 

but a decrease in complaints resulted.  Mr. Griffiths stated that investigations opened have 

increased and may be attributed to Mr. Luna’s focus on that issue and updating the division.  

Ms. Stroud suggested that the increase may be due to a different standard and more 

comprehensive review of data.  She stated that the OIG reviews data much more in depth than 

in the past.  Ms. Stroud also said information provided by OIG can help follow trends and help 

with policy decisions.  Mr. Luna noted that what is important is the number sustained and 

referred for prosecution because that number is much smaller, but more cases are referred 

due to more allegations.  A question was raised as to whether the numbers are increasing 

because of increased availability of institutional vehicles in place which encourage youth to 

report issues.  Mr. Luna stated that youths have always had the ability to report complaints to 

the IRC. 

 

400



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Ms. Stroud commented that in 2007 when the hotline was first implemented, there was a large 

spike in the number of reports.  As the hotline system was better defined, calls became more 

appropriate.  Mr. Luna said approximately 40 percent of calls made to the IRC are processed by 

one of the divisions.  A query could be done to research and explore factors in increased 

complaints.  Mr. Luna gave a number of potential factors and noted there are many variables.  

Ms. Stroud reported that there was a new poster put out by Youth Rights to encourage 

reporting of grievances; and also, anxiety at Corsicana due to an uncertain future, could be 

factored in. 

 

Chairman Brown inquired why a report of such a large increase was not accompanied by an 

explanation.  Ms. Stroud promised an answer and acknowledged that the numbers are 

worrisome. 

 

Mr. Luna explained the Investigative Life Cycle and noted a large decrease in the number of 

days for final disposition as compared to last fiscal year, even with a large increase in the 

number of investigations opened.  

 

Mr. Luna also highlighted that the OIG has developed new firearms proficiency, conducted 

tactical training for the apprehension program, completed all peace officer TCLEOSE-required 

training, and has received initial certification for evidence procedures.  Process improvements 

have also been implemented; including, warrant checks being conducted for state programs for 

incoming youth; and developing an entrance policy and procedure with the General Counsel’s 

office. 

 

401



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Administrative Investigations update 

Kevin Dubose referred members to page 305 of the board packet, and discussed the numbers 

in general, specifically, numbers by program and allegation type from county-operated 

facilities. He stated that the majority of allegations originate from secure detention and 

placement facilities; with the highest number of allegations being physical abuse by physical 

restraint.  Mr. Dubose referred to Page 307 relating to disposition of cases through July 18 and 

explained the definition of findings with 75 of 277 allegations ruled out; Page 308 concluded 

the county report, which showed a 16% decrease in the number of allegations assigned for 

investigations through May and June had spiked, and a 14% decline in serious incidents was 

reported, though no decline in total. 

 

Mr. Dubose referred to Page 309 that listed all counties that have reported any allegations 

stating that larger numbers are associated with larger jurisdictions such as Bexar, Dallas and 

Harris counties; the state facilities report on Page 311 shows that 724 of 753 cases originated 

within secure facilities with a significant decline from last year.  There was also a decline in the 

number of cases completed with no findings being overturned last year; and Page 303 showed 

summary comparison.  Mr. Dubose pointed out highlights and explained staff vacancies. 

 

State Programs and Facilities update 

Ms. Stroud directed members to Page 315 of the Safety & Security Report as of July 10, stating 

that all capacity is being used in contract care with the agency JCO turnover rate remaining 

fairly static.  She pointed out that the turnover report showed that Gainesville improved 

greatly due to positive feedback about new the superintendent and his management team. 

 

Ms. Stroud pointed out that the agency has reached a new low in workmen’s compensation 

claims.  She stated that the annual injury frequency rate has decreased, with a total reduction 

in cost of about $500,000 this year, including the cost of previous years’ accidents still being 

paid out.  She also highlighted that overtime reduction in costs shows a reduction trend to date 

of 70% in high-risk facilities and 60% in halfway houses with an overall savings equal to $1.2 

million. 

 

402



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Ms. Stroud also announced that Debra Noles and her staff have just completed training at the 

Evins facility specifically on the Santa Muerte gang with the goal of educating staff to help 

curtail gang activity.  She also highlighted other good news regarding staff. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed new Texas Administrative Code 

Chapter 355 (relating to Non-Secure Correctional Facilities) in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period. 

Mr. Williams pointed out similarities between emergency standards and proposed new 

standards for TAC 355, including definition of non-secure facility and changes in staffing 

requirements. Mr. Williams acknowledged many who helped and requested approval of 

placing the standard in the Texas Register for public comment.  Kavita Gupta explained the 

contraband definition and list by stating that the standard gives a minimum because of a 

variability of items are allowed in non-secure facilities. Mr. Williams provided further 

information about the broadness.  A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval 

by the full Board.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Review, Discussion, and Possible Action Regarding the Travis County Juvenile Board 

Application for Permanent Variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 

343.634 Related to Requirements for Levels of Resident Supervision in Multiple-

Occupancy Housing Units 

This item was deferred and will be brought back to committee at a later date 

 
Discipline of certified officers – Default Judgment Orders 

a. John Bailey DH No. 13-19756-130033 

b. Michael Arguellas DH No. 13-24549-120368 

c. Chris Brown DH No. 13-25695 

d. Rafael Figueroa DH No. 13-25734-120359 

e. Timothy Dunn DH No. 13-25754-120375 

 

A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval by the full Board.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

 

403



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Discipline of certified officer - Agreed Orders 

a. Alan Galvan DH No. 13-26894 

b. Louie McClain DH No. 13-24649 

 

A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval by the full Board.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

 

404



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

Thursday, October17, 2013– 2:00 p.m. 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H - Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78758 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

The Honorable Laura Parker    Joe Brown, Committee Chairman 

Becky Gregory      The Honorable Carol Bush 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 

Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Jim Hurley, Communications Manager 

 Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

 Elaine Mays, Chief Information Officer 

 Michael Myer, Chief Financial Officer 

 Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 

 

 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Edward Maldonado, TJJD            Rod Venner, TJJD 

Karol Davidson, TJJD     Fred Meinke, TJJD 

Stephanie Melot, TJJD     Kavita Gupta, TJJD 

Steve Roman, TJJD             Katrena Plummer, TJJD 

Rebecca Thomas, TJJD     Kevin Dubose, TJJD 

Peter Heller, TJJD       Debbie Houser, TJJD  

John Isle, TJJD      David Tuminson, Cameron Co. JPD 

Ashley Kintzer, TJJD     Darryl Beatty, Travis Co. JPD 

Martha Carroll, TJJD     Estella P Medina, Travis Co. JPD 

Terri Dollar, TJJD      Shakira Pumphrey, Speaker Straus’s Office  

Jose Castillo, Cameron County JPD           Brandy Baptiste, Travis Co. JPD 

Lauren Rose, Texans Care for Children   Kimberly Schmid, Lt. Gov. Office 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

 

 

405



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Call to Order 

The Honorable Laura Parker presided in the absence of Committee Chairman Joe Brown and called 

the meeting to order at 2:00p.m.  Judge Parker stated there was not quorum present.   

 

July 25, 2013 meeting minutes 

Due to a lack of a quorum the minutes were tabled. 

 

Administrative Investigation Update 

Mr. Kevin Dubose, Director of Administrative Investigations, provided a statistical summary of the 

administrative investigations division for both state and county investigation units, including 

comparisons of FY 2013 to FY 2012. The state facilities had 953 open administrative investigations in FY 

2013 and county facilities and programs had 1,007 classified grievances. 

Mr. Dubose presented the Community Based Programs and Facilities Report.  There were 2,612 reports; 

1,199 originated from the OIG’s incident reporting center, 800 of those originated from the detention 

facilities and were direct calls from the youth in the county facilities; 296 were from secure placement.  

Of these 1,199 calls, 86 were classified as allegations for abuse, neglect and exploitation (ANE). The vast 

majority of those calls, 926, were classified as grievances.  

Of the 339 ANE investigations opened, 188 originated from secure detention and 107 from secure 

placement.  The majority of those allegations were physical abuse by physical restraint, with 135 of the 

339 classified as such, and 94 were physical abuse not involving physical restraint. 

Mr. Dubose reported that 616 serious incidents were classified in FY 2013 and the classifications of 

those serious incidents were broken down in the report. On the county side, the statistical decline in 

terms of investigations of abuse, neglect and exploitation were 10% in administrative investigations and 

13% in serious incidents.  Allegations by county and type were reported and include only the counties 

that filed an ANE report.  

On the state side, there were a total of 953 administrative investigations that were opened, 912 of which 

originated from secure facilities and 29 from halfway houses. The report also includes a statistical 

breakdown by disposition which provides more in-depth information on which facilities had higher 

numbers of confirmed findings as well as which facilities had not confirmed, exonerated or unfounded 

findings. 

406



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Statistics not seen in the board packet are related to average days to closure of investigations which is 

116 days on the county side which falls within the recommended parameter. On the state side it is 

approximately 162 days and is an area where we are focusing on improving.  We are in the process of 

refining policy, GAP 380.9333 which will expand the current 30 day requirement for completion of 

investigations. Further discussion ensued on this agenda topic. 

 

State Programs and Facilities Update 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities presented the Safety and Security report 

outlining the current population at our secure restriction facilities, halfway houses and contract care 

facilities. Of note is the decrease in population at Giddings State School and, effective November 1, 2013, 

there will be a reduction in population at Mart as they begin moving their Orientation and Assessment 

(O&A) Unit youth to Ron Jackson.  They will soon resume sending youth to the G4S – Youth Services 

facility and the other contracted facility is full with minus one bed.   As we start moving youth to O&A, 

we’ll see some of the numbers go down.   

TJJD has closed two halfway houses in the last couple of months: Turman House in Austin and Beto 

House in McAllen. A small halfway house has been opened in Brownwood for girls. Girls were received 

there October 1, 2013.  Willoughby House, located in Ft. Worth has been converted to accept boys in a 

step-down program from the mental health treatment program. Because that is a fragile population, 

youth were moved to a transition dorm in Corsicana so that they could live together and gain some skills 

in independent living prior to being moved to Willoughby House.   

Ms. Stroud reported that, beginning in October, her division started cross-training all institutional dorm 

supervisors and program supervisors.  It was decided that it would be more efficient and effective to 

have one person supervise all staff in the dorm and would aid in improving the delivery of service to the 

youth. That will become effective in January, with new job descriptions in effect at that time.   

A lot of reorganization and changes in management have been made at the facilities.  Ms. Stroud 

reported that there are still issues at Giddings and some issues are under investigation. The 

Superintendent was replaced by the Assistant Superintendent of Corsicana.  The reduction of population 

and the staffing changes have helped improve the culture. Following a recent incident that compromised 

the safety of staff and youth at the Giddings facility, case reviews of the youth involved in the incident 

are being conducted expeditiously.  The determinate sentenced offenders involved will have their packet 

review expedited for a recommendation for transition from TJJD.  Many youth contributed to safety 

during the incident, resulting in a recommendation of reduced minimum length of stay or early 

407



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

transition to a medium restriction placement or home. Ms. Gregory requested to be advised of the 

results when they become available. 

Regarding overtime, Ms. Stroud provided the new budgeting capacity for the facilities. The total 

expenditures, including the one month to date in FY 2013, show a million dollar savings at Corsicana 

from FY 2012 to FY 2013, reductions at Evins and Gainesville, an increase at Giddings and another small 

increase of three thousand at Mart. They will continue to monitor this closely. 

Ms. Stroud announced that Luis Hernandez, formerly the Superintendent of Beto House, is now serving 

as Superintendent of Cottrell House.  Jimmy Prince, Superintendent at Willoughby House, is now 

Superintendent at McFadden House in Roanoke, Texas.  Allen Wallace, a former Ombudsman for the 

agency was selected to serve as Superintendent at Willoughby House.  Jerome Finley was selected to 

serve as Superintendent of the Brownwood Halfway House and has a lot of experience working with the 

female population. Several vacancies in central office have recently been filled by individuals who have 

current or former agency experience. 

Ms. Stroud stated that her division would be co-hosting the upcoming Strengthening Youth and Families 

conference to be held in San Marcus in November.   

 

Review, discussion and possible action regarding the Travis County Juvenile Board application 

for a permanent variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 343.634 Related to 

Requirements for Levels of Resident Supervision in Multiple Occupancy Housing Units 

Mr. Scott Friedman, TJJD Monitoring and Inspections Division, presented a responsive variance 

application submitted by the Travis County Juvenile Board.  The variance application is related to a 

secure post-adjudication facility with housing units that have 20 double occupancy rooms designed to 

accommodate 2 youth.  The use of these rooms does not always allow for the staff to maintain a line of 

sight to allow for the constant visual supervision of the two residents.   There has been considerable 

discussion between TJJD staff and the staff of Travis County to make sure that the recommended 

conditions are agreed upon and doable, and TJJD staff is recommending the variance be granted with the 

stipulated conditions.  Mr. Friedman disclosed that, since distributing the board packets, some small 

discrepancies have been identified from the staff summary document and draft resolution and a revised 

resolution has been prepared.   Mr. Griffiths added that the facility is accredited by the American 

Correctional Association. 

408



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Review, discussion and possible action regarding the Cameron County Juvenile Board 

applications for permanent variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Sections 343.352 

(related to requirement for resident visitation), 343.354 (related to requirements on limitations 

on resident visitation), 343.358 (related to requirements for resident telephone use), 343.360 

(related to requirements for resident mail), 343.600 (related to requirements for pre-admission 

records) and 343.606 (related to requirements for resident orientation).  

Mr. Friedman advised that Cameron County has submitted numerous applications for variance and TJJD 

has identified six standards that they feel are in need of a variance.  Unlike the Travis County application 

which dealt with an existing facility, this is a proposed program within their secure post-adjudication 

program where they are attempting to start a weekend program. The existing standards are designed 

for multi-month stays and were never designed for weekend stays. Cameron County has looked at Bexar 

County Juvenile Probation Department’s weekend program and would like to replicate that program. 

The six variances have been consolidated into one resolution. TJJD feels the applicant’s six applications 

have satisfied all of the required and authorization criteria, and TJJD is recommending that the variances 

be granted with the stipulated conditions.   

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions and one new rule in 37 TAC 

Chapter 343 in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period for the following rules: 

343.100, 343.322, 343.406, 343.407, 343.600, 343,800, 343.804, 343.816  

Mr. Griffiths asked the sub-committee and full board that this be tabled until the next board meeting as 

this request is based on extensive comments received from community advocates.  Further review is 

needed. Judge Parker tabled this agenda item. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC Code 380.9198 

relating to Therapeutic Restraints in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services, provided information about the full restraint 

policy that establishes clearly defined criteria for the safety and security of the youth. These clearly 

defined procedures and protocols will document the observation and actions taken, ensuring that the 

physician, psychiatrists and mental health professionals are fully involved in the decision-making 

process to start the process, to maintain the ongoing 4-point restraint and take the appropriate action 

going forward.   The mental health professional will be on site within 2 hours of initiation of the 4-point 

restraint; within 4 hours, the psychiatrist will be informed of it; within 8 hours, psychiatric consultation 

will be obtained.  A well-trained individual will be assigned to maintain the process and document what 

has been done and what should be done going forward. The physician or mental health professional will 

be involved in the documentation, evaluation and communication with the psychiatrist to maintain 

ongoing 4-point restraint and when to stop use of the 4-point restraint.   A psychiatrist will be on call 

and a psychologist would be on site.  Regarding medical restraint, the process is well established in the 

409



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

sense that the decision would be made by the medical provider; if there is an ongoing need to maintain 

the medical restraint beyond one hour, the process would begin to transfer the youth to an emergency 

room and continued 4-point restraint would only continue beyond one hour for the purpose of 

transporting the youth to the emergency room. During this time the medical provider would be fully 

involved in the decision-making process to start, continue or transfer the youth to the facility.  

Ms. Stroud added that the 4-point restraints are only used at facilities where we have stabilization units 

for youth who are chronically mentally ill, currently only at Ron Jackson and Corsicana, and are used in 

circumstances where any other type of restraint would not be safe for a youth who is actively psychotic 

and in danger of harming himself, herself or others.    

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC Code 380.9723 related 

to Use of Force, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Ms. Stroud and Dr. Parikh provided a summary of the proposed revisions.  This policy relates to the use 

of OC (pepper) spray and will ensure that anyone who is carrying and using OC spray must also be 

exposed to OC.  One of the reasons is that, if you know the impact OC has on the youth and how long it 

will take to decontaminate the youth and get them proper relief after administration of the agent.  

Additionally, if someone overtakes you and uses the OC spray on you, you are aware of the effects of the 

spray and how to push through it for your own safety. Since May, the agency has been requiring anyone 

who carries or is authorized to carry OC spray to be exposed to it unless there’s a medical reason why 

they should not be. Clarification was added stating that use of 4-point restraints do not apply to this rule. 

If a youth is placed in mechanical restraints after the first 30 minutes, they have to have permission to 

extend that from the Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent, or the person who is on duty for 

serious incidents, a mid-level manager or above, and every two hours thereafter. Also added is that 

youth are offered food and drink and an opportunity to use the restroom at appropriate intervals, as 

well as clarification that, if mechanical restraint was needed beyond 12 hours, a medical provider must 

write an order to do that. It also specifies that, at medium restriction facilities, staff need to contact 

medical personnel as soon as possible after use of force but it is not imperative that they see medical 

personnel. In all high restrictions facilities run by the agency, youth who are mechanically restrained 

will see medical personnel when mechanically restrained. 

410



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discussion and possible adoption of the proposed repeal of 37 TAC Code 380.8761, relating to 

Substance Abuse Services 

Ms. Stroud stated this repeal is proposed because content of this rule already exists in 3 other rules – 

assessment and evaluation, case planning and under case planning offenders. 

Discussion and possible adoption of proposed new 37 TAC Chapter 355, relating to Non-Secure 

Correctional Facilities 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation & Community Services, stated these standards have been 

published for public comment, with no comments received. The 355 standards were written in 

collaboration with the TJJD Advisory Council and input from the field throughout the process, and the 

agency is now asking that they be posted for final adoption by the board. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapters 342 and 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

comment period, for the following rules: 342.1 – 342.3, 380.8571, and 380.8595 

Mr. Williams stated that the agency is asking that these proposed revisions be posted for public 

comment. This relates to out of state offenders that are at our facilities and includes terminology 

updates, reference to the need for information from the sending counties so that our personnel in our 

county operated and private facilities will have sufficient information on the youth, disclosure of self-

harming and attempted suicide history of the juvenile, educational and other pertinent information so 

that we can better serve the youth.  

Rule 380 relates to home studies on youth who are going on parole and going into homes.  This revision 

would allow the agency to perform background checks on anyone over the age of 14 who is living in the 

home that is being considered to ensure that it is a safe place for our youth to live. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: 380.8501, 380.8503 – 380.8555, 380.8559 – 380.8569, and 

380.8575 

Ms. Stroud and Rebecca Thomas, Director of Integrated State Operated Programs & Services spoke as 

part of the annual requirement to review the rules to make sure there is still a need for the rules by 

name. A table highlighting the proposed changes was submitted to the board. Ms. Stroud briefly outlined 

several of the requested changes. 

411



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: 380.8502, 380.8557, and 380.8579 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, and Karol Davidson, TJJD Attorney, addressed the 

committee regarding a few substantive changes being proposed. Ms. Buchholtz spoke of 380.855, 

removing an Executive Director’s (ED) veto power in one instance, something that Ms. Buchholtz has 

reviewed in detail with our ED and a change that is supported by our ED. The Release Review Panel 

(RRP) makes decisions about whether to extend, release or discharge youth who have met their minimal 

length of stay and who are with TJJD for an indeterminate sentence but who have not completed their 

programming. A previous administration requested a rule change that allowed for final say by the ED on 

whether or not a youth is released or discharged. This meant if the youth was a high severity offender 

they could not be released based on the vote of the RRP, the ED had final say in discharge or release. This 

provision is being removed because the Human Resources code requires that the RRP decision be the 

decision for the department. Mr. Griffiths has not utilized the decision making power. Ms. Buchholtz 

assured the committee that the ED would continue to be made aware of releases or discharges but 

reiterated that they were removing the requirement of his approval because the provision is not legal.  

Ms. Davidson presented two additional rules whose approval is being sought for the 30-day comment 

period. The first is GAP 380.8502 dealing with the legal requirements for admission of youth to TJJD. 

This rule specifically deals with the documentation that juvenile courts are required to submit to TJJD 

when they commit a youth to TJJD. The proposed rule now conforms to what is consistent in the Human 

Resources code. A couple of requirements were removed as they were not used and not required per the 

HR code. This rule makes clear what documents are required before TJJD will admit a youth.  For 

example, if a youth has not arrived with a certified commitment order or vaccination records, we will 

not admit the youth.  

The other rule that is being recommended for change is GAP 380.8535 which addresses placement 

planning for undocumented foreign nationals.  The proposed change would change the rule number and 

more appropriately place it under the rule for Placement Planning. In addition to that change, all the 

operating procedures are being removed and they will be placed in Case Management Standards. The 

substantive changes to this rule address TJJD’s responsibility with interacting with the Immigration 

Customs and Enforcement Section (ICE). It proposes that TJJD will work with ICE to determine the 

residency status of a youth when we don’t have documentation identifying the residency. This will allow 

TJJD to more appropriately provide services to the youth and transition services when the youth returns 

to that community.  

412



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discipline of certified officers – default judgment orders 

Mr. Brett Bray, General Counsel, stated there are four individuals listed on the agenda for 

recommendation to the full board for approval of default judgment orders but Emmanuel Munoz from 

Cameron County should be removed.  The Munoz case will be brought back to the Board at its next 

scheduled meeting. 

Officer of the Inspector General update 

Mr. Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General presented an investigative analysis for OIG which represent 

the aggregates for the FY 2013. A total of 11,854 calls came into the IRC. Calls are broken down for each 

division:  AID was 622, Probation on the AID side was 1,198, OIG for criminal was 1,716, Youth Rights 

was 5,663, and State Programs was 1,570. Closed cases, either via a directive or a result of a duplicate 

case, were 985. Total number of criminal investigations submitted for prosecution was 411. While the 

numbers may be higher than in FY 2012, the percentage of cases being referred for prosecution has 

decreased, with 32% in FY 2012 and 23% in FY 2013. Prosecution by category was 304 in the assaultive 

category, 50 in the sexual offense category, 7 for property damage, 28 for contraband, 22 for 

miscellaneous other categories, 81 for directives/apprehensions by OIG and 290 by other agencies. Mr. 

Luna then reported on the breakdown of the life cycle from inception to completion and reported an 

approximate time frame of 258 days, an improvement from FY 2012. Ms. Gregory asked about the 

increase of sexual offenses from 34 to 50. Mr. Luna said he will check on that and will provide an update 

at the board meeting tomorrow. 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m. 

413



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

414



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 Administrative Investigations Division 

Summary Comparisons  

 

 

FY13 
Thru  

November 

FY14 
Thru  

November 
State Facilities (SIU) Administrative Investigations   

Opened 208 274 

Completed 181 230 

Confirmed 104 147 

Administratively Closed 8 28 

Administratively Confirmed 0 4 
 

County Facilities and Programs (CIU)   
Allegations of Abuse, Neglect & Exploitation 83 87 

Complaints 17 10 

Grievances 259 291 

Non-Jurisdiction 15 20 

Non-Reportable  141 126 
Other Reports ( Non-Jurisdiction, Standards Violation) 12 10 

Serious Incidents  154 164 

Total from County Facilities and Programs 681 708 
 

Average Daily Populations - County  October 2013 November 2013 
Pre-Adjudication 1617 1402 

   
Average Daily Populations - County  October 2013 November 2013 

Post–Adjudication   

      Non-Secure 931 939 

      Secure 1129 1156 
 

Median Days to Disposition 

SIU CIU 

39  24 
 

Definitions for the State Investigation Unit (SIU): 

Administratively Closed:  The circumstances, facts, and/or evidence show there is no merit to the allegation, or the likelihood of solving the 

case is so negligible further investigation is unwarranted.  However, if additional information is later received, the case may be re-opened for 

investigation.  

Administratively Confirmed: The circumstances, facts, and/or evidence are sufficient that no additional investigation is needed to confirm 

that the allegation or violation did occur.  

Opened - The report was received by the Incident Reporting Center (IRC), processed by Central Office and assigned to an AID investigator. 

Completed – The investigator has concluded the investigation and the report has been submitted for the supervisor’s review.  

Closed - The investigation and all Supervisor Reviews have been completed. 

Confirmed - Investigation established that the allegation is supported by a preponderance of evidence that the allegation did occur. 

 

Definitions for the County Investigation Unit (CIU): 

Complaint – A report submitted by a parent/guardian, staff or any other source, but not a juvenile/youth. 

Grievances – When received by AID, these reports are reviewed to determine if TJJD’s involvement is warranted.  If TJJD’s involvement is 

unwarranted, the report is forwarded to the county for processing at the local level.   

Non-Jurisdiction –The TJJD does not have investigative authority or the matter is outside of the scope of the juvenile justice system. 

Non-Reportable - In accordance with Texas Administrative, Code Chapter 358, the incident does not meet the definition for reporting to 

TJJD or local law enforcement. 

Serious Incident - Attempted escape, attempted suicide, escape, reportable injury, youth-on youth physical assault or youth sexual 

conduct. 

415



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Administrative Investigations Division - County Investigations Unit 

 Community Based Programs and Facilities 

Fiscal Year 2014 

(September – November 2013) 

Overall Year-To-Date Total by Report Type From All Sources (*) 

*Reports are received via fax, e-mail, phone 

and the Incident Reporting Center 
SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation 29 23 35 87 

Complaints 2 5 3 10 

Grievances 68 128 95 291 

Non-Jurisdiction 8 6 6 20 

Non-Reportable 40 47 39 126 

Other (Contract, Duplicates, Standard 

Violations, Tech. Asst., PFI) 
5 4 1 10 

Serious Incidents 51 58 55 164 

Total Reports Received 203 271 234 708 

Reports by Month to the Incident Reporting Center (IRC) Via the Toll-Free Number 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation 7 11 17 35 

Complaints 2 4 3 9 

Grievances 69 124 90 283 

Non-Jurisdiction 7 4 4 15 

Non-Reportable 6 3 3 12 

Serious Incidents 1 3 6 10 

Other (Contract, Duplicates, Standards 

Violation, Tech Asst or PFI) 
1 3 1 5 

Total by Program Type 

Day Reporting 0 0 0 0 

Detention 58 108 49 215 

JJAEP 1 0 0 1 

Non-Secure Placement 0 4 0 4 

Probation/Parole 1 1 2 4 

Secure Placement 30 38 72 140 

Other (i.e. Non-Jurisdiction Locations) 3 1 1 5 

Total Reports Received 93 152 124 369 

416



 

 

 

 

Administrative Investigations 

Total by Program Type Sept Oct Nov Total 

Day Reporting 0 0 0 0 

Detention 19 13 15 47 

JJAEP 0 1 1 2 

Non-Secure Placement 1 2 4 7 

Probation 0 0 0 0 

Secure Placement 9 7 15 31 

          

Emotional Abuse 1 1 1 3 

Exploitation 2 0 2 4 

Firearm Related 0 1 0 1 

Neglect - Medical 0 0 0 0 

Neglect - Supervisory  1 2 1 4 

Physical Abuse – Mechanical Restraint 0 0 0 0 

Physical Abuse – Not Involving Restraint 10 5 8 23 

Physical Abuse – Physical Restraint 13 10 21 44 

Serious Physical Abuse 0 0 0 0 

Sexual Abuse – Contact  1 3 1 5 

Sexual Abuse – Non Contact 1 1 1 3 

Verbal Abuse 0 0 0 0 

Total Cases Received 29 23 35 87 

 
 
 
 
 
 

417



Summary of TJJD Dispositions 

Total by Disposition The dispositions will change every month as additional cases are closed.  For example, the numbers listed in the disposition 

columns for February will change in March depending on how many cases were closed since the last report was run.  *Other dispositions may include: 

Not Under TJJD Jurisdiction, Referred to DSHS, Referred to Law Enforcement for Investigation, Unable to Determine, and Unable to Investigate – No 

Information. 

Total by Program Type Sept Oct Nov Total 

Baseless 0 0 0 0 

Concur 0 0 0 0 

Does Not Meet Definition of ANE 0 0 0 0 

Reason to Believe 1 0 0 1 

Ruled Out 3 0 0 3 

Unable to Determine 0 0 0 0 

Other Dispositions* 0 0 1 1 

Pending 25 23 34 82 

Total 29 23 35 87 
 

Disposition by 

Allegation Type  

Already 

Investigated 
Baseless Concur Does Not Meet 

Reason 

to 

Believe 

Not TJJD 

Jurisdiction 

Ruled 

Out 

Unable to 

Determine 
Pending 

Emotional Abuse                 3 

Exploitation                 4 

Firearm Related                 1 

Neglect - Medical                 0 

Neglect - Supervisory                  4 

Physical Abuse – 

Mechanical Restraint 
                0 

Physical Abuse – Not 

Involving Restraint 
        1   3   19 

Physical Abuse – 

Physical Restraint 
1               43 

Serious Physical Abuse                 0 

Sexual Abuse – Contact                  5 

Sexual Abuse – Non-

Contact 
                3 

Verbal Abuse                 0 

Total by Disposition 1       1 0 3 0 82 

418



Serious Incidents 

 
SEPT OCT NOV 

Year to Date 

Total- by Program Type 

Day Reporting 0 0 0 0 

Detention 32 30 30 92 

JJAEP 0 0 0 0 

Non-Jurisdiction 0 2 0 2 

Non-Secure Placement 1 2 4 7 

Probation 0 1 0 1 

Secure Placement 18 23 21 62 

     

Death – Suicide 0 0 0 0 

Death – Non-Suicide 0 0 0 0 

Attempted Suicide 29 31 24 84 

Escape 1 1 0 2 

Attempted Escape 0 0 0 0 

Escape-Furlough 0 1 1 2 

Reportable  Injury 12 13 10 35 

Youth on Youth Physical Assault 1 0 3 4 

Youth Sexual Conduct 8 12 17 37 

Total Reports Received 51 58 55 164 

 
 
 

 
 
 
            

 
 

 FY 13 thru Aug FY 14 thru Aug                                                     % Change 

Administrative Investigations 83 87 5% 

Serious Incidents 154 164 6% 

Total Reports (ANE, Grievances, Complaints, etc.) 681 708 4% 

419



 
 

 

Administrative 

Investigaitons

87/12%

Complaints 

10/1%

Grievances

291/41%

Non-Jurisdiction 

20/3%

Non-Reportable 

(Not required to 

be reported per 

TAC) 126/18%

Serious Incidents 

164/23%

Other 

10/1%

All Report Types FY 2014 Thru November

Total of All Reports= 708

420



Allegations by County and Type 

  
Emotional 

Abuse 
Exploitation 

Firearm 

Related 

Medical 

Neglect 

Physical 

Abuse 

Mechanical 

Physical 

Abuse  
Physical 

Abuse 

Restraint 

Serious 

Physical 

Abuse 

Sexual 

Abuse- 

Contact 

Sexual 

Abuse 

Non-

Contact 

Supervisory 

Neglect 

Verbal 

Abuse 
Totals 

Restraint 
Non-

Restraint 

ANDERSON                         0 

ANGELINA                         0 

ATASCOSA                         0 

BELL                                       0 

BEXAR           1 1       2 9   1   2   16 

BRAZORIA                             0 

BRAZOS                                0 

BROWN           3 4           7 

CAMERON                          0 

COLLIN                          0 

CRANE                         0 

DALLAS   1 1     4 3       1   10 

DEAF SMITH                         0 

DENTON             2           2 

DUVAL             2           2 

ECTOR                         0 

EL PASO   1             2 1     4 

ELLIS                         0 

FLOYD                         0 

FORT BEND                         0 

GALVESTON                         0 

GARZA                         0 

GRAYSON             2           2 

GREGG                         0 

GUADALUPE                         0 

HARDIN                         0 

HARRIS 1 2       9 8   1   1   22 

421



 

Emotional 

Abuse 
Exploitation 

Firearm 
Medical 

Neglect 

Physical 

Abuse 

Mechanical 

Physical 

Abuse  
Physical 

Abuse 

Restraint 

Serious 

Physical 

Abuse 

Sexual 

Abuse- 

Contact 

Sexual 

Abuse 

Non-

Contact 

Supervisory 

Neglect 

Verbal 

Abuse 
Totals 

Related Restraint 
Non-

Restraint 

HARRISON                         0 

HAYS             1           1 

HIDALGO             3           3 

HOOD                         0 

HOWARD                          0 

HUNT           1 1     1     3 

JEFFERSON                         0 

KERR                         0 

LIMESTONE                         0 

LUBBOCK           1             1 

MAVERICK                         0 

MCLENNAN             1           1 

MILAM             1     1     2 

MONTGOMERY                         0 

NUECES             1           1 

RANDALL                         0 

SAN PATRICIO             1           1 

SMITH                         0 

STARR 1                       1 

TARRANT             3           3 

TAYLOR                         0 

TOM GREEN             1           1 

TRAVIS             2           2 

VAL VERDE                         0 

VAN ZANDT                         0 

VICTORIA                         0 

WEBB           1             1 

WICHITA                          0 

WILLIAMSON                 1       1 

 

422



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Administrative Investigations Division - State Investigations Unit 

State Facilities/Halfway Houses/Contract Facilities 
Fiscal Year 2014 Through November 

 

TOTAL CASES OPENED BY LOCATION 

Secure Facilities 

  SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Corsicana 7 9 5 21 

Evins 9 20 22 51 

Gainesville 16 23 31 70 

Giddings 17 13 14 44 

McLennan 9 9 13 31 

McLennan – O&A (Moved to RJ 
11/04/2013) 

4 4 4 12 

Phoenix Program 2 6 8 16 

Ron Jackson  4 4 4 12 

Ron Jackson – O&A   2 2 

Sub Total  68 88 103 259 

Halfway Houses 

Ayres House  1  1 

Beto House    0 

Cottrell House   1 1 

Edna Tamayo House  1 1 2 

McFadden Ranch   1 1 

Schaeffer House 1   1 

Turman House    0 

Willoughby House    0 

York House    0 

Sub Total  1 2 3 6 

423



Contract Care Facilities 

 SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Abraxas Youth and Family Services    0 

Associated Marine Institute, RGMI    0 

AMIKIDS DBA Rio Grande Valley 1   1 

Byrd’s Therapeutic Group Home    0 

Garza County Regional Justice Center  2 
 

2 

Gulf Coast Trade Center 1 1 1 3 

G4S Youth Services, LLC  2 1 3 

New Day Achievement Center    0 

Specialized Alternatives for Youth     0 

Unity Childrens Home    0 

Sub Total  2 5 2 9 

Parole Regions 

East    0 

North    0 

Region Central    0 

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 

 
 

424



Secure Facilities - Confirmed 

  SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Corsicana 1 5 12 18 

Evins 7 1 1 9 

Gainesville 
 

14 5 19 

Giddings 13 11 16 40 

McLennan     0 

McLennan – O&A    0 

Phoenix Program 9 22 15 46 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)  3  3 

Ron Jackson – O&A  
 

 0 

Sub Total  30 56 49 135 

Secure Facilities - Not Confirmed 

  SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Corsicana 2 2 1 5 

Evins 5 1  6 

Gainesville 
  

 0 

Giddings 5 3 2 10 

McLennan   1 1 

McLennan – O&A   
 

0 

Phoenix Program 10 2 9 21 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)    0 

Ron Jackson – O&A    0 

Sub Total  22 8 13 43 

 
 
 
 

425



 

Secure Facilities – Exonerated 

  SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Corsicana  1  1 

Evins    0 

Gainesville   1 1 

Giddings 2 1  3 

McLennan 
  

 0 

McLennan – O&A 
 

  0 

Phoenix Program 3   3 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)    0 

Ron Jackson – O&A    0 

Sub Total 5 2 1 8 

Secure Facilities – Unfounded 

  SEPT OCT NOV Total 

Corsicana 3 3 2 8 

Evins 4 7 8 19 

Gainesville 
 

8 11 19 

Giddings 3 4 3 10 

McLennan     0 

McLennan – O&A    0 

Phoenix Program 16 3 11 30 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)    0 

Ron Jackson – O&A    0 

Sub Total  26 25 35 86 

 
 

426



 

Halfway House Confirmed 
Not 

Confirmed 
Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Ayres House     0 

Beto House     0 

Cottrell House 2 1   3 

Edna Tamayo House 
 

   0 

McFadden Ranch 2    2 

Schaeffer House 
 

   0 

Turman House 2    2 

Willoughby House 2    2 

York House 
 

  1 1 

Sub Total 8 1 0 1 10 

Contract Care Confirmed 
Not 

Confirmed 
Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Abraxas 
 

   0 

AMIKIDS DBA Rio Grande Valley 3    3 

Garza County     0 

Gulf Coast  4   4 

G4S, Youth Services, LLC     0 

New Day Achievement     0 

Specialized Alternatives For Youth     0 

Therapeutic Family Life    1 1 

Unity Children’s Home    
 

0 

Sub Total 3 4 0 1 8 

 
 

427



 
 
 

Parole Facilities: Confirmed 
Not 

Confirmed 
Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Region East     0 

Region North     0 

Central Office 1    1 

Sub Total 1 0 0 0 1 

Overall Total By Disposition 147 48 8 88 291 

 

*This table reflects the total number of cases opened and the total number of dispositions assigned.  One case can have multiple 

suspects with multiple dispositions. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 *This table reflects only the total number cases opened and closed. 

 

 FY 13 Thru Nov             FY 14 Thru Nov                              % Change 

Administrative Investigations Opened 208 274 32% 

Administrative Investigations Completed 181 230 27% 

428



 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Senior Director, State Programs and Facilities 

Subject: State Programs and Facilities update 

Date: January 14, 2014  

 

Population: (as of 1/2/14) 

 

 

  

Programs Budgeted Actual 

Female 

Pop 

Over 

Under Percent 

Evins 136 148 * 12 8.8% 

Gainesville 252 247 * -5 (2.0%) 

Giddings 208 213 * 5 2.4% 

Mart –LT 192 206 * 14 7.3% 

Mart- RTC 64 62 * -2 (3.1%) 

Mart - Phoenix 24 10 * -14 (58.3%) 

Ron Jackson LT 96 106 106 10 10.4% 

Ron Jackson O & A 112 95 5 -17 (15.2%) 

Total Institutions 1084 1087 111 3 (0.3%) 

429



 

 

 

 

Halfway Houses Budgeted Actual 

Female 

Pop 

Over 

Under Percent 

Ayres House 20 15 * -5 (25.0%) 

Brownwood House 8 3 3 -5 (62.5%) 

Cottrell House  20 14 * -6 (30.0%) 

McFadden  48 46 * -2 (4.2%) 

Schaeffer  House 20 13 * -7 (35.0%) 

Tamayo House 20 22  * 2 (62.5%) 

Willoughby House 20 11 * -9 (45.0%) 

York House 20 13 * -7 (35.0%) 

Total HWH’s 176 137 3 -39 (22.2%) 

Contract Programs Budgeted Actual 

Female 

Pop Secure 

Abraxas  3 0 * NO 

Associated Marines RGMI  20 16 * NO 

Byrds Group Home  10 5 * NO 

Garza County 40 36 * YES 

Gulf Coast Trades Ctr 10 7 * NO 

Pegasus 1 1 * NO 

The Oaks 20 20 * YES 

Mentor  5 2 * NO 

SAFY 5 3 * NO 

Austin State Hospital 0 1 * YES 

Terrell State Hospital 0 1 * YES 

Unity Children’s Home 9 0 * NO 

Vernon State Hospital 0 0 * YES 

Total Contract 123 92 1  

430



Residential Programming  

On December 19, 2013 the agency moved the Mental Health Treatment population at the 

Corsicana Facility to the McLennan County Juvenile Correctional Facility.  This action was 

taken due to a growing concern about the safety of mentally ill youth at the Corsicana 

facility and increasing staffing issues. In planning for this possibility, prior to the beginning 

of FY 14 the agency budgeted for moving key personnel from the Corsicana facility who 

were willing to transfer to Mart to continue work with this special population.  The new 

program is now located in dormitory space that was previously occupied by the old 

Orientation and Assessment program prior to its move to the Ron Jackson facility in 

Brownwood.  Youth are primarily located on Dorms A, D and E at Mart. 

The mental health program was budgeted for 64 youth.  In reorganizing the McLennan 

facility it was determined that the mental health program at Mart would be referred to as 

the Mart Residential Treatment Facility (MRTC).  The unit is clearly divided by a physical 

fence with dormitories on either side of the facility and the Phoenix unit remains on the 

same side with the MRTC program.  The Phoenix unit is currently budgeted for 24 youth 

and is in itself a specialized program.  Both the MRTC and Phoenix programs will be 

managed by one Administrative team - Francisco Garcia, Superintendent and Tim Luttrall, 

Asst. Superintendent. This team was managing the Corsicana facility and moved with their 

youth. The Mart Long-Term campus is currently budgeted for 190 youth and will continue 

to be managed by the existing administration at Mart - Bill Parks, Superintendent and Tony 

Stewart, Asst. Superintendent. 

In order to take advantage of the reorganization of programs and administration at Mart, 

agency leadership took advantage of this opportunity to move the Phoenix program into a 

building on the MRTC campus that is much better suited for the program in terms of space 

and building design.  In doing so, the program staff participated in two weeks of training 

specific to running the program with fidelity to the treatment design as well as providing 

training helpful in addressing aggressive and assaultive behavior. 

Giddings – Special notice should be given to a number of individuals who assisted the 

agency in the interim management of the Giddings State School during the months of 

September through December 2013 while management worked to fill the positions of 

Superintendent and Asst. Superintendent.  Tim Luttrall, Asst. Superintendent for the Mart 

Residential Treatment Facility (formerly CRTC) accepted an interim assignment to Giddings 

as Acting Superintendent in early September.  On the same date, Program Specialist 

Deborah Harris accepted an assignment as Interim Asst. Superintendent at Giddings State 

School.  Support was provided with visiting compliance officers, Program and Operations 

Specialist, Security staff and Treatment staff to address issues related to safety, culture and 

treatment at the facility.   

 

431



The leadership provided by Mr. Luttrall and Ms. Harris was absolutely critical in the 

successful transition of the facility to new administration and a compelling improvement in 

the youth and staff culture resulting in overall improvement in operations and safety at the 

facility.  They put in countless hours towards overall process improvements at the facility 

which included review and changes to regular daily schedule to routine security practices, 

improving youth privilege grids and incentives; and delivery of staff training on provision of 

behavior groups.  Their leadership, integrity and passion were evident at all times in 

bringing about change at Giddings.  Their contribution to the agency is deeply appreciated.  

A chart detailing the youth incident rate decline at Giddings is attached. 

While the youth population was reduced by 30 youth during this period a (12% reduction), 

the reduction in incidents is significantly more than that with a reduction of 62% per 100 

ADP. 

 

There remains additional work to complete at Giddings and other facilities in the overall 

improvement of service delivery in Specialized Treatment programs.  State Programs and 

Facilities is working closely with the Education Division to ensure that youth have adequate 

time in treatment balanced with meeting all educational and vocational training needs. 

Additionally, the division is working towards improving training for case managers and 

campus leadership to improve the quality of documentation related to group and individual 

counseling sessions. 

 

 

432



Turnover 

Overall, the agency turnover is decreasing slowly.  Attached please find a document titled 

“TJJD Turnover FY 2013” reflecting statistics through the end of the fiscal year.  Additionally 

I have attached the current turnover statistics for the first quarter in FY 2014.  The JCO 

Turnover rate for the first quarter of FY 13 was 10.71% overall in our residential programs.  

For the first quarter of FY 2014 the rate is 8.47% when you exclude turnover due to 

program closures.  Real progress is evident when you compare the rates at high restriction 

facilities from one year ago to today. The rate of turnover at Gainesville State School has 

reduced from 20.45% in the first quarter of last year to 9.24% in the first quarter of FY 

2014, more than a 50% reduction.  Rates of turnover for first quarter comparisons were 

also reduced at Corsicana, Ron Jackson and Giddings. The State Programs and Facilities 

division continues to emphasize safety and professionalism in building and maintaining a 

positive work culture.   

*JCO Turnover for FY 2013 and FY 2014 to date attached 

Workers’ Compensation 

In November 2013, there were 31 workers’ compensation claims filed, a slight decrease 

from the 34 filed last month. Of the 31 claims this month, 21 were due to aggression and 10 

due to industrial injuries.  So far in FY 2014, the agency has averaged 32 claims per month, 

lower than the FY 2013 average of 37 per month.  There has also been a significant 

reduction in the average number of claims due to aggression.  In FY 2014 there has been an 

average of 20 per month compared to FY 2013 that averaged 25 per month, a 20% 

decrease. 

The agency’s FY2014 current annual Injury Frequency Rate (IFR) is 14.15, a decrease from 

the FY2013 IFR of 17.77. The aggression IFR is 3.13, while the industrial IFR is 1.49. 

Included in this report is a further analysis of injury claims due to aggression. In November 

2013, there were a total of 21 aggression claims and 6 (29%) of those occurred during an 

assault. The remaining 15 (71%) were occurred during a restraint.  

The workers’ compensation expenditures for FY14 November Year-to-Date totals 

$716,686.72; approximately 35% decrease compared to the same period last year 

($1,100,667.16). The average number of employees has decreased by almost 3% for the 

same period (FY14 - 2664, FY13 - 2746). The average cost per FTE is $269.03 which 

projects to $1076.12 for the year. Previous year claims account for 89.2% of the cost.   

Please see attached graph showing history of claims in both aggression and industrial 

accidents since 2009. 

 

 

433



Overtime 

As previously reported, since June 2013, the agency held a number of vacancies open 

systemwide to accommodate the transfer of Corsicana staff who may wish to remain with 

TJJD should the facility be closed.  This impacted overtime expenditures at the agency in the 

first quarter of FY14.  With the move of the mental health treatment program to Mart, all 

positions in the agency have been made available to fill effective 12/23/13.  As of 1/1/2014 

the agency has expended $1,168,325 for overtime.  A complete breakdown by facility is 

provided for review with these documents. 

*TJJD Overtime report attached. 

Positive Developments 

In the last week of September 2013, with the agency began hiring at the Ron Jackson 

Orientation and Assessment Unit to ensure adequate staff are available to supervise youth 

when they begin to receive male youth at the facility.   

Mr. Jorge Gonzalez, former Asst. Superintendent at Evins Regional Juvenile Center has 

accepted a promotion to serve as Superintendent at the Giddings State School and began his 

duties there 11/15/2013. 

Mr. Victor Pena, former Program Specialist V at Evins Regional Juvenile Center has accepted 

a promotion to serve as Asst. Superintendent at the Giddings State School and began his 

duties there December 1, 2013. 

Mr. Eduardo Garza, former Program Specialist V at Evins Regional Juvenile Center has 

accepted a promotion to serve as Asst. Superintendent at Evins Regional Juvenile Center 

and began his duties January 1, 2014. 

The Gainesville State School Tornadoes have participated for several years in the Texas 

Association of Parochial Schools (TAPPS) sports activities.  This year for the first time in 

agency history, a youth from our facility was nominated for special recognition.  Youth J.P. 

was honored with Honorable Mention in TAPPS District III ALL State Awards at two  

positions -  Defensive Linebacker and Offensive Back. 

Throughout the holidays volunteers in all our communities give generously of their time 

and talents to assist youth in our facilities.  Listed below are a few of the activities hosted at 

our facilities to benefit youth and families: 

The second week in October the Ministry of the Third Cross from the Rio Grande Valley 

made a visit to the Evins facility to host a 4 day retreat for 24 youth from across 

campus. Throughout the event youth participated in skits, singing, dancing, prayer, religious 

teaching and other activities.  On Saturday night other community members and family 

were invited to the candle light procession to applaud the youth and show their 

434



support.  One youth stated that this is the best event this year that he had the opportunity to 

get involved in.  

On October 26th at Evins Regional Juvenile Center, the Word of Los Lagos Ministries 

provided the Evins Regional Juvenile Centers Christian Youth Concert.  The concert 

headlined “We Are One Spirit” kicked off on Saturday with a group of man rapping to some 

Christian music.  The event was sponsored by the following ministries:  National Day of 

Prayer, Love Your Neighbor, My Brother’s Keeper, First Baptist Church of Edinburg, Living 

by Faith Church and HOSEA Ministry.   

In November, the Evins facility hosted their annual Feast of Sharing event, a Thanksgiving 

meal offered to all youth and families in coordination with a family day, games and visits at 

the facility.  It was extremely well attended. 

In October, Giddings Interim Asst. Superintendent Deborah Harris was instrumental in 

starting an incentive dorm where youth who earned additional privileges could visit on 

weekends. Youth can earn 30 minutes to a 1 hour on the incentive dorm individually based 

on their behavior for the week, or they can earn 1 hour to 2 hours as a dorm. Their behavior 

each week shall include, dress code (clean shaven), no sagging, cuffs rolled correctly, 

movement shall include following commands of INS 91.11, dorms and cells cleaned, 

greeting skills to visitors on their dorms, behavior in education will include movement, 

classroom participation, little to no prompts or redirection, and following all of the 5 rules. 

What they will get in return on the incentive dorm includes  but is not limited to ; Board 

Games, Video games, Music, food such as nachos, chopped beef sandwiches, chips, candy 

bars, etc., and movies. It has been very successful in contributing to an overall reduction in 

incidents. 

In October at Corsicana Residential Treatment Center Staff put on a Fall Festival for youth 

which included games of Putt-Putt golf, air slides, football throws, musical chairs and a 

hayride around campus.  A copy of photos from the eveny was provided in your documents. 

 

 

 

 

 

435



 

Aggression and Industrial Injuries

21 21

13

15

13
12

17

22

18

14

29

14
15

14

12

8

12

17
16

14

9
10

9
10

11

7

16

12

14

11

24

13

17

13

10

14

10
11

15

6

18

5

12

16

10

12

8

12
11

13

10

53

45

69

40

53

36

57

43

29

39 39

37

49

51

44

39

35

38

44

37

31

38

31

18

46

26

31
32

39

37
38

48

34

48

25

30

37

29

21

27

30

21

19

14

23

20

23

40

19

2121

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p
 
2
0
1
0

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p
 
2
0
1
1

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p
 
2
0
1
2

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
l
y

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
t
 
2
0
1
3

O
c
t
-
1
3

N
o
v
-
1
3

Facility Closures 6/1/2010

10 Remaining

Facility Closures 8/1/2011

(6 Remaining)

Industrial Aggression

436



TJJD Overtime Status 
January 5, 2014 

Secure 
Facilities 

Budgeted 
Capacity 

OT Cost OT Cost OT Cost OT Cost 

13-Sep 13-Oct Nov-13 Dec-13 

Corsicana 96 $16,550  $21,467  $18,496  $32,430  

Evins 136 $30,002  $65,045  $67,362  $98,071  

Gainesville 252 $21,158  $21,893  $15,751  $31,638  

Giddings 208 $68,950  $80,196  $51,427  $27,199  

Mart 298 $48,475  $75,986  $66,559  $25,585  

Phoenix 24 $3,326  $8,010  $8,616  $5,296  

Ron Jackson 100 $8,317  $6,745  $28,688  $54,735  

Halfway 
Houses 

Budgeted 
Capacity 

OT Cost OT Cost OT Cost OT Cost 

13-Sep 13-Oct Nov-13 Dec-13 

Ayres 20 $540  $1,315  $1,726  $1,974  

Brownwood 8 n/a $3,569  $1,162  $37  

Cottrell 20 $772  $731  $166  $287  

McFadden 48 $1,930  $2,798  $3,707  $5,192  

Schaeffer 20 $1,029  $2,196  $974  $2,700  

Tamayo 20 $737  $439  $210  $722  

Willoughby 20 $523  $1,012  $817  $653  

York 20 $668  $1,191  $3,024  $3,007  

 

 
Secure 
Facilities 

OT Total Expenditures 
FY 2012 

OT Total Expenditures 
FY 2013 

Total to Date 
FY 2014 

Corsicana $1,409,420 $499,870 $72,293 

Evins $615,803 $522,436 $230,478 

Gainesville $343,420 $482,168 $251,636 

Giddings $866,850 $1,147,120 $227,772 

Mart $782,382 $785,671 $216,605 

Phoenix n/a $68,967 $25,248 

Ron Jackson $87,656 $100,844 $98,485 

Totals $4,105,531 $3,607,076 $1,122,517 

 
Halfway 
Houses 

OT Total Expenditures 
FY 2012 

OT Total Expenditures 
FY 2013 

Total to Date 
FY 2014 

Ayres $24,086 $15,683 $5,555 

Beto $9,133 $3,598 N/A 

Brownwood N/A N/A $4,768 

Cottrell $30,543 $22,029 $1,956 

McFadden $21,322 $26,047 $13,627 

Schaeffer $40,773 $24,565 $6,899 

Tamayo $17,608 $16,024 $2,108 

Turman $29,160 $26,909 N/A 

Willoughby $12,263 $10,207 $3,005 

York $47,351 $24,895 $7,890 

Totals $232,239 $169,957 $45,808 

437



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

438



Corsicana RTC
Fall Festival 2013

Each year all of the departments at 
Corsicana RTC come together to hold a 
Fall Festival for the youth.  The youth 
have always enjoyed this activity and 
this year was no exception.

439



Putt Putt Golf
Psychology Department

440



The Slide
Recreation

441



Musical Chairs
Caseworkers

442



Football Throw
Operations

443



Bean Bag Toss
Education

444



Popcorn
Administration

445



Hayride
Maintenance & Chaplaincy 
Services

446



 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Programs Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H, Austin, Texas 78758 

Thursday, October 17, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

October 17, 2013 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Dr. Rene Olvera, Committee Chairman 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith 

Scott Matthew 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  

MaryLou Mendoza 

Melissa Weiss 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Amy Lopez, Senior Director of Education Services 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

Elaine Mays, Chief Information Officer  

Dr. R. Parikh, M.D., Medical Director 

Rebecca Thomas, Director of Integrated Programs and Services 

Eleazar Garza, Chief of Internal Audit 

 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Connie Simon, TJJD  

Lucy Rodriguez, TJJD 

Kimberly Schmid, Lt. Governor’s Office 

Shakira Pumphrey, Speaker’s Office 

 

Call to Order 

Dr. Rene Olvera, Committee Chairman, called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m. Ms. MaryLou 

Mendoza was absent and Ms. Melissa Weiss arrived late.   

Approval of March 21, 2013 and May 30, 2013 meeting minutes 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith moved to approve the minutes of the March 21, 2013 and May 30, 

2013 meetings.  Mr. Scott Matthew seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

447



 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

October 17, 2013 

 

State Facilities Performance Tracking 

Ms. Teresa Stroud, Senior Director, State Programs & Facilities, explained the idea of a monthly 

‘report card’ in order for TJJD to track LBB Performance Measures as well as other criteria and to 

reflect how our facilities are doing in different areas, e.g., Health Services, Education, Volunteer 

Services, etc.  This data will be used to improve our outcomes where needed and make good 

management decisions.  The goal is to provide youth every opportunity for success after leaving 

TJJD.   

This is intended to be a working document and relevant sub-categories will be added as necessary 

in order to obtain additional data on security, case management, staffing strengths, worker’s 

compensation, etc.  The health services portion of this report was derived from close collaboration 

with Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director, and his staff who provided valuable insight in the 

development of this project.   

Closure Transition Plan for Youth  

Dr. Parikh and Ms. Stroud stated that although TJJD has not yet received a decision from the 

Legislative Budget Board (LBB) regarding which facility is to be closed, the Corsicana facility 

continues to be closely monitored since the TJJD Board recommended it for closure.  She and Dr. 

Parikh receive weekly updates regarding critical staffing (JCO, medical, etc.).  Ms. Stroud added that 

she and Mr. Griffiths, Executive Director, held a Town Hall meeting for the staff at the Corsicana 

facility on October 16th.      

Ms. Rebecca Thomas, Director of Integrated State Operated Programs, has worked with Mr. Thomas 

Adamski, Director of Secure Operations, and Dr. Lori Robinson, Director of Treatment, to staff every 

youth at the Corsicana facility over the past two months.  

Staff continues to work with the Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) regarding 

several youth who have high level mental health needs and who do not have an appropriate home 

to return to and/or who may be aging out of the system.  There are less than seven youth in this 

category, and staff are working diligently on finding an appropriate placement to avoid having them 

moved into an emergency shelter.  

 

448



 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

October 17, 2013 

 

There are currently 68-69 youth at Corsicana and, despite the Board’s recommendation to close the 

Corsicana facility (announced to staff in June), the performance measures of staff improve every 

month.  The youth are extremely well cared for, and the staff show up, work extremely long hours 

and do their jobs well. The self-injury rates and attempted suicides have been reduced at Corsicana, 

and there have been several days where there have been no youth on suicide alert at that facility, 

which was unheard of in the past.  

Dr. Parikh reported that the Corsicana facility uses approximately 25% of the 9,000 psychiatric 

hours used by TJJD youth (about 50-60 hours per week).  Psychiatrists are assigned to whichever 

facilities have youth requiring psychiatric assistance. For youth with high needs, we prefer to have 

on-site psychiatry. 

Dr. Parikh stated that 90 to 95% of youth at Corsicana are on psychotropic medication and a 

significant number of youth at Corsicana are of higher mental acuity compared to the rest of the 

population.  Ms. Stroud added that, out of the almost 70 youth currently at Corsicana, there are 

approximately 25 or fewer who do not function at a high level, even with medication.  Dr. Parikh 

reiterated that there has been a remarkable improvement in reduction of self-injuries.  

Progress update on the Career Academy  

Ms. Amy Lopez, Superintendent of Education outlined the goals and practices of the Career 

Academy which was implemented in September, 2013.  Youth wanting to participate in the 

program must fill out an application and obtain two adult recommendations.  Once accepted, the 

youth must sign a contract agreeing to maintain certain grades and a certain level of behavior.  

Math, Language Arts as well as Career and Life Skills training (managing personal finances, filling 

out a job applications, etc.) are presented.  A portfolio is created by each youth for their use after 

leaving TJJD.   

The agency has entered in negotiations with Texas State Technical College (TSTC) to form a 

partnership to discuss offering dual credit courses for not only the Career Academy youth but also 

the high school population.  TSTC has toured our Career Academy facilities and we have toured 

theirs.  Discussions are ongoing.  

 

449



 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

October 17, 2013 

 

Ms. Connie Simon, Manager of Workforce and Education Re-Entry Programs, reported on the 

Saturday Career Enhancement Programs (SEA).  Ms. Simon formed a technical oversight committee 

which is made up of staff from state facility operations, volunteers and family liaison coordinators.  

A number of classes were offered to the youth in September.  Classes included, but weren’t limited 

to: resume writing, goal-setting, self-discipline, job interviews, and how to dress for job interviews.  

Ms. Lopez reported on the Career Clusters offered at various facilities.  For example, at Giddings, the 

Principles of Architecture and Construction and the Principles of Transportation and Distribution 

Logistics are currently offered.  The McLennan facility offers the Principles of Audiovisual, 

Technology and Communications and Principles of Information Technology.  The Ron Jackson 

facility offers the Principles of Hospitality and Tourism, with restaurant management and culinary 

arts as the first part and Principles of Architecture and Construction are being added in November.   

Other pathways are possible, but are dependent on movement of teachers as well as facility closure.  

The youth are excited about these opportunities and feel they have a sense of purpose.  Ms. Simon 

stated that the programs have been a motivator for the youth as well as the instructors.   

Ms. Lopez reported that the Saturday enhancement activities will continue and the Technical 

Advisory Committee will develop a monthly report.  The TJJD and the Technical Advisory 

Committee will meet jointly every other month; together they will assess the status and evaluate 

the continuance of the program.  Workforce development centers with hands-on activities are 

provided in order for the youth to practice what they’ve learned.   

Ms. Simon stated that three facilities have a career academy at this time, and plans to expand the 

program to other facilities are being developed.  There is a waiting list which shows how interested 

the youth are and serves as an incentive for them to perform and behave at a certain level.  To date, 

approximately 250 youth have taken advantage of this program.  

The Honorable Jimmy Smith mentioned that there is a strong initiative by some legislators to try to 

put career alternative classes in the high school curriculum for students who are not college 

material.    

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:04 p.m. 

450



LIFE SKILLS & GANG 
INTERVENTION 
CURRICULUM

RECOMMENDATION

451



COURT-ORDERED GANG 
INTERVENTION PROGRAM 

� Chapter 54, Texas Family Code (TFC), Section 
54.0491

� TFC requires the intervention program:
– Include at least 12 hours of instruction; 

– May include voluntary tattoo removal; and

– Completion of program before discharging or releasing to 
supervision.

� Program focuses on similar gang related topics 
identified in TJJD’s Gang Intervention 
Treatment Program Manual. 2

452



REASONS FOR SEARCHING FOR A 
NEW CURRICULM

� Phasing out Cognitive Life Skills program

� Review and updating of the Gang Intervention 
Manual  

� The TJJD training department is developing a 
training course for group facilitators on the 
gang curriculum and emphasizing healthy life 
choices to leaving a gang              

3

453



CURRICULUM SELECTION

PROCESS

� Selection committee comprised of individuals from cross-
section of facility staff, parole supervisor, training 
department and gang experts from Harris County and 
TJJD.  

� Identified Program Criteria

– Evidence-based

– Non-confrontational curriculum

– Effective for TJJD youth 

– Appropriate reading level

– Overall cost-effectiveness

4

454



CURRICULUM CHOSEN:
NEW FREEDOM  

� Evidence-based

– May 2009, National Institute of Corrections (NIC) 
reviewed Phoenix Gang Intervention Program

� Conducted interviews with six different states (New 
Jersey, Wisconsin, Florida, New Mexico, Georgia and 
Ohio)

� Outlined Program Strength:
- Theoretically based; comprehensive and validated                        
- Evidence-based concepts of the social learning                            
model   

- Wide Variety of materials (age appropriate and in 
Spanish and English) 5

455



Program Strengths

� Flexible and easy to use materials

� Cost-effective and Self-Efficient Program   

� Promising program - OJJDP National Gang 
Center

� Integrates with Cognitive-Behavior Therapy 
(CBT) and Motivational Interviewing (MI) 
components

6

456



PROGRAM GOALS

� Increase self-efficacy against the highest and most 
common risk factors for delinquency and gang 
involvement

� Increase interaction with available protective factors in 
their environment

� Clear movement on measures of change (stages of 
change assessment tools), observed changes in their 
thinking, dealing with feelings, and more self-control in 
their behavior

� Increase awareness of the importance of making a 
change, their readiness to make a change, and their 
confidence in their ability to make a change

7

457



� Specific anti-gang materials found throughout the 
curriculum, particularly in Module 4. 
– include lessons where young people speak directly to risk factors for 

gang involvement and other gang issues. 

� The lessons help participants:
– examine their choices and options about continuing gang 

activity

– develop emotional intelligence and empathy

– identify their risk factors (people, places, things, situations) for 
violence and criminal behavior, and gang activity

INTERVENTION AND COURT 
ORDERED GANG YOUTH

CORE ELEMENTS

8

458



PROGRAM COST AND TRAINING

� One time site license fee:
– $5,000 per site (multiple site discount included)

� Unlimited copies of materials

� No outside requirements for Train the Trainers

� Training conducted at facility by TJJD staff 
– Reduce travel costs

– Available for coaching/modeling

9

459



QUESTIONS???

10

460



www.newfreedomprograms.com     www.gangprograms.com 

THE PHOENIX-NEW FREEDOM 100 CURRICULUM
Book One

PHASE 1:  Orientation & Preparation for Treatment     -    Pre-contemplation to contemplation

Lesson Core Resource Evaluation tools

Pre-evaluation:                                                                                     URICA

1 Introduction to the program Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)

2 Introduction to self-discovery

3 Self-disclosure

4 How important is it to you?

5 What am I doing here? Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

6 Introduction to Risk Factors

7 What does your future look like?

8 Life goals and life dreams

9 Reasons to change

10 Alcohol and drugs Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

11 Costs and consequences 

12 Friends and Peers

13 How it all fits together: Sam’s story

14 Why am I thinking about changing?

15 Strengths Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

16 Empathy

17 Introduction to CBT

18 How you feel affects what you do

19 Understanding your feelings: anger and anxiety

20 Understanding your feelings: sadness/depression Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Content Review (Lessons 1-1 to 1-20)
Leader’s Evaluations

461



www.newfreedomprograms.com     www.gangprograms.com 

THE PHOENIX-NEW FREEDOM 100 CURRICULUM
Book Two

PHASE 2:    CBT, Emotional Intelligence     -    Contemplation of Change 

Lesson Core Resource Evaluation tools

1 Who Do You Think You Are 1

2 Who Do You Think You Are 2

3 Symptoms and early warning signs 1 

4 Symptoms and early warning signs 2

5 Triggers 1 Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

6 Triggers 2

7 Functional thinking 1

8 Functional thinking 2

9 Functional thinking 3

10 I have my reasons Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

11 Functional thinking 4

12 Functional thinking 5 - Thoughts that work; Thoughts and feelings

13 Coping skills: thought stopping

14 Coping skills: thought stopping

15 Coping skills: thought stopping Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

16 Coping skills: thought switching/creative visualization

17 STOP Model, part 1

18 STOP Model, part 2

19 Problem Recognition

20 Think your way out of problems Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Content Review (Lessons 2-1 to 2-20)
Leader’s Evaluations

462



www.newfreedomprograms.com     www.gangprograms.com 

THE PHOENIX-NEW FREEDOM 100 CURRICULUM
Book Three

PHASE 3:  Coping Skills, Problem Solving, Risk Factors - Contemplation, Preparation/Determination 

Lesson Core Resource Evaluation tools

1 Avoidance Skills Confidence Ruler

2 Escape skills

3 Refusal skills 1

4 Refusal skills 2

5 Avoidance/escape review Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

6 Risk Factors 1

7 Risk Factors 2

8 Risk Factors 3

9  Respect 1

10  Respect 2   Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

11 What do you need?  1

12 What do you need?  2

13 What do you need?  3

14 What do you need?  4

15 What’s been getting you in trouble? 1 Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

16 What’s been getting you in trouble? 2

17 Disrespect 1

18 Disrespect 2

19 Avoiding the negative 1

20 Avoiding the negative 2 Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Content Review (Lessons 3-1 to 3-20)
Leader’s Evaluations

463



www.newfreedomprograms.com     www.gangprograms.com 

THE PHOENIX-NEW FREEDOM 100 CURRICULUM
Book Four

Phase 4  Gang Intervention -   Contemplation, Preparation/ Determination, Action 

Lesson Core Resource Evaluation Tools 

1 Romeo’s Story

2 Your Story

3 How Did Things Work Out?

4 Problem Behaviors

5 Retaliation Change Talk Tool
Change Rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

6 Daniel’s Story

7 A Practical Question

8 Risk Factors 1: intro, school, friends/peers

9 Risk Factors 2: community

10 Risk Factors 3: family Change Talk Tool
Change Rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

11 Risk Factors 4: Personal 1

12 Risk Factors 5: Personal 2

13 Choices/Changes

14 Terion’s Story

15 Gang Issues 1 Change Talk Tool
Change Rulers (Importance, Readiness,
Confidence)Leader’s Evaluations

16 Gang Issues 2

17 Gang Issues 3

18 Trust and Distrust

19 It’s Your Decision 1

20 It’s Your Decision 2 Change Talk Tool
Change Rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Content Review (Lessons 4-1 to 4-20)
Leader’s Evaluations

464



www.newfreedomprograms.com     www.gangprograms.com 

THE PHOENIX-NEW FREEDOM 100 CURRICULUM
Book Five

PHASE 5:  Risk Factors and Protective Factors -   Contemplation, Preparation/ Determination, Action 

Lesson Core Resource Evaluation tools

1 Getting close to getting out 1

2 Getting close to getting out 2

3 Do the math 1

4 Do the math 2

5 Facing your responsibilities 1 Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations
Trigger summary activity
1:1 resource (Staying in the gang)

6 Facing your responsibilities 2

7 Facing your responsibilities 3

8 You have options

9 You have options

10 Importance Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

11 Confidence 1

12 Confidence 2

13 Safety net 1

14 Safety net 2

15 Dealing with old people in new ways 1 Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Leader’s Evaluations

16 Dealing with old people in new ways 2

17 Your first few days 1

18 Your first few days 2

19 Jake’s lesson

20 Program conclusion; Triggers summary activity Change Talk Tool
Change rulers (Importance, Readiness, Confidence)
Content Review (Lessons 5-1 to 5-20)
Leader’s Evaluations

Post evaluation:                                           URICA

465



SAMPLE

LESSON # 4-20      

PURPOSE OF THIS LESSON and KEY OBJECTIVES:

This lesson overtly explores the concept of getting out of a gang.  It provides an opportunity to
clarify some of the issues, opportunities, and benefits surrounding these types of decisions.  It
reminds the participants that this decision should be theirs alone to make.  And it summarizes
the costs and consequences they have experienced through their gang involvement.

Because of the sensitive nature of this issue, the staff leader should again review the degree to
which this lesson will include an open discussion.  If any of the group members present a threat
to the others, this should also be addressed by staff prior to the lesson.

BEHAVIORAL OBJECTIVES:

1 Participants will identify their readiness to make critical life decisions themselves, as
opposed to allowing gang leaders to dictate those choices.

2 Participants will evaluate their readiness to step away from their old gang life, including
filling out a decisional balancing tool.

3 Participants will list several specific things they could do - if they chose to - to begin to
get away from their old gang life.

ELEMENTS OF THIS LESSON:

1         Opening activity: “What do you think?”  (5-8 minutes). 

  2 Core lesson element (see above)

466



SAMPLE

KEY QUESTIONS

1 When you think about the people you used to hang out with, would you put 
your future in their hands?  

2 Would you trust them to make decisions for you - which could lead you to be a 
victim of violence?   You might even get killed because of them?

3 Would you trust them to make decisions for you which could lead you to spend 
a lot more time locked up?

4 Why would you let anyone have that kind of control over your life?  Shouldn’t 
life-or-death decisions (about your life) be completely up to you?  

5 Who gets to call the shots in your life?

QUICK ANALYSIS TOOL

If I continue hanging out with a gang 
and don’t make a change.

If I make some changes and stop 
hanging out with a gang.

What good 
things coul 
happen?

What bad 
things could 
happen?

467



SAMPLE

You can clip the ties to your old gang

Options Can you do this?

1 Get a job so you are busy and out of the area ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

2 Get a second job for evenings and weekends ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

3 Get involved in a community program (perhaps in a different
neighborhood)

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

4 Get involved in some kind of sporting or athletic activity -
away from the area

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

5 Do some volunteer work - perhaps out of the neighborhood ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

6 Try to find a different place to live (perhaps with relatives) ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

7 Pursue some sort of school, vocational, or skills training
program - away from the area

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

8 Get involved in self-help programs ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

9 Prepare some good excuses why you can’t hang out (your
family, your jobs, your health, etc.)

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

10 Prepare excuses about the risk to your family (you don’t
want problems for your mom, your kid, etc.).

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

11 Tell the truth that you are trying to make some changes ‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

12 Explain that you can’t take risks due to your parole status
(“I’ve done enough time!”)

‘  yes   ‘ sometimes   ‘ no

What you can start doing today:

1 Stay busy - and keep going about your business. 

2 The busier you are, the faster the time will go by.  So look again for any program or
activity you can get into.   This can include:

‘  volunteer-led activities,
‘  faith-related groups (choir, chapel, etc.), 
‘  12-step groups and similar activities.  
‘  any available vocational or employment-related programming
‘  any additional school or educational opportunities

468



SAMPLE

3 Keep the big picture in mind.  You’ll be going home soon.  You’d like to be in good
shape mentally and physically, and moving in a positive direction.  The choices you make
should reflect this goal.

One good idea: talk to the program staff about your choices. They can help you get started in
making the choices which will work best for you!

469



SAMPLE

CHANGE:  RULERS CHECKLIST

What are you thinking about changing?

Why are you thinking about making this change?  

IMPORTANCE RULER

How important is it to you to make these changes?

(this is not very important to me)              (this is somewhat important to me)                  (this is very important to me)

     1             2             3             4             5             6             7             8             9             10

READINESS RULER

Are you ready to make some changes?

(not ready to make any changes)   (somewhat interested in trying to make changes)   (more ready to try to make changes)

 1             2             3             4             5             6             7             8             9             10 

CONFIDENCE RULER

If you tried hard, how confident are you that you would be able to make these changes?

(I don’t think I can do it)               (I might be able to make this change)           (I’m very confident I can do this if I try)

 not confident                                          unsure                                                         very confident  

 1             2             3             4             5             6             7             8             9             10 

470



SAMPLE

CHANGE TALK TOOL (PCA+)

This activity will help us help you.  Each statement describes how someone might feel about
participating in program activities and making some changes.  As you look at each statement,
choose the answer which best describes how you feel right now (not how you felt in the past
or would like to feel).  

There are five (5) choices for each statement below.  Choose the number which best describes
how much you agree or disagree with each statement.

Strongly
Disagree

Disagree Undecided Agree Strongly
Agree

1 I don’t need to change. 1 2 3 4 5

2 I don’t want to quit. 1 2 3 4 5

3 I don’t have any problems that need fixing. 1 2 3 4 5

4 Sometimes I think about making some
changes.

1 2 3 4 5

5 It might do me some good to make some
changes.

1 2 3 4 5

6 Sometimes I wonder how things might be
different.

1 2 3 4 5

7 I made the decision to do something
about it.

1 2 3 4 5

8 I’m trying to make changes. 1 2 3 4 5

9 I’m confident my new skills are working. 1 2 3 4 5

10 I made the plan and I’m working it. 1 2 3 4 5

11 I have had some problems in the past,
but I’m doing something different now.

1 2 3 4 5

12 I’m working to keep on the right path.  So
far, so good.

1 2 3 4 5

471



SAMPLE

NOTES TO THE COUNSELOR

The color coding below is designed to help indicate the various stages of change.  High numbers (4 or 5) in a given scale may
indicate the degree to which the participant is at that specific stage of change.

Pre-contemplation Questions #1-3      (Short Version= Question #1 )

Contemplation Questions #4-6      (Short Version= Question #2 )

Action Questions #7-10      (Short Version= Question #3 )

Maintenance Questions #11-12      (Short Version= Question #4 )

CHANGE TALK TOOL SCORING FORM: Transfer the client's answers from questionnaire.  Obtain
the average score per subscale using the following grid.

Pre-
contemplation

Contemplation Action Maintenance

1 4 7 10

2 5 8 11

3 6 9 12

Total = Total = Total = Total =

÷ 3 = (mean) ÷ 3 = (mean) ÷ 3 = (mean) ÷ 3 = (mean)

To get a Readiness score, sum the means for Contemplation, Action, and Maintenance, and subtract the mean
for Pre-contemplation:

C + A + M - P = Readiness

472



SAMPLE

LEADER’S EVALUATION OF SELF-REPORT ON CHANGE PROCESS

Name of participant:

Date:

Based on your interactions and this participant’s involvement in the program, please check one:

� This participant’s self scoring on the change instruments is basically accurate.

� This participant’s self-scoring is not accurate.  My impression is more negative.

� This participant’s self-scoring is not accurate.  My impression is more positive.

Comments:  

473



SAMPLE

LEADER’S EVALUATION: STAGE OF CHANGE

Name of participant:

Date:

Based on your impression of all aspects of this participant’s involvement in the program, please

circle the most likely “stage of change” below.   Note: in this case, the issue of “change” refers to

continuing his delinquent and/or high risk behaviors.

 
 

 
   

                     Pre-

                       contemplation

                             Contemplation                    Preparation/

                                             Determination

                                                Action             Maintenance              Relapse

474


	~Trust Meeting TOC_Agenda 01.30.14
	~Finance and Audit Committee Meeting TOC_Agenda 1.30.14
	~Safety & Security Committee Meeting TOC_Agenda 01.30.14
	~Programs Committee Meeting TOC_Agenda 01.30.14
	~Board TOC_Agenda 01.31.14
	Board 2
	Board 9, S&S 4
	OIG Lifecycle FY 2014 1st Quarter Final
	OIG Investigative Analysis FY 14 1st Quarter Final

	Board 10
	Advisory Council on Juv Services TJJD Board Update January 2014
	Advisory Council Agenda Jan 2014
	Advisory Council Agenda November 2013

	Board 11
	Advisory Council cover memo
	Advisory Council - Mark Allen - Resume'
	Advisory Resolution 013114

	Board 12
	Strategic Plan cover memo
	Strategic Plan - Board 013114
	Strategic Plan Overview of Sections
	Texas Two-year Planning Budgeting Performance Cycle A Graphic Depiction
	TJJD Stakeholder Chart
	TJJD Strategic Plan Input Document


	Board 14
	Ethics policy Memo
	Ethics Policy Resolution

	Board 17, F&A 5
	Contract Items Requiring Board Approval Jan2014
	Contract BoardResolutionAyresJan2014
	Contract BoardResolutionUTMBJan2014

	Board 18, F&A 7
	Endowment Trust Funds Audit Draft Report
	Endowment Funds Audit resolution

	Board 20, Trust 3
	Road Paving memo
	Road Paving resolution

	Board 21, Trust 4
	Mineral lease Memo(2)
	Mineral Lease Resolution accept Scully offer resolution
	Mineral lease Resolution reject Scully offer

	Board 22, Trust 5
	Board 23, Trust 6
	Board 24, Trust 8
	Board 26, S&S 7
	Item 26 Board Memo (Agenda Item 26)
	Item 26 Religious Accommodations
	GAP 380.9121 (board draft)
	GAP 380.9317 (board draft)
	Board Resolution - chaplain services Proposal

	Item 26 Board Resolution (Agenda Item 26)

	Board 27, S&S 8
	GAP 9312 Board Memo
	GAP 9312 (working draft)
	GAP 9312 Board Resolution

	Board 28, S&S 9
	GAP 9333 Board Memo
	GAP 380.9333 (working draft)
	GAP 9333 Board Resolution

	Board 29, S&S 10
	Ch 345 Board Memo (proposal)
	Ch 345
	Ch  345 Rule Review Template  (OGC)
	Chapter - 345 (board draft)
	Ch 345 Resolution 

	Ch 345 Resolution 

	Board 30, S&S 11
	Ch 359 Board Memo (proposal)
	Chr 359
	Ch  359 Rule Review Template  (Finance  Technology)
	Chapter - 359 (working draft)
	MOU with TCOLE (final)

	Ch 359 Resolution

	Board 31, S&S 12
	Item 31 385-A Contracts Board Memo (proposal)
	Item 31 Chapter 385-A Contracts
	Ch  385 SubCh  A Rule Review Template  (Finance  Technology)
	GAP 385.1101 (board draft)
	GAP 385.1105 (board draft)
	GAP 385.1109 (board draft)
	GAP 385.1111 (board draft)
	Resolution Ch 385-A

	Item 31 Ch 385-A Contracts Resolution 

	Board 32, S&S 13
	Ch 341 Board Memo (Probation & Community Svcs)
	Ch 341 (Pro & Comm)
	Adoption - Ch. 341 Rule Review Template (Probation & Community Svcs)
	341 Rules (with TR corrections accepted)
	341.16 (REPEAL)

	Ch 341 - TJJD Board Resolution (Probation & Community Svcs)

	Board 33, S&S 14
	Ch 341 Board Memo (Admin Training)
	Ch 341 Rule Review (Adoption) - Admin Training
	Adoption - Ch. 341 Rule Review Template  (Admin Training) 
	341.28 (REPEAL)
	Chapter - 341 (Admin & Training - Adoption)
	Chapter 344 (344.800) (Admin Training - Adoption)

	Ch 341 - TJJD Board Resolution (Admin Training)

	Board 34, S&S 15
	Ch 341 Board Memo (Finance)
	Ch 341 Rule Review (Adoption) - Finance
	Adoption - Ch. 341 Rule Review Template (Finance)
	Chapter - 341 (Finance - Adoption)
	341.52-341.60 (REPEAL)

	Ch 341 - TJJD Board Resolution (Finance)

	Board 35, S&S 16
	380-A Board Memo (State Pro. & Fac.)
	380-A Adoption Rule Review (State Pro Facilities)
	Adoption - Rule Review Template Ch. 380 Subchapter A (State Pro. & Fac.)
	GAP 380.8501 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8503 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8505 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8521 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8524 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8525 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8527 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8531 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8533 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8545 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8555 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8559 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8565 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8569 (adoption)

	380-A - TJJD Board Resolution (State Pro. & Fac.)

	Board 36, S&S 17
	Ch 342 & 380-A Board Memo (Probation & Community Svcs)
	Ch 342 & 380-A (Pro & Comm)
	Adoption - Rule Review Template Ch. 342 (Pro. & Comm. Svcs.)
	Chapter - 342 (adoption with corrections)
	Adoption - Rule Review Template Ch. 380 Subchapter A (Pro. & Comm. Svcs.)
	GAP 380.8539 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8595 (adoption with corrections)

	Ch 342 & 380-A - TJJD Board Resolution (Probation & Community Svcs)

	Board 37, S&S 18
	Ch 380-A Board Memo (OGC)
	Ch 380-A (OGC)
	Adoption - Rule Review Template Ch. 380 Subchapter A (OGC)
	GAP 380.8502 (adoption with changes)
	GAP 380.8535 (adoption)
	GAP 380.8557 (adoption)

	Ch 380-A TJJD Board Resolution (OGC)

	Board 38, S&S 19
	GAP 9198 Board Memo (adoption)
	GAP 380.9198 (adoption)
	GAP 9198 - TJJD Board Resolution (adoption)

	Board 39, S&S 20
	GAP 9723 Board Memo (adoption)
	GAP 9723 (adoption)
	GAP 9723 - TJJD Board Resolution (adoption)

	Board 40, S&S 21
	Default Order Memo to Board and ED
	Default Orders_January Board Meeting
	Default Order resolution

	Board 43
	Designation to Execute Deed memo
	Designation to Execute Deed resolution (2)

	Trust 2
	Trust 7
	F&A 2
	F&A 4
	CFO report
	CFO - Contracts Active Prior to Merge
	CFO - budget highlights

	F&A 8
	S&S 2
	S&S 3
	S&S 5
	AID Dashboard Board FY14 January 2014b
	CIU Summary Report FY14 January
	SIU Summary Report 12132013b

	S&S 6
	SP&F Update Safety & Security Status Report
	SP&F Update Workers Comp table
	SP&F Update TJJD Overtime_Board report Jan 2014
	SP&F Update Fall Festival 2013

	Programs 2
	Programs 4
	Gang Intervention Program
	Gang addendum
	100_description.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2



	Board 9, S&S 4.pdf
	OIG Investigative Analysis FY 14 1st Quarter Final
	OIG Lifecycle FY 2014 1st Quarter Final

	F&A 4.pdf
	CFO report
	CFO - Contracts Active Prior to Merge
	CFO - budget highlights

	Board 14.pdf
	Ethics policy-rev
	Ethics Policy Resolution




